
` 

SCV WATER AGENCY  
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, July 11, 2023 
Meeting Begins at 6:00 PM 

Members of the public may attend by the following options: 

In Person By Phone Virtually
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant 

Boardroom 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 

Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

Toll Free: 

1-(833)-568-8864 
Webinar ID: 160 456 0296 

Please join the meeting from your 
computer, tablet or smartphone:

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1604560296 

Have a Public Comment? 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 

Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the 
meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website 
prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available 
at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with 

comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
(Public comments take place during Item 3 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please see the Agenda for details.) 

------------- 

This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Board meetings will be posted to yourscvwater.com within 3 
business days from the date of the Board meeting.  

Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines regarding 
COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own 
judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant  
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road  
Santa Clarita, CA  91350 
(661) 297-1600

1

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

2



27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i te  add ress :  www.y ou rscv wa te r . co m

NOTICE AND CALL OF A SPECIAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that I, the President of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency, hereby calls a SPECIAL MEETING of the Agency’s Board of 
Directors. 

Said SPECIAL MEETING of the Board to be held on: 

TUESDAY, JULY 11, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

AT  

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
BOARDROOM  

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD  
SANTA CLARITA, CA 91350 

Enclosed with and as part of this Notice and Call is an Agenda for the meeting. 

Signed: ____________________________ 
 President   

June 26, 2023
Date: ____________________________ 

Posted on July 5, 2023. 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

4



 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com 

  
 
 
 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY  
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 
RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

BOARDROOM  
27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD 

SANTA CLARITA, CA 91350 
 

TUESDAY, JULY 11, 2023, AT 6:00 PM 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

5:15 PM DISCOVERY ROOM OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
Dinner for Directors and staff in the Discovery Room.  

There will be no discussion of Agency business taking place prior to the  
Call to Order at 6:00 PM. 

 
This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 

public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 456 0296 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1604560296. Any member of the public may listen to the 

meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above.  
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 

broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 

remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.   

 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting 

themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water 

Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received 
before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on 

the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if 

practicable, and will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence 
with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 

5

tel:+18668994679,,963232301
tel:+18668994679,,660724405


 
July 11, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to items within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time. Members 
of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the Board’s presiding 
officer, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 
 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR        PAGE 
 
5.1   * Approve Minutes of the June 20, 2023 Santa Clarita Valley 

Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 9 
5.2   * Approve Adopting a Resolution to Deactivate the Water 

Shortage Contingency Plan and Water Conservation and 
Water Supply Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2) 13 

5.3   * Approve Adopting Resolutions Setting Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency Tax Rate for FY 2023/24 and Requesting Levy 
of Tax by Los Angeles County and Ventura County  25 

5.4   * Receiving and Filing of April 2023 Monthly Financial Report – 
April 2023 Check Register 33 

5.5   * Approve Adopting a Resolution Approving and Accepting 
Negotiated Exchange of Property Tax Revenues Resulting 
from Annexation to Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District 
Annexation No. SCV-1121 69 

 
6. ACTION ITEM FOR APPROVAL             PAGE 

 
6.1   * Approve Adopting a Sustainability Action Plan  87 

 
7. STRATEGIC PLANNING KICK OFF MEETING – ED MEANS – 30 TO 40 MINUTES  

 
8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS 

 
9. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL                      

PURPOSES ONLY      PAGE 
 
9.1   * June 14, 2023 Water Resources and Watershed Committee 

Meeting Recap Report 259 
9.2   * June 15, 2023 Public Outreach and Legislation Committee 

Meeting Recap Report  265 
9.3   * June 19, 2023 Finance and Administration Committee Meeting 

Recap Report 271 
 

10. WRITTEN REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY  PAGE 
 
10.1   * Engineering Services Section Report 277 
10.2   * Finance, Administration and Information Technology Services 

Section Report 289 
10.3   * Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section 

Report 297 
  

6

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20April%202023.pdf


 
July 11, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

10.       WRITTEN REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY (CONT.)    PAGE 
 

10.4   * Water Resources and Outreach Section Report  307 
10.5   * Committee Planning Calendars 319 

 
11. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 
12. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS  PAGE  

 
12.1 AB 1234 Reports  

 
13. DIRECTOR REPORTS  

 
14. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR APPROVAL FOR EVENT ATTENDANCE 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
*    Indicates Attachment 
   Indicates Handout 
 
 

Note: The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above 
Agenda items. 
 

NOTICES 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs, 
Secretary to the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must 
specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone 
number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss 
appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make 
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested 
accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.  
 
Posted on July 5, 2023.  

7

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

8



 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency – June 20, 2023 
              
      
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held 
at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 
at 6:00 PM on Tuesday, June 20, 2023. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in the Minute Book of 
the Agency preceding these minutes. 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, Beth Braunstein, William Cooper, Maria Gutzeit, 

Dirk Marks, Gary Martin, Piotr Orzechowski and Ken Petersen.   
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT:   Ed Colley.   
   
Also present: Assistant General Manager Steve Cole, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Chief 
Engineer Courtney Mael, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer Rochelle Patterson, 
Communications Manager Kevin Strauss, Director of Water Resources Ali Elhassan, General 
Counsel Tom Bunn, General Manager Matthew Stone, Information Technology Technician I 
Jonathan Thomas, as well as additional SCV Water Agency staff (Virtually), and members of the 
public (In Person and Virtually). 
 
President Martin called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. A quorum was present. 
 
There were no changes to the June 20, 2023 Board Agenda, it was noted the page numbers for 
Item 6.2 and 8.1 were incorrectly listed on the Agenda, with that the Agenda was approved 
(Item 4).  
 
Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Marks and carried, the Board approved 
the Consent Calendar including the change to the June 6, 2023 meeting minutes reflecting the 
correct spelling of the Communication Managers name and Resolution No. SCV-362 by the 
following roll call votes (Item 5.1):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes 
Director Colley   Absent   Director Cooper   Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 
Director Petersen   Yes 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-362 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN SUPPORT OF THE NOMINATION OF  

CATHY GREEN AS A CANDIDATE FOR THE POSITION OF  
ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES PRESIDENT  

 
Link to Resolution SCV-362 

 
-------------- 

 
Upon motion of Director Braunstein, seconded by Director Armitage and carried, the Board 
approved Resolution No. SCV-363 appointing Kathie Kurt (Martin) as an extra help retired 
annuitant with the adjustment to the final recital of the resolution correcting “Santa Clara Valley 

9

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-062023-Resolution-SCV-362.pdf
ajacobs
Draft

ajacobs
Item 5.1



June 20, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

  

Water Agency” to “Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency” and under Item 5 of the same recital 
changing “Santa Clara” to “Santa Clarita” and approved the proposed Employment Agreement 
by the following roll call votes (Item 6.1):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes 
Director Colley   Absent   Director Cooper   Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes 
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 
Director Petersen   Yes 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-363 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY FOR 
EXCEPTION TO THE 180-DAY WAITING PERIOD IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 7522.56 AND 21224 
 

Link to Resolution SCV-363 
 
Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Marks and carried, the Board approved 
Resolution No. SCV-364 (1) designating Piotr Orzechowski as a representative of SCV Water 
to be eligible to run for office and serve on the Devil’s Den Water District Board and (2) 
revoked the designation of former SCV Water Director R. J. Kelly effective upon the expiration 
of his existing term of office by the following roll call votes (Item 6.2):  
 
Director Armitage   No   Director Braunstein   No 
Director Colley   Absent   Director Cooper   Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 
Director Petersen   Yes 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-364 
 

DESIGNATION OF PIOTR ORZECHOWSKI AS A REPRESENTATIVE  
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY FOR  

PURPOSES OF SERVING AS DIRECTOR OF THE DISTRICT AND REVOKING THE 
DESIGNATION OF R. J. KELLY AS A REPRESENTATIVE EFFECTIVE AT THE END OF 

THEIR EXISTING TERM OF OFFICE 
 

Link to Resolution SCV-364 
 

-------------- 
 
General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (Item 7). 
 
General Manager Stone reported on the following:  

• The upcoming bond financing which will be coming back to the Board next month;    
• Valencia Retail Capacity Fee coming back to the Board for consideration at the July 18, 

2023 SCV Water regular Board meeting;    
• Last month’s State Water Contractors meeting; 

10

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-062023-Resolution-SCV-363.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-062023-Resolution-SCV-364.pdf


June 20, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

  

• Litigation items pertaining to the ground water contamination with a Closed Session 
coming to the Board with updates in the near future;   

• Recent Executive Staff meeting where they discussed training initiatives and needs and 
looking at some project management training for upcoming managers; and 

• Yearly staff performance evaluations. 

He briefly updated the Board on Kathie Martin's recent retirement function and took some time 
to introduce the new Communications Manager Kevin Strauss who came to us from the City of 
Santa Clarita. 

Lastly, he advised the Board that consistent with the authority granted to the General Manager 
in Section 5.2 of the Purchasing Policy and based on the details about to be reported, there was 
an emergency that required immediate action and it was necessary to dispense with public 
bidding requirements. He stated that at approximately 3:00 PM on June 8, 2023, a leak 
occurred on a 12” pipeline in Newhall Avenue, south of Lyons Avenue in front of the DMV 
building. Staff quickly isolated the leak, however, water service was curtailed to approximately 7 
apartment buildings, a few single family homes and the DMV building. Water service was 
restored within approximately 10 hours at 1:30 AM. The City of Santa Clarita shut down the 
section of Newhall Avenue between Lyons Avenue and 8th Street. Roadway restoration work 
was conducted on Friday, June 9, 2023 and the roadway was paved on Saturday, June 10, 
2023 at a cost of approximately $175,000.  
 
To hear the full report in its entity, please refer to the Board recording by clicking on the 
following link – 062023 SCV Water Board Meeting Recording.  
 

-------------- 
 
Committee Meeting Recap Report for Informational Purposes Only (Item 8). 
 
Director Armitage commented on the 2023 Summer Scout Days Educational Summer Program 
planned for the Boys and Girls Scouts within Santa Clarita Valley, she was excited to see this 
program being offered. To hear the full comment please click on the following link 062023 SCV 
Water Board Meeting Recording. 
 
There were no other comments on the recap report. 
 

-------------- 
 
President’s Report (Item 9). 
  
The President updated the Board on upcoming meetings, events and miscellaneous items.  
 

-------------- 
 
AB 1234 Written and Verbal Reports (Item 10). 
 
Written reports were submitted by President Martin, Vice President Gutzeit and Director Marks 
which were posted to the SCV Water website and are part of the record.  
 

11

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/Board-Recording-062023.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/Board-Recording-062023.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/Board-Recording-062023.mp3


June 20, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

  

Director Cooper reported that he attended a One-on-One meeting with the General Manager 
held at RVWTP on June 7, 2023, virtually attended both the ACWA Infrastructure Task Force 
Meeting held on June 12, 2023 and the ACWA Finance Committee meeting held on June 13, 
2023.  
 
There were no other AB 1234 Reports.  

 
-------------- 

 
Director Requests For Future Agenda Items (Item 11). 
 
Director Braunstein would like the Board to consider including Director Reports and Requests 
for Future Agenda items to each Agenda instead of doing it once a month as it is now.  
 

-------------- 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:01 PM (Item 12). 
 
 
 
             
         April Jacobs, Board Secretary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
President of the Board 

12



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

On March 24, 2023, the Governor expanded Executive Order N-5-23 that, among other items, 
removed the request for the State Water Resources Control Board to require water suppliers to 
implement the demand reduction measures identified in Stage 2 of their Water Shortage 
Contingency Plans. On April 26, 2022, the SCV Water Board of Directors adopted a resolution 
to implement Stage 2 of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) and Water 
Conservation and Water Shortage Ordinance.  

During the Water Resources and Watershed’s regularly scheduled June 14, 2023 Committee 
meeting, SCV Water staff recommended a downgrade to Stage 1 of the Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan and Ordinance No. 2 based on recent updates to the Governor’s Drought 
Emergency declaration and subsequent emergency regulations adopted by the State Water 
Resources Control Board. Considering the 2023 Water Year, where the State of California 
received record snowpack and precipitation completely refilling its reservoirs coupled with 
changes to the statewide drought emergency compliance requirements, the committee 
recommended additional action to declare a No Shortage stage of the shortage plan and 
deactivation of the ordinance.  

Consideration of adopting a resolution moving from Water Shortage Stage 2 to deactivation of 
the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water Conservation and Water Supply Shortage 
Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2) is appropriate given current hydrologic conditions, Executive 
Order N-5-23, emergency regulations adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board, 
and normal condition conservation program activities offered by the Agency. 

Pursuant to adoption of the proposed resolution, SCV Water will transition to normal 
conservation operating levels to assist customers with their water conservation goals and to 
continue its progress towards “Making Conservation a California Way of Life.”  

DISCUSSION 

After three extremely dry years, the state of California just experienced record-breaking winter 
snowpack and precipitation. Over the first quarter of 2023, California saw record wet conditions 
that have replenished surface water storage reservoirs. Additionally, the numerous storms have 
yielded a snowpack of over 200-percent of average statewide and above average local 

DATE: July 11, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Matthew S. Dickens, MPA 
Sustainability Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting a Resolution to Deactivate the Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan and Water Conservation and Water Supply Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance 
No. 2) 

13

ajacobs
Item 5.2



 
 

precipitation. As a result, the State Water Project allocation has increased several times, from 5-
percent to the most recent level of 100 percent, as of April 20, 2023. 
 
Since April 2022, SCV Water has been in Stage 2 (10-20% shortage) of its WSCP, due to the 
Governor’s Executive Orders N-10-21 and N-7-22 and in compliance with the State Water 
Resources Control Board’s 2022 emergency conservation regulations. Due to the significantly 
above average wet conditions and the resulting Executive Order N-5-23 ending the requirement 
for Urban Water Suppliers to implement their Stage 2 response actions in their Water Shortage 
Contingency Plans, it is recommended the Board of Directors adopt a resolution implementing 
Stage 1 of the WSCP (voluntary reduction up to 10%). 
 
The purpose of the WSCP is to reduce water consumption within SCV Water’s service area 
through conservation; preventing water waste; and maximizing the efficient use of water to 
avoid and minimize the effect and hardship of a water supply shortage to the greatest extent 
possible. Between May 2022 and March 2023, following the enactment of SCV Water’s Stage 2 
WSCP, SCV Water customers took action to conserve 15.6% compared to the same period in 
2020 (equivalent to 11,016 acre-feet or 3.6billion gallons). 
 
The exemplary water efficiency performance of SCV Water’s customers combined with prior 
investments in a robust critical dry year supply program allowed the community to weather a 
drought of historical significance. SCV Water utilized approximately 45% of its banked storage 
supplies during this extreme dry period and is currently taking action to utilize surplus supplies 
to replenish its dry year supply programs for future dry year use. 
 
To promote water conservation, water use efficiency and sustainable water use, SCV Water 
offers numerous programs to its customers including, but not limited to, incentives for removing 
and replacing lawns, improving irrigation efficiency, rebates for smart irrigation controllers, 
home, business, and irrigation check-ups; returning to normal program expression will help 
customers save water today, tomorrow, as well as increase preparedness for future droughts. 
Combined with our engagement, communication, and education efforts, SCV Water will work 
with customers to “Make Conservation a California Way of Life.”  
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 
 
The recommended deactivation of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water 
Conservation and Water Supply Shortage Ordinance are not defined as projects under CEQA 
because it involves the creation of agency funding mechanisms or other government fiscal 
activities which do not involve any commitment to any specific project, which may result in 
potential physical impact on the environment (Section 153788(b)(4) of the State CEQA 
Guidelines). For projects under the plan that may require subsequent approval, a CEQA review 
will be conducted and, if warranted, environmental documentation for such projects will be 
prepared and processed in accordance with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
C.4 – Advance demand management and achieve State mandated water use efficiency targets.  
 
 
 
 
 

14



 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Previously staff anticipated and prepared for the potential of another significant dry year which 
would have resulted in continuing with a call for increased conservation of up to 15% compared 
to 2020’s use. This would most likely have resulted in continued reduced revenues from variable 
water use charges and the need to access its financial reserves to balance any remaining 
revenue shortfalls. Moving from Stage 2 to 1 is in alignment with normal year budgetary 
estimates and should lesson the potential impact from a reduction in revenues or the need to 
utilize financial reserves.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee recommends that the Board of Directors 
adopt the Resolution deactivating the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water 
Conservation and Water Supply Shortage Ordinance.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Draft Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Deactivate the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water Conservation and Water 
Supply Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2) (Attachment 1) 

• Governor Newsom’s July 8, 2021 Executive Order N-5-23 (Attachment 2) 
 
 

 

15

ajacobs
Steve Cole



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

16



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

TO DEACTIVATE STAGE 2 OF THE WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 
AND ORDINANCE NO. 2 

WHEREAS, the State of California experienced unprecedented drought conditions from 2020 
through 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Project, from which SCV Water receives approximately half of its 
annual water supply, provided only a 5% allocation in Water Years 2021 and 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Santa Clarita Valley experienced hydrological drought conditions with lower 
than average rainfall in Water Years 2020 and 2021; and  

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2021, Governor Newsom issued a Drought Emergency Declaration, 
which was extended on both May 10, 2021, and July 9, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-10-21, which urged 
all Californians to voluntarily reduce water use by 15% compared to 2020 water consumption 
levels; and 

WHEREAS, beginning in September 2021, the State Water Resources Control Board initiated 
monthly reporting to assess conservation performance statewide, by hydrologic region, and by 
urban water supplier; and 

WHEREAS, on October 19, 2021, Governor Newsom extended the Drought Emergency 
Declaration to include all counties in the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, on November 16, 2021, the SCV Water Board of Directors enacted Stage 1 of SCV 
Water’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan and the Water Conservation and Water Supply 
Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2); and  

WHEREAS, on January 4, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted Resolution 
No. 2022-0002, which included emergency regulations designed to prohibit wasteful water uses 
to promote water conservation; and 

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2022, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-7-22, which 
directed the State Water Resources Control Board to, among other actions, consider adopting 
emergency regulations that require urban water suppliers to implement response actions for a 
shortage level of up to twenty percent and that banned the irrigation of certain non-functional 
turf with potable water to mitigate the effects of drought conditions; and 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2022, the SCV Water Board of Directors adopted a resolution to 
implement Stage 2 of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water Conservation and Water 
Shortage Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board issued emergency 
regulations for urban drought response actions, specifically requiring all urban water suppliers 
who submitted a Water Shortage Contingency Plan to the Department of Water Resources to 

ATTACHMENT 1

17



 

implement at minimum, all demand reduction actions identified in the supplier’s water shortage 
contingency plan for a shortage level of ten to twenty percent by June 10, 2022 and prohibited 
the irrigation of non-functional turf with potable water in the commercial, industrial, and 
institutional sector; and 
 
WHEREAS, in December 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board extended the 
emergency regulations specified in Resolution No. 2022-002 prohibiting wasteful uses of water 
until December 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, in Water Year 2023, following above average precipitation and snowpack 
accumulation, the State Water Project allocation is 100% of annual contact for public entities 
who receive water from the State Water Project, including SCV Water; and 
 
WHEREAS, in Water Year 2023, the Santa Clarita Valley received more than twice the average 
rainfall which helped to replenish local groundwater levels; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 24, 2023, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-5-23 which, 
among other items, rescinded the 15% of 2020 voluntary conservation call and the directive to 
the State Water Resources Control Board to implement emergency regulations requiring urban 
water suppliers to implement the stage 2 measures of their water shortage contingency plans, 
but retained the drought emergency declaration and directed the State Water Resources 
Control Board to maintain the non-functional turf irrigation ban; and 
 
WHEREAS, between May 2022 and May 2023, following the enactment of SCV Water’s Stage 
2 Water Shortage Contingency Plan, SCV Water customers took action to conserve 15.6% 
compared to the same period in 2020 (11,016 acre-feet, 3.6 billion gallons); and 
 
WHEREAS, in May 2023, the State Water Resources Control Board readopted emergency 
regulations, effective June 2023 through June 2024, banning decorative grass watering (non-
functional turf) with potable water for commercial, industrial, institutional, homeowners' 
associations, and common interest developments community service organizations, and other 
similar entities, excluding residential customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, to augment the multi-year low allocation from the State Water Project, SCV Water 
utilized approximately 45% of its banked storage supplies, which will need to be replenished for 
future dry year use; and 
 
WHEREAS, in non-drought years, SCV Water provides standing water conservation support to 
its customers including, but not limited to, engagement, education, incentives, rebates, and 
programs to encourage and achieve water conservation, improve water use efficiency, and 
promote sustainability; and 
 
WHEREAS, in December 2022, the SCV Water Board of Directors approved the Customer 
Service Policy, which documents and establishes policies, rules, and regulations for water 
service including, among others, SCV Water protocols addressing water waste activities and 
water efficiency and conservation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water Conservation Ordinance are 
intended to encourage responsible water use, conserve our water resources, and protect the 
Agency’s customers, especially during times of drought, water shortages, and drought recovery, 
and the Agency remains focused on outreach, communication and education first; and 

18



 

 
WHEREAS, because of the improved drought conditions in the State and within SCV Water’s 
service area and Governor’s March 24, 2023, executive order, the Board of Directors hereby 
finds and determines that it is necessary and appropriate to deactivate Stage 2 of SCV Water’s 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Stage 2 of the Water Conservation and Water Supply 
Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2).  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. All the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and the Board of Directors so finds and 
determines. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made an operative 
part of the Resolution. 

2. The deactivation of Stage 2 of SCV Water’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan and 
Stage 2 of its Water Conservation and Water Supply Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance 
No.2) is hereby declared. 

3. This Resolution is effective on the date of adoption. SCV Water shall make a public 
announcement of the deactivation of Stage 2 of SCV Water’s Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan and its Water Conservation and Water Supply Shortage Ordinance 
(Ordinance No.2) as required thereunder. 

4. This action is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
State CEQA Guidelines Section 15378 because this action does not qualify as a project.  
Alternatively, the action is categorically exempt pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15307 – Protection of Natural Resources, Section 15308 – Protection of the 
Environment, and Section 15061(b)(3) – the Common Sense Exemption because it 
includes protection of the environment and assures maintenance of water as a natural 
resource, ensuring that water remains available in the face of current water shortage 
conditions; and none of the exceptions to the categorical exemptions set forth in the 
State CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply here. 

5. If any section, subsection, clause, or phrase in this Resolution is for any reason held 
invalid, the validity of the remainder of this Resolution shall not be affected thereby. The 
Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have passed this Resolution and each 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that one 
or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases, or the application thereof 
be held invalid.   
 

 
 

19



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

20



EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

EXECUTIVE ORDER N-5-23 

WHEREAS on April 21, 2021, May 10, 2021, July 8, 2021, and October 19, 
2021, I proclaimed States of Emergency to exist due to drought conditions; and 

WHEREAS the multi-year nature of the current drought, which began three 
years after the record-setting drought of 2012-2016, continues to have 
significant, immediate impacts on communities across California with vulnerable 
water supplies, farms that rely on irrigation to grow food and fiber, and fish and 
wildlife that rely on stream flows and cool water; and 

WHEREAS the March 3, 2023, snow survey conducted by the Department 
of Water Resources and partner agencies found that most regions of the Sierra 
Nevada are above average for snow water content, and some regions are 
nearing record amounts of snow, and snow and rain has fallen across many 
regions of the state since then, with more precipitation forecasted; and 

WHEREAS improved conditions have helped rehabilitate surface water 
supplies, but have not abated the severe drought conditions that remain in 
some parts of the State, including the Klamath River basin and the Colorado 
River basin, and many groundwater basins throughout the State remain 
depleted from overreliance and successive multi-year droughts; and 

WHEREAS continued action by the State is needed to address ongoing 
consequences of the drought emergency, including groundwater supply 
shortages, domestic well failures, and drought-related harm to native fishes in 
the Klamath River and Clear Lake watersheds; and 

WHEREAS the drought emergency has required a dynamic and flexible 
response from the State, and several provisions in my prior Proclamations and 
Orders have been terminated or superseded already, specifically Paragraphs 4 
and 8 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated April 21, 202 l, Paragraphs 
2, 4, and 7 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated May 10, 2021, 
Paragraphs 3, 4, 5, 6, and 10 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated July 
8, 2021, and Paragraph 9 of Executive Order N-7-22; and 

WHEREAS improved conditions warrant an even more targeted State 
response to the ongoing drought emergency and certain provisions in my State 
of Emergency Proclamations dated April 21, 202 l, May 10, 2021, July 8, 2021, 
and October 19, 2021, and in Executive Orders N-10-21, N-7-22, and N-3-23 
provide authority that is no longer needed to mitigate the effects of the drought 
conditions or direct actions by state agencies, departments, and boards that 
have already been completed; and 

WHEREAS notwithstanding the rescission of certain emergency authorities 
for emergency drinking water action, state agencies have existing legal 
authority and funding to continue expedited work to advance the human right 
to water, and state agencies will continue all ongoing drought resilience 
planning work, including through coordination with local agencies and tribes; 
and 

ATTACHMENT 2 

21



WHEREAS next winter's hydrology is uncertain and the most efficient way 
to preserve the State's improved surface water supplies is for Californians to 
continue their ongoing efforts to make conservation a way of life; and 

WHEREAS to protect public health and safety, it is critical the State take 
certain immediate actions without undue delay to prepare for and mitigate the 
effects of the drought conditions, and under Government Code section 8571, I 
find that strict compliance with various statutes and regulations specified in this 
Order would prevent, hinder, or delay the mitigation of the effects of the 
drought conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of California, 
in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State Constitution and 
statutes, including the California Emergency Services Act, and in particular, 
Government Code sections 8567, 8571, and 8627, do hereby issue the following 
Order to become effective immediately: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

l . The orders and provisions contained in my State of Emergency 
Proclamations dated April 21, 2021, May 10, 2021, July 8, 2021, and 
October 19, 2021, and Executive Orders N-7-22 (March 28, 2022), N-3-
23 (February 13, 2023), and N-4-23 (March l 0, 2023), remain in full force 
and effect, except as modified by those Proclamations and Orders 
and herein. State agencies shall continue to implement all directions 
from those Proclamations and Orders and accelerate implementation 
where feasible. 

2. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
April 21, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 2; 
b. Paragraphs 5-7; and 
c. Paragraphs 9-14. 

3. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
May l 0, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 1; 
b. Paragraph 3; 
c. Paragraph 5; and 
d. Paragraphs 9-10. 

4. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
July 8, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 2; 
b. Paragraphs 7-8, except those portions of paragraph 7 

withdrawing provisions of prior orders; 
c. Paragraphs 11-12. 

22



5. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
October 19, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 2; 
b. Paragraphs 4-5; 
c. Paragraph 8; and 
d. Paragraph 10. 

6. The following provisions of Executive Order N-10-21 are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 1; and 
b. Paragraph 3 

7. The following provisions of Executive Order N-7-22 are terminated: 

a. Paragraphs 1-3; 
b. Paragraph 6; and 
c. Paragraphs 14-15. 

8. The following provisions of Executive Order N-3-23 are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 1; and 
b. Paragraph 3, except those portions of the paragraph 

withdrawing provisions of prior orders. 

9. Paragraph 6 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated May 10, 
2021, and Paragraph 9 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
July 8, 2021, are withdrawn and replaced with the following text: 

To ensure critical instream flows for species protection in the Klamath 
River and Clear Lake watersheds, the State Water Resources Control 
Board (Water Board) and Department of Fish and Wildlife shall 
evaluate the minimum instream flows and other actions needed to 
protect salmon, steelhead, the Clear Lake Hitch, and other native 
fishes in critical streams systems in these watersheds and work with 
water users, tribes, and other parties on voluntary measures to 
implement those actions. To the extent voluntary actions are not 
sufficient, the Water Board, in coordination with the Department of Fish 
and Wildlife, shall consider emergency regulations to establish 
minimum instream flows to mitigate the effects of the drought 
conditions. For purposes of state agencies carrying out or approving 
any actions contemplated by this paragraph, Public Resources Code, 
Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) and regulations adopted 
pursuant to that Division are suspended. Nothing in this Paragraph 
affects or limits the validity of actions already taken in the Klamath and 
Clear Lake watersheds or ongoing under Paragraph 6 of my State of 
Emergency Proclamation dated May 10, 2021, or Paragraph 9 of my 
State of Emergency Proclamation dated July 8, 2021 . 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as soon as hereafter possible, this Order be 
filed in the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and 
notice be given of this Order. 

23



This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the State of 
California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, employees, or any other 
person. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Great Seal of the 
State of California to be affixed this 24th 
day of March 2023. 

overnor of California 

ATTEST: 

SHIRLEY N. WEBER, PH.D. 
Secretary of State 

24



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Agency has a contractual obligation to make annual payments to the State of California 
pursuant to its State Water Project Water Supply Contract.  The Agency annually levies ad 
valorem taxes that were authorized and deemed to have been approved by the voters when 
they approved the California Water Resources Development Bond Act (known as the Burns 
Porter Act) to help meet this obligation.  Based on projected expenses, including the 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) 2023 Statement of Charges, and revenues generated 
by rates and charges, the Agency annually determines the minimum amount that is necessary 
to be raised by ad valorem taxes. This year, staff recommend that the Agency maintain the tax 
rate of 7.06 cents per $100 assessed valuation (no change from FY 2022/23). 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In order to determine the amount that is necessary to be raised by ad valorem taxes, staff 
analyzes the projected State Water Contract Fund balance, estimated FY 2023/24 
expenditures, and projected revenue from rates and charges and other taxes, and recommends 
a tax rate necessary to fund expenditures and provide an adequate ending balance for future 
year costs. Staff estimated FY 2023/24 SWP expenditures based on the expected Statement of 
Charges that were prepared by DWR and estimated variable charges calculated using projected 
water deliveries from DWR. On the revenue side, the Board of Directors have previously 
adopted customer rates and charges for FY 2023/24 that they determined were appropriate 
based on rate studies and a formal public process, and it would be infeasible to expend 
revenues derived from such customer rates and charges on the estimated FY 2023/24 SWP 
expenditures, given that such customer rates and charges for FY 2023/24 have previously been 
approved in accordance with Article XIII D of the California Constitution . 
 
Los Angeles County requires the Agency to provide the estimated tax rate by the first half of 
August of each year. 
 
Based on staff’s review of these sources of revenue, as well as additional tax revenue, and 
projected expenses, staff believes it is necessary to maintain the tax rate of 7.06 cents per $100 
assessed valuation (no change from FY 2022/23) to meet the Agency’s State Water Project 
obligations.   
 

DATE: June 20, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting Resolutions Setting Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Tax 
Rate for FY 2023/24 and Requesting Levy of Tax by Los Angeles County and 
Ventura County 

25

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Item 5.3



Staff recognizes that SWP costs are increasing each year and will continue to increase annually 
based on discussions staff have had with DWR. There are some potential changes to the way 
DWR will be preparing the Statement of Charges beginning with calendar year 2024, which is 
why this fund, and the performance of the tax rate are monitored closely.  
 
Attachment 1 shows an analysis of the State Water Contract Fund for FY 2023/24 through FY 
2032/33 based on the current projections. 
 
For a home assessed at $750,000, the annual tax would remain at approximately $530. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This analysis and setting of this tax levy helps meet SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Goal E: 
Financial Resiliency – “Maintain a long-range, transparent, stable and well-planned financial 
condition, resulting in current and future water users receiving fair and equitable rates and 
charges.” 
 
On June 19, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve adopting resolutions (Attachments 2 and 3) setting Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency tax rate for FY 2023/24 and requesting levy of tax by Los Angeles County 
and Ventura County. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Based on the recommended tax rate of 7.06 cents per $100 assessed valuation and interest 
earnings, the FY 2023/24 estimated revenue is $44.4 million and the estimated expenses at 
$40.8 million. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the 
FY 2023/24 tax rate of 0.0706 per $100 valuation for Los Angeles County and Ventura County 
and adopt the attached resolution setting Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Tax Rate for Fiscal 
Year 2023/24 and Requesting Levy of Tax by Los Angeles County and Ventura County. 
 
RP 
 
Attachments 

26

ajacobs
Matt Stone



S
C

V
 W

A
T

E
R

 -
 S

T
A

T
E

 W
A

T
E

R
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 F

U
N

D

F
Y

 2
0

2
3

/2
4

 T
O

 F
Y

 2
0

3
2

/3
3

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 &
 F

O
R

E
C

A
S

T

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s

 R
e
v
is

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
2
2
/2

3
 

 P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

F
Y

 2
0
2
2
/2

3
 

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

F
Y

 2
0
2
3
/2

4
 

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

F
Y

 2
0
2
4
/2

5
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
2
5
/2

6
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
2
6
/2

7
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
2
7
/2

8
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
2
8
/2

9
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
2
9
/3

0
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
3
0
/3

1
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
3
1
/3

2
 

 F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
Y

 2
0
3
2
/3

3
 

Ag
en

cy
 S

et
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
36

,8
33

,2
62

$ 
   

   
 

39
,5

00
,0

00
$ 

   
   

40
,4

24
,2

80
$ 

   
  

41
,3

70
,2

08
$ 

   
  

42
,3

38
,2

71
$ 

   
  

43
,3

28
,9

87
$ 

   
  

44
,3

42
,8

85
$ 

   
  

45
,3

80
,5

09
$ 

   
  

55
,9

15
,0

86
$ 

   
  

58
,9

06
,5

43
$ 

   
  

63
,7

29
,8

11
$ 

   
  

68
,7

46
,5

53
$ 

   
  

In
te

re
st

 R
ev

en
ue

43
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
1,

83
9,

00
0

   
   

   
  

3,
93

2,
49

9
   

   
   

3,
93

8,
67

4
   

   
   

4,
15

2,
04

4
   

   
   

4,
24

8,
18

3
   

   
   

3,
84

2,
67

5
   

   
   

3,
68

3,
81

1
   

   
   

3,
13

0,
94

6
   

   
   

2,
99

2,
42

8
   

   
   

2,
46

6,
68

2
   

   
   

2,
11

0,
34

0
   

   
   

37
,2

63
,2

62
$ 

   
   

 
41

,3
39

,0
00

$ 
   

   
44

,3
56

,7
80

$ 
   

  
45

,3
08

,8
82

$ 
   

  
46

,4
90

,3
15

$ 
   

  
47

,5
77

,1
70

$ 
   

  
48

,1
85

,5
60

$ 
   

  
49

,0
64

,3
20

$ 
   

  
59

,0
46

,0
32

$ 
   

  
61

,8
98

,9
71

$ 
   

  
66

,1
96

,4
93

$ 
   

  
70

,8
56

,8
92

$ 
   

  
E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

Sa
la

rie
s 

& 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n

46
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

68
,9

42
$ 

   
   

   
  

72
,1

23
$ 

   
   

   
  

74
,2

87
$ 

   
   

   
  

76
,5

15
$ 

   
   

   
  

78
,8

11
$ 

   
   

   
  

81
,1

75
$ 

   
   

   
  

83
,6

10
$ 

   
   

   
  

86
,1

19
$ 

   
   

   
  

88
,7

02
$ 

   
   

   
  

91
,3

63
$ 

   
   

   
  

Be
ne

fit
s 

& 
Bu

rd
en

23
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

49
,6

06
   

   
   

   
  

51
,2

51
   

   
   

   
  

52
,7

89
   

   
   

   
  

54
,3

72
   

   
   

   
  

56
,0

03
   

   
   

   
  

57
,6

83
   

   
   

   
  

59
,4

14
   

   
   

   
  

61
,1

96
   

   
   

   
  

63
,0

32
   

   
   

   
  

64
,9

23
   

   
   

   
  

Em
pl

oy
ee

 E
xp

en
se

s
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
22

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
22

,6
60

   
   

   
   

  
23

,3
40

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
40

   
   

   
   

  
24

,7
61

   
   

   
   

  
25

,5
04

   
   

   
   

  
26

,2
69

   
   

   
   

  
27

,0
57

   
   

   
   

  
27

,8
69

   
   

   
   

  
Le

ga
l C

on
su

lti
ng

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

10
,3

00
   

   
   

   
  

10
,6

09
   

   
   

   
  

10
,9

27
   

   
   

   
  

11
,2

55
   

   
   

   
  

11
,5

93
   

   
   

   
  

11
,9

41
   

   
   

   
  

12
,2

99
   

   
   

   
  

12
,6

68
   

   
   

   
  

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
on

t/S
W

PC
A 

D
ue

s
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

23
2,

50
5

   
   

   
   

  
26

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
27

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
28

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
29

7,
67

5
   

   
   

   
31

2,
55

9
   

   
   

   
32

8,
18

7
   

   
   

   
34

4,
59

6
   

   
   

   
36

1,
82

6
   

   
   

   
37

9,
91

7
   

   
   

   
39

8,
91

3
   

   
   

   
SW

C
 A

ud
it 

Fi
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
it.

 
33

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
,4

06
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
35

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
36

,7
50

   
   

   
   

  
38

,5
88

   
   

   
   

  
40

,5
17

   
   

   
   

  
42

,5
43

   
   

   
   

  
44

,6
70

   
   

   
   

  
46

,9
03

   
   

   
   

  
49

,2
49

   
   

   
   

  
51

,7
11

   
   

   
   

  
D

W
R

 V
ar

ia
bl

e
11

,0
00

,0
00

   
   

   
7,

20
6,

00
0

   
   

   
  

11
,5

50
,0

00
   

   
  

12
,1

28
,0

00
   

   
  

12
,7

34
,4

00
   

   
  

13
,3

71
,1

20
   

   
  

14
,0

39
,6

76
   

   
  

14
,7

41
,6

60
   

   
  

15
,4

78
,7

43
   

   
  

16
,2

52
,6

80
   

   
  

17
,0

65
,3

14
   

   
  

17
,9

18
,5

80
   

   
  

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
on

tra
ct

 P
ay

m
en

t
24

,7
68

,0
00

   
   

   
25

,0
82

,9
42

   
   

   
29

,3
24

,0
00

   
   

  
27

,6
35

,0
00

   
   

  
28

,7
53

,0
00

   
   

  
30

,1
78

,0
00

   
   

  
31

,4
28

,0
00

   
   

  
32

,9
28

,0
00

   
   

  
33

,9
29

,0
00

   
   

  
35

,5
08

,0
00

   
   

  
37

,3
23

,0
00

   
   

  
39

,0
74

,0
00

   
   

  
D

ev
il's

 D
en

 V
ar

ia
bl

e 
D

W
R

 C
ha

rg
es

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

D
el

ta
 C

on
ve

ya
nc

e
2,

41
3,

33
9

   
   

   
  

27
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
29

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
2,

51
9,

00
0

   
   

   
4,

86
6,

00
0

   
   

   
7,

23
4,

00
0

   
   

   
10

,2
64

,0
00

   
   

  
13

,8
31

,0
00

   
   

  
17

,3
96

,0
00

   
   

  
21

,0
66

,0
00

   
   

  
24

,8
47

,0
00

   
   

  
R

ef
un

d 
of

 E
xc

es
s 

SW
C

 F
ix

ed
 C

hg
s

(2
,0

00
,0

00
)

   
   

   
 

(2
,0

00
,0

00
)

   
   

   
 

(2
,5

00
,0

00
)

   
   

  
(2

,5
00

,0
00

)
   

   
  

(2
,5

00
,0

00
)

   
   

  
(2

,5
00

,0
00

)
   

   
  

(2
,5

00
,0

00
)

   
   

  
(2

,5
00

,0
00

)
   

   
  

(2
,5

00
,0

00
)

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

on
tin

ge
nc

ie
s

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

38
,6

48
,3

39
$ 

   
   

 
30

,6
03

,8
53

$ 
   

   
40

,8
42

,5
48

$ 
   

  
39

,7
52

,3
74

$ 
   

  
43

,9
86

,6
85

$ 
   

  
48

,4
16

,2
19

$ 
   

  
52

,7
24

,5
33

$ 
   

  
57

,9
79

,2
64

$ 
   

  
63

,3
08

,1
30

$ 
   

  
71

,7
50

,9
34

$ 
   

  
78

,0
74

,5
70

$ 
   

  
84

,4
87

,0
27

$ 
   

  

An
nu

al
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

(1
,3

85
,0

77
)

   
   

   
 

10
,7

35
,1

47
   

   
   

3,
51

4,
23

2
   

   
   

5,
55

6,
50

8
   

   
   

2,
50

3,
63

0
   

   
   

(8
39

,0
49

)
   

   
   

  
(4

,5
38

,9
73

)
   

   
  

(8
,9

14
,9

44
)

   
   

  
(4

,2
62

,0
98

)
   

   
  

(9
,8

51
,9

63
)

   
   

  
(1

1,
87

8,
07

7)
   

   
(1

3,
63

0,
13

4)
   

   

Es
td

 B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 J

ul
y

86
,9

45
,8

48
   

   
   

88
,3

20
,2

51
   

   
   

99
,0

55
,3

98
   

   
  

10
2,

56
9,

63
0

   
   

10
8,

12
6,

13
8

   
   

11
0,

62
9,

76
7

   
   

10
9,

79
0,

71
9

   
   

10
5,

25
1,

74
6

   
   

96
,3

36
,8

01
   

   
  

92
,0

74
,7

04
   

   
  

82
,2

22
,7

41
   

   
  

70
,3

44
,6

64
   

   
  

Es
td

 E
nd

in
g 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 J
un

e
85

,5
60

,7
71

$ 
   

   
 

99
,0

55
,3

98
$ 

   
   

10
2,

56
9,

63
0

$ 
   

10
8,

12
6,

13
8

$ 
   

11
0,

62
9,

76
7

$ 
   

10
9,

79
0,

71
9

$ 
   

10
5,

25
1,

74
6

$ 
   

96
,3

36
,8

01
$ 

   
  

92
,0

74
,7

04
$ 

   
  

82
,2

22
,7

41
$ 

   
  

70
,3

44
,6

64
$ 

   
  

56
,7

14
,5

30
$ 

   
  

M
in

im
um

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

e
35

,7
68

,0
00

   
   

   
32

,2
88

,9
42

   
   

   
40

,8
74

,0
00

   
   

  
39

,7
63

,0
00

   
   

  
41

,4
87

,4
00

   
   

  
43

,5
49

,1
20

   
   

  
45

,4
67

,6
76

   
   

  
47

,6
69

,6
60

   
   

  
49

,4
07

,7
43

   
   

  
51

,7
60

,6
80

   
   

  
54

,3
88

,3
14

   
   

  
56

,9
92

,5
80

   
   

  

AG
EN

C
Y 

SE
T 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 T

AX
 R

EV
EN

U
E

An
nu

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n
4.

08
%

2.
34

%
2.

34
%

2.
34

%
2.

34
%

2.
34

%
2.

34
%

2.
34

%
2.

34
%

2.
34

%
2.

34
%

Va
lu

at
io

n 
(b

as
e 

ye
ar

 2
2-

23
)

53
,7

55
,7

46
,6

72
   

   
55

,9
48

,9
81

,1
36

$ 
   

57
,2

58
,1

87
,2

95
$ 

 
58

,5
98

,0
28

,8
78

$ 
 

59
,9

69
,2

22
,7

53
$ 

 
61

,3
72

,5
02

,5
66

$ 
 

62
,8

08
,6

19
,1

26
$ 

 
64

,2
78

,3
40

,8
13

$ 
 

65
,7

82
,4

53
,9

88
$ 

 
67

,3
21

,7
63

,4
12

$ 
 

68
,8

97
,0

92
,6

75
$ 

 
70

,5
09

,2
84

,6
44

$ 
 

(v
al

ua
tio

n 
- e

xe
m

pt
io

n)
Va

lu
at

io
n 

/ 1
00

53
7,

55
7,

46
7

$ 
   

   
  

55
9,

48
9,

81
1

$ 
   

   
  

57
2,

58
1,

87
3

$ 
   

   
58

5,
98

0,
28

9
$ 

   
   

59
9,

69
2,

22
8

$ 
   

   
61

3,
72

5,
02

6
$ 

   
   

62
8,

08
6,

19
1

$ 
   

   
64

2,
78

3,
40

8
$ 

   
   

65
7,

82
4,

54
0

$ 
   

   
67

3,
21

7,
63

4
$ 

   
   

68
8,

97
0,

92
7

$ 
   

   
70

5,
09

2,
84

6
$ 

   
   

Ta
x 

R
at

e
0.

07
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

07
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

07
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
07

06
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

07
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
07

06
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

07
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
07

06
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

08
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
08

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

09
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
09

75
   

   
   

   
   

   

Va
lu

at
io

n 
x 

Ta
x 

R
at

e
37

,9
51

,5
57

$ 
   

   
   

 
39

,4
99

,9
81

$ 
   

   
   

 
40

,4
24

,2
80

$ 
   

   
  

41
,3

70
,2

08
$ 

   
   

  
42

,3
38

,2
71

$ 
   

   
  

43
,3

28
,9

87
$ 

   
   

  
44

,3
42

,8
85

$ 
   

   
  

45
,3

80
,5

09
$ 

   
   

  
55

,9
15

,0
86

$ 
   

   
  

58
,9

06
,5

43
$ 

   
   

  
63

,7
29

,8
11

$ 
   

   
  

68
,7

46
,5

53
$ 

   
   

  

M
ed

ia
n 

H
om

e 
Va

lu
e

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

An
nu

al
 T

ax
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
63

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
65

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
69

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
73

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

6/
12

/2
02

3

27

edill
Attachment 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

28



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

SETTING SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY TAX RATE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2023/24 AND REQUESTING LEVY 

OF TAX BY LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code, Section 96.31(a)(2), the Agency is 
empowered to make payments to the State of California under contracts for the sale, delivery, or 
use of water entered into pursuant to the California Water Resources Development Bond Act as 
set forth in the California Water Code with revenue derived from an ad valorem property tax 
rate; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency is hereby setting an ad valorem property tax rate for its Fiscal Year 
2023/24 solely for the making of the aforesaid type of payment and solely because a property 
tax rate is necessary to supplement customer rates because the expenditure of revenues 
derived from such customer rates on the making of the aforesaid type of payment during Fiscal 
Year 2023/24 would be infeasible given that such rates have previously been appropriately set 
based on rate studies and a formal public process in accordance with Article XIII D of the 
California Constitution, and not to fund any reduction whatsoever in the rates charged by the 
Agency for water. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Water 
Agency does hereby fix the rate of tax to be levied against all taxable property within the Agency 
at $0.000706000 for each $1.00 of assessed valuation, or $0.070600 for each $100 of assessed 
valuation, for Fiscal Year 2023/24 for the aforesaid purpose. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that this Board does hereby request and direct that, at the time and in 
the manner required by law for levying taxes for county purposes, the Board of Supervisors of 
Los Angeles County, in addition to such other tax as may be levied by said Board of 
Supervisors, levy a tax upon all taxable property in Los Angeles County within the Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency at the aforesaid rate so fixed and determined by the Board of Directors of 
the said Agency, all pursuant to Resolution No. 70 of the Agency, as adopted on September 6, 
1967. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of this Agency does hereby direct that the 
Secretary of the Agency cause to be delivered to the Board of Supervisors of Los Angeles 
County a certified copy of this resolution, and the Secretary is further authorized to furnish any 
legally required Agency budget information reasonable needed by the officers of the said 
County with respect to the aforesaid tax and tax rate. 

29

edill
Attachment 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

30



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

SETTING SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY TAX RATE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2023/24 AND REQUESTING LEVY 

OF TAX BY VENTURA COUNTY 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code, Section 96.31(a)(2), the Agency is 
empowered to make payments to the State of California under contracts for the sale, delivery, or 
use of water entered into pursuant to the California Water Resources Development Bond Act as 
set forth in the California Water Code with revenue derived from an ad valorem property tax 
rate; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency is hereby setting an ad valorem property tax rate for its Fiscal Year 
2023/24 solely for the making of the aforesaid type of payment and solely because a property 
tax rate is necessary to supplement customer rates because the expenditure of revenues 
derived from such customer rates on the making of the aforesaid type of payment during Fiscal 
Year 2023/24 would be infeasible given that such rates have previously been appropriately set 
based on rate studies and a formal public process in accordance with Article XIII D of the 
California Constitution, and not to fund any reduction whatsoever in the rates charged by the 
Agency for water. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency does hereby fix the rate of tax to be levied against all taxable property within the 
Agency at $0.00070600 for each $1.00 of assessed valuation, or $0.070600 for each $100 of 
assessed valuation, for Fiscal Year 2023/24 for the aforesaid purpose. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that this Board does hereby request and direct that, at the time and in 
the manner required by law for levying taxes for county purposes, the Board of Supervisors of 
Ventura County, in addition to such other tax as may be levied by said Board of Supervisors, 
levy a tax upon all taxable property in Ventura County within the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency at the aforesaid rate so fixed and determined by the Board of Directors of the said 
Agency, all pursuant to Resolution No. 69 of the Agency, as adopted on September 6, 1967. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of this Agency does hereby direct that the 
Secretary of the Agency cause to be delivered to the Board of Supervisors of Ventura County a 
certified copy of this resolution, and the Secretary is further authorized to furnish any legally 
required Agency budget information reasonable needed by the officers of the said County with 
respect to the aforesaid tax and tax rate. 

31

edill
Attachment 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

32



 

 
 
 

 

 

Monthly 

Financial 

Report 
 

 

APRIL 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33

ajacobs
Item 5.4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

34



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Statement of 

Revenues and Expenses 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

36



S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

F
o

r 
th

e
 1

0
th

 P
e

ri
o

d
 E

n
d

in
g

 4
.3

0
.2

3

(A
)

(B
)

(C
)

(D
)

(E
)

(F
)

(G
)

(H
)

A
c

tu
a

l
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t

A
c

tu
a

l
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

(1
)

4,
64

9,
60

9
$ 

   
 

5,
45

4,
91

4
$ 

   
  

(8
05

,3
06

)
$ 

   
   

 
(1

5%
)

( a
 )

W
at

er
 S

al
es

67
,1

81
,5

75
$ 

   
 

75
,4

59
,6

48
$ 

   
 

(8
,2

78
,0

73
)

$ 
   

 
(1

1%
)

(1
)

(2
)

25
,0

92
   

   
   

   
25

,1
82

   
   

   
   

 
(9

0)
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(0
%

)
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 - 

W
W

R
24

6,
54

0
   

   
   

   
24

7,
41

1
   

   
   

   
(8

71
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

(0
%

)
(2

)
(3

)
2,

79
3

   
   

   
   

   
39

,0
51

   
   

   
   

 
(3

6,
25

8)
   

   
   

   
(9

3%
)

( b
 )

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 - 
R

ec
yc

le
d

23
2,

01
7

   
   

   
   

39
0,

51
0

   
   

   
   

(1
58

,4
94

)
   

   
   

 
(4

1%
)

(3
)

(4
)

52
,4

30
   

   
   

   
61

,2
00

   
   

   
   

 
(8

,7
70

)
   

   
   

   
  

(1
4%

)
( c

 )
M

is
c 

Fe
es

 a
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

46
8,

01
8

   
   

   
   

84
6,

60
0

   
   

   
   

(3
78

,5
82

)
   

   
   

 
(4

5%
)

(4
)

(5
)

4,
72

9,
92

3
$ 

   
 

5,
58

0,
34

7
$ 

   
  

(8
50

,4
24

)
$ 

   
   

 
(1

5%
)

T
o

ta
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

68
,1

28
,1

49
$ 

   
 

76
,9

44
,1

70
$ 

   
 

(8
,8

16
,0

20
)

$ 
   

 
(1

1%
)

(5
)

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

(6
)

84
9,

74
3

$ 
   

   
 

49
7,

91
3

$ 
   

   
  

35
1,

83
0

$ 
   

   
  

71
%

( d
 )

M
an

ag
em

en
t

2,
21

1,
92

0
$ 

   
   

4,
75

4,
76

1
$ 

   
   

(2
,5

42
,8

41
)

$ 
   

 
(5

4%
)

(6
)

(7
)

1,
54

1,
55

9
   

   
 

1,
89

6,
83

9
   

   
  

(3
55

,2
81

)
   

   
   

 
(1

9%
)

( e
 )

Fi
na

nc
e,

 A
dm

in
 &

 IT
15

,5
21

,8
20

   
   

 
17

,1
39

,1
67

   
   

 
(1

,6
17

,3
47

)
   

   
 

(9
%

)
(7

)
(8

)
27

0,
17

1
   

   
   

 
27

9,
31

8
   

   
   

  
(9

,1
47

)
   

   
   

   
  

(3
%

)
C

us
to

m
er

 C
ar

e
2,

40
3,

69
4

   
   

   
2,

31
2,

17
5

   
   

   
91

,5
19

   
   

   
   

 
4%

(8
)

(9
)

78
7,

69
3

   
   

   
 

94
7,

14
2

   
   

   
  

(1
59

,4
49

)
   

   
   

 
(1

7%
)

( f
 )

Tr
an

s 
& 

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n

8,
43

4,
79

4
   

   
   

8,
78

9,
50

7
   

   
   

(3
54

,7
13

)
   

   
   

 
(4

%
)

(9
)

(1
0)

66
0,

23
5

   
   

   
 

1,
17

7,
37

5
   

   
  

(5
17

,1
40

)
   

   
   

 
(4

4%
)

( g
 )

Pu
m

pi
ng

 W
el

ls
 &

 S
to

ra
ge

11
,3

52
,2

32
   

   
 

11
,9

89
,2

28
   

   
 

(6
36

,9
96

)
   

   
   

 
(5

%
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

54
2,

96
2

   
   

   
 

90
3,

47
8

   
   

   
  

(3
60

,5
16

)
   

   
   

 
(4

0%
)

( h
 )

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

5,
81

4,
97

7
   

   
   

7,
91

3,
25

2
   

   
   

(2
,0

98
,2

75
)

   
   

 
(2

7%
)

(1
1)

(1
2)

45
,9

43
   

   
   

   
1,

04
6,

81
7

   
   

  
(1

,0
00

,8
73

)
   

   
 

(9
6%

)
( i

 )
So

ur
ce

 o
f S

up
pl

y
6,

09
8,

13
5

   
   

   
10

,4
31

,3
17

   
   

 
(4

,3
33

,1
82

)
   

   
 

(4
2%

)
(1

2)
(1

3)
91

5,
99

0
   

   
   

 
1,

18
7,

62
0

   
   

  
(2

71
,6

30
)

   
   

   
 

(2
3%

)
( j

 )
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y,

 T
re

at
m

en
t &

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

10
,6

68
,4

82
   

   
 

9,
59

1,
01

1
   

   
   

1,
07

7,
47

0
   

   
  

11
%

(1
3)

(1
4)

39
6,

28
3

   
   

   
 

57
8,

80
0

   
   

   
  

(1
82

,5
18

)
   

   
   

 
(3

2%
)

( k
)

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

3,
41

6,
90

8
   

   
   

4,
36

2,
89

9
   

   
   

(9
45

,9
90

)
   

   
   

 
(2

2%
)

(1
4)

(1
5)

6,
01

0,
57

9
$ 

   
 

8,
51

5,
30

3
$ 

   
  

(2
,5

04
,7

24
)

$ 
   

 
(2

9%
)

T
o

ta
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 E
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

65
,9

22
,9

61
$ 

   
 

77
,2

83
,3

17
$ 

   
 

(1
1,

36
0,

35
6)

$ 
  

(1
5%

)
(1

5)

(1
6)

(1
,2

80
,6

56
)

$ 
   

(2
,9

34
,9

55
)

$ 
   

 
1,

65
4,

30
0

$ 
   

  
(5

6%
)

N
e

t 
O

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 (
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
)

2,
20

5,
18

8
$ 

   
   

(3
39

,1
47

)
$ 

   
   

  
2,

54
4,

33
5

$ 
   

  
(7

50
%

)
(1

6)

N
o

n
-O

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 (

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

)

(1
7)

10
,5

09
,6

52
$ 

  
10

,6
62

,6
56

$ 
   

(1
53

,0
04

)
$ 

   
   

 
(1

%
)

N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

1
42

,1
39

,1
86

$ 
   

 
48

,1
18

,1
38

$ 
   

 
(5

,9
78

,9
52

)
$ 

   
 

(1
2%

)
(1

7)
(1

8)
(2

,2
32

,3
90

)
   

   
(6

,3
17

,1
53

)
   

   
 

4,
08

4,
76

3
   

   
  

(6
5%

)
( l

 )
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

s 
- P

ay
 G

o
(1

8,
28

6,
35

4)
   

   
(6

3,
17

1,
52

5)
   

   
44

,8
85

,1
71

   
   

(7
1%

)
(1

8)
(1

9)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0%
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 

(2
6,

69
1,

89
0)

   
   

(3
3,

21
4,

07
1)

   
   

6,
52

2,
18

1
   

   
  

(2
0%

)
(1

9)
(2

0)
(2

,7
82

)
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,7

82
)

   
   

   
   

  
0%

Le
as

es
 a

nd
 S

BI
TA

 In
te

re
st

 E
xp

en
se

s
(6

,4
14

)
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(6
,4

14
)

   
   

   
   

  
0%

(2
0)

(2
1)

8,
27

4,
48

1
$ 

   
 

4,
34

5,
50

4
$ 

   
  

3,
92

8,
97

7
$ 

   
  

90
%

N
e

t 
N

o
n

-O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 (

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

)
(2

,8
45

,4
73

)
$ 

   
  

(4
8,

26
7,

45
8)

$ 
   

45
,4

21
,9

85
$ 

   
(9

4%
)

(2
1)

(2
2)

6,
99

3,
82

5
$ 

   
 

1,
41

0,
54

8
$ 

   
  

5,
58

3,
27

7
$ 

   
  

39
6%

In
c

re
a

s
e

 (
D

e
c

re
a

s
e

) 
in

 N
e

t 
P

o
s

it
io

n
(6

40
,2

85
)

$ 
   

   
  

(4
8,

60
6,

60
5)

$ 
   

47
,9

66
,3

20
$ 

   
(9

9%
)

(2
2)

M
on

th
ly

 C
ha

ng
es

 o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 1
0%

 a
nd

 $
20

,0
00

(a
)

O
ve

ra
ll 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

w
as

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 w
ea

th
er

 a
nd

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n.
(b

)
R

ec
yc

le
d 

W
at

er
 s

al
es

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

du
e 

to
 w

ea
th

er
.

(c
)

La
te

 F
ee

s/
D

is
co

nn
ec

ts
 a

re
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d,
 in

 p
ar

t d
ue

 to
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 th

e 
tim

in
g 

of
 la

te
 fe

es
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

is
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

.
(d

)
N

ov
em

be
r e

le
ct

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
es

 re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 A

pr
il,

 b
ud

ge
t i

n 
M

ay
. T

im
in

g 
of

 P
er

ch
lo

ra
te

 L
iti

ga
tio

n 
an

d 
Le

ga
l e

xp
en

se
s.

(e
)

O
ut

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
du

e 
to

 ti
m

in
g 

of
 b

illi
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 S

al
ar

ie
s,

 B
ur

de
n 

& 
Be

ne
fit

s 
 a

re
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
du

e 
to

 tw
o 

va
ca

nt
 p

os
iti

on
s.

(f)
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 &

 re
pa

ir 
ex

pe
ns

es
 ru

nn
in

g 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
t.

(g
)

Pu
rc

ha
se

d 
po

w
er

 u
nd

er
 b

ud
ge

t d
ue

 to
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 E
di

so
n 

bi
llin

g 
an

d 
so

la
r f

ie
ld

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

at
 1

00
%

.  
(h

)
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d.
(i)

C
or

e 
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
ie

s 
pa

id
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r a
nd

 J
un

e 
of

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 (b

ud
ge

te
d 

m
on

th
ly

).

(j) (k
)

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 e
xp

en
se

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
du

e 
to

 b
illi

ng
 d

el
ay

s.
(l)

Ti
m

in
g 

of
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
va

ry
 fr

om
 m

on
th

 to
 m

on
th

Y
e

a
r-

to
-D

a
te

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

ri
o

d

1  N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 G
ra

nt
s 

& 
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, 1

%
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
, C

el
l S

ite
s,

 F
C

F,
 L

ab
 R

ev
en

ue
s,

 In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e,

 A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

R
ei

m
b.

D
el

ay
s 

in
 a

na
ly

tic
al

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
ex

pe
ns

es
 c

au
se

d 
by

 re
gu

la
to

ry
 c

ha
ng

es
. C

he
m

ic
al

s 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

re
du

ce
d 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 lo

w
er

 w
at

er
 d

em
an

d 
du

rin
g 

w
et

 m
on

th
s 

an
d 

de
la

ys
 in

 
br

in
gi

ng
 tr

ea
tm

en
t s

ite
s 

on
lin

e 
(Q

2,
 2

01
, S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
 &

 H
on

by
). 

37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

38



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Investment Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

40



Operating Account-Incl FCF's,  SWP & CIP XXX-10101 20,896,474$               7.16%

Customer Billing Bank Accounts 101-10105 1,251,429                    0.43%

US Treasury Bills (Cash Equivalent) 101-10104 6,221,964                    2.13%

US Bank - Cash with Fiscal Agent 101-102XX 5,776                            0.00%

US Bank Trust Account  (1% Prop Tax) 101-10202 26,613,762                  9.12%

LAIF - Operating 101-11061 73,869,240                  25.32%

LAC Pooled Investment Fund 101-11062 119,922                       0.04%

US Treasury Notes 101-11063 40,671,914                  13.94%

US Gov't Issues (excl T-Bills & T-Notes) 101-11064 46,054,904                  15.79%

State and Local Government Bonds 101-11065 13,152,136                  4.51%

Certificates of Deposit 101-11066 3,723,224                    1.28%

Government Money Mkt Fund 101-11067 3,177,655                    1.09%

Corporate Issues 101-11068 35,120,785                  12.04%

Foreign Issues 101-11069 3,517,275                    1.21%

CMOs 101-11070 11,827,281                  4.05%

LAIF - CIP 220-11002 5,470,198                    1.89%

291,693,940$             100.00%

Estimated Refundable Developer Deposits: 7,671,507$                  

Portfolio-wide Investments:

Weighted Average Yield 3.856%

Rochelle Patterson Amy Aguer
Treasurer/Chief Financial & Administrative Officer Controller

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

Cash and Investment Summary
April 30, 2023

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the Investment Policy, and 

the Agency will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months as required by Government Code Section 

53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively.

Included 

in totals 

Operating 
Account 7.16%

Customer Billing 
Bank Accounts 

0.43%

US Treasury Bills 
2.13%

US Bank - Cash With 
Fiscal Agent 0.00%

US Bank Trust Account 
9.12%

LAIF-Operating 
25.32%

LACPIF               
0.04%

US Treasury Notes 13.94%

US Gov't Issues   15.79%

State and Local  Govt 
Bonds      4.51%

Certificates of Deposit 
1.28%

Govt Money Market 
1.09%

Corporate Issues 
12.04% Foreign Issues

1.21%

CMOs
4.05%

LAIF - CIP 
1.89%

Cash and Investments

41

edill
Rochelle signature

edill
Amy signature



Note Acct # Balance Total % of Total

AGENCY FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts

Operating Account-Incl FCF's, SWP & CIP XXX-10101 20,896,474$        

Less: Restricted Cash (FCFs, SWP & CIP) 1 2XX-10101 (1,159,103)           

US Treasury Bills - US Bank 101-10104 6,221,964            

Customer Billing - Northstar Account 101-10105 179,427               

Customer Billing - enQuesta Account 101-10107 1,072,002            

US Bank - Cash with Fiscal Agent 101-102XX 5,776                    

US Bank Trust Account  (1% Prop Tax) 101/204-10202 26,613,762          

Less: Restricted Cash US Bank Accts -SWP 1 204-10202 (17,499)                

Subtotal - Cash & Sweep Accounts Unrestricted 53,812,803$           18.45%

Investments - Unrestricted

Local Agency Investment Fund 101/202/204-11061 73,869,240$        

LAC Pooled Investment Fund 101-11062 119,922               

US Treasury Notes - US Bank 101-11063 40,671,914          

US Govt Issues (excl T-Notes & T-Bills) 101/204-11064 46,054,904          

Taxable Municipal Issues (State & Local) 101-11065 13,152,136          

Certificates of Deposit 101-11066 3,723,224            

Government Money Mkt Fund 101/204-11067 3,177,655            

Corporate Issues 101-11068 35,120,785          

Foreign Issues 101-11069 3,517,275            

CMOs-Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 101-11070 11,827,281          

Less: Restricted Investments - FCF 2 202-11061 (9,879,247)           

Less: Restricted Investments - SWP 3 204-11061-11067 (98,753,110)         

Subtotal - Investments Unrestricted 122,601,980$         42.03%

Cash and Investments - Restricted

Facility Capacity Fee Fund - Cash 4 202-10101 -$                      

Facility Capacity Fee Fund - Investments 5 202-11061 9,879,247            

State Water Project - Cash (WF & US Bank) 6 204-10XXX 17,499                  

State Water Project - Investments 7 204-11061/11062 98,753,110

Subtotal - Investments Restricted 108,649,856           37.25%

TOTAL AGENCY CASH & INVESTMENTS 285,064,639$         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts 8 220-10101 1,159,103$          

Local Agency Investment Fund - Restricted 220-11061 5,470,198            

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS 6,629,301$             2.27%

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 291,693,940$         100.00%

Notes

1 Less: Restricted Cash - FCF's, SWP & CIP 

2 Less: Restricted Investments - FCF's Legacy SCWD

3 Less: Restricted Investments - State Water Project

4 Restricted Cash - FCF's (Txfr'd to cover Debt Svc)

5 Restricted Investments - FCF's (SCWD Legacy)

6 Restricted Cash - SWP (State Water Project)

7 Restricted Investments - SWP (State Water Project)

8 Restricted Cash - CIP 2020A Bond Proceeds

SCV Water
Consolidated Cash & Investment Summary

4/30/2023

6/7/202342



4/30/2023 Per Chandler Asset Management and US Bank Custody Trust Statements

Agency-wide General Funds Invested:
Purchase Maturity Est'd

Cash & Cash Equivalents Cost Yield Date Date Yield

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 73,869,240        2.870% Various Liquid 2,120,047$          
LA County Pooled Invest Fund (LACPIF) 119,922             3.720% Various Liquid 4,461                   
US Bank 1% Property Tax Trust Account 26,613,762        3.510% Various 08/15/23 934,143               

US T-Bills (Cash Equiv) - CAM 6,221,964          4.495% Various Liquid 279,706               
Commercial Paper - CAM 1,444,736          5.160% Various Various 74,548                 
First American Gov't MM - US Bank 3,177,655          4.420% Various Liquid 140,452               

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 111,447,279$    3.188% Weighted Avg Yield 3,553,359$          

Investments per US Bank / Chandler Asset Management Statement

Asset-Backed Securities - CAM 5,384,618          4.910% Various Various 264,385$             
Federal Agencies - CAM 45,619,899        4.690% Various Various 2,139,573            
CMO's - Collateralized Mortgages - CAM 11,827,281        4.150% Various Various 490,832               
Corporate Issues 28,291,431        4.590% Various Various 1,298,577            
Municipal Bonds (State/Local Gov'ts) CAM 13,152,136        4.710% Various Various 619,466               
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit - CAM 4,158,232          5.020% Various Various 208,743               
US Treasury Notes - US Bank 40,671,914        3.521% Various Various 1,432,197            
Foreign Issues 3,517,275          5.016% Various Various 176,427               

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 152,622,786$    4.344% Weighted Avg Yield 6,630,199$          

Portfolio-wide Investment Agency Assets 264,070,065$    3.856% Portfolio Weighted Avg Yield 10,183,558$        
 

Reconciliation with Portfolio-wide Summary

Operating Cash & Sweep 20,896,474 US T-Bills (Cash Equiv) 6,221,964$          
Less: CIP 2020A Cash & Sweep (1,159,103)         Commercial Paper 1,444,736
Customer Care Cash & Sweep Accts 1,251,429          First American Gov't MM 3,177,655
US Bank Cash with Fiscal Agent 5,776                 Asset-Backed Securities 5,384,618
Rounding (2)                       Federal Agencies 45,619,899
Agency Cash 20,994,574        CMO's - Collateralized Mtgs 11,827,281

28,291,431

CIP 2020A Cash 1,159,103 13,152,136
CIP 2020A LAIF 5,470,198 Negotiable CDs 4,158,232

US Treasury Notes 40,671,914
6,629,301          Foreign Notes 3,517,275

Portfolio Wide Cash & Investments 291,693,940$    CAM Assets Managed 163,467,141$      

Corporate Issues (excluding 
Foreign Issues)
Municipal Bonds (State/Local)

CAM Managed Assets / US Bank Trust Acct

DMS #35153

43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

44



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
3-Month Cashflow 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

46



SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for June FY23 to August FY24

Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees

Beginning Balance (estimated): 55,966,129$    122,564,261$     3,380,252$      103,122,030$  11,037,009$        
June

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 8,207,553        -                     -                   -                   -                      
Water Sales Misc1 91,800             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Recycled Water Sales 39,051             -                     -                   -                   -                      
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes 181,467           -                     -                   221,000           -                      
Capacity Fees -                   -                     -                   -                   525,000               
Interest Earned 359,222           -                     -                   35,833             -                      
Communication/Rental 62,681             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Grants 47,538             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Reimbursements 2 1,572,271        -                     -                   -                   -                      
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Other 3 1,917               -                     -                   -                   -                      

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (10,243,582)     -                     -                   (2,015,333)       -                      
DWR Payments -                   -                     -                   (990,000)          -                      
Misc. Water Purchases -                   -                     -                   (1,345,282)       -                      
Debt Service -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
CIP (2,832,142)       -                     (3,380,252)       -                   -                      
CalPERS UAL -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Txfr to/from -                     -                   -                   -                      

Projected Ending Balance Jun 53,453,905$    122,564,261$     0$                    99,028,248$    11,562,009$        
July

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 10,666,753      -                     -                   -                   -                      
Water Sales Misc 1 55,000             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Recycled Water Sales 40,600             -                     -                   -                   -                      
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Capacity Fees -                   -                     -                   -                   131,483               
Interest Earned 491,166           -                     142,188           327,708           -                      
Communication/Rental 44,189             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Grants -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Reimbursements 2 392,612           -                     -                   -                   -                      
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                   -                     75,000,000      -                   -                      
Other 3 1,936               -                     -                   -                   -                      

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,209,065)       -                     -                   (12,212)            -                      
DWR Payments -                   -                     -                   (1,386,000)       -                      
Misc. Water Purchases -                   -                     -                   (5,298,895)       -                      
Debt Service (30,768,269)     -                     -                   -                   -                      
CIP (6,362,178)       -                     (3,893,500)       -                   -                      
Txfr to/from -                   -                     -                   -                      

Projected Ending Balance. Jul 20,806,650$    122,564,261$     71,248,688$    92,658,849$    11,693,492$        

DESCRIPTION
RESTRICTEDUNRESTRICTED

6/9/2023 47



SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for June FY23 to August FY24

Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees

Beginning Balance (estimated): 55,966,129$    122,564,261$     3,380,252$      103,122,030$  11,037,009$        

DESCRIPTION
RESTRICTEDUNRESTRICTED

August

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 11,634,169      -                     -                   -                   -                      
Water Sales Misc 1 60,000             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Recycled Water Sales 40,600             -                     -                   -                   -                      
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes -                   -                     -                   808,486           -                      
Capacity Fees -                   -                     -                   -                   131,483               
Interest Earned 491,166           -                     142,188           327,708           -                      
Communication/Rental 44,189             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Grants -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Reimbursements 2 392,612           -                     -                   -                   -                      
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Other 3 1,936               -                     -                   -                   -                      

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,860,515)       -                     -                   (12,212)            -                      
DWR Payments -                   -                     -                   (693,000)          -                      
Misc. Water Purchases -                   -                     -                   (1,713,904)       -                      
Debt Service -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
CIP (6,362,178)       -                     (3,893,500)       -                   -                      
Txfr to/from -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      

Projected Ending Balance Aug 19,248,630$    122,564,261$     67,497,375$    91,375,926$    11,824,976$        

Notes: 
1 Water Sales Misc. includes Late Charges, Misc. Retail Charges, Rebates, Drought Offense Fee and Water Sales-One time
2 Reimbursements include Annexation and PERCH Reimbursements - O&M & CIP
3 Other includes Laboratory Revenues and Other Non-Operating Revenue

6/9/2023 48



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Debt & Cash Position 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

50



 

 

This report reviews the Agency’s outstanding principal and debt service on an annual basis, 
cash balances of unrestricted, restricted, and reserve funds as of April 30, 2023, and the total 
current and non-current assets as of June 30, 2022. 

 
DEBT SERVICE 

The outstanding principal debt as of April 30, 2023, is $261,195,489* with an annual debt 
service of $33,214,070. The debt payments are due in August and February of each fiscal year.  

The outstanding principal and annual debt service payments shown in the graph below consists 
of the current outstanding debt and associated payments. It does not include potential future 
debt which may be approved and issued to fund construction projects.  

 

 
 
*The outstanding principal of VWD Acquisition Interfund Loan of $64,634,523 and accreted 
interest from the 1999 CAB is excluded from the outstanding principal balances. 
 
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 
 
The debt-service coverage ratio (DSCR) is a measurement of the Agency's available cash flow 
to pay current debt obligations. The formula for the DSCR is:  
 

DSCR = Net Operating Income ÷ Total Debt Service 

 
A DSCR of less than 1 indicates negative cash flow, typically signifies that an agency will have 
to take on additional debt in order to satisfy current obligations. The Agency’s Debt 
Management Policy prohibits this action. Most businesses use a minimum DSCR ratio of 1.25 
as a benchmark, which indicates that the borrower will be able to pay back the loan with some 
added cushion. The current bond covenants require a DSCR of 1.20. 

 $-

 $20

 $40

 $60

 $80

 $100

 $120

 $140

 $160

 $180

 $200

 $220

 $240

 $260

 $280

M
ill

io
n

s

Outstanding Principal and Annual Debt Service
as of April 30, 2023

Outstanding Principal Annual Debt Service

51



 

 

   

 
 
The DSCR listed above projects four (4) traditional bond financings to meet the capital needs of the 
Agency, estimated at $375 million over the ten (10) year forecast. This is a forecast only and is subject to 
change. 

 
 

 
CASH POSITION 

As of April 30, 2023, the Agency has:  

• Fully-funded reserve balance of 
$113,990,701 as per Agency policy, and 
 

• Restricted cash of $115,279,157 which 
includes the Facility/Retail Capacity Fee 
Funds, State Water Project Fund, and 
remaining Bond Proceeds, and 

 

• Unrestricted cash of $62,424,082 to meet 
the Agency’s payment obligations such as 
operating expenses (including debt 
service), payroll expenses, insurance, CIP 
Pay-Go, etc.  

 

 

 

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

M
il
li
o

n
s

10Yrs Forecast of Debt Service Coverage 

Revenues O&M Expenses Debt Service DSCR

$115 

$114 

$62 

 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

Restricted and Unrestricted Cash 
(in millions)

As of April 30, 2023 

Unrestricted Cash

Reserves

Restricted Cash

1.25 

Agency’s 

Benchmark 

52



 

 

TOTAL ASSETS  

As of June 30, 2022 (audited), the total assets 
consist of:  

• Current assets including cash and 
restricted funds with a balance of 
$321,682,870, and  
 

• Capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation with a balance of 
$777,101,760 from FY2022 ACFR (See 
note 5) 

 
 

$777 

$322 

 $-

 $200

 $400

 $600

 $800

 $1,000

 $1,200

Total Assets 
(in millions )

as of June 30, 2022 

Current Assets
(Including Cash)

Capital Assets Net
of Accumulated
Depreciation

53



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

54



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Ten Largest Disbursements 

Check Register 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

56



No. Date Paymt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

04-19-2023 55796 Los Angeles County Clerk 2022 Board of Director's Election CHECK 543,667.78

1 Los Angeles County Clerk 543,667.78

04-05-2023

55743

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation Santa Clara & Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater 

Treatment Improvement, Progress Payment through 

2/28/23

CHECK 460,080.25

2 Pacific Hydrotech Corporation 460,080.25

S1E76AAE: 5yr Subscription (253), R7S82A: Nimble 

Storage 1.92 TB Solid State Drive - Internal - PCI 

ExpressNVMe - Server Device Supported - 24 Pack (1)

91,975.54

HPE SmartMemory 64GB DDR4 SDRAM Memory 

Module - For Server - 64 GB (36), HPE Intel Xeon 

Gold (3rd Gen) 6326Hexadeca-core (16Core) 2.90 

GHz Processor Upgrade - 24 MB (6)

92,614.18

HU4A6A5 ZSB: HPE Proliant DL380 Gen10+ Support 

(1), Installation per scope of work (1)

30,111.54

HPE StoreFabric SN2010M 25GbE 18SFP28 4QSFP28 

Switch - Manageable - 25 Gigabit Ethernet (2), 

HA124A1: HPE Nimble Storage dHCI Base Deploy SVC 

(1), Installation per scope of work (1)

66,756.49

3                 281,457.75 

04-05-2023
15048

Zim Industries, Inc. Replacement (Saugus 3 & 4) Wells Construction 

Project, Progress Payment through 2/28/23

SCV_ACH 263,274.17

4                 263,274.17 

Services through 2/28/23 Planning Study for PFAS, 

Perchlorate, and Softening Treatment for Saugus 

Wells (N11, N12, N13) Groundwater Treatment 

Improvements

4,007.50

Services through 2/28/23  Santa Clara and Honby 

Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements

20,758.75

Services through 2/28/23 T&U Wells PFAS Treatment, 

Saugus 1 & 2 VOC Treatment, and Chemical Facilities

155,891.00

5                 180,657.25 

27101 Ridge Road 160 AUTO_DEBIT 15,910.38

28830 Hancock Pkwy U 2,717.65

27118 Vista Delgado Dr B 3,377.43

23600 Decoro Driv 3,193.60

24050 Valencia Blvd 69.06

26477 Bouquet Canyon Rd 67.41

25112 Rye Canyon Loop 112.30

25234 Valencia 6,074.68

25841 Tournament Rd -50.65

2770 Golden St 228.71

28400 Copper Hill Dr PED 304.30

25197 Aurora Dr 1,069.51

28531 Farrier Dr PED -54.73

23816 Auto Center N7 14,633.39

23817 Auto Center N8 17,102.37

27508 Newhall Ranch Rd 3,737.99

24439 Valencia 119.34

29238 Black Pine Way U -51.87

24341 Valencia Blvd 86.03

15152

15143

15273

04-19-2023

04-26-2023

Hazen and Sawyer, D.P.C.

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

April 1, 2023 to April 30, 2023

X-Act Technology Solutions, Inc.

X-Act Technology Solutions, Inc. SCV_ACH

Hazen and Sawyer, D.P.C. SCV_ACH

Zim Industries, Inc.

04-19-2023

So. California Edison Co.

57



No. Date Paymt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

April 1, 2023 to April 30, 2023

28820 Bellows Ct U 955.21

23900 Bridgeport S6 521.10

25600 Hwy 99/159EMG PMP 620.67

25901 Tournament Rd 4,035.48

27949 Hancock Pkwy U 3,430.54

26353 Mcbean Pkwy 1,808.12

26629 Bouquet Canyon Rd 1,604.66

22555 Brightwood Pl 1,330.01

23503 Valencia Blvd 13,870.51

24526 Sagecrest Cir LAR 3,913.78

26908 Feedmill Rd U 18,764.88

25101 Sagecrest Cir 99.15

26290 Shakespeare Ln -55.50

26748 Sandburn PL PED -33.86

28202 Cascade Rd PED -38.24

28318 Witherspoon Pkwy -55.50

29646 The Old Rd U -50.31

30016 Hamlet Way TPP -52.85

25774 Oak Meadow Dr -48.74

26608 Feedmill Rd U 10,607.44

25507 Oak Meadow -53.94

26797 Westridge -56.28

26994 Willowbrook Ln U -38.75

30149 Galbreth Ct -48.95

29909 Bancroft Pl -55.50

28636 Livingston Ave 199.38

23416 Magic Mountain Pkwy V5 70.91

Avanidavelarte V6 350.85

23100 Lowridge Pl U -28.25

25550 Hemingway Ave 11,524.02

28201 1/2 River Trail Ln Well 1,438.56

27502 Hasley Canyon Rd D 988.82

28053 Carnegie Ave CAR 1,727.99

26280 1/2 Galdding 1,373.54

28410 Hillcrest Pkwy 2,255.82

30400 Vineyard Ln PED 156.88

Firebrand 1,101.45

26024 Kavenagh Ln 3,258.76

28424 Tamarack Ln 3,206.21

26975 Westridge Pkwy 3,478.50

28139 Blacksmith Dr 35.34

23850 Bridgeport S7 114.79

25001 Decoro Pmp 1,950.85

6                 162,824.45 

15273

04-26-2023

So. California Edison Co.

So. California Edison Co.

58



No. Date Paymt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

April 1, 2023 to April 30, 2023

Lk Hughes E/S Dam AUTO_DEBIT 817.12

25849 1/2 Railroad Ave 10,183.60

Bouquet Canyon Road -54.48

32700 Lake Hughes Road 5,285.20

27234 Bouquet Canyon 14.10

25401 Bouquet Canyon 71,101.22

23308 Magic Mountain 8,641.66

23498 Newhall Ranch Rd -54.75

28185 The Old Rd 90.64

20515 Santa Clara St -0.07

26503 Mcbean Pkwy -55.16

27930 1/2 Lost Canyon Rd 23.14

27171 1/2 Camp Plenty -39.34

20545 Santa Clara St 64,209.49

27295 Rolling Hills Ave 227.61

17213 Medley Ridge Dr -39.50

27434 1/2 Bouquet Canyon Rd 27.13

27475 1/2 Canyon View Dr 13.57

26501 Summit Cir 308.27

26505 Summit Cir 556.48

26979 Westridge -42.85

27139 Honby Ave PED -15.01

7                 161,198.07 

04-12-2023
15098

Hazen and Sawyer, D.P.C. Services through 2/28/23 Planning for Master Plan SCV_ACH 131,781.15

8                 131,781.15 

MORIN ACTUATOR (2) 57,610.16

6 IN DI PIPE TR FLEX (72) 9,542.31

Repair Parts and Rubber Washers (Non-Inventory) 676.59

20" X 5' FLG X PE DI SPOOLCEMENT LINE & BIT 

COATED

7,370.61

1 IN BALL ANGLE METER STOP PJ/POLY BA63-444W-

NL (10)

5,948.23

Meter S/N: 9088945 356.58

8 IN BUTTERFLY VALVE FLANGED CL150 EPDM (1) 1,479.72

2 IN COUPLING PJ/CTS X PJ/PVC C66-77-IDR7-NL 

(10)

1,701.96

1-1/2 IN METER FLANGE BRASS CF31-66-NL (20) 5,468.14

16 IN HYMAX COUPLING EPDM 860-54-0434-16P 

17.10-19.20 O.D (2)

3,355.12

15266

15186

04-26-2023

04-26-2023

So. California Edison Co.

Hazen and Sawyer, D.P.C.

Core & Main LP SCV_ACH

So. California Edison Co.

59



No. Date Paymt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

April 1, 2023 to April 30, 2023

9                    93,509.42 

8 MJXFLG 90 C153 IMP 313.26

6 IN X 8 HOLE DIP FIRE HYDRANT CLOW 850 EPDM 

S.B.YELLOW (11)

29,492.06

6 IN X 8 IN X 6 HOLE F/H SPOOL 516.63

8 IN X 12 IN F/C CLAMP 8.54-8.94 ST/PVC/C900 (8) 6,385.33

3/4 IN X 1 IN BALL ANGLE METER STOP CTS/PJ BA43-

342W-NL (48)

6,270.40

2 IN COUPLING FIP PJ/CTS X C14-87-NL (13) 1,617.52

1 IN BALL ANGLE METER STOP BALL COMP/CTS BA43-

444W-NL (20)

6,160.59

2 IN BALL CORP STOP MIPT X FIPT FB1700-7-NL (7) 3,175.29

3/4 IN X 1 IN BALL ANGLE METER STOP CTS/PJ BA43-

342W-NL (32)

5,722.90

12 IN X 20 F/C CLAMP 14.00-14.40 OD W/2 IN TAP 

AC/PVC F1-1440IP7EPDM OR 226 EPDM (4)

5,296.38

8 IN BUTTERFLY VALVE FLANGED CL150 EPDM (2) 5,761.65

3/4 IN X 1 IN BALL ANGLE METER STOP CTS/PJ BA43-

342W-NL (20)

2,682.53

2 IN BALL CORP STOP MIPT X FIPT FB1700-7-NL (1) 338.37

2 IN MASTER METERS ALLEGRO (15) 11,173.93

2 IN BALL CORP STOP MIPT X FIPT FB1700-7-NL (9) 3,045.39

8 IN BUTTERFLY VALVE FLANGED CL150 EPDM (3) 4,439.16

10                    92,391.39 

2,370,841.68    

5,632,295.26    

42%

15061

04-05-2023 Core & Main LP SCV_ACH

Core & Main LP

Core & Main LP

Total 

Total-All Disbursements Issued During April 2023

Largest Ten Vendor Payments as Compared to Total

60



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Director Stipends 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

62



D
ire

ct
or

 K
at

hy
e 

Ar
m

ita
ge

 
D

ire
ct

or
 B

et
h 

B
ra

un
st

ei
n 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

04
/0

4/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/0

4/
23

U
SC

VJ
PA

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0
04

/2
0/

23
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/1

7/
23

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
9/

23
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l D

is
tri

ct
s 

of
 N

or
th

 L
A 

C
ou

nt
y 

$2
39

.0
0

04
/1

9/
23

To
ur

 o
f W

at
er

 In
fil

tra
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 a
t C

an
yo

n 
C

ou
nt

ry
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
en

te
r 

$0
.0

0
04

/2
0/

23
To

ur
 o

f I
nv

as
iv

e 
Ar

un
do

 &
 H

ab
ita

t R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t /

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ra

 R
iv

er
 

$0
.0

0
04

/2
0/

23
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,1
95

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$4

78
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s 
5

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

2
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
 

8
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
2

D
ire

ct
or

 E
d 

C
ol

le
y

D
ire

ct
or

 W
ill

ia
m

 C
oo

pe
r 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

04
/1

7/
23

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/0

1/
23

Ag
en

cy
 W

at
er

 A
ca

de
m

y
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/0

3/
23

Te
am

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p 

C
al

l w
ith

 E
rin

 H
as

te
y

$2
39

.0
0

04
/2

0/
23

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
4/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/0

4/
23

U
SC

VJ
PA

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0
04

/0
6/

23
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
0/

23
Te

am
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p 
C

al
l w

ith
 E

rin
 H

as
te

y
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
2/

23
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$7

17
.0

0
St

ip
en

d 
To

ta
l 

$1
,4

34
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
3

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

6
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
3

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

7

D
ire

ct
or

 M
ar

ia
 G

ut
ze

it 
D

ire
ct

or
 D

irk
 M

ar
ks

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

04
/0

4/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
4/

23
VI

A 
Lu

nc
he

on
 

$2
39

.0
0

04
/0

4/
23

U
SC

VJ
PA

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0
04

/0
4/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0
04

/1
7/

23
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
2/

23
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/2
0/

23
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/2

0/
23

To
ur

 o
f I

nv
as

iv
e 

Ar
un

do
 &

 H
ab

ita
t R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t /
 S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
 R

iv
er

 
$2

39
.0

0
04

/2
5/

23
D

el
ta

 C
on

ve
ya

nc
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t A

lig
nm

en
t T

ou
r -

 T
ra

ve
l D

ay
$2

39
.0

0
04

/2
6/

23
D

el
ta

 C
on

ve
ya

nc
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t A

lig
nm

en
t T

ou
r 

$2
39

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$9

56
.0

0
St

ip
en

d 
To

ta
l

$1
,4

34
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
4

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

6
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
5

 
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
7

D
IR

EC
TO

R
S 

ST
IP

EN
D

S 
PA

ID
 IN

 M
AY

 2
02

3
Fo

r t
he

 M
on

th
 o

f A
pr

il 
20

23

63



D
ire

ct
or

 G
ar

y 
M

ar
tin

D
ire

ct
or

 P
io

tr 
O

rz
ec

ho
w

sk
i 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

04
/0

1/
23

Ag
en

cy
 W

at
er

 A
ca

de
m

y
$0

.0
0

04
/0

4/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
3/

23
O

ne
-o

n-
O

ne
 M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
4/

23
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

04
/0

4/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
6/

23
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
4/

23
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

04
/1

0/
23

O
ne

-o
n-

O
ne

 M
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

$2
39

.0
0

04
/0

5/
23

Te
am

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p 

C
al

l w
ith

 E
rin

 H
as

te
y

$0
.0

0
04

/1
2/

23
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
6/

23
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/1

1/
23

M
on

th
ly 

M
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 D
C

A 
Ed

 G
ra

ha
m

 B
ra

dn
er

$0
.0

0
04

/2
4/

23
Ag

en
da

 P
la

nn
in

g 
M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
2/

23
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
4/

23
D

C
A 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
Br

ie
fin

g 
M

ee
tin

g 
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/2

0/
23

D
C

A 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/2

2/
23

M
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 A
ss

em
bl

ym
em

be
rs

 S
ch

ia
vo

 a
nd

 R
iv

as
 

$2
39

.0
0

04
/2

4/
23

Ag
en

da
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

04
/2

5/
23

D
el

ta
 C

on
ve

ya
nc

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t A
lig

nm
en

t T
ou

r -
 T

ra
ve

l D
ay

$2
39

.0
0

04
/2

6/
23

D
el

ta
 C

on
ve

ya
nc

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t A
lig

nm
en

t T
ou

r 
$0

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$2

,3
90

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,4
34

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

10
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
6

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

15
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
 

7

D
ire

ct
or

 K
en

 P
et

er
se

n 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

04
/0

4/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/0
6/

23
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
7/

23
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
04

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$9

56
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
4

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

4

TO
TA

L 
PA

ID
 D

AY
S

46
TO

TA
L 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S

58
TO

TA
L 

ST
IP

EN
D

S
$1

0,
99

4.
00

64



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Director Reimbursements 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

66



C
A

 G
o

v
t.

 C
o

d
e
 S

e
c
ti

o
n

 5
3
0
6
5
.5

 

L
is

t 
o

f 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
"
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

C
h

a
rg

e
s
"
 =

 $
1
0
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

A
n

n
u

a
l 
D

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 f

o
r 

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
2
/2

3
A

P
 T

ra
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 U

p
d

a
te

d
 a

s
 o

f:
  
4
/3

0
/2

0
2
3

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

P
- 

C
a
rd

 (
V

IS
A

) 
T

ra
n

s
a
c

ti
o

n
s

 U
p

d
a

te
d

 a
s

 o
f:

  
4
/3

0
/2

3
 *

A
p

ri
l 

P
C

a
rd

 t
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
ff

e
c

t 
M

a
y
 c

a
s

h
. 

D
a
te

R
e
c
ip

ie
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t
R

e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

R
e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t
 A

m
o

u
n

t 

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

C
o
o
p

er
, 
W

il
li

am
2

0
2
3
 K

H
T

S
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
 R

o
ad

 T
ri

p
 3

/2
0
/2

3
-3

/2
1
/2

3
 E

x
p
en

se
 (

M
ea

ls
)

5
9
.4

6
  

  
  

  
  

  

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

C
o
o
p

er
, 
W

il
li

am

A
C

W
A

 B
o
ar

d
 M

ee
ti

n
g
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, 
C

A
 3

/3
0
/2

3
-3

/3
1
/2

3
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
 (

A
ir

fa
re

, 
M

il
ea

g
e,

 P
ar

k
in

g
, 

G
ro

u
n
d
 T

ra
n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
- 

U
b
er

)
5
5
2
.5

3
  

  
  

  
  

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

C
o
o
p

er
, 
W

il
li

am
A

C
W

A
 B

o
ar

d
 M

ee
ti

n
g
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, 
C

A
 3

/3
0
/2

3
-3

/3
1
/2

3
 E

x
p
en

se
 (

L
o
d
g
in

g
)

1
7
9
.7

6
  

  
  

  
  

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

G
u

tz
ei

t,
 M

ar
ia

 
P

-C
A

R
D

 (
V

IS
A

) 
- 

L
eg

is
la

ti
v
e 

D
C

 T
ri

p
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
 (

A
ir

fa
re

)
1
,3

9
7
.7

9
  

  
  
 

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

M
ar

ti
n

, 
G

ar
y

2
0

2
3
 K

H
T

S
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
 R

o
ad

 T
ri

p
 3

/2
0
/2

3
-3

/2
1
/2

3
 E

x
p
en

se
 (

M
ea

ls
)

5
9
.4

6
  

  
  

  
  

  

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

O
rz

ec
h

o
w

sk
i,

 P
io

tr
2

0
2
3
 K

H
T

S
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
 R

o
ad

 T
ri

p
 3

/2
0
/2

3
-3

/2
1
/2

3
 E

x
p
en

se
 (

M
ea

ls
)

3
2
.1

9
  

  
  

  
  

  

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

O
rz

ec
h

o
w

sk
i,

 P
io

tr
2

0
2
3
 K

H
T

S
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
 R

o
ad

 T
ri

p
 3

/2
0
/2

3
-3

/2
1
/2

3
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
 (

M
il

ea
g
e,

 P
ar

k
in

g
2
5
7
.5

3
  

  
  

  
  

0
4

/0
1

/2
3

O
rz

ec
h

o
w

sk
i,

 P
io

tr
A

C
W

A
 L

eg
is

la
ti

v
e 

S
y
m

p
o
si

u
m

 3
/2

3
/2

3
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
 (

M
il

ea
g
e)

2
8
7
.9

4
  

  
  

  
  

2
,8

2
6
.6

6
  
  
 

67



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

68



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
SUMMARY 
 
The County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County is requesting approval and acceptance 
of a negotiated exchange of property tax revenues resulting from annexation to Santa Clarita 
Valley Sanitation District Annexation No. SCV-1121 
 
DISCUSSION    
 
The annexation process requires that a resolution for property tax revenue exchange be 
adopted by all the affected local agencies before an annexation may be approved.  For any 
jurisdictional change which will result in a special district providing new service not previously 
provided in an area, the law requires the governing bodies of all local agencies that receive an 
apportionment of the property tax from the area to determine by resolution the amount of the 
annual tax increment to be transferred to the special district (Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 99.01).   
 
Finance staff has reviewed the calculations and reallocation of taxes as proposed by LAFCO 
and has not identified any concerns. 
 
RECOMMENDATION    
 
That the Board of Directors adopt the attached Negotiated Tax Exchange Resolution resulting 
from annexation to the Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District Annexation No. SCV-1121. 
 
AMJ 
 
Attachment 
 

DATE: May 17, 2023 

TO:  SCVWA Board of Directors  

FROM: April Jacobs  
Board Secretary 

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting a Resolution Approving and Accepting Negotiated Exchange of 
Property Tax Revenues Resulting from Annexation to Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation 
District Annexation No. SCV-1121 

69

ajacobs
AJ Initials

ajacobs
Matt Stone

ajacobs
Item 5.5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

86



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

SCV Water released its Draft Sustainability Plan for public review on April 14, 2023. Following a 
30-day public review process that concluded on May 14, 2023, staff presented the Draft Plan to 
the Water Resources and Watershed Committee at its June 14, 2023 Committee meeting. The 
Committee reviewed and discussed the Draft Plan and additional public input was taken at that 
time.

The Water Resources and Watershed Committee approved staff’s recommendation for Board 
adoption and provided comments and suggested edits to the Draft Sustainability Plan, which 
have been incorporated into the Final Sustainability Plan (Attached) and are documented in 
Addendum 1.  

The Sustainability Plan is the culmination of work that builds upon SCV Water’s Green Team’s 
efforts to coordinate sustainability activities across the Agency. It leverages the State of 
California’s sustainability initiatives with SCV Water’s long-term planning objectives. Plan 
preparation began in 2021 and a public workshop was held on July 25, 2022, to solicit input on 
priorities and ideas. Once approved, implementation of SCV Water’s Sustainability Plan would 
start this year and go through 2045. 

The Sustainability Plan establishes a roadmap to implementing key sustainability initiatives. It 
will serve as a guide in planning and evaluating investments in capital projects, water resources 
and conservation and help SCV Water align with state initiatives and position itself for funding 
that supports operational sustainability. Our Agency’s historic water conservation successes 
and forecasted conservation are critical to achieving sustainability and resiliency to substantially 
decrease SCV Water’s energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions. The Sustainability 
Plan reinforces SCV water’s four core operational pillars as identified below: 

• Reliable and resilient operations;
• High-quality water and resource sustainability;
• Cost-effective and efficient; and
• Transparency and accountability.

DISCUSSION 

The SCV Water Sustainability Plan is a document that comprises a comprehensive assessment 
of SCV Water’s current sustainability initiatives, creates a baseline for measuring progress and 

DATE: July 11, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Matthew S. Dickens, MPA 
Sustainability Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting a Sustainability Action Plan 

87

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sustainability-plan
ajacobs
Item 6.1



 
 

provides a roadmap to improve operational sustainability. It contains sustainability goals, 
greenhouse gas emissions targets, and specific steps to achieve the targets. This long-range 
planning document and its associated actions compliment SCV Water’s long- and short-range 
planning efforts, as well as existing sustainability strategies and ongoing water conservation 
programs. These includes the Urban Water Management Plan, Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan, Water Supply Resiliency Plan, Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and Water Use 
Efficiency Strategic Plan. 
 
The development and implementation of the Sustainability Plan will help SCV Water align with 
State initiatives, better position for funding, mitigate future climate change impacts, and meet its 
core mission of providing responsible water stewardship to the Santa Clarita Valley.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
A.5 – Adopt environmentally sustainable business practices  
C.6 – Actively manager natural resource use 
C.6.4 – Assess the carbon footprint of SCV Water  
C.6.5 – Develop/implement appropriate emissions reductions  
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Sustainability Plan will enhance SCV Water’s eligibility for State and federal grant and loan 
packages as well as provide a guide to evaluate SCV Water’s capital improvement and general 
operating programs for sustainability.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee recommends that the Board of Directors 
adopt the attached Sustainability Action Plan.  
 
Attachment 
 

 
 

88

ajacobs
Steve Cole



Ju
n

e
 2

0
2

3

Fi
na

l D
ra

ft

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
rit

a 
Va

lle
y 

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y

89



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

90



Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s
A

cr
o

n
y

m
s,

 A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s,

 a
n

d
 G

lo
ss

a
ry

 ..
..

..
..

.
G

-1

1
.

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

1

2
.

C
o

n
te

xt
 f

o
r 

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
ili

ty
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.8

3
.

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
G

H
G

 E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
L

e
ve

l .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

5

4
.

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
S

u
st

a
in

a
b

ili
ty

 G
o

a
ls

 a
n

d
 G

H
G

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.
2

5

5
.

G
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 G
a

s 
E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.
2

8

6
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y .
..

..
4

5

A
.

A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s 
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.
5

0

V
a

le
n

ci
a

 B
ri

d
g

e
p

o
rt

 L
a

ke
 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

T
O

C
-1

91



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

92



AC
RO

N
Y

M
S,

 A
BB

RE
VI

AT
IO

N
S,

 A
N

D
 G

LO
SS

A
RY

B
e

lo
w

 is
 a

 li
st

 o
f 

ac
ro

n
ym

s,
 a

b
b

re
vi

at
io

n
s,

 a
n

d
 g

lo
ss

ar
y 

te
rm

s 
u

se
d

 in
 t

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n

A 
A

B
 –

 A
ss

e
m

b
ly

 B
ill

A
c

ti
o

n
 –

 T
h

e
 a

ct
, p

o
lic

y,
 o

r 

m
e

as
u

re
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 b
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

an
d

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 g
as

e
s

A
n

th
ro

p
o

g
e

n
ic

 –
 M

ad
e

 b
y 

p
e

o
p

le
 

o
r 

re
su

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 h
u

m
an

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

A
tm

o
sp

h
e

re
 –

 T
h

e
 e

n
ve

lo
p

e
 o

f 

g
as

e
s 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

ar
th

. T
h

e
se

 

g
as

e
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 n

it
ro

g
e

n
 

(7
8

.1
%

),
 o

xy
g

e
n

 (
2

0
.9

%
),

 a
n

d
 

ar
g

o
n

, h
e

liu
m

, G
H

G
s,

 o
zo

n
e

, a
n

d
 

w
at

e
r 

va
p

o
r 

in
 

tr
ac

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts

B
B

A
U

 –
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
-a

s-
U

su
al

 F
o

re
ca

st
. 

T
h

is
 f

o
re

ca
st

 e
st

im
at

e
s 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

in
to

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 if

 n
o

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
w

e
re

 t
ak

e
n

. 

B
io

fu
e

ls
 –

 A
 r

e
n

e
w

ab
le

 f
u

e
l s

o
u

rc
e 

d
e

ri
ve

d
 f

ro
m

 b
io

m
as

s 
su

ch
 a

s 

al
g

ae
 o

r 
an

im
al

 w
as

te
   

C
 

C
A

R
B

 –
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 A

ir
 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
B

o
ar

d

C
C

A
 –

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
h

o
ic

e 

A
g

g
re

g
at

io
n

. A
 C

C
A

 is
 a

 n
o

n
p

ro
fi

t 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 p
ro

vi
d

e
r.

 

C
a

rb
o

n
 d

io
x

id
e

 (
C

O
2
) 

–
 A

 

g
as

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 b
y 

b
u

rn
in

g
 

o
rg

an
ic

 c
o

m
p

o
u

n
d

s 
co

n
ta

in
in

g
 

ca
rb

o
n

 a
n

d
 b

y 

re
sp

ir
at

io
n

C
a

rb
o

n
 d

io
x

id
e

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

(C
O

2
e)

 –
 A

 m
e

tr
ic

 m
e

as
u

re
 u

se
d

 

to
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 c
o

m
p

ar
e

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

fr
o

m
 v

ar
io

u
s 

G
H

G
s 

b
as

e
d

 o
n

 

th
e

ir
 g

lo
b

al
 w

ar
m

in
g

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

 

co
n

ve
rs

io
n

 f
ac

to
r

C
a

rb
o

n
 f

o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

–
 T

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
ca

u
se

d
 in

 a
 y

e
ar

 b
y 

an
 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

, e
ve

n
t,

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
, o

r 

p
ro

d
u

ct
, e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 in

 c
ar

b
o

n
 

d
io

xi
d

e
 e

q
u

iv
al

e
n

t

C
a

rb
o

n
 N

e
u

tr
a

li
ty

 –
 A

ch
ie

vi
n

g
 a

 

b
al

an
ce

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 e
m

it
ti

n
g

 c
ar

b
o

n
 

an
d

 a
tm

o
sp

h
e

ri
c 

ca
rb

o
n

 r
e

m
o

va
l

C
a

l 
R

e
c

y
c

le
 –

 C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 

R
e

cy
cl

in
g

, a
n

d
 R

e
co

ve
ry

C
li

m
a

te
 –

 T
h

e
 u

su
al

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

o
f 

te
m

p
e

ra
tu

re
, h

u
m

id
it

y,
 

at
m

o
sp

h
e

ri
c 

p
re

ss
u

re
, w

in
d

, 

ra
in

fa
ll,

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
m

e
te

o
ro

lo
g

ic
al

 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 in
 a

n
 a

re
a 

o
f 

th
e

 e
ar

th
’s

 

su
rf

ac
e

 o
ve

r 

a 
lo

n
g

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
ti

m
e

 (
ty

p
ic

al
ly

 3
0

 

ye
ar

s 
o

r 
m

o
re

)

C
li

m
a

te
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 –

 A
 c

h
an

g
e

 in
 

th
e

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
– 

su
ch

 a
s 

te
m

p
e

ra
tu

re
 a

n
d

 r
ai

n
fa

ll 
– 

in
 a

 

re
g

io
n

 o
ve

r 
a 

lo
n

g
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

ti
m

e

C
o

-b
e

n
e

fi
t 

–
 T

h
e

 s
e

co
n

d
ar

y 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 t
h

at
 o

cc
u

r 
d

u
e 

to
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a 

p
ro

g
ra

m
, m

e
as

u
re

 

o
r 

p
o

lic
y.

C
P

A
 –

 C
le

an
 P

o
w

e
r 

A
lli

an
ce

. A
 

C
C

A
 in

 t
h

e
 L

o
s 

A
n

g
e

le
s 

re
g

io
n

  

C
R

 –
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n D
D

C
 –

 D
ir

e
ct

 C
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

D
e

c
a

rb
o

n
iz

a
ti

o
n

 –
 T

h
e

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 

o
r 

re
m

o
va

l o
f 

ca
rb

o
n

 d
io

xi
d

e

E 
E

 –
 E

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 

E
E

 –
 E

n
e

rg
y 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

E
F

 –
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

Fa
ct

o
r

E
O

 –
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 O
rd

e
r

E
le

c
tr

ifi
c

a
ti

o
n

 –
 T

h
e

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

n
g

 p
o

w
e

r 
fr

o
m

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

, 

an
d

 in
 m

an
y 

co
n

te
xt

s,
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 

to
 s

u
ch

 p
o

w
e

r 
fr

o
m

 a
n

 e
ar

lie
r 

p
o

w
e

r 
so

u
rc

e

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
–

 T
h

e
 r

e
le

as
e

 o
f 

a 

su
b

st
an

ce
 (

u
su

al
ly

 a
 g

as
 w

h
e

n
 

re
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
je

ct
 o

f 
cl

im
at

e 

ch
an

g
e

) 
in

to
 t

h
e

 a
tm

o
sp

h
e

re

E
V

(s
) 

–
 E

le
ct

ri
c 

V
e

h
ic

le
(s

)

F
F

L
 –

 F
le

e
t

F
o

ss
il

 f
u

e
l 

–
 A

 g
e

n
e

ra
l t

e
rm

 f
o

r 

fu
e

l f
o

rm
e

d
 f

ro
m

 d
e

ca
ye

d
 p

la
n

ts
 

an
d

 a
n

im
al

s 
th

at
 h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 

co
n

ve
rt

e
d

 t
o

 c
ru

d
e

 o
il,

 c
o

al
, 

n
at

u
ra

l g
as

, o
r 

h
e

av
y 

o
ils

 b
y 

ex
p

o
su

re
 t

o
 h

e
at

 a
n

d
 

p
re

ss
u

re
 in

 t
h

e
 e

ar
th

’s
 c

ru
st

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

G
-1

TO
C

93



G
 

G
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 g
a

s 
(G

H
G

) 
–

 A
 g

as
 

th
at

 a
b

so
rb

s 
in

fr
ar

e
d

 r
ad

ia
ti

o
n

, 

tr
ap

s 
h

e
at

 in
 t

h
e

 a
tm

o
sp

h
e

re
, a

n
d

 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

s 
to

 t
h

e 

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 e
ff

e
ct

G
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 E
ff

e
c

t 
–

 A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

th
at

 o
cc

u
rs

 w
h

e
n

 g
as

e
s 

in
 E

ar
th

’s
 

at
m

o
sp

h
e

re
 t

ra
p

s 
th

e
 S

u
n

’s
 h

e
at

G
W

P
 –

 G
lo

b
al

 W
ar

m
in

g
 P

o
te

n
ti

al
 

– 
to

ta
l c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 g
lo

b
al

 

w
ar

m
in

g
 r

e
su

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 o
f 

o
n

e
 u

n
it

 o
f 

th
at

 

g
as

 r
e

la
ti

ve
 t

o
 o

n
e

 u
n

it
 o

f 
th

e 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 g

as
, 

ca
rb

o
n

 d
io

xi
d

e
, w

h
ic

h
 is

 a
ss

ig
n

e
d

 

a 
va

lu
e

 o
f 

1

H I
IC

L
E

I 
–

 In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 C

o
u

n
ci

l f
o

r 

Lo
ca

l E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l I

n
it

ia
ti

ve
s

IP
C

C
 –

 U
n

it
e

d
 N

at
io

n
s 

In
te

rg
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l P
an

e
l o

n
 

C
lim

at
e

 C
h

an
g

e
 –

 p
re

p
ar

e
s 

co
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 

R
e

p
o

rt
s 

ab
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
ta

t 
o

f 
sc

ie
n

ti
fi

c,
 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
o

-e
co

 n
o

m
ic

 

kn
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

n
 c

lim
at

e
 c

h
an

g
e

, 

it
s 

im
p

ac
t 

an
d

 f
u

tu
re

 r
is

ks
, 

an
d

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 t
h

e 

ra
te

 a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 c
lim

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 is

 

ta
ki

n
g

 p
la

ce

J K L M
 

M
e

th
a

n
e

 (
C

H
4
) 

–
 A

 h
yd

ro
ca

rb
o

n
 

th
at

 is
 a

 g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 g
as

 t
h

at
 is

 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

ae
ro

b
ic

 

(w
it

h
o

u
t 

o
xy

g
e

n
) 

d
e

co
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

w
as

te
 in

 la
n

d
fi

lls
, 

w
as

te
w

at
e

r 
tr

e
at

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
ts

, a
n

im
al

 d
ig

e
st

io
n

, 

d
e

co
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

an
im

al
 w

as
te

s,
 

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

n
at

u
ra

l g
as

 a
n

d
 p

e
tr

o
le

u
m

, c
o

al
 

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
, a

n
d

 in
co

m
p

le
te

 f
o

ss
il 

fu
e

l c
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

M
e

tr
ic

 T
o

n
 (

M
T

) 
–

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 

in
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 m

e
as

u
re

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f 
g

re
e

n
h

o
u

se
 

g
as

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
– 

o
n

e
 m

e
tr

ic
 t

o
n

 

is
 e

q
u

al
 t

o
 2

,2
0

4
.6

 p
o

u
n

d
s 

o
r 

1
.1

 s
h

o
rt

 t
o

n
s

M
T

 C
O

2
e 

–
 M

e
tr

ic
 t

o
n

s 
o

f 
ca

rb
o

n
 

d
io

xi
d

e
 e

q
u

iv
al

e
n

t 
is

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
 

u
n

it
s 

to
 m

e
as

u
re

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

N 
N

it
ro

u
s 

o
x

id
e

 (
N

2
O

) 
–

 A
 p

o
w

e
rf

u
l 

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 g
as

 w
it

h
 a

 h
ig

h
 g

lo
b

al
 

w
ar

m
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
; m

aj
o

r 
so

u
rc

e
s 

o
f 

n
it

ro
u

s 
o

xi
d

e
 in

cl
u

d
e

 s
o

il 

cu
lt

iv
at

io
n

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
s,

 e
sp

e
ci

al
ly

 

th
e

 u
se

 o
f 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l a
n

d
 o

rg
an

ic
 

fe
rt

ili
ze

rs
, f

o
ss

il 
fu

e
l c

o
m

b
u

st
io

n
, 

n
it

ri
c 

ac
id

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
, a

n
d

 

b
io

m
as

s 
b

u
rn

in
g O

 
O

ff
ro

a
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

–
 A

n
y 

n
o

n
-s

ta
ti

o
n

ar
y 

d
e

vi
ce

 p
o

w
e

re
d

 

b
y 

an
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
m

b
u

st
io

n
 

e
n

g
in

e
 o

r 
e

le
ct

ri
c 

m
o

to
r 

u
se

d
 

p
ri

m
ar

ily
 o

ff
 r

o
ad

w
ay

s 
su

ch
 

as
 a

g
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l, 
la

n
d

sc
ap

in
g

 o
r 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

P 
P

V
 –

 P
h

o
to

vo
lt

ai
c 

(s
o

la
r 

e
n

e
rg

y)

Q R 
R

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 D

ie
se

l 
–

 D
ir

e
ct

 

su
b

st
it

u
te

 f
o

r 
d

ie
se

l f
u

e
l r

e
fi

n
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 lo

w
e

r 
ca

rb
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

n
e

w
ab

le
 

so
u

rc
e

 m
at

e
ri

al
 

R
e

tr
o

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 (
R

C
x

) 
–

 

F
in

e
-t

u
n

in
g

 e
xi

st
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

s 

an
d

 s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
e

m
 o

p
e

ra
te

 o
p

ti
m

al
ly

 a
n

d
 

m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

sc
h

e
d

u
lin

g
, s

e
q

u
e

n
ci

n
g

, 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
in

g
, a

n
d

 

o
p

ti
m

iz
in

g
 s

e
t 

p
o

in
ts

.

R
in

c
o

n
 –

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 

co
n

su
lt

an
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

P
la

n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
S

B
 –

 S
e

n
at

e
 B

ill

S
c

o
p

e
 –

 C
at

e
g

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

 o
f 

G
H

G
-

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

n
g

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

b
as

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e 

le
ve

l o
f 

th
e

 e
n

ti
ty

’s
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l o

f 
th

e
 s

o
u

rc
e

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
–

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 

W
at

e
r 

A
g

e
n

cy

S
e

rv
ic

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 s

e
rv

e
d T

T
R

 –
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n U 

U
.S

. 
E

P
A

 –
 U

n
it

e
d

 S
ta

te
s 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 A

g
e

n
cy

V 
V

M
T

 –
 V

e
h

ic
le

 m
ile

s 
tr

av
e

le
d

W
W

 –
 W

as
te

 G
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

W
C

 –
 W

at
e

r 
C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n

X Y Z
Z

E
V

 –
 Z

e
ro

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 v
e

h
ic

le

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

G
-2

TO
C

94



1.
 

IN
TR

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N

VI
SI

O
N

T
h

e
 S

an
ta

 C
la

ri
ta

 V
al

le
y 

W
at

e
r 

A
g

e
n

cy
’s

 (
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r)

 v
is

io
n

 is
 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 “
ex

e
m

p
la

ry
 w

at
e

r 
m

an
ag

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a 

h
ig

h
 q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

lif
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

an
ta

 C
la

ri
ta

 V
al

le
y”

. 
C

e
n

tr
al

 t
o

 t
h

is
 v

is
io

n
 i

s 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 a
 c

o
st

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

, 
h

ig
h

 q
u

al
it

y,
 a

n
d

 r
e

lia
b

le
 w

at
e

r 

su
p

p
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 w

h
ic

h
 i

n
 r

e
ce

n
t 

ye
ar

s 
h

as
 b

e
co

m
e 

in
cr

e
as

in
g

ly
 

co
m

p
le

x.
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

an
d

 
fu

tu
re

 
e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

p
ro

lo
n

g
e

d
 d

ro
u

g
h

t 
an

d
 f

ir
e

, a
s 

w
e

ll 
as

 t
h

e 

n
u

m
e

ro
u

s 
S

ta
te

 a
n

d
 f

e
d

e
ra

l r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
in

g
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
ar

e
 a

lt
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 la
n

d
sc

ap
e

. 

T
h

is
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
P

la
n

 
p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
a 

co
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 

as
se

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 i

n
it

ia
ti

ve
s,

 

cr
e

at
e

s 
a 

b
as

e
lin

e
 

fo
r 

m
e

as
u

ri
n

g
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
, 

an
d

 
p

ro
vi

d
e

s 

a 
ro

ad
m

ap
 

to
 

im
p

ro
ve

 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
, 

w
h

ic
h

 

re
fl

e
ct

s 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 g
o

al
s.

 T
h

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
is

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

al
ig

n
 w

it
h

 s
ta

te
 in

it
ia

ti
ve

s,
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 fo
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
, m

it
ig

at
e 

fu
tu

re
 c

lim
at

e
 c

h
an

g
e

 i
m

p
ac

ts
, 

an
d

 m
e

e
t 

it
s 

co
re

 m
is

si
o

n
 

o
f 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 
w

at
e

r 
st

e
w

ar
d

sh
ip

 
to

 
th

e
 

S
an

ta
 

C
la

ri
ta

 V
al

le
y.

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

, 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

is
 

co
m

m
it

ti
n

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g

 g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 g
as

e
s 

(G
H

G
) 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 g
o

al
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 it
s 

co
re

 m
is

si
o

n
 a

s 

w
e

ll 
as

 s
ix

 s
tr

at
e

g
ic

 g
o

al
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s.

G
o

a
l 

A
: 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r/
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
–

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

e
 

p
o

lic
ie

s

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
o

ci
al

, 
q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

lif
e

, 
an

d
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
va

lu
e

s 
o

f 
th

e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y.

G
o

a
l 

B
: 

In
fr

a
st

ru
c

tu
re

 
R

e
li

a
b

il
it

y 
–

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
t,

 o
p

e
ra

te
, 

an
d

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 w

at
e

r

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 w

at
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
.

G
o

a
l 

C
: 

W
a

te
r 

S
u

p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

 S
u

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y 

–
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
to

e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a 
h

as
 r

e
lia

b
le

 a
n

d
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 s
u

p
p

lie
s 

o
f 

w
at

e
r.

G
o

a
l 

D
: 

W
a

te
r 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
C

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e

 –
 P

ro
te

ct
 t

h
e

 q
u

al
it

y 
o

f

o
u

r 
w

at
e

r 
su

p
p

lie
s 

an
d

 e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

t a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
 o

u
r 

d
ri

n
ki

n
g

 w
at

e
r 

q
u

al
it

y 

is
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
an

d
 m

e
e

ts
 o

r 
su

rp
as

se
s 

al
l w

at
e

r 
q

u
al

it
y 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

G
o

a
l 

E
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
si

li
e

n
c

e
 –

 M
ai

n
ta

in
 a

 l
o

n
g

-r
an

g
e

, 
tr

an
sp

ar
e

n
t,

 s
ta

b
le

, 
an

d

w
e

ll-
p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
, 

re
su

lt
in

g
 i

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
an

d
 f

u
tu

re
 w

at
e

r 

u
se

rs
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g
 f

ai
r 

an
d

 e
q

u
it

ab
le

 r
at

e
s 

an
d

 c
h

ar
g

e
s.

G
o

a
l 

F
: 

H
ig

h
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 T
e

a
m

 –
 G

ro
w

 a
 c

u
lt

u
re

 o
f 

co
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

th
at

 f
o

st
e

rs
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
va

lu
e

s.
 

T
h

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 f

u
tu

re
 p

ro
je

ct
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
S

ta
te

 a
n

d
 f

e
d

e
ra

l 
g

ra
n

t 

an
d

 lo
an

 a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 p

ac
ka

g
e

s 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

ca
p

it
al

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s.
 T

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 a

ss
is

t 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
, 

re
d

u
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s,

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
ct

s.
 T

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 

as
so

ci
at

e
d

 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

co
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
lo

n
g

-r
an

g
e

 
an

d
 

sh
o

rt
-r

an
g

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

e
ff

o
rt

s,
 e

xi
st

in
g

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 s
tr

at
e

g
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 w
at

e
r 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s.
 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
s 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ac

ts
 o

f 
cl

im
at

e
 o

n
 t

h
e 

m
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t,

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s,

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
it

s 
w

at
e

r 
su

p
p

ly
. 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

it
s 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 m

e
e

t 
it

s 
g

o
al

s 
an

d
 v

is
io

n
 in

 a
 c

h
an

g
in

g
 w

o
rl

d
. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

1

95



SU
ST

A
IN

A
BI

LI
TY

 
PL

A
N

 P
U

RP
O

SE

T
h

e
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
P

la
n

 
is

 
a 

lo
n

g
-r

an
g

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

th
a t

 
w

ill
 

g
u

id
e

 
S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r’

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

ac
ti

o
n

s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

2
0

4
5

, 
in

 
al

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 

th
e

 
S

ta
te

’s
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
g

o
al

s,
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
, 

an
d

 
m

an
d

at
e

s.
 

T
h

e
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
P

la
n

 
al

ig
n

s 
w

it
h

 
S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r’

s 
lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 

p
la

n
s 

an
d

 
fi

lls
 

a 
g

ap
 

in
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
ac

ro
ss

 
S

C
V

 
W

at
e

r’
s 

fo
u

r 
p

ri
m

ar
y 

ar
e

as
 

o
f 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

w
h

ic
h

 

in
cl

u
d

e
: 

W
at

e
r 

S
u

p
p

ly
, 

W
at

e
r 

T
re

at
m

e
n

t,
 

W
at

e
r 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

, 
an

d
 

W
at

e
r 

D
e

m
an

d
 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t.

 
W

h
ile

 
th

e
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 

P
la

n
 

w
ill

 
g

u
id

e
 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

st
ra

te
g

y,
 

th
e

 
W

at
e

r 
R

e
si

lie
n

ce
 

In
it

ia
ti

ve
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
e

 r
e

si
lie

n
ce

 a
n

d
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 

th
e

 A
g

e
n

cy
’s

 w
at

e
r 

su
p

p
lie

s.
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

ly
, 

th
e

 
W

at
e

r 
U

se
 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n
 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

w
it

h
 

a 
fr

am
e

w
o

rk
 

to
 

in
cr

e
as

e
 

w
at

e
r 

d
e

m
an

d
s 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
. 

F
ig

u
re

 
1

-1
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 
th

e
 

m
aj

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

u
n

d
e

rt
ak

e
n

 
b

y 
S

C
V

 
W

at
e

r 
an

d
 

it
s 

an
al

ys
is

 
o

f 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
ac

ro
ss

 
it

s 
p

ri
m

ar
y 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 a
re

as
. 

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt

 o
f 

th
is

 a
n

al
ys

is
, 

w
at

e
r 

tr
e

at
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 

w
at

e
r 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

, 
i.e

.,
 

th
e

 
co

re
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 
in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 

o
f 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r,

 
w

e
re

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
as

 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

ar
e

as
 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

an
 

e
xi

st
in

g
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

p
la

n
. 

W
h

ile
 

th
e

 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

P
la

n
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s,

 

n
o

th
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
is

 p
la

n
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
s 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

co
re

 
m

is
si

o
n

 
o

f 
re

lia
b

ili
ty

 
an

d
 

se
rv

ic
e

 

co
n

si
st

e
n

cy
.

F
ig

u
re

 1
-1

. 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r’

s 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

re
a

s 
a

n
d

 S
u

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
In

it
ia

ti
v

e
s

W
at

er
 U

se
 E

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

U
pd

at
ed

 in
 2

01
6

D
EM

AN
D

/U
SE

D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

TR
EA

TM
EN

T
SU

PP
LY

 S
O

U
RC

ES

U
rb

an
 W

at
er

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n
U

pd
at

ed
 in

 2
02

1

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tig
en

cy
 P

la
n

U
pd

at
ed

 in
 2

02
1

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Su

st
ai

na
ba

ili
ty

 P
la

n
U

pd
at

ed
 in

 2
02

2

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
Re

si
lie

nc
y 

Pl
an

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

U
rb

an
 W

at
er

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n
U

pd
at

ed
 in

 2
02

1

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tig
en

cy
 P

la
n

U
pd

at
ed

 in
 2

02
1

U
rb

an
 W

at
er

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n
Pa

rt
ia

l

W
at

er
 U

se
 E

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

Pa
rt

ia
l

W
at

er
 U

se
 E

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

Pa
rt

ia
l

W
at

er
 U

se
 E

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

Pa
rt

ia
l

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tig
en

cy
 P

la
n

Pa
rt

ia
l

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tig
en

cy
 P

la
n

Pa
rt

ia
l

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Su

st
ai

na
ba

ili
ty

 P
la

n
Pa

rt
ia

l

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Su

st
ai

na
ba

ili
ty

 P
la

n
Pa

rt
ia

l

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
Re

si
lie

nc
y 

Pl
an

Pa
rt

ia
l

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
Re

si
lie

nc
y 

Pl
an

Pa
rt

ia
l

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
Re

si
lie

nc
y 

Pl
an

Pa
rt

ia
l

SC
V 

W
AT

ER
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 A

C
TI

VI
TI

ES

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Ro

ad
m

ap
 F

oc
us

 A
re

a

R
e

p
o

rt
s 

in
 B

o
ld

 –
 R

e
p

o
rt

s 
in

 b
o

ld
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 a
d

d
re

ss
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

rr
e

sp
o

n
d

in
g

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
fo

cu
s 

ar
e

a.
 

S
h

a
d

e
d

 R
e

p
o

rt
s 

– 
R

e
p

o
rt

s 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 li

g
h

tl
y 

sh
ad

e
d

 m
ay

 a
d

d
re

ss
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 in

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
in

g
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

fo
cu

s 
ar

e
a,

 b
u

t 
o

n
ly

 p
ar

ti
al

ly
. 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
w

ill
 u

se
 th

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

 to
 g

u
id

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

lic
y 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t o
f c

ap
it

al
 in

ve
st

m
e

n
t,

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s,

 w
at

e
r 

re
so

u
rc

e
s,

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s.
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 

in
cr

e
as

e
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

 f
o

r 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

to
 o

b
ta

in
 g

ra
n

t 
o

r 
lo

an
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
w

h
ic

h
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

it
s 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

2

96



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
 

G
oa

ls
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

its

T
h

e
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
P

la
n

 
se

rv
e

s 
as

 

a 
g

u
id

e
 

fo
r 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

to
 

re
d

u
ce

 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 

w
it

h
 

it
s 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 
p

ra
ct

ic
e

s 
an

d
 

re
so

u
rc

e
 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 
o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
P

la
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
s 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

w
it

h
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
ca

p
ab

ili
ti

e
s 

an
d

 
o

u
tl

in
e

s 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
st

ra
te

g
ie

s 
an

d
 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

 
C

h
ap

te
r 

2
 

o
u

tl
in

e
s 

se
ve

ra
l 

g
o

al
s 

an
d

 
m

e
tr

ic
s 

w
h

ic
h

 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

to
 a

lig
n

 w
it

h
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
S

ta
te

 a
n

d
 f

e
d

e
ra

l 
g

o
al

s 
an

d
 

al
lo

w
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 a
d

va
n

ce
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

it
s 

m
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 v
is

io
n

. 
A

lig
n

in
g

 w
it

h
 

th
e

se
 e

xt
e

rn
al

 g
o

al
s 

m
u

st
 f

it
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 c
o

re
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
 o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

an
d

 

it
s 

m
is

si
o

n
. 

To
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 p

la
n

 t
h

at
 

m
e

e
ts

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

se
 i

m
p

o
rt

an
t 

cr
it

e
ri

a,
 

a 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
fr

am
e

w
o

rk
 

w
as

 

cr
e

at
e

d
 t

o
 g

u
id

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

th
e

 s
tr

at
e

g
ie

s 
an

d
 a

ct
io

n
s.

 

Re
lia

bl
e 

an
d 

Re
si

lie
nt

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 

E
n

co
m

p
as

se
s 

G
o

al
 B

  

fo
r 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

R
e

lia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 G

o
al

 C
 

o
f 

W
at

e
r 

S
u

p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

. 

D
e

ve
lo

p
in

g
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

fo
r 

is
su

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

e
n

e
rg

y 

sh
o

rt
ag

e
, p

o
w

e
r 

sa
fe

ty
 

sh
u

to
ff

s,
 a

n
d

 d
ro

u
g

h
t 

al
lo

w
s 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
to

 

m
ak

e
 it

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
m

o
re

 

re
si

lie
n

t 
an

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 

p
ro

vi
d

e
 w

at
e

r 
re

lia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 a
ff

o
rd

ab
ili

ty
 t

o
 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y.

 

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
W

at
er

 
an

d 
Re

so
ur

ce
 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y

E
n

co
m

p
as

se
s 

G
o

al
 C

  

o
f 

W
at

e
r 

S
u

p
p

ly
 

an
d

 R
e

so
u

rc
e 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 G

o
al

 

D
 o

f 
W

at
e

r 
Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

th
at

 m
an

ag
e 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

an
d

 d
e

m
an

d
 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 

h
ig

h
 q

u
al

it
y 

w
at

e
r.

 G
o

al
 

C
 s

p
e

ci
fi

ca
lly

 in
cl

u
d

e
s 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
su

ch
 a

s 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 e

n
e

rg
y 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 s
tr

at
e

g
ie

s,
 

o
p

ti
m

iz
in

g
 v

al
u

e
 o

f 
so

la
r 

co
n

tr
ac

ts
, a

ss
e

ss
in

g
 a

n
d

 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

ca
rb

o
n

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t.
 

C
os

t E
ff

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
 

Ef
fic

ie
nt

E
n

co
m

p
as

se
s 

G
o

al
 E

  

o
f 

F
in

an
ci

al
 R

e
si

lie
n

ce
. 

To
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 a
 lo

n
g

-r
an

g
e

, 

tr
an

sp
ar

e
n

t,
 s

ta
b

le
, a

n
d

 

w
e

ll-
p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 

co
n

d
it

io
n

, r
e

su
lt

in
g

 in
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
an

d
 f

u
tu

re
 w

at
e

r 

u
se

rs
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g
 f

ai
r 

an
d

 

e
q

u
it

ab
le

 r
at

e
s,

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 

im
p

o
rt

an
t 

to
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 

th
at

 r
e

d
u

ce
 f

in
an

ci
al

 

ri
sk

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

so
u

rc
e 

m
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t,

 in
cr

e
as

e
d

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

e
s,

 

an
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 

re
si

lie
n

ce
. 

Tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

  
an

d 
 

Ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y

E
n

co
m

p
as

se
s 

G
o

al
 A

  

o
f C

u
st

o
m

e
r/

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y.

 

A
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 

co
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 it
s 

va
lu

e
s 

al
g

in
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 v
al

u
e

s 
o

f 

it
s 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

m
u

st
 t

ra
n

sp
ar

e
n

tl
y 

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

 it
s 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
p

ro
te

ct
 t

h
e 

w
at

e
r 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y.
 S

e
tt

in
g

 

g
o

al
s 

an
d

 d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
ti

n
g

 

ac
h

ie
ve

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
o

se
 

g
o

al
s 

sh
o

w
s 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

is
 t

ak
in

g
 a

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

.

T
h

e
se

 p
il

la
rs

 f
o

rm
 t

h
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 S

u
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y 
P

la
n

 a
n

d
 i

ts
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
w

e
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

ze
d

. 

SC
V 

W
at

er
’s

 S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k
T

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 w

as
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

m
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
lig

n
 w

it
h

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 g

o
al

s 

an
d

 lo
n

g
-r

an
g

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

ff
o

rt
s,

 w
h

ile
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 s

tr
at

e
g

ie
s 

fo
r 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

o
ve

r 
ti

m
e

. 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 

si
x 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 g

o
al

s,
 a

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 p

re
vi

o
u

sl
y,

 w
e

re
 a

ss
e

ss
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
is

ti
lle

d
 i

n
to

 f
o

u
r 

co
re

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 p
ill

ar
s 

w
h

ic
h

 

su
p

p
o

rt
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
m

is
si

o
n

, w
h

ile
 r

e
ac

h
in

g
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 t

ar
g

e
ts

 o
ve

r 
th

e
 li

fe
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

. T
h

e
 c

o
re

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 p
ill

ar
s 

ar
e

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3

97



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
 B

en
ef

its
T

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 s

e
rv

e
 a

s 
a 

g
u

id
e

 f
o

r 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
as

 i
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ts
 v

ar
io

u
s 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

ly
 

fe
as

ib
le

 a
n

d
 c

o
st

-e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 s
tr

at
e

g
ie

s 
an

d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

to
 

im
p

ro
ve

 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

an
d

 
al

ig
n

 

w
it

h
 S

ta
te

 g
o

al
s.

 T
h

is
 a

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

b
e

yo
n

d
 

th
e

 
co

st
 

sa
vi

n
g

s,
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 r
e

si
lie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

ab
o

ve
. T

h
e

se
 in

cl
u

d
e

:

		


Id
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 c

o
st

-e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
at

io
n

 m
e

as
u

re
s

		


P
ro

vi
d

in
g

 c
o

-b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

in
cr

e
as

e
d

 r
e

so
u

rc
e 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

, o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 r
e

si
lie

n
ce

, a
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
, 

an
d

 t
ra

n
sp

ar
e

n
cy

		


In
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 S

ta
te

, f
e

d
e

ra
l, 

an
d

 in
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
an

ce

		


A
lig

n
in

g
 w

it
h

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
ff

o
rt

s

		


A
vo

id
in

g
 r

e
d

u
n

d
an

t 
in

ve
st

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

d
o

u
b

le
 

co
u

n
ti

n
g

 o
f 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s

Ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

 

is
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 o
cc

u
r 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

2
3

 a
n

d
 2

0
4

5
. 

S
tr

at
e

g
ie

s,
 m

e
as

u
re

s,
 a

n
d

 a
ct

io
n

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 m

ay
 e

vo
lv

e
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
 a

s 
S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r 

m
an

ag
e

s 
ch

an
g

in
g

 
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ie

s,
 

b
e

st
 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
s,

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
, a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 

C
a

st
a

ic
 L

a
ke

.

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

4

98



A 
H

IS
TO

RY
 O

F 
SU

ST
A

IN
A

BI
LI

TY
 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
se

lls
, 

m
an

ag
e

s,
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

rs
 

su
rf

ac
e

 
w

at
e

r,
 

g
ro

u
n

d
w

at
e

r,
 

an
d

 

re
cy

cl
e

d
 w

at
e

r 
fo

r 
m

u
n

ic
ip

al
, 

in
d

u
st

ri
al

, 

d
o

m
e

st
ic

, 
an

d
 

ag
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l 
cu

st
o

m
e

rs
 

in
 t

h
e

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y.
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

se
rv

e
s 

a 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

8
6

,3
0

0
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

7
5

,0
0

0
 r

e
ta

il 
w

at
e

r 
co

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 a
 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a 
o

f 
1

9
5

 s
q

u
ar

e
 m

ile
s.

 T
h

e 

A
g

e
n

cy
 

h
as

 
1

0
1

 
lo

ca
l 

w
at

e
r 

st
o

ra
g

e 

ta
n

ks
, 

8
2

1
 m

ile
s 

o
f 

p
ip

e
lin

e
, 

2
1

6
 m

ill
io

n
 

g
al

lo
n

s 
o

f 
w

at
e

r 
st

o
ra

g
e

 c
ap

ac
it

y,
 a

n
d

 

1
1

4
,0

0
0

 a
cr

e
-f

e
e

t 
w

at
e

r 
st

o
re

d
 i

n
 K

e
rn

 

C
o

u
n

ty
. 

T
h

e
 

ch
an

g
e

 
in

 
to

ta
l 

ac
re

-f
e

e
t 

o
f 

w
at

e
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
e

s 
fo

r 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

fr
o

m
 

1
9

9
5

-2
0

2
0

 a
n

d
 t

h
re

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 d

e
m

an
d

 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
2

0
5

0
 

ar
e

 
sh

o
w

n
 

in
 

F
ig

u
re

 1
-2

. 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

as
so

ci
at

e
d

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
se

 
w

at
e

r 
d

e
liv

e
ri

e
s 

ar
e

 
m

o
st

ly
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e

 
p

u
rc

h
as

e
 

an
d

 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 u
se

d
 f

o
r 

w
at

e
r 

tr
e

at
m

e
n

t,
 c

o
n

ve
ya

n
ce

, 
an

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

w
at

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

it
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a.
 

F
ig

u
re

 1
-2

. 
C

h
a

n
g

e
 i

n
 W

a
te

r 
D

e
li

v
e

ri
e

s 
fo

r 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

5
TO

C

99



SC
V 

W
at

er
 S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 H
is

to
ry

 a
nd

 L
ea

de
rs

hi
p

S
in

ce
 i

ts
 f

o
rm

at
io

n
 i

n
 2

0
1

8
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

h
av

e
 r

e
m

ai
n

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

ve
ly

 s
ta

b
le

. 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
ar

e
 a

ss
o

ci
at

e
d

 w
it

h
 e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 p

u
rc

h
as

e
d

 

an
d

 c
o

n
su

m
e

d
 t

o
 t

re
at

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

w
at

e
r 

to
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 i
n

 i
ts

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a.

 I
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 i
s 

ex
p

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

as
e

, 
le

ad
in

g
 t

o
 a

 t
o

ta
l 

in
cr

e
as

e
 in

 w
at

e
r 

d
e

m
an

d
 a

n
d

 a
 c

o
m

m
e

n
su

ra
te

 in
cr

e
as

e
 in

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
h

as
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 s

e
ve

ra
l p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
an

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
o

u
n

d
 r

e
n

e
w

ab
le

 e
n

e
rg

y,
 

e
n

e
rg

y 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
, 

w
at

e
r 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
, 

an
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
 f

le
e

t 
d

e
ca

rb
o

n
iz

at
io

n
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s,

 in
cr

e
as

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 r

e
si

lie
n

cy
, 

an
d

 in
cr

e
as

e
 c

o
st

-e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
. 

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
ly

, S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
la

u
n

ch
e

d
 t

h
e

 G
re

e
n

 T
e

am
 in

 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 c
o

o
rd

in
at

e
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
vi

a 
cr

o
ss

-o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
al

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t.

 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 E

ne
rg

y 
Ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

Re
ne

w
ab

le
 E

ne
rg

y
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

h
as

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

al
ly

 i
n

ve
st

e
d

 i
n

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
ve

 

e
n

e
rg

y 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 o

f 
it

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 i

n
cr

e
as

e
 r

e
n

e
w

ab
le

 e
n

e
rg

y 

u
sa

g
e

. 
In

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

1
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
p

u
rc

h
as

e
d

 s
o

la
r 

p
an

e
ls

 t
h

at
 h

ad
 

b
e

e
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 o

n
 it

s 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y 
si

n
ce

 2
0

1
1

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
r a

 p
o

w
e

r p
u

rc
h

as
e 

ag
re

e
m

e
n

t 
si

n
ce

 2
0

1
3

. 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

e
st

im
at

e
s 

th
e

 o
n

-s
it

e
 s

o
la

r 
w

ill
 

le
ad

 t
o

 a
ro

u
n

d
 $

5
 m

ill
io

n
 i

n
 s

av
in

g
s 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 l

if
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

as
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

e
n

d
s 

in
 2

0
3

9
. T

h
e

 o
n

-s
it

e
 s

o
la

r 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y 
p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
ar

o
u

n
d

 1
7

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

to
ta

l 
e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 n

e
e

d
s,

 p
ro

d
u

ci
n

g
 1

0
,8

0
0

 m
e

g
aw

at
t 

h
o

u
rs

 (
M

W
h

) 
in

 2
0

2
0

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

ly
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
re

ce
n

tl
y 

co
n

d
u

ct
e

d
 a

 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
d

y 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 P

u
b

lic
 U

ti
lit

ie
s 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 S

e
lf

-

G
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 I
n

ce
n

ti
ve

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 (

S
G

IP
),

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

in
ce

n
ti

ve
s 

to
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 e

xi
st

in
g

, 
n

e
w

 a
n

d
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 e
n

e
rg

y 
re

so
u

rc
e

s.
 

B
as

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 s

tu
d

y,
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ro
cu

re
 a

n
d

 i
n

st
al

l 
b

at
te

ry
 

st
o

ra
g

e
 a

t 
tw

o
 o

f 
it

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(R
io

 V
is

ta
 W

at
e

r 
Tr

e
at

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 a

n
d

 E
ar

l 

S
ch

m
id

t 
F

ilt
ra

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

t)
. S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

al
so

 p
la

n
s 

to
 a

ss
e

ss
 f

e
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 o
n

-s
it

e
 s

o
la

r 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

cr
e

as
e

 c
o

st
s,

 in
cr

e
as

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

re
si

lie
n

ce
, 

an
d

 
d

e
cr

e
as

e
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

O
th

e
r 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 
e

n
e

rg
y 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 

re
g

u
la

r 
fa

ci
lit

y-
w

id
e

 
e

n
e

rg
y 

au
d

it
s,

 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

e
n

e
rg

y 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

, 
an

d
 a

d
o

p
ti

n
g

 e
n

e
rg

y 
m

an
ag

e
m

e
n

t 

so
ft

w
ar

e
 in

to
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 e

xi
st

in
g

 b
u

ild
in

g
s.

 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

P
V

 A
rr

ay
.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

6
TO

C

100



W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
ll 

w
at

e
r 

u
ti

lit
ie

s 
in

 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 

ar
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

to
 

m
e

e
t 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
w

at
e

r 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 t

ar
g

e
ts

. S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
h

as
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 s
e

ve
ra

l w
at

e
r 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

to
 

re
d

u
ce

 
w

at
e

r 
d

e
liv

e
ri

e
s 

an
d

 
su

cc
e

ss
fu

lly
 

m
e

t 
th

e
 

S
ta

te
’s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 2
0

2
0

 w
at

e
r 

u
se

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 2
0

%
 b

e
lo

w
 it

s 
2

0
1

0
 

b
as

e
lin

e
. 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
h

as
 w

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

ar
o

u
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
, 

e
n

g
ag

e
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
. 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
al

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

ce
n

te
r 

ar
o

u
n

d
 l

aw
n

 

re
p

la
ce

m
e

n
t,

 i
rr

ig
at

io
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

an
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

, 
w

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 h
o

m
e 

ch
e

ck
-u

p
s,

 a
n

d
 W

at
e

rS
M

A
R

T
 w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s.

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
al

so
 r

u
n

s 
a 

sc
h

o
o

l 

re
tr

o
fi

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

 
w

h
e

re
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
co

n
d

u
ct

 
a 

w
at

e
r 

u
se

 
as

se
ss

m
e

n
t 

an
al

yz
in

g
 h

is
to

ri
ca

l 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
, 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 f
ix

tu
re

s,
 a

n
d

 

m
ak

e
 c

o
st

-e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 to
 c

o
n

se
rv

e
 w

at
e

r.
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s,

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
a 

va
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

re
b

at
e

s 
fo

r 
w

at
e

r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 a
p

p
lia

n
ce

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 t

o
ile

ts
, 

sp
ri

n
kl

e
r 

n
o

zz
le

s,
 

an
d

 
w

e
at

h
e

r-
b

as
e

d
 

ir
ri

g
at

io
n

 
co

n
tr

o
lle

rs
. 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
o

n
 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 

w
at

e
r 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
an

d
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

ca
n

 b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 o

n
lin

e
 a

t 
h
tt

p
s:

//

yo
u
rs

cv
w

a
te

r.
co

m
/s

av
e

-w
a
te

r-
m

o
n
ey

/.
 I

n
 2

0
2

0
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
e

d
 6

8
 

g
al

lo
n

s 
p

e
r 

ca
p

it
a 

p
e

r 
d

ay
 c

o
m

p
ar

e
d

 t
o

 i
ts

 2
0

1
0

 b
as

e
lin

e
 d

e
m

an
d

. 
W

at
e

r 

co
n

se
rv

e
d

 h
as

 t
h

e
 c

o
-b

e
n

e
fi

t 
o

f 
al

so
 r

e
d

u
ci

n
g

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

as
so

ci
at

e
d

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 e
n

e
rg

y 
n

e
e

d
s 

fo
r 

tr
e

at
m

e
n

t,
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, a
n

d
 im

p
o

rt
 o

f 
w

at
e

r 
su

p
p

lie
s 

an
d

 w
as

te
w

at
e

r.

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Fl
ee

t 
S

C
V

 
W

at
e

r 
is

 
d

e
d

ic
at

e
d

 
to

 
re

d
u

ci
n

g
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 

w
it

h
 

it
s 

ve
h

ic
le

 f
le

e
t.

 I
n

 2
0

2
2

, 
th

e
 A

g
e

n
cy

 p
ro

cu
re

d
 i

ts
 f

ir
st

 e
le

ct
ri

c 
ve

h
ic

le
, 

a 
F

o
rd

 E
-T

ra
n

si
t 

V
an

. 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
IT

 d
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

is
 u

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
le

ct
ri

c 
va

n
 

to
 m

an
ag

e
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
ac

ro
ss

 f
iv

e
 l

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

in
 i

ts
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a.
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

h
as

 p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ro
cu

re
 z

e
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

an
d

 i
n

st
al

l 
e

le
ct

ri
c 

ch
ar

g
in

g
 

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 a
t 

it
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

te
r 

fl
e

e
t.

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
ly

, a
s 

o
f 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1
, S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

b
e

g
an

 u
si

n
g

 r
e

n
e

w
ab

le
 

d
ie

se
l 

in
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
it

s 
fu

e
l 

st
o

ra
g

e
 t

an
ks

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

an
 r

e
d

u
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

b
y 

u
p

 t
o

 8
0

%
 i

n
 c

e
rt

ai
n

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t.

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
h

as
 p

la
n

s 
to

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 

re
p

la
ce

 e
xi

st
in

g
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
w

it
h

 z
e

ro
-e

m
is

si
o

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

h
e

n
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
ly

, 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

ic
al

ly
, 

an
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
ly

 f
e

as
ib

le
. 

R
e

ce
n

tl
y,

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
ac

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

 

fl
e

e
t 

m
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o

 m
an

ag
e

 i
ts

 f
le

e
t 

u
se

 a
n

d
 a

ss
e

ss
 

to
ta

l c
o

st
 o

f 
o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
d

e
ca

rb
o

n
iz

at
io

n
. 

D
ro

u
g

h
t-

re
si

st
a

n
t 

g
a

rd
e

n
.

E
le

ct
ri

c 
ve

h
ic

le
 f

le
e

t 
ch

a
rg

in
g

.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

7
TO

C

101



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

102



2.
  

C
O

N
TE

XT
 F

O
R 

SU
ST

AI
N

AB
IL

IT
Y

In
 

m
an

y 
w

ay
s,

 
th

e
 

co
n

ve
rs

at
io

n
 

ar
o

u
n

d
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
, 

e
sp

e
ci

al
ly

 in
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 h

as
 b

e
co

m
e

 s
yn

o
n

ym
o

u
s 

w
it

h
 c

lim
at

e 

ch
an

g
e

. T
h

e
 S

ta
te

 o
f 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

, a
n

d
 m

o
re

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y 

th
e

 f
e

d
e

ra
l 

g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t,

 
h

av
e

 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 
sw

e
e

p
in

g
 

cl
im

at
e

 
ch

an
g

e 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

m
e

an
t 

to
 

b
o

th
 

m
it

ig
at

e
 

th
e

 
e

ff
e

ct
s 

o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e

 w
h

ile
 a

ls
o

 a
d

ap
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

lim
at

ic
 c

h
an

g
e

s 
al

re
ad

y 

b
e

in
g

 
ex

p
e

ri
e

n
ce

d
 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e

 
co

u
n

tr
y.

 
C

lim
at

e
 

ch
an

g
e 

im
p

ac
ts

 
an

d
 

th
e

 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 

m
e

an
t 

to
 

ad
d

re
ss

 

it
, 

h
av

e
 t

h
e

 c
ap

ac
it

y 
to

 c
h

an
g

e
 t

h
e

 w
ay

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

w
at

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 it
s 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

. 

T
h

is
 c

h
ap

te
r 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

s 
th

e
 s

ci
e

n
ti

fi
c 

an
d

 le
g

is
la

ti
ve

 c
o

n
te

xt
 o

f 

cl
im

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

s 
an

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 g

re
e

n
h

o
u

se
 

e
ff

e
ct

, 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

d
at

a 
in

 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
, 

th
e

 
S

ta
te

 
o

f 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

’s
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

e
ff

o
rt

s,
 

an
d

 
im

p
ac

ts
 

o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e

 o
n

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

P
y

ra
m

id
 L

a
ke

 R
e

se
rv

o
ir

.

G
LO

BA
L 

EN
VI

RO
N

M
EN

TA
L 

AN
D

 
C

LI
M

AT
E 

C
H

AN
G

E 
IS

SU
ES

T
h

e
 g

as
e

s 
in

 E
ar

th
’s

 a
tm

o
sp

h
e

re
 a

ct
 a

s 
a 

b
la

n
ke

t,
 a

llo
w

in
g

 h
ig

h
-e

n
e

rg
y 

lig
h

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 

S
u

n
 t

o
 p

as
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
ar

th
’s

 s
u

rf
ac

e
, w

h
ile

 a
b

so
rb

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
fl

e
ct

in
g

 lo
w

e
r 

e
n

e
rg

y 

h
e

at
 r

ad
ia

ti
n

g
 b

ac
k 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 s
u

rf
ac

e
. 

Tr
ap

p
e

d
 h

e
at

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 a

tm
o

sp
h

e
re

 i
s 

kn
o

w
n

 

as
 t

h
e

 g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 e
ff

e
ct

, 
b

e
ca

u
se

 a
tm

o
sp

h
e

ri
c 

g
as

e
s 

fu
n

ct
io

n
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 w
in

d
o

w
s 

in
 

a 
g

re
e

n
h

o
u

se
, 

w
h

ic
h

 t
ra

p
 t

h
e

 S
u

n
’s

 r
ay

s 
an

d
 c

re
at

e
 a

 m
u

ch
 w

ar
m

e
r 

sp
ac

e
 i

n
si

d
e

 a
s 

co
m

p
ar

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

u
ts

id
e

 a
ir.

 E
ar

th
’s

 a
tm

o
sp

h
e

ri
c 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
ar

e
 m

ai
n

ta
in

e
d

 b
y 

th
e 

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 e
ff

e
ct

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
g

u
la

te
s 

th
e

 c
lim

at
e

 t
o

 b
e

 s
u

it
ab

le
 f

o
r 

lif
e

. 
H

o
w

e
ve

r,
 a

 r
ap

id
 

in
cr

e
as

e
 i

n
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
ca

n
 c

au
se

 e
xc

e
ss

 h
e

at
 t

o
 b

e
 t

ra
p

p
e

d
, 

im
p

ac
ti

n
g

 g
lo

b
al

 

su
rf

ac
e

 t
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

s 
an

d
 E

ar
th

’s
 c

lim
at

e
. T

h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 d

e
p

ic
te

d
 in

 F
ig

u
re

 2
-1

. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

8

103



W
IT

H
 N

O
R

M
A

L
 

G
R

E
E

N
H

O
U

S
E

 G
A

S
E

S
W

IT
H

 I
N

C
R

E
A

S
E

D
 

G
R

E
E

N
H

O
U

S
E

 G
A

S
E

S

F
ig

u
re

 2
-1

. 
G

re
e

n
h

o
u

se
 G

a
s 

E
ff

e
c

t

In
 t

h
e

 l
a

st
 c

e
n

tu
ry

, 
h

u
m

a
n

 a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
b

u
rn

in
g

 f
o

ss
il

 f
u

e
ls

  

a
n

d
 d

e
fo

re
st

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

v
e

 c
a

u
se

d
 a

 j
u

m
p

 i
n

 t
h

e
  

co
n

ce
n

tr
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
G

H
G

s 
in

 t
h

e
 a

tm
o

sp
h

e
re

.

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

: 
 

E
xc

e
ss

 t
ra

p
p

e
d

 h
e

a
t,

 h
ig

h
e

r 
g

lo
b

a
l 

te
m

p
e

ra
tu

re
s,

  
a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
si

n
g

 h
a

za
rd

s.
 

A
n

th
ro

p
o

g
e

n
ic

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 o
f 

la
rg

e
 q

u
an

ti
ti

e
s 

o
f 

G
H

G
s 

in
to

 t
h

e
 a

tm
o

sp
h

e
re

 h
as

 i
n

cr
e

as
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
tl

y 
si

n
ce

 

th
e

 
d

aw
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 

in
d

u
st

ri
al

 
re

vo
lu

ti
o

n
 

in
 

th
e

 
m

id
-

n
in

e
te

e
n

th
 

ce
n

tu
ry

. 
H

u
m

an
 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

su
ch

 
as

 
th

e 

co
m

b
u

st
io

n
 o

f 
fo

ss
il 

fu
e

ls
 f

o
r 

e
n

e
rg

y 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

fu
e

l u
se

 r
e

le
as

e
 G

H
G

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 c

ar
b

o
n

 d
io

xi
d

e
 (

C
O

2
),

 

m
e

th
an

e
 

(C
H

4
),

 
an

d
 

n
it

ro
u

s 
o

xi
d

e
s 

(N
2
O

) 
in

to
 

th
e 

at
m

o
sp

h
e

re
. 

E
ac

h
 G

H
G

 h
as

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 g

lo
b

al
 w

ar
m

in
g

 

p
o

te
n

ti
al

 (
G

W
P

),
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fe

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
xt

e
n

t 
to

 w
h

ic
h

 

th
e

 G
H

G
 t

ra
p

s 
e

n
e

rg
y 

in
 t

h
e

 a
tm

o
sp

h
e

re
. I

n
 a

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
rg

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

P
an

e
l 

o
n

 C
lim

at
e

 C
h

an
g

e 

(I
P

C
C

) 
S

ix
th

 
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

,1
 

w
h

ic
h

 
p

ro
vi

d
e

s 

th
e

 m
o

st
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
an

d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 p

e
e

r-
re

vi
e

w
e

d
 

as
se

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
cl

im
at

e
 c

h
an

g
e

, 
G

H
G

s 
ar

e
 n

o
rm

al
iz

e
d

 

b
as

e
d

 
o

n
 

th
e

ir
 

g
lo

b
al

 
w

ar
m

in
g

 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 

an
d

 
ar

e 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

to
 

as
 

ca
rb

o
n

 
d

io
xi

d
e

 
e

q
u

iv
al

e
n

ts
 

o
r 

C
O

2e.
 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

q
u

an
ti

fi
e

d
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
in

 
te

rm
s 

o
f 

m
e

tr
ic

 
to

n
s 

(M
T

) 
C

O
2e 

e
m

it
te

d
 

p
e

r 
ye

ar
, 

as
 

is
 

co
m

m
o

n
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

. 

1
. 

In
te

rg
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l P
an

e
l o

n
 C

lim
at

e
 C

h
an

g
e

. 2
0

2
1

. S
ix

th
 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
. A

cc
e

ss
e

d
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
. h

tt
p

s:
//

w
w

w
.

ip
cc

.c
h

/r
e

p
o

rt
/s

ix
th

-a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t-

re
p

o
rt

-c
yc

le
/

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

9

104



C
a

lif
o

rn
ia

 S
ta

te
 C

a
p

it
o

l,
 S

a
cr

a
m

e
n

to
.

St
at

e 
of

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
’s

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Ef

fo
rt

s

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 
se

rv
e

s 
as

 
a 

n
at

io
n

al
 

as
 

w
e

ll 
as

 
g

lo
b

al
 

le
ad

e
r 

in
 

in
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

ro
u

n
d

 c
lim

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 m

it
ig

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 e

ff
o

rt
s.

 T
h

e
 S

ta
te

 h
as

 s
e

t 
th

e
 f

ir
st

 e
co

n
o

m
y-

w
id

e 

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

 
g

as
 

lim
it

, 
fi

rs
t 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
st

an
d

ar
d

s 
fo

r 
ve

h
ic

le
s,

 

an
d

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 t
h

e
 f

ir
st

 1
0

0
%

 c
ar

b
o

n
 n

e
u

tr
al

it
y 

g
o

al
 i

n
 t

h
e

 n
at

io
n

. 

M
o

st
 

re
ce

n
tl

y,
 

th
e

 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 

A
ir

 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

B
o

ar
d

 
(C

A
R

B
) 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 t

h
e

 2
0

2
2

 S
co

p
in

g
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e
 t

o
 a

ss
e

ss
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e
 S

ta
te

’s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 t
ar

g
e

t 
o

f 
re

d
u

ci
n

g
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

b
y 

4
0

%
 b

e
lo

w
 1

9
9

0
 l

e
ve

ls
 b

y 
2

0
3

0
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
tr

aj
e

ct
o

ry
 o

f 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g

 c
ar

b
o

n
 n

e
u

tr
al

it
y 

n
o

 la
te

r 
th

an
 2

0
4

5
.2

 T
h

e
 P

la
n

 u
p

d
at

e 

d
e

ta
ils

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

’s
 l

o
n

g
-t

e
rm

 c
lim

at
e

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
an

d
 a

ss
e

ss
e

s 

p
at

h
w

ay
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 r
e

n
e

w
ab

le
 e

n
e

rg
y 

d
e

p
lo

ym
e

n
t,

 c
le

an
 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y,
 n

at
u

ra
l 

an
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 l

an
d

s,
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
ju

st
ic

e
, 

e
n

e
rg

y 
se

cu
ri

ty
, a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

al
th

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 
D

e
p

ar
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
W

at
e

r 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

re
g

u
la

rl
y 

as
se

ss
e

s 
an

d
 f

o
re

ca
st

s 
w

at
e

r 
re

so
u

rc
e

 r
e

lia
b

ili
ty

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e 

st
at

e
. 

E
ve

ry
 t

w
o

 y
e

ar
s,

 a
 S

ta
te

 W
at

e
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 C

ap
ab

ili
ty

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 i

s 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 a
ss

e
ss

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 o
ve

r 
a 

ra
n

g
e 

o
f 

h
yd

ro
lo

g
ic

 
an

d
 

cl
im

at
e

 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s.

3
 

T
h

e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

w
at

e
r 

su
p

p
lie

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 S
ta

te
 W

at
e

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

w
at

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

. 
T

h
is

 i
s 

o
f 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

co
n

ce
rn

 f
o

r 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

as
 i

t 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y 
re

lie
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 

S
ta

te
 W

at
e

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 f

o
r 

n
e

ar
ly

 5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

it
s 

w
at

e
r 

n
e

e
d

s 
in

 

n
o

rm
al

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 y

e
ar

s 
an

d
 a

s 
m

u
ch

 a
s 

7
5

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 d

ry
 

an
d

 c
ri

ti
ca

lly
 d

ry
 y

e
ar

s.
 

2
. 

D
ra

ft
 S

co
p

in
g

 P
la

n
 U

p
d

at
e

. 2
0

2
2

. h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
2

.a
rb

.c
a

.g
o

v
/s

it
e

s/
d

e
fa

u
lt

/
fi

le
s/

2
0

2
2

-0
5

/2
0

2
2

-d
ra

ft
-s

p
.p

d
f.

 A
cc

e
ss

e
d

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

. 

3
. 

S
ta

te
 W

at
e

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 C
ap

ab
ili

ty
 R

e
p

o
rt

. 2
0

2
1

. h
tt

p
s:

//
d

a
ta

.c
n

ra
.

ca
.g

o
v

/d
a

ta
se

t/
st

a
te

-w
a

te
r-

p
ro

je
ct

-d
e

liv
e

ry
-c

a
p

a
b

ili
ty

-r
e

p
o

rt
-d

cr
-2

0
2

1
. 

A
cc

e
ss

e
d

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

.

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

1
0

105

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-05/2022-draft-sp.pdf
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-05/2022-draft-sp.pdf
https://data.cnra.ca.gov/dataset/state-water-project-delivery-capability-report-dcr-2021
https://data.cnra.ca.gov/dataset/state-water-project-delivery-capability-report-dcr-2021


C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

Im
pa

ct
s 

on
 S

C
V 

W
at

er
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

T
h

is
 s

e
ct

io
n

 o
u

tl
in

e
s 

th
e

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 c
lim

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 im

p
ac

ts
 r

e
le

va
n

t 
to

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r,
 im

p
ac

ts
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
, a

n
d

 t
h

e
 in

co
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 in
to

 lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

, r
e

si
lie

n
cy

, a
n

d
 c

lim
at

e
 c

h
an

g
e

 a
d

ap
ta

ti
o

n
 in

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s.
 

Re
gi

on
al

 Im
pa

ct
s

C
lim

at
e

 
ch

an
g

e
 

is
 

al
re

ad
y 

cr
e

at
in

g
 

im
p

ac
ts

 
o

n
 

p
u

b
lic

 
h

e
al

th
, 

n
at

u
ra

l 
an

d
 

m
an

ag
e

d
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 i
n

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
, 

se
rv

ic
e

s,
 a

n
d

 f
ac

ili
ti

e
s 

in
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
. 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a 

fa
lls

 in
to

 th
e

 L
o

s 
A

n
g

e
le

s 
R

e
g

io
n

 , 
as

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 in

 C
al

if
o

rn
ia

’s
 

2
0

1
8

 F
o

u
rt

h
 C

lim
at

e
 C

h
an

g
e

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

Lo
s 

A
n

g
e

le
s 

R
e

g
io

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

. 
S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r’

s 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y 

ex
p

e
ri

e
n

ci
n

g
:

		


Lo
n

g
e

r 
an

d
 m

o
re

 e
xt

re
m

e
 d

ro
u

g
h

t 
p

e
ri

o
d

s

		


In
cr

e
as

e
d

 in
te

n
si

ty
 o

f 
ex

tr
e

m
e

 h
e

at
 d

ay
s

		


In
cr

e
as

e
d

 w
ild

fi
re

 r
is

k 
as

 c
lim

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 c

re
at

e
s 

h
o

tt
e

r 
an

d
 d

ri
e

r 
la

n
d

sc
ap

e
s

		


W
o

rs
e

n
e

d
 a

ir
 q

u
al

it
y 

d
u

e
 t

o
 i

n
cr

e
as

e
d

 s
m

o
ke

 f
ro

m
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u

e
n

t 
w

ild
fi

re
s,

 

d
ri

e
r a

n
d

 d
u

st
ie

r c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s,

 a
n

d
 in

cr
e

as
e

d
 ra

te
s 

o
f s

m
o

g
, a

ls
o

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s 
o

zo
n

e

		


In
cr

e
as

e
d

 h
e

av
y 

p
re

ci
p

it
at

io
n

 e
ve

n
ts

 l
e

ad
in

g
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 i

n
cr

e
as

e
d

 f
lo

o
d

in
g

 

ri
sk

 in
 lo

w
-l

yi
n

g
 a

re
as

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 w
at

e
r 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

ar
e

 a
lr

e
ad

y 
ex

p
e

ri
e

n
ci

n
g

 s
tr

ai
n

 

fr
o

m
 c

lim
at

e
 c

h
an

g
e

 im
p

ac
ts

. P
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y,
 in

cr
e

as
e

d
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
o

f 
d

ro
u

g
h

t 
ar

e 

le
ad

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

in
 w

at
e

r 
su

p
p

ly
 a

va
ila

b
ili

ty
. P

ro
lo

n
g

e
d

 d
ro

u
g

h
t 

p
e

ri
o

d
s 

d
e

cr
e

as
e

 t
h

e
 n

at
u

ra
l r

e
ch

ar
g

e
 o

f 
lo

ca
l a

q
u

if
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 w
h

ic
h

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
d

ra
w

s 

g
ro

u
n

d
w

at
e

r.
 C

h
an

g
in

g
 p

re
ci

p
it

at
io

n
 p

at
te

rn
s 

ar
e

 a
ls

o
 c

au
si

n
g

 in
cr

e
as

e
d

 r
ai

n
 

an
d

 d
e

cr
e

as
e

d
 s

n
o

w
fa

ll,
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 h
av

in
g

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
im

p
ac

ts
 o

n
 s

n
o

w
p

ac
k.

 

D
e

cr
e

as
e

d
 s

n
o

w
p

ac
k 

in
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 m

e
an

s 
th

e
re

 is
 le

ss
 n

at
u

ra
l s

to
ra

g
e

 o
f 

w
at

e
r,

 

d
e

cr
e

as
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
va

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

w
at

e
r 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
ry

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

m
o

n
th

s.
 T

h
is

 is
 

an
ti

ci
p

at
e

d
 t

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
tl

y 
im

p
ac

t 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
im

p
o

rt
e

d
 w

at
e

r 
su

p
p

lie
s.

  

U
p

p
e

r 
C

a
st

a
ic

 L
a

ke
.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

1
1

TO
C

106



St
at

e 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
Im

pa
ct

s

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 h
as

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 s

e
ve

ra
l k

e
y 

cl
im

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 a

ct
io

n
 le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

, p
o

lic
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

ai
m

e
d

 a
t 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 s
ta

te
 o

ve
r 

th
e

 la
st

 

co
u

p
le

 o
f 

d
e

ca
d

e
s.

 A
ss

e
m

b
ly

 B
ill

 (
A

B
) 

2
3

, S
e

n
at

e
 B

ill
 (

S
B

) 
3

2
, a

n
d

 A
ss

e
m

b
ly

 B
ill

 (
A

B
) 

1
2

7
9

 s
e

rv
e

 a
s 

p
ri

m
ar

y 
d

ri
ve

rs
 o

f 
cl

im
at

e
 a

ct
io

n
 in

 C
al

if
o

rn
ia

. D
e

ta
ile

d
 

d
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
ke

y 
S

ta
te

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

re
 in

cl
u

d
e

d
 in

 C
h

ap
te

r 
4

. 

As
se

m
bl

y 
Bi

ll 
32

A
B

 3
2

 e
st

ab
lis

h
e

d
 a

 s
ta

te
w

id
e

 g
o

al
 o

f 
re

d
u

ci
n

g
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
to

 1
9

9
0

 le
ve

ls
 

b
y 

2
0

2
0

. I
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 C
A

R
B

 t
o

 p
re

p
ar

e
 a

 S
co

p
in

g
 P

la
n

, a
d

o
p

te
d

 in
 2

0
1

4
, o

u
tl

in
in

g
 

th
e

 k
e

y 
st

ra
te

g
ie

s 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 2

0
2

0
 t

ar
g

e
t.

 

Se
na

te
 B

ill
 3

2
S

B
 3

2
 w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
h

e
d

 in
 2

0
1

6
, e

xt
e

n
d

in
g

 A
B

 3
2

 b
y 

re
q

u
ir

in
g

 th
e

 S
ta

te
 to

 fu
rt

h
e

r 

re
d

u
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

to
 4

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

e
lo

w
 1

9
9

0
 le

ve
ls

 b
y 

2
0

3
0

. I
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
n

 

u
p

d
at

e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

co
p

in
g

 P
la

n
, w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 in

 2
0

1
7.

 

As
se

m
bl

y 
Bi

ll 
12

79
A

B
 1

2
7

9
, 

ad
o

p
te

d
 in

 2
0

2
2

, 
co

d
if

ie
s 

th
e

 s
ta

te
w

id
e

 c
ar

b
o

n
 n

e
u

tr
al

it
y 

g
o

al
 in

to
 a

 

le
g

al
ly

 b
in

d
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 c

ar
b

o
n

 n
e

u
tr

al
it

y 
n

o
 l

at
e

r 

th
an

 2
0

4
5

 a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
 8

5
%

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

at
 g

o
al

. A
B

 1
2

7
9

 

b
u

ild
s 

u
p

o
n

 E
O

 B
-5

5
-1

8
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ri
g

in
al

ly
 e

st
ab

lis
h

e
d

 C
al

if
o

rn
ia

’s
 2

0
4

5
 g

o
al

 o
f 

ca
rb

o
n

 n
e

u
tr

al
it

y.

4
. 

D
ra

ft
 2

0
2

2
 S

co
p

in
g

 P
la

n
 U

p
d

at
e

. C
A

R
B

. h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
2

.a
rb

.c
a

.g
o

v
/s

it
e

s/
d

e
fa

u
lt

/fi
le

s/
2

0
2

2
-0

5
/2

0
2

2
-d

ra
ft

-s
p

.p
d

f.
 A

cc
e

ss
e

d
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
.

Se
na

te
 B

ill
 10

20
S

B
 1

0
2

0
, a

d
o

p
te

d
 in

 2
0

2
2

, a
d

va
n

ce
s 

th
e

 s
ta

te
’s

 t
ra

je
ct

o
ry

 t
o

 1
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
cl

e
an

 

e
n

e
rg

y 
p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
b

y 
2

0
4

5
 b

y 
cr

e
at

in
g

 c
le

an
 e

n
e

rg
y 

ta
rg

e
ts

 o
f 

9
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

3
5

 a
n

d
 9

5
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

y 
2

0
4

0
. S

B
 1

0
2

0
 b

u
ild

s 
u

p
o

n
 S

B
 1

0
0

, w
h

ic
h

 a
cc

e
le

ra
te

d
 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

’s
 R

e
n

e
w

ab
le

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 

p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 t
o

 in
cr

e
as

e
 p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 e
lig

ib
le

 r
e

n
e

w
ab

le
 e

n
e

rg
y 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 

6
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

3
0

 a
n

d
 1

0
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

4
5

. 

Be
ne

fit
s 

to
 A

lig
ni

ng
 w

ith
 S

ta
te

 G
oa

ls
W

h
ile

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
is

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

fo
rm

 w
it

h
 A

B
 3

2
, 

S
B

 3
2

, 
o

r 
A

B
 1

2
7

9
, 

th
e

 S
ta

te
 r

e
co

g
n

iz
e

s 
w

at
e

r 
ag

e
n

ci
e

s 
ar

e
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 la
rg

e
st

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
rs

 t
o

 G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
in

 C
al

if
o

rn
ia

.4
 F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
, 

it
 i

s 
lik

e
ly

 a
s 

th
e

 S
ta

te
 w

o
rk

s 
to

w
ar

d
s 

re
ac

h
in

g
 c

ar
b

o
n

 n
e

u
tr

al
it

y 
b

y 
at

 le
as

t 
2

0
4

5
, a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

 

ap
p

ly
in

g
 t

o
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
. 

D
e

ve
lo

p
in

g
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
ar

g
e

ts
 i

n
 

th
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 l

ay
 a

 f
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
G

H
G

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

ar
s.

 A
lig

n
in

g
 w

it
h

 S
ta

te
 t

ar
g

e
ts

 w
ill

 m
ak

e
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

m
o

re
 

co
m

p
e

ti
ti

ve
 in

 g
ra

n
t 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
an

d
 o

th
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 s
o

u
rc

e
s.

 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

1
2

TO
C

107

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-05/2022-draft-sp.pdf


M
EA

SU
RI

N
G

  
SU

ST
A

IN
A

BI
LI

TY
  

PR
O

G
RE

SS

C
om

m
on

 S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
  

M
et

ri
cs

M
e

as
u

ri
n

g
 

re
so

u
rc

e
 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 
ca

n
 

b
e

 
u

se
d

 
as

 

a 
m

e
tr

ic
 

to
 

as
se

ss
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
. 

T
h

is
 

m
ay

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 a
ss

e
ss

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
n

e
rg

y 

u
se

, 
fu

e
l 

u
se

 o
r 

w
at

e
r 

to
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 i

f 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 

ar
e

 b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
su

m
e

d
 i

n
 a

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 m

an
n

e
r,

 w
it

h
 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
, s

o
ci

al
, a

n
d

 e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

im
p

ac
ts

. 
F

in
an

ci
al

 m
e

tr
ic

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e
 c

o
st

/b
e

n
e

fi
t 

ra
ti

o
 

an
d

 
re

tu
rn

 
o

n
 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
ca

n
 

m
e

as
u

re
 

th
e 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 e

ff
o

rt
s.

 

In
 

th
e

 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

P
la

n
, 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

u
se

s 
th

e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 m

e
tr

ic
s 

to
 s

e
t 

g
o

al
s 

an
d

 m
e

as
u

re
 p

ro
g

re
ss

. 

		


kW
h

 o
f 

E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 U
se

d

		


T
h

e
rm

s 
o

f 
N

at
u

ra
l G

as
 U

se
d

		


G
al

lo
n

s 
o

f 
D

ie
se

l, 
G

as
o

lin
e

, P
ro

p
an

e
 U

se
d

		


S
h

o
rt

 T
o

n
s 

o
f 

W
as

te
 D

is
p

o
se

d

		


P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
e

d

		


A
cr

e
-F

e
e

t 
o

f 
W

at
e

r 
D

e
liv

e
re

d

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

1
3

108



S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
P

V
 A

rr
ay

.

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
as

 a
 M

et
ri

c 

M
an

y 
o

f 
th

e
 m

e
tr

ic
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 a

b
o

ve
, 

ca
n

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 t

ra
n

sl
at

e
d

 i
n

to
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 t

h
e 

m
o

st
 u

b
iq

u
it

o
u

s 
m

e
tr

ic
 u

se
d

 t
o

 t
ra

ck
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 i
n

 t
o

d
ay

’s
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

la
n

d
sc

ap
e

. 
M

e
as

u
ri

n
g

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 w

it
h

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

as
 a

 m
e

tr
ic

 o
p

e
n

s 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
ra

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

ck
in

g
 o

f 
G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
to

 b
e 

e
lig

ib
le

. 
F

o
r 

ex
am

p
le

, 
se

ve
ra

l 
cl

e
an

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

e
rg

y 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
m

an
ag

e
d

 b
y 

C
A

R
B

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 t
h

e
 t

ra
ck

in
g

 o
f 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

as
 a

 c
ri

te
ri

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

T
h

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 in
cr

e
as

e
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
co

m
p

e
ti

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 f

o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 b

e
ca

u
se

 

th
e

 a
g

e
n

cy
 w

ill
 h

av
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 c

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 
A

s 
an

 

ex
am

p
le

, 
D

ia
b

lo
 W

at
e

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
as

 a
w

ar
d

e
d

 a
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t 
b

y 
th

e
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 G

o
ve

rn
o

r’
s 

O
ff

ic
e

 o
f 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
o

f 
$

3
0

0
,0

0
0

 t
o

 i
n

st
al

l 
o

n
-s

it
e

 s
o

la
r 

an
d

 b
at

te
ry

 s
to

ra
g

e 

at
 i

ts
 f

ac
ili

ti
e

s.
 I

n
 2

0
2

1
, 

th
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
ad

o
p

te
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
co

m
m

it
ti

n
g

 t
o

 r
e

ac
h

 c
ar

b
o

n
 

n
e

u
tr

al
it

y 
b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

2
7

 a
n

d
 h

as
 b

e
e

n
 t

ra
ck

in
g

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

is
 g

o
al

. 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

p
ro

vi
d

e
 a

 s
in

g
le

 m
e

tr
ic

 t
o

 q
u

an
ti

fy
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

ar
e

 p
as

t 
an

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 e

ff
o

rt
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 c
an

 a
ls

o
 a

id
 i

n
 w

in
n

in
g

 g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

at
e

r,
 e

n
e

rg
y,

 a
n

d
 f

u
e

l, 
ca

n
 b

e 

as
se

ss
e

d
 a

s 
M

T
 o

f 
C

O
2e 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

. 

Q
u

an
ti

fy
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ck
in

g
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
al

lo
w

s 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

to
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

so
u

rc
e

s 
an

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
w

it
h

 e
xc

e
ss

iv
e

 e
n

e
rg

y 
u

sa
g

e
 a

n
d

/o
r 

in
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

S
tr

at
e

g
ie

s 
th

at
 

d
e

cr
e

as
e

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

ty
p

ic
al

ly
 in

cr
e

as
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 c

o
st

-e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
tr

ac
ki

n
g

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
to

 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
ra

n
sp

ar
e

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
 i

ts
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
re

 a
w

ar
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
te

p
s 

it
 i

s 
ta

ki
n

g
 t

o
 

al
ig

n
 w

it
h

 S
ta

te
 t

ar
g

e
ts

, o
th

e
r 

in
d

u
st

ry
 le

ad
e

rs
, a

n
d

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
co

n
ce

rn
s.

 

M
an

y 
le

ad
in

g
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 w

at
e

r 
ag

e
n

ci
e

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
T

h
e

 M
e

tr
o

p
o

lit
an

 W
at

e
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
o

f 

S
o

u
th

e
rn

 C
al

if
o

rn
ia

, 
C

o
ac

h
e

lla
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t,

 I
rv

in
e

 R
an

ch
 W

at
e

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t,

 D
ia

b
lo

 

W
at

e
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t,
 a

n
d

 E
as

t 
B

ay
 M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 U

ti
lit

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t,

 h
av

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

cl
im

at
e

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s 

to
 a

lig
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 S
ta

te
’s

 G
H

G
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 g
o

al
s 

an
d

 m
it

ig
at

e
 c

lim
at

e 

ch
an

g
e

 im
p

ac
ts

. T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
, S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

le
ad

in
g

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
m

o
n

g
 o

th
e

r 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 w

at
e

r 
ag

e
n

cy
 le

ad
e

rs
. A

ss
e

ss
in

g
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

ex
h

ib
it

s 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

is
 

p
re

p
ar

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

te
 in

 lo
ca

l a
n

d
 r

e
g

io
n

al
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

ff
o

rt
s.

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
ly

, 

as
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s 
to

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 l

e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 c
lim

at
e

 a
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

g
o

al
s,

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
m

ay
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 t
o

 q
u

an
ti

fy
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 o
n

 G
H

G
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
ar

g
e

ts
. B

y 
tr

ac
ki

n
g

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

n
o

w
, S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

is
 a

h
e

ad
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rv

e
 a

n
d

 

o
n

 t
ra

ck
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
fu

tu
re

 S
ta

te
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

1
4

109



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

110



3.
  

SC
V 

W
AT

ER
  

G
H

G
 E

M
IS

SI
O

N
S 

LE
VE

L

G
H

G
 E

M
IS

SI
O

N
S 

AS
 A

 
M

ET
RI

C
 F

O
R 

M
EA

SU
RI

N
G

 
SU

ST
A

IN
A

BI
LI

TY
 

A
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 i

n
 C

h
ap

te
r 

2
, 

q
u

an
ti

fy
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ck
in

g
 G

H
G

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 

st
ar

ti
n

g
 

w
it

h
 

a 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

in
ve

n
to

ry
, 

is
 

co
m

m
o

n
 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 

as
 

a 
fi

rs
t 

st
e

p
 

in
 

th
e

 
G

H
G

 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
h

e
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
in

ve
n

to
ry

 d
e

fi
n

e
s 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 b

o
u

n
d

ar
ie

s,
 m

e
as

u
re

s 
ke

y 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

m
e

tr
ic

s 
(e

.g
.,

 f
u

e
l 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

, 
e

n
e

rg
y 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

, 
w

at
e

r 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

),
 

e
st

im
at

e
s 

th
e

 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 

an
d

 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

a 
d

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

at
a 

an
d

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y 
u

se
d

 

to
 

co
m

p
le

te
 

th
e

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

in
ve

n
to

ry
. 

T
h

is
 

ch
ap

te
r 

al
so

 
o

u
tl

in
e

s 
th

e
 

p
u

rp
o

se
, 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

ie
s,

 
an

d
 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

th
e

 f
o

re
ca

st
 s

ce
n

ar
io

s 
u

se
d

 t
o

 e
st

im
at

e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

M
o

re
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 

d
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
th

e
 

in
ve

n
to

ry
 

an
d

 
fo

re
ca

st
 

an
al

ys
is

 
an

d
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y 
ca

n
 

b
e

 
fo

u
n

d
 

in
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
.

S
a

n
ta

 C
la

ri
ta

 V
a

lle
y 

W
a

te
r 

A
g

e
n

cy
 w

a
te

r 
ta

n
k.

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

1
5

111



 
D

ir
e

ct
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
  

so
u

rc
e

s 
o

w
n

e
d

 o
r 

 
co

n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y 
S

C
V

, 
 

su
ch

 a
s 

n
at

u
ra

l g
a

s,
 

p
ro

p
a

n
e

, 
o

r 
g

a
so

lin
e

 
co

m
b

u
st

io
n

.

 
E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
  

p
o

w
e

r 
p

la
n

ts
 s

u
p

p
ly

in
g

 
e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
d

  
b

y 
S

C
V

 f
o

r 
u

se
  

at
 it

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 
a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

s.

 
In

d
ir

e
ct

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
 

o
cc

u
rr

in
g

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
 

S
C

V
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s,
  

su
ch

 a
s 

co
m

m
u

te
r 

 
ve

h
ic

le
 t

ri
p

s 
a

n
d

 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.

F
ig

u
re

 3
-1

. 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r’

s 
G

H
G

 E
m

is
si

o
n

 S
o

u
rc

e
s 

b
y 

S
co

p
e

SC
O

PE
 3

:
SC

O
PE

 2
:

SC
O

PE
 1:

M
e

th
a

n
e

  
L

e
a

k
a

g
e

S
C

O
P

E

3
E

m
p

lo
y

e
e

  
C

o
m

m
u

te
  

E
m

is
si

o
n

s

S
C

O
P

E

3

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
 

T
&

D
 L

o
ss

e
s

S
C

O
P

E

3

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r 

&
 

W
a

st
e

 G
e

n
e

ra
te

d

S
C

O
P

E

3

S
C

V
-P

u
rc

h
a

se
d

  
E

le
c

tr
ic

it
y

S
C

O
P

E

2

F
u

e
l 

C
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

  
fr

o
m

 S
C

V
 F

le
e

t 
 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

S
C

O
P

E

1

N
a

tu
ra

l 
G

a
s 

C
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

 a
t 

 
S

C
V

 F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s

S
C

O
P

E

1

C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s

S
C

O
P

E

3

T
h

e
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
in

ve
n

to
ry

 u
se

d
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

d
at

a 
fo

r 
e

ac
h

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 c

al
cu

la
te

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

D
at

a 
fo

r 
e

ac
h

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
so

u
rc

e
 w

as
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 f

ro
m

 b
ill

in
g

 h
is

to
ry

, i
n

te
rn

al
 r

e
p

o
rt

s,
 a

n
d

 s
u

rv
e

ys
.  

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
So

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
Sc

op
es

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

2
0

2
0

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

in
ve

n
to

ry
 w

as
 

p
re

p
ar

e
d

 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
 p

ro
to

co
ls

 

fr
o

m
 T

h
e

 C
lim

at
e

 R
e

g
is

tr
y5

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

fo
r 

L
o

ca
l 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

In
it

ia
ti

ve
s.

6
 

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

n
 in

ve
n

to
ry

 q
u

an
ti

fy
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
fr

o
m

 
al

l 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

n
g

 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

th
at

 
fa

ll 
u

n
d

e
r 

so
m

e
 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
th

e 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
’s

 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 

co
n

tr
o

l. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

ar
e 

ca
te

g
o

ri
ze

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

re
e

 s
co

p
e

s 
to

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 t
h

re
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l. 
S

co
p

e
 1

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

s 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 b
y 

th
e

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
. 

S
co

p
e

 2
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

as
so

ci
at

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
u

rc
h

as
e

d
 e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
. 

S
co

p
e

 3
 

in
cl

u
d

e
s 

al
l 

o
th

e
r 

G
H

G
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
n

o
t 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 b
y 

th
e

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
, b

u
t 

w
h

ic
h

 

ar
e

 f
u

n
d

am
e

n
ta

l t
o

 t
h

e
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

’s
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s.
 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

G
H

G
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 

in
 t

h
e

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
 i

n
ve

n
to

ry
, 

ar
e

 c
at

e
g

o
ri

ze
d

 

b
y 

sc
o

p
e

 in
 F

ig
u

re
 3

-1
.

5
. 

T
h

e
 C

lim
at

e
 R

e
g

is
tr

y.
 h

tt
p

s:
//

w
w

w
.t

h
e

cl
im

a
te

re
g

is
tr

y.
o

rg
/t

o
o

ls
-r

e
so

u
rc

e
s/

re
p

o
rt

in
g

-p
ro

to
co

ls
/g

e
n

e
ra

l-
re

-
p

o
rt

in
g

-p
ro

to
co

l/
. A

cc
e

ss
e

d
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
. 

6
. 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 C

o
u

n
ci

l f
o

r 
Lo

ca
l E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l I
n

it
ia

ti
ve

s.
 

2
0

1
0

. L
o

ca
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
P

ro
to

co
l. 

h
tt

p
:/

/
ic

le
iu

sa
.o

rg
/g

h
g

-p
ro

to
co

ls
/.

 A
cc

e
ss

e
d

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

1
6

112

https://www.theclimateregistry.org/tools-resources/reporting-protocols/general-reporting-protocol/
https://www.theclimateregistry.org/tools-resources/reporting-protocols/general-reporting-protocol/
https://www.theclimateregistry.org/tools-resources/reporting-protocols/general-reporting-protocol/
http://icleiusa.org/ghg-protocols/
http://icleiusa.org/ghg-protocols/


EX
IS

TI
N

G
 

SC
V 

W
AT

ER
 

G
H

G
 E

M
IS

SI
O

N
S

		


T
h

e
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

d
at

a 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
2

0
 G

H
G

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
in

ve
n

to
ry

 is
 s

u
m

m
ar

iz
e

d
 

in
 T

ab
le

 3
-1

. 

		


T
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

o
f 

th
e

 2
0

2
0

 G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
in

ve
n

to
ry

 a
re

 s
u

m
m

ar
iz

e
d

 

in
 T

ab
le

 3
-2

. M
aj

o
r 

so
u

rc
e

s 
o

f 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
ar

e
 e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 u

sa
g

e
 (

8
4

 

p
e

rc
e

n
t)

, T
&

D
 lo

ss
e

s 
(4

 p
e

rc
e

n
t)

 a
n

d
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 c
o

m
m

u
te

 (
3

 p
e

rc
e

n
t)

. 

		


G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

in
ve

n
to

ry
 b

y 
so

u
rc

e
 is

 

sh
o

w
n

 in
 F

ig
u

re
 3

-2
. 

T
a

b
le

 3
-1

. 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

2
0

2
0

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

H
G

 E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
In

v
e

n
to

ry
 –

 A
c

ti
v

it
y 

D
a

ta

E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 S

e
c

to
r

A
c

ti
v

it
y

 D
a

ta
U

n
it

s

N
at

u
ra

l G
as

3
5

,9
3

1
th

e
rm

s

M
e

th
an

e
 L

e
ak

ag
e

1
,0

0
6

th
e

rm
s

D
ie

se
l

1
0

,8
1

6
g

al
lo

n
s

G
as

o
lin

e
2

7,
2

0
0

g
al

lo
n

s

P
ro

p
an

e
1

5
0

g
al

lo
n

s

E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

5
7,

0
8

5
,4

8
0

kW
h

E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 T
&

D
 L

o
ss

e
s

3
,0

2
5

,5
3

0
kW

h

M
ix

e
d

 M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 S
o

lid
 W

as
te

6
3

0
sh

o
rt

 t
o

n
s 

d
is

p
o

se
d

M
ix

e
d

 R
e

cy
cl

ab
le

s
1

3
5

sh
o

rt
 t

o
n

s 
d

is
p

o
se

d

G
re

e
n

 W
as

te
2

6
0

sh
o

rt
 t

o
n

s 
d

is
p

o
se

d

S
cr

ap
 M

e
ta

l
1

8
.6

sh
o

rt
 t

o
n

s 
d

is
p

o
se

d

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 C
o

m
m

u
te

 (
H

yb
ri

d
)

9
9

,9
2

1
V

M
T

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 C
o

m
m

u
te

 (
E

le
ct

ri
c)

4
9

,9
6

1
V

M
T

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 C
o

m
m

u
te

 (
G

as
o

lin
e

)
1

,2
8

2
,3

2
4

V
M

T

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 C
o

m
m

u
te

 (
D

ie
se

l)
8

3
,2

6
8

V
M

T

W
as

te
w

at
e

r
2

1
8

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 s
e

rv
e

d

N
o

te
s:

 C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

w
e

re
 e

st
im

at
e

d
 u

si
n

g
 d

at
a 

fr
o

m
 h

is
to

ri
c

al
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

c
ap

it
al

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 m
e

tr
ic

s 
su

c
h

 a
s 

lin
e

ar
 f

e
e

t 
o

f 
p

ip
e

lin
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
re

s 
o

f 
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

.
kW

h
 =

 k
ilo

w
at

t 
h

o
u

r;
 V

M
T

 =
 v

e
h

ic
le

 m
ile

s 
tr

av
e

le
d

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

17

113



T
a

b
le

 3
-2

. 
2

0
2

0
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

In
v

e
n

to
ry

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 S

o
u

rc
e

S
c

o
p

e
G

H
G

 E
m

is
s

io
n

s 
 

(M
T

 C
O

2
e

)
%

  
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

V
e

h
ic

le
 F

le
e

t 

a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
S

co
p

e
 1

3
5

3
2

%

N
a

tu
ra

l G
a

s
S

co
p

e
 1

1
9

1
1

%

S
c

o
p

e
 1

 S
u

b
to

ta
l

5
4

4
3

%

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
S

co
p

e
 2

1
5

,4
8

4
8

4
%

S
c

o
p

e
 2

 S
u

b
to

ta
l

1
5

,4
8

4
8

4
%

M
e

th
a

n
e

 L
e

a
ka

g
e

S
co

p
e

 3
4

7
<

1
%

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
T

&
D

 L
o

ss
e

s
S

co
p

e
 3

8
2

1
4

%

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 C
o

m
m

u
te

S
co

p
e

 3
6

4
2

3
%

W
a

st
e

S
co

p
e

 3
4

3
0

2
%

C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
S

co
p

e
 3

4
9

6
3

%

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

S
co

p
e

 3
3

0
<

1
%

S
c

o
p

e
 3

 S
u

b
to

ta
l

2
,4

6
5

1
3

%

T
o

ta
l 

E
m

is
s

io
n

s
1

8
,4

9
3

1
0

0
%

N
o

te
s:

 V
al

u
e

s 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
o

u
n

d
e

d
 h

e
re

in
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
ay

 n
o

t 
ad

d
 u

p
 e

xa
c

tl
y.

  
A

ll 
va

lu
e

s 
sh

o
w

n
 a

re
 in

 u
n

it
s 

o
f 

M
T

 C
O

2e
M

T
 C

O
2e

 =
 m

e
tr

ic
 t

o
n

s 
c

ar
b

o
n

 d
io

xi
d

e
 e

q
u

iv
al

e
n

t;
 T

&
D

 =
 t

ra
n

sm
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

F
ig

u
re

 3
-2

. 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

In
v

e
n

to
ry

 b
y 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

2
0

2
0

 (
M

T
 C

O
2
e)

T
h

e
 

la
rg

e
st

 
p

o
rt

io
n

 
o

f 
S

C
V

 
W

at
e

r 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

co
m

e
s 

fr
o

m
 

g
ri

d
 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

. E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
w

ill
 d

e
cr

e
as

e
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
 a

s 
e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 s

o
u

rc
e

s 

b
e

co
m

e
 c

ar
b

o
n

-f
re

e
 b

y 
2

0
4

5
 a

n
d

 5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 b

y 
2

0
3

0
, 

d
u

e
 t

o
 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

’s
 R

e
n

e
w

ab
le

s 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

. 

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
Re

du
ct

io
n 

Es
tim

at
io

n 
fr

om
 S

C
V 

W
at

er
 S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 E
ff

or
ts

 

7.
 

S
B

 X
7

-7
 (

2
0

0
9

),
 a

ls
o

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s 
th

e
 W

at
e

r 
C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 A

ct
, r

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

al
l w

at
e

r 
su

p
p

lie
rs

 t
o

 in
cr

e
as

e
 w

at
e

r 
u

se
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. T

h
e

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

et
s 

an
 o

ve
ra

ll 
g

o
al

 o
f 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 p
e

r 
ca

p
it

a 
 

u
rb

an
 w

at
e

r 
u

se
 b

y 
2

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

y 
2

0
2

0
. 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

p
as

t 
an

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
h

av
e

 r
e

su
lt

e
d

 i
n

 q
u

an
ti

fi
ab

le
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
s.

 I
n

 2
0

2
0

, 
w

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 e
ff

o
rt

s 

sa
ve

d
 6

8
 g

al
lo

n
s 

p
e

r 
ca

p
it

a 
p

e
r 

d
ay

 i
n

 c
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

 t
o

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

b
as

e
lin

e
 2

0
1

0
 d

e
m

an
d

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 S
B

 X
7

-7
.7

 S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
2

0
2

0
 w

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
yi

e
ld

e
d

 4
,9

3
6

 M
T

 o
f 

C
O

2
e 

av
o

id
e

d
. A

d
d

it
io

n
al

ly
, i

n
 2

0
2

0
, S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
o

n
-s

it
e

 s
o

la
r 

p
an

e
ls

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 1
0

,8
0

0
 

M
W

h
, y

ie
ld

in
g

 2
,5

0
6

 M
T

 C
O

2
e 

av
o

id
e

d
.

1
8

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

114



FU
TU

RE
 

SC
V 

W
AT

ER
 

G
H

G
 E

M
IS

SI
O

N
S

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 G

H
G

 
Em

is
si

on
s 

Fo
re

ca
st

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

ar
e 

p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 
to

 
ch

an
g

e
 

o
ve

r 
ti

m
e

 
d

u
e

 
to

 

ch
an

g
e

s 
in

 
w

at
e

r 
d

e
m

an
d

 
re

su
lt

in
g

 
in

 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
in

cr
e

as
e

d
 w

at
e

r 
p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 

an
d

 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 
e

ff
o

rt
s.

 
F

o
re

ca
st

in
g

 

an
n

u
al

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 

fo
r 

th
e

se
 

p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 
ch

an
g

e
s 

b
y 

u
si

n
g

 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 w

at
e

r 
u

se
 g

ro
w

th
 

ra
te

. 
T

h
e

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

fo
re

ca
st

 
u

se
s 

th
e

se
 

fa
ct

o
rs

 
to

 
ex

tr
ap

o
la

te
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e 

in
ve

n
to

ry
 

to
 

e
st

im
at

e
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

in
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
ar

s.
 A

ss
e

ss
in

g
 f

u
tu

re
 G

H
G

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
co

m
p

ar
e

d
 

to
 

th
e

 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
q

u
an

ti
fi

e
s 

th
e

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

g
ap

, 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 G
H

G
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 m
e

as
u

re
s 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 i

n
 C

h
ap

te
r 

5
 s

e
e

k 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

. 

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
on

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
fr

om
 S

ta
te

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

F
o

re
ca

st
e

d
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

w
e

re
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
ye

ar
s 

2
0

2
5

, 
2

0
3

0
, 

2
0

3
5

, 
2

0
4

0
, 

an
d

 2
0

4
5

, 
in

 a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 

th
e

 S
ta

te
’s

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 g
o

al
s.

 T
h

e
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
fo

re
ca

st
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 im
p

ac
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

ta
te

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
. S

B
 1

0
2

0
 (

2
0

2
2

) 
is

 t
h

e
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

d
ri

ve
r 

o
f 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

in
 

th
e

 f
o

re
ca

st
 b

e
ca

u
se

 it
 a

cc
e

le
ra

te
s 

th
e

 S
ta

te
’s

 R
e

n
e

w
ab

le
s 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

. S
B

 1
0

2
0

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 t
o

 in
cr

e
as

e
 p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 e
lig

ib
le

 r
e

n
e

w
ab

le
 e

n
e

rg
y 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 9

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

y 

2
0

3
5

, 9
5

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

4
0

, a
n

d
 1

0
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

4
5

. 

C
a

lif
o

rn
ia

 S
ta

te
 C

a
p

it
o

l,
 S

a
cr

a
m

e
n

to
.

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

1
9

115



G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
Fo

re
ca

st
 R

es
ul

ts
 

T
w

o
 

fo
re

ca
st

 
sc

e
n

ar
io

s 
w

e
re

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
: 

a 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
-a

s-
u

su
al

 

(B
A

U
) 

fo
re

ca
st

 s
ce

n
ar

io
 a

n
d

 a
n

 

ad
ju

st
e

d
 f

o
re

ca
st

 s
ce

n
ar

io
. 

T
h

e 

B
A

U
 f

o
re

ca
st

 s
ce

n
ar

io
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
e

 
ex

p
e

ct
e

d
 

g
ro

w
th

 
fo

r 
al

l 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
so

u
rc

e
s 

b
as

e
d

 

o
n

 
w

at
e

r 
d

e
m

an
d

 
ch

an
g

e
s 

al
o

n
e

. 
T

h
e

 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
th

e
 

B
A

U
 

fo
re

ca
st

 a
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 i

n
 T

ab
le

 3
-2

 

an
d

 F
ig

u
re

 3
-3

. 
E

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 u

se
 i

s 

ex
p

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

as
e

 o
ve

r 
ti

m
e 

d
u

e
 

to
 

p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 
in

cr
e

as
e

s 
in

 

w
at

e
r 

d
e

m
an

d
, 

as
 d

is
cu

ss
e

d
 i

n
 

th
e

 
2

0
2

0
 

S
an

ta
 

C
la

ri
ta

 
V

al
le

y 

W
at

e
r 

A
g

e
n

cy
 

U
rb

an
 

W
at

e
r 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
.8

8
. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

. 
2

0
2

0
. U

rb
an

 W
at

e
r 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
. h

tt
p

s:
//

yo
u

rs
cv

w
a

te
r.

co
m

/
w

p
-c

o
n

te
n

t/
u

p
lo

a
d

s/
2

0
2

1
/0

6
/

S
C

V
W

A
-2

0
2

0
-U

W
M

P
-V

o
lu

m
e

-I
_

F
IN

A
L

.p
d

f.
 A

cc
e

ss
e

d
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
. 

T
a

b
le

 3
-3

. 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
-a

s-
U

su
a

l 
F

o
re

ca
st

 G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 (
M

T
 C

O
2
e)

*

E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 S

o
u

rc
e

2
0

2
5

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
5

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
5

N
a

tu
ra

l G
a

s
 2

5
6

 2
7

9
 3

0
5

 
 3

2
6

 
 3

4
3

 

M
e

th
a

n
e

 L
e

a
ka

g
e

6
3

6
9

7
5

8
1

8
5

V
e

h
ic

le
 F

le
e

t 
a

n
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

 4
5

2
 4

9
2

 5
3

8
 

 5
7

5
 

 6
0

4
 

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

 4
0

4
3

4
7

 5
0

 
5

3
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 2

0
,8

1
1

 2
2

,6
5

2
 2

4
,7

5
7

 
 2

6
,4

5
6

 
 2

7,
7

9
5

 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
T

&
D

 L
o

ss
e

s
 1

,1
0

3
1

,2
0

1
1

,3
1

2
 

 1
,4

0
2

 
 1

,4
7

3
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 C
o

m
m

u
te

 7
1

3
 

 7
7

6
 8

4
8

 
 9

0
6

 
 9

5
2

 

W
a

st
e

 5
7

8
 

 6
2

9
 

 6
8

7
 

 7
3

4
 

 7
7

2
 

C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
5

4
1

 5
4

1
 

5
4

1
 

 5
4

1
 

5
4

1
 

T
o

ta
l

 2
4

,5
5

7
2

6
,6

8
3

 2
9

,1
1

2
3

1
,0

7
2

3
2

,6
1

8

N
o

te
s:

 V
al

u
e

s 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
o

u
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
ay

 n
o

t 
ad

d
 u

p
 e

xa
c

tl
y.

M
T

 C
O

2e
 =

 m
e

tr
ic

 t
o

n
s 

c
ar

b
o

n
 d

io
xi

d
e

 e
q

u
iv

al
e

n
t;

 T
&

D
 =

 t
ra

n
sm

is
si

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
* B

as
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
in

g
le

-d
ry

 y
e

ar
 s

c
e

n
ar

io
, 

w
h

ic
h

 is
 t

h
e

 “
w

o
rs

t 
c

as
e

” 
sc

e
n

ar
io

 f
o

r 
G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

2
0

116

https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/SCVWA-2020-UWMP-Volume-I_FINAL.pdf
https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/SCVWA-2020-UWMP-Volume-I_FINAL.pdf
https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/SCVWA-2020-UWMP-Volume-I_FINAL.pdf
https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/SCVWA-2020-UWMP-Volume-I_FINAL.pdf


F
ig

u
re

 3
-3

. 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
-a

s-
U

su
a

l 
(B

A
U

) 
G

H
G

 E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
F

o
re

ca
st

 (
M

T
 C

O
2
e)

T
h

e
se

 g
ra

p
h

s 
sh

o
w

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

B
A

U
 f

o
re

ca
st

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

2
0

 a
n

d
 2

0
4

5
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 U
rb

a
n

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 (

U
W

M
P

) 
w

a
te

r 
d

e
li

ve
ri

e
s 

p
ro

je
c

ti
o

n
s 

b
o

th
 

b
y 

se
c

to
r 

(l
e

ft
) 

a
n

d
 o

ve
ra

ll
 (

ri
g

h
t)

 in
 M

T
 C

O
2
e.

 I
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y 

u
sa

g
e

 is
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
r 

d
ri

ve
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 B
A

U
 f

o
re

ca
st

’s
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
in

cr
e

a
se

s.
 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

2
1

TO
C

117



T
h

e
 a

d
ju

st
e

d
 f

o
re

ca
st

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 

w
at

e
r 

d
e

m
an

d
s 

as
 w

e
ll 

as
 q

u
an

ti
fi

e
s 

an
d

 
in

co
rp

o
ra

te
s 

S
ta

te
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 

ex
p

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

2
0

3
0

 
an

d
 

2
0

4
5

. 
T

h
e 

ad
ju

st
e

d
 

fo
re

ca
st

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
cl

u
d

e
s 

G
H

G
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 w

it
h

 S
B

 

1
0

2
0

, 
re

p
re

se
n

ts
 

a 
m

o
re

 
ac

cu
ra

te
 

p
ic

tu
re

 
o

f 
fu

tu
re

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s,

 

co
m

p
ar

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 B

A
U

 f
o

re
ca

st
. 

D
at

a 

u
se

d
 t

o
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 g

ro
w

th
 f

ac
to

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
o

re
ca

st
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 T
ab

le
 3

-4
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

o
f 

th
e

 a
d

ju
st

e
d

 f
o

re
ca

st
 

ar
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 i

n
 T

ab
le

 3
-5

 a
n

d
 F

ig
u

re
 

3
-4

. 
A

 
m

o
re

 
ro

b
u

st
 

d
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

th
e

 
d

at
a,

 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y,

 
an

d
 

fa
ct

o
rs

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

m
is

si
o

n
 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
ar

e
 in

cl
u

d
e

d
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

.

T
a

b
le

 3
-4

. 
A

c
ti

v
it

y 
D

a
ta

 f
o

r 
F

o
re

ca
st

in
g

D
a

ta
 

U
n

it
S

o
u

rc
e

 

W
a

te
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

A
cr

e
-f

e
e

t
2

0
2

0
 U

rb
an

 W
at

e
r 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

b
le

s 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

e
n

e
rg

y 
m

ix
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

P
e

rc
e

n
t

S
B

 1
0

0

T
a

b
le

 3
-5

 
A

d
ju

st
e

d
 F

o
re

ca
st

 G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 (
M

T
 C

O
2
e)

1

E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 S

o
u

rc
e

2
0

2
5

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
5

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
5

2

N
a

tu
ra

l G
a

s
 2

5
6

 
 2

7
9

 
 3

0
5

 
 3

2
6

 
 3

4
3

 

M
e

th
a

n
e

 L
e

a
ka

g
e

6
3

6
9

7
5

8
1

8
5

V
e

h
ic

le
 F

le
e

t 
a

n
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

 4
5

2
 

 4
9

2
 

 5
3

8
 

 5
7

5
 

 6
0

4
 

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

4
0

 
4

3
 

4
7

 
5

0
 

5
3

 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 1

6
,4

2
9

 1
3

,1
1

3
 

 9
,5

5
4

 
 5

,1
0

5
 

 0

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
T

&
D

 L
o

ss
e

s
8

7
1

6
9

5
 

 5
0

6
 

 2
7

1
0

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 C
o

m
m

u
te

 7
1

3
 

 7
7

6
 

 8
4

8
 

 9
0

6
 

 9
5

2
 

W
a

st
e

 5
7

8
 

 6
2

9
 

 6
8

7
 

 7
3

4
 

 7
7

2
 

C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
5

4
1

5
4

1
 5

4
1

 
5

4
1

 
5

4
1

T
o

ta
l

1
9

,9
4

2
1

6
,6

3
7

1
3

,1
0

3
8

,5
8

9
3

,3
4

9

N
o

te
s:

 V
al

u
e

s 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
o

u
n

d
e

d
 h

e
re

in
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
ay

 n
o

t 
ad

d
 u

p
 e

xa
c

tl
y.

1.
 

B
as

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

in
g

le
-d

ry
 y

e
ar

 s
c

e
n

ar
io

, 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 t
h

e
 “

w
o

rs
t 

c
as

e
” 

sc
e

n
ar

io
 f

o
r 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

2
.  

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
as

so
c

ia
te

d
 w

it
h

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
ar

e
 a

n
ti

c
ip

at
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 z

e
ro

 in
 2

0
4

5
 d

u
e

 t
o

 S
B

 1
0

0
.

M
T

 C
O

2e
 =

 m
e

tr
ic

 t
o

n
s 

c
ar

b
o

n
 d

io
xi

d
e

 e
q

u
iv

al
e

n
t;

 T
&

D
 =

 t
ra

n
sm

is
si

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

2
2

118



F
ig

u
re

 3
-4

. 
A

d
ju

st
e

d
 G

H
G

 E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
F

o
re

ca
st

 (
M

T
 C

O
2
e)

T
h

e
se

 g
ra

p
h

s 
sh

o
w

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

A
d

ju
st

e
d

 f
o

re
ca

st
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
2

0
 a

n
d

 2
0

4
5

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 U

W
M

P
 w

a
te

r 
d

e
li

ve
ri

e
s 

p
ro

je
c

ti
o

n
s 

b
o

th
 b

y 
se

c
to

r 
(l

e
ft

) 
a

n
d

 o
ve

ra
ll 

(r
ig

h
t)

 in
 M

T
 C

O
2
e.

 S
B

 1
0

0
 (

R
e

n
e

w
a

b
le

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

) 
is

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

r 
d

ri
ve

r 
o

f 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r’

s 
G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s 
o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

2
3

TO
C

119



S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

d
ie

se
l, 

g
as

o
lin

e
, 

p
ro

p
an

e
, 

an
d

 n
at

u
ra

l 
g

as
 f

u
e

l 
u

se
 i

s 
ex

p
e

ct
e

d
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 2
0

4
5

, 
as

 s
e

e
n

 i
n

 F
ig

u
re

 3
-5

. 
E

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 u

se
 i

s 
al

so
 e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 2

0
4

5
, 

as
 s

e
e

n
 i

n
 F

ig
u

re
 3

-6
. 

H
o

w
e

ve
r,

 d
u

e
 t

o
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
’s

 R
e

n
e

w
ab

le
s 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s,

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
w

ill
 d

e
cr

e
as

e
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
 a

s 
e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 

b
e

co
m

e
s 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 b

y 
2

0
4

5
 a

s 
d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
d

 b
y 

th
e

 a
d

ju
st

e
d

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

fo
re

ca
st

 (
F

ig
u

re
 3

-4
).

 E
n

e
rg

y 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 is

 a
 m

aj
o

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 c

o
st

 f
o

r 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r.

 

B
y 

id
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

th
e

se
 m

e
tr

ic
s,

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

ab
le

 t
o

 m
an

ag
e

 t
h

e
se

 c
o

st
s,

 in
cr

e
as

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
, a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 c
o

st
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e 

w
at

e
r 

fo
r 

it
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a.
 

F
ig

u
re

 3
-5

. 
A

d
ju

st
e

d
 E

n
e

rg
y 

U
se

 F
o

re
ca

st
 –

 F
u

e
ls

 (
M

M
B

tu
)

F
ig

u
re

 3
-6

. 
A

d
ju

st
e

d
 E

n
e

rg
y 

U
se

 F
o

re
ca

st
 –

 E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
(k

W
h

)

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

2
4

TO
C

120



4.
  

SC
V 

W
AT

ER
 

SU
ST

AI
N

AB
IL

IT
Y 

G
O

AL
S 

AN
D

 
G

H
G

 E
M

IS
SI

O
N

S 
TA

RG
ET

S

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
.

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

2
5

121



G
H

G
 E

M
IS

SI
O

N
S 

TA
RG

ET
S

G
H

G
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
w

e
re

 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 
re

la
ti

ve
 

to
 

b
as

e
lin

e
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

 
le

ve
ls

 
fr

o
m

 
2

0
2

0
, 

in
 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

fu
tu

re
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

 
fo

re
ca

st
s 

an
d

 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
ct

s 
o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

an
d

 
fu

tu
re

 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
. 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

d
e

fi
n

e
 

m
e

as
u

ra
b

le
 

b
e

n
ch

m
ar

ks
 t

o
 g

u
id

e
 i

ts
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

e
ff

o
rt

s.
 

T
h

e 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 e

st
ab

lis
h

e
s 

a 
2

0
3

0
 G

H
G

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
ta

rg
e

t 
in

 
al

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 

th
e 

an
n

u
al

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 r

at
e

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 e
ve

n
tu

al
ly

 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 S
ta

te
’s

 2
0

4
5

 c
ar

b
o

n
 n

e
u

tr
al

it
y 

g
o

al
, 

se
t 

fo
rt

h
 b

y 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 O
rd

e
r 

B
-5

5
-1

8
.3

.  
 S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r’

s 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

an
d

 e
st

im
at

e
d

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 

th
o

se
 t

ar
g

e
ts

 a
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 i

n
 T

ab
le

 4
-1

. 
F

ig
u

re
 

4
-1

 
vi

su
al

ly
 

d
is

p
la

ys
 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
ta

rg
e

t 

p
at

h
w

ay
. 

T
h

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

p
at

h
w

ay
 

o
u

tl
in

e
s 

th
e 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

le
ve

ls
 t

h
at

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
m

u
st

 

m
e

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

2
5

, 
2

0
3

0
, 

2
0

3
5

, 
2

0
4

0
, 

an
d

 2
0

4
5

 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
ve

n
tu

al
ly

 r
e

ac
h

 c
ar

b
o

n
 n

e
u

tr
al

it
y 

b
y 

2
0

4
5

. 
T

h
e

 g
ap

, 
o

r 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

, 
fo

r 
th

e
 t

ar
g

e
t 

ye
ar

s 
q

u
an

ti
fi

e
s 

th
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

in
te

n
d

s 

to
 

e
lim

in
at

e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e

 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
 

o
f 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
m

e
as

u
re

s 
in

 
e

ac
h

 
ti

m
e

fr
am

e
 

to
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 t
ar

g
e

t.
 

T
a

b
le

 4
-1

. 
G

H
G

 F
o

re
ca

st
, 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 T
a

rg
e

ts
, 

a
n

d
 E

st
im

a
te

d
 G

a
p

s 
fo

r 
S

C
V

 
W

a
te

r 
(M

T
 C

O
2
e)

2
0

2
5

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
5

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
5

A
d

ju
st

e
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
1

9
,9

4
3

 
1

6
,6

3
7

 
1

3
,1

0
3

 
8

,5
8

9
 

3
,3

4
9

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

a
th

w
a

y
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 f

ro
m

 2
0

2
0

 l
e

v
e

ls
*

E
O

 B
-5

5
-1

8
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
a

th
w

ay
 

fr
o

m
 2

0
2

0
 le

ve
ls

1
8

,8
2

2
 

1
5

,3
5

7
 

1
1

,0
7

9
 

5
,7

9
8

 
-

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
G

a
p

 
1

,1
2

1
 

1
,2

8
1

 
2

,0
2

4
 

3
,3

4
9

 
3

,3
4

2

* 
T

h
e

 t
ar

g
e

t 
p

at
h

w
ay

 is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d
 a

s 
4

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 2
0

2
0

 le
ve

ls
 c

o
n

se
rv

at
iv

e
ly

 a
ss

u
m

e
d

 t
o

 b
e 

e
q

u
iv

al
e

n
t 

to
 1

9
9

0
 le

ve
ls

.

F
ig

u
re

 4
-1

. 
T

a
rg

e
t 

P
a

th
w

a
y

s

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

2
6

TO
C

122



In
 

ad
d

it
io

n
 

to
 

th
e

 
m

as
s 

e
m

is
si

o
n

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

sh
o

w
n

 in
 T

ab
le

 4
-1

, S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
al

so
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 

p
e

r 
ca

p
it

a 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

th
at

 
h

e
lp

 
ac

co
u

n
t 

fo
r 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 c
h

an
g

e
s 

th
at

 d
ri

ve
 w

at
e

r 
d

e
m

an
d

 

an
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

at
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r.

 T
h

e 

tr
an

sl
at

e
d

 
p

e
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
ar

e
 

sh
o

w
n

 

b
e

lo
w

 
in

 T
ab

le
 

4
-2

. 
T

h
e

 
u

se
 

o
f 

p
e

r 
ca

p
it

a 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
ta

rg
e

ts
 r

e
fl

e
ct

s 
th

e
 g

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

u
n

d
 

in
 t

h
e

 S
ta

te
’s

 S
co

p
in

g
 P

la
n

. 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

w
ill

 

u
ti

liz
e

 t
h

e
se

 p
e

r 
ca

p
it

a 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 s
u

cc
e

ss
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
. 

T
a

b
le

 4
-2

. 
P

e
r 

P
e

rs
o

n
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

T
a

rg
e

t 2
0

2
5

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
5

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
5

A
d

ju
st

e
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 0

.0
6

 
 0

.0
5

 
 0

.0
3

 
 0

.0
2

 
0

.0
1

 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

a
th

w
a

y
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 f

ro
m

 2
0

2
0

 l
e

v
e

ls
 (

M
T

 C
O

2
e

/p
e

rs
o

n
)*

E
O

 B
-5

5
-1

8
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
  P

a
th

w
ay

 

fr
o

m
 2

0
2

0
 le

ve
ls

 0
.0

6
 

 0
.0

4
 

 0
.0

3
 

 0
.0

1
 

 -

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
G

a
p

 (
M

T
 C

O
2
e)

0
.0

0
0

.0
1

0
.0

0
0

.0
1

0
.0

1

* T
h

e
 t

ar
g

e
t 

p
at

h
w

ay
s 

is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d
 a

s 
4

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 2
0

2
0

 le
ve

ls
 c

o
n

se
rv

at
iv

e
ly

 a
ss

u
m

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 e
q

u
iv

al
e

n
t 

to
 1

9
9

0
 le

ve
ls

.

SU
ST

A
IN

A
BI

LI
TY

 T
A

RG
ET

S

A
s 

d
is

cu
ss

e
d

 
in

 
C

h
ap

te
r 

2
, 

d
e

ve
lo

p
in

g
 

an
d

 
tr

ac
ki

n
g

 
ac

h
ie

ve
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

ar
o

u
n

d
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

m
e

tr
ic

s 
o

th
e

r 

th
an

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

a 
h

o
lis

ti
c 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 
o

f 
S

C
V

 
W

at
e

r’
s 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 

to
w

ar
d

s 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
an

d
 

al
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 

it
s 

m
is

si
o

n
. 

T
ra

ck
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
ss

e
ss

in
g

 r
e

so
u

rc
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

to
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 
in

e
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

e
s 

an
d

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 

th
e

 
e

co
n

o
m

ic
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 

w
it

h
 

re
so

u
rc

e
 c

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 e

ff
o

rt
s.

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

re
so

u
rc

e
 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 
e

ff
o

rt
s 

ar
e

 
tr

ac
ke

d
 

in
 k

W
h

 o
f 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

, 
th

e
rm

s 
o

f 
n

at
u

ra
l 

g
as

, 

g
al

lo
n

s 
o

f 
d

ie
se

l/
g

as
o

lin
e

/p
ro

p
an

e
, 

sh
o

rt
 

to
n

s 
o

f 
d

is
p

o
se

d
 

w
as

te
, 

an
d

 
ac

re
-f

e
e

t 
o

f 

w
at

e
r 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

.

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 

P
la

n
, 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

w
ill

 
ai

m
 

to
 

ac
h

ie
ve

 
th

e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

m
e

tr
ic

s 
b

y 
2

0
3

0
. 

E
ac

h
 

m
e

tr
ic

 
is

 

d
e

fi
n

e
d

 a
s 

th
e

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 c

o
m

p
ar

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 

fo
re

ca
st

e
d

 u
sa

g
e

 in
 2

0
3

0
. 

2
6

,2
8

2
 t

h
e

rm
s 

o
f 

n
a

tu
ra

l 
g

a
s 

re
d

u
ce

d

1
,1

7
0

 g
a

so
li

n
e

 g
a

ll
o

n
s 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

re
d

u
ce

d

3
 M

W
  

so
la

r 
a

d
d

e
d

1
3

,3
9

5
 a

cr
e

-f
e

e
t 

 
w

a
te

r 
re

d
u

ce
d

2
7

4
,8

1
3

 v
e

h
ic

le
 m

il
e

s 
tr

a
v

e
le

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

d

O
th

e
r 

m
e

tr
ic

s 
w

h
ic

h
 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

w
ill

 
tr

ac
k 

d
u

ri
n

g
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
:

D
o

ll
a

rs
  

in
v

e
st

e
d

D
o

ll
a

rs
  

sa
v

e
d

T
o

n
s 

o
f 

 
w

a
st

e
 r

e
d

u
ce

d

2
7

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

123



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

124



5.
  

G
RE

EN
H

O
U

SE
 

G
AS

 E
M

IS
SI

O
N

S 
RE

D
U

C
TI

O
N 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N 

PL
AN

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
h

a
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

th
a

t 
b

o
th

 a
li

g
n

 

w
it

h
 

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r’

s 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 
g

o
a

ls
 

(C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
) 

a
n

d
 

re
d

u
ce

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

co
n

si
st

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 C
h

a
p

te
r 

4
. 

W
h

e
n

 f
u

ll
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

, 

th
e

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 c

h
a

p
te

r 
w

il
l 

cl
o

se
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r’

s 
fo

re
ca

st
e

d
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 
it

s 
e

m
is

si
o

n
 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

ta
rg

e
t.

 

In
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

, 
m

e
a

su
re

s 
m

ay
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 o
r 

a
u

g
m

e
n

te
d

 t
o

 a
d

ju
st

 t
o

 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

ic
a

l,
 

le
g

is
la

ti
ve

, 
o

r 
o

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

sh
if

ts
. 

H
o

w
e

ve
r,

 
S

C
V

 
W

a
te

r’
s 

su
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y 
m

e
a

su
re

s 
w

il
l 

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 f

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 G

H
G

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 a

li
g

n
in

g
 w

it
h

 S
ta

te
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
a

n
d

 g
o

a
ls

. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
ce

ss
, 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
cr

e
a

te
d

 a
 s

u
it

e
 o

f 
su

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

a
li

g
n

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 g
o

a
ls

 a
n

d
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

g
e

n
cy

, 
a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 f
e

d
e

ra
l 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 g

o
a

ls
. 

 T
h

is
 i

n
it

ia
l 

su
it

e
 o

f 
m

e
a

su
re

s 
w

a
s 

a
n

a
ly

ze
d

 a
g

a
in

st
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 g
o

a
ls

 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 w
h

ic
h

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
. 

S
e

ve
ra

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

w
e

re
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 

th
e

ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
 c

o
n

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

, 
co

st
-e

ff
e

c
ti

ve
n

e
ss

, 

a
n

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

si
li

e
n

cy
, 

a
s 

w
e

ll
 

a
s 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l.

 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
n

o
t 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
-t

e
rm

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s 
ca

n
 

b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

. T
h

e
se

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

m
ay

 b
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
a

s 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
ll

o
w

. 
C

a
st

a
ic

 L
a

ke
.

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

2
8

125



C
O

-
BE

N
EF

IT
S 

O
F 

G
H

G
 

RE
D

U
C

TI
O

N 
M

EA
SU

RE
S

A
lo

n
g

 
w

it
h

 
re

d
u

ci
n

g
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 

th
e

 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

in
 

th
e

 

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y 

P
la

n
 p

ro
v

id
e

 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
th

a
t 

a
li

g
n

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

su
st

a
in

-

a
b

il
it

y 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 S

C
V

 

W
a

te
r’

s 
co

re
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 

p
il

la
rs

 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 

in
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
. 

M
e

a
su

re
s 

th
a

t 
a

li
g

n
 w

it
h

 

th
e

se
 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

w
e

re
 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

d
 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-

ta
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 
co

-b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

d
 

b
y 

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r 

a
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 h

e
re

. 

Re
lia

bl
e 

an
d 

Re
si

lie
nt

  
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 r
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

si
lie

n
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

is
 a

 c
ri

ti
ca

l 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
m

is
si

o
n

. A
s 

cl
im

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 im

p
ac

ts
 

in
cr

e
as

e
 s

tr
ai

n
 o

n
 w

at
e

r 
su

p
p

lie
s 

as
 w

e
ll 

as
 t

h
e

 li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

o
f 

p
o

w
e

r 
o

u
ta

g
e

s 
an

d
 

e
n

e
rg

y 
sh

o
rt

ag
e

s,
 

in
cr

e
as

e
d

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 
re

si
lie

n
ce

 
an

d
 

w
at

e
r 

su
p

p
ly

 
re

lia
b

ili
ty

 
w

ill
 

al
lo

w
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 r

e
lia

b
le

 a
n

d
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 w

at
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
W

at
er

 a
nd

  
Re

so
ur

ce
 S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

R
e

ta
in

in
g

 a
 h

ig
h

 q
u

al
it

y 
an

d
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 w
at

e
r 

su
p

p
ly

 

is
 a

 k
e

y 
co

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 
o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
m

is
si

o
n

. 
A

s 
cl

im
at

e 

ch
an

g
e

 im
p

ac
ts

 b
e

co
m

e
 m

o
re

 e
xt

re
m

e
 a

n
d

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

g
ro

w
s,

 
w

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 
an

d
 

re
co

ve
ry

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
w

ill
 b

e
co

m
e

 e
ve

n
 m

o
re

 c
ri

ti
ca

l. 

C
os

t-
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

 
an

d 
Ef

fic
ie

nt
Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 

co
st

 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
n

e
ss

 
an

d
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 
o

f 
S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r’

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
w

ill
 

al
lo

w
 

th
e

 
A

g
e

n
cy

 
to

 
b

e
tt

e
r 

se
rv

e
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 f
ai

r 
an

d
 e

q
u

it
ab

le
 r

at
e

s.
 

W
h

ile
 t

h
e

 u
p

fr
o

n
t 

co
st

s 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 w

it
h

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 m

e
as

u
re

s 
m

ay
 b

e
 h

ig
h

, 
m

an
y 

m
e

as
u

re
s 

p
ro

vi
d

e
 a

 r
e

tu
rn

 o
n

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 

co
st

 s
av

in
g

s 
at

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 c
o

st
s,

 

av
o

id
e

d
 w

as
te

, r
e

d
u

ce
d

 u
ti

lit
y 

u
sa

g
e

, a
n

d
 d

e
cr

e
as

e
d

 to
ta

l 

co
st

 o
f 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

N
o

ta
b

ly
, 

p
ro

cu
ri

n
g

 a
 z

e
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

fl
e

e
t,

 a
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 i

n
 M

e
as

u
re

 F
L-

1
, 

m
ay

 l
e

ad
 t

o
 t

o
ta

l 

lif
e

cy
cl

e
 c

o
st

s 
sa

vi
n

g
s 

fo
r 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
(a

n
d

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 

b
y 

th
e

 
S

ta
te

’s
 

A
d

va
n

ce
d

 
C

le
an

 
F

le
e

ts
 

R
u

le
).

 
W

h
ile

 

re
p

la
ci

n
g

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

w
it

h
 e

le
ct

ri
c 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

m
ay

 h
av

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

9
. 

C
ar

b
o

n
 C

o
u

n
te

r.
 2

0
2

1
. h

tt
p

s:
//

w
w

w
.c

a
rb

o
n

co
u

n
te

r.
co

m
/.

 A
cc

e
ss

e
d

 N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
.

1
0

. M
io

tt
i e

t.
 a

l. 
2

0
1

6
. P

e
rs

o
n

al
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
ev

al
u

at
io

n
 a

g
ai

n
st

 c
lim

at
e

 c
h

an
g

e
 m

it
ig

at
io

n
 t

ar
g

et
s.

  
h

tt
p

s:
//

p
u

b
s.

a
cs

.o
rg

/d
o

i/
su

p
p

l/
1

0
.1

0
2

1
/a

cs
.e

st
.6

b
0

0
17

7
/s

u
p

p
l_

fi
le

/e
s6

b
0

0
17

7
_s

i_
0

0
1

.p
d

f.
 A

cc
e

ss
e

d
 N

o
ve

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

. 

u
p

fr
o

n
t 

co
st

s,
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
, t

h
e

 f
u

e
l s

av
in

g
s 

an
d

 d
e

cr
e

as
e

d
 

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

e
le

ct
ri

c 
ve

h
ic

le
s,

 c
o

m
p

ar
e

d
 t

o
 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s,

 le
ad

 t
o

 d
e

cr
e

as
e

d
 li

fe
cy

cl
e 

co
st

s.
9
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

ly
, 

st
u

d
ie

s 
h

av
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 e

le
ct

ri
c 

ve
h

ic
le

 

lif
e

cy
cl

e
 c

o
st

s 
ar

e
 n

o
t 

g
re

at
ly

 i
m

p
ac

te
d

 b
y 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 

co
st

s 
an

d
 e

ve
n

 a
 d

o
u

b
lin

g
 o

f 
e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 c

o
st

s 
d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

ch
an

g
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
ve

 c
o

st
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 e
le

ct
ri

c 

ve
h

ic
le

s 
an

d
 i

n
te

rn
al

 c
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s.

1
0
 W

h
ile

 S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

is
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

zi
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

le
ct

io
n

 o
f 

co
st

-e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 m

e
as

u
re

s,
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

so
m

e
 m

e
as

u
re

s 
m

ay
 l

e
ad

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

as
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 A

g
e

n
cy

’s
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 c
o

st
s.

 

Tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 a
nd

  
Ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y

E
n

h
an

ci
n

g
 

tr
an

sp
ar

e
n

cy
 

an
d

 
ac

co
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 

e
ff

o
rt

s 

to
 

in
cr

e
as

e
 

o
ve

ra
ll 

re
so

u
rc

e
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

an
d

 
to

 

p
ro

te
ct

 t
h

e
 w

at
e

r 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
is

 a
 k

e
y 

co
m

p
o

n
e

n
t 

o
f 

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

m
is

si
o

n
, 

vi
si

o
n

, 
an

d
 v

al
u

e
s.

 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

ca
n

 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 

to
 

sh
o

w
 

ac
co

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 
b

y 

se
tt

in
g

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 g
o

al
s 

an
d

 e
n

su
ri

n
g

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
o

se
 g

o
al

s,
 i

n
 a

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 S

ta
te

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y’

s 
lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 n

e
e

d
s.

Ta
b

le
 5

-1
 o

u
tl

in
e

s 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
m

e
as

u
re

s.
 C

al
cu

la
te

d
 G

H
G

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
s 

as
su

m
e

 f
u

ll 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

ac
h

 m
e

as
u

re
. T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

m
e

as
u

re
s 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

s 
p

ar
ti

al
ly

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

lo
w

e
r 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s.
 S

p
e

ci
fi

c 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

e
ac

h
 m

e
as

u
re

 a
re

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
sc

ri
b

e
d

 in
 th

is
 C

h
ap

te
r.

 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 M

e
a

su
re

s 
a

n
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

w
o

u
ld

 r
e

su
lt

 i
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
r 

ca
p

it
a

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

o
f 

o
v

e
r 

5
0

%
 b

y 
2

0
3

0
.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

2
9

126

https://www.carboncounter.com/
https://pubs.acs.org/doi/suppl/10.1021/acs.est.6b00177/suppl_file/es6b00177_si_001.pdf


T
a

b
le

 5
-1

 G
H

G
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 M

e
a

su
re

s 
b

y 
S

co
p

e

M
e

a
s

u
re

 
C

o
d

e
G

H
G

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 M
e

a
s

u
re

2
0

3
0

 G
H

G
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

(M
T

 C
O

2
e

)

S
c

o
p

e
 1

 -
D

ir
e

c
t 

C
o

m
b

u
s

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

s
s

 E
m

is
s

io
n

s

D
C

-1
P

h
as

e
 o

u
t 

n
at

u
ra

l g
as

 c
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

 a
t 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 n
at

u
ra

l g
as

 c
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 b

y 
5

0
%

 b
y 

2
0

3
0

1
3

9

D
C

-2
D

e
ca

rb
o

n
iz

e
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 r
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 f

o
ss

il 
fu

e
l u

se
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

ci
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
ll-

e
le

ct
ri

c 
o

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
 f

u
e

ls
 w

h
e

n
 f

e
as

ib
le

5

F
L

-1
D

e
ca

rb
o

n
iz

e
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

ve
h

ic
le

 f
le

e
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
ze

ro
-e

m
is

si
o

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
to

 d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
e

 5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 f

le
e

t 
b

y 
2

0
3

0
6

2

F
L

-2
U

se
 a

lt
e

rn
at

iv
e

 f
u

e
ls

 t
o

 b
ri

d
g

e
 t

h
e

 t
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y 

g
ap

 t
o

 z
e

ro
-e

m
is

si
o

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
9

4

S
c

o
p

e
 2

 –
 E

le
c

tr
ic

it
y

 C
o

n
s

u
m

p
ti

o
n

E
-1

U
ti

liz
e

 lo
w

-c
ar

b
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
ar

b
o

n
-f

re
e

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 b
y 

2
0

3
0

1
1

,7
5

6

E
E

-1
Im

p
ro

ve
 e

n
e

rg
y 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
t 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

2

S
c

o
p

e
 3

 –
 I

n
d

ir
e

c
t 

E
m

is
s

io
n

s 

W
C

-1
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

w
at

e
r 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 d
e

m
an

d
 1

5
%

 b
y 

2
0

3
0

1
,6

0
2

C
R

-1
R

e
d

u
ce

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
1

5
%

 b
y 

2
0

3
0

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
at

io
n

 o
f 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 m

ac
h

in
e

ry
 

8
1

W
-1

R
e

d
u

ce
 la

n
d

fi
lle

d
 w

as
te

, w
it

h
 a

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 o

rg
an

ic
 w

as
te

 7
5

%
 b

y 
2

0
2

5
4

7
2

T
R

-1
R

e
d

u
ce

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 c
o

m
m

u
te

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
1

5
%

 b
y 

2
0

3
0

1
1

6

G
H

G
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

T
o

ta
l 

G
H

G
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

w
it

h
 f

u
ll

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ll
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

4
,3

2
7

T
o

ta
l 

G
H

G
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s

 2
0

3
0

 E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 G

o
a

l3
1

,2
8

1

M
T

 C
O

2e 
=

 m
e

tr
ic

 t
o

n
s 

o
f 

ca
rb

o
n

 d
io

xi
d

e
 e

q
u

iv
al

e
n

t;
 G

H
G

 =
 g

re
e

n
h

o
u

se
 g

as
; V

M
T

 =
 v

e
h

ic
le

 m
ile

s 
tr

av
e

le
d

D
C

 =
 D

ir
e

ct
 C

o
m

b
u

st
io

n
; F

L
 =

 F
le

e
t;

 E
 =

 E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

; E
E

 =
 E

n
e

rg
y 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

; W
 =

 W
as

te
 G

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
; T

R
 =

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
; W

C
 =

 W
at

e
r 

C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

; C
R

 =
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n

N
o

te
s

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

 is
 b

as
e

d
 o

n
 a

ll 
e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 s

w
it

ch
in

g
 t

o
 a

 5
0

%
 g

re
e

n
 r

at
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
 (

at
 le

as
t 

7
1

%
 c

ar
b

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
) 

th
ro

u
g

h
 S

C
E

 o
r 

C
P

A
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

M
e

as
u

re
 E

-1
. T

h
e 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

 w
o

u
ld

 in
cr

e
as

e
 t

o
 1

1
,9

2
9

 M
T

 C
O

2e 
b

y 
2

0
3

0
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 s
w

it
ch

e
d

 t
o

 1
0

0
%

 c
ar

b
o

n
-f

re
e

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
M

e
as

u
re

 1
.

1
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 m
e

as
u

re
s 

ar
e

 t
h

o
se

 t
h

at
 a

re
 n

o
t 

q
u

an
ti

fi
ab

le
 a

s 
a 

st
an

d
al

o
n

e
 a

ct
io

n
 b

u
t 

m
ay

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 q
u

an
ti

fi
ab

le
 a

ct
io

n
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
st

u
d

yi
n

g
 t

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

ie
s,

 

e
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s,

 e
tc

.

2
. 

A
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 in

 C
h

ap
te

r 
4

, S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
e

st
ab

lis
h

e
d

 a
 G

H
G

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 g

o
al

 in
 a

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

 E
O

 B
-5

5
-1

8
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 T

ar
g

e
t 

P
at

h
w

ay
. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
0

127



H
O

W
 T

O
 R

EA
D

 
TH

IS
 S

EC
TI

O
N

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

e
a

ch
 in

cl
u

d
e

 a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

a
c

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 

a
re

 o
rg

a
n

iz
e

d
 b

y 
sc

o
p

e
. 

S
c

o
p

e
: 

A
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 i

n
 C

h
ap

te
r 

3
, 

sc
o

p
e

 r
e

fe
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

h
as

 o
ve

r 
a 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

		


S
co

p
e

 
1

 
re

fe
rs

 
to

 
ac

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
as

so
ci

at
e

d
 

w
it

h
 

d
ir

e
ct

 

co
m

b
u

st
io

n
 o

r 
p

ro
ce

ss
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

(D
ir

e
ct

/I
n

te
rn

al
).

		


S
co

p
e

 2
 r

e
fe

rs
 t

o
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

as
so

ci
at

e
d

 w
it

h
 e

le
ct

ri
ca

l 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

. (
D

ir
e

ct
/E

xt
e

rn
al

).

		


S
co

p
e

 
3

 
re

fe
rs

 
to

 
in

d
ir

e
ct

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

n
g

 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

(I
n

d
ir

e
ct

/E
xt

e
rn

al
).

M
e

a
su

re
s:

 M
e

as
u

re
s 

d
e

fi
n

e
 q

u
an

ti
ta

ti
ve

 g
o

al
s 

w
it

h
in

 

e
ac

h
 s

co
p

e
 t

h
at

 r
e

d
u

ce
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
fr

o
m

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s.

 

A
c

ti
o

n
s:

 A
ct

io
n

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

ac
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

w
ill

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
o

 a
cc

o
m

p
lis

h
 t

h
e

 g
o

al
 o

f 
e

ac
h

 m
e

as
u

re
. 

In
 t

h
e

 S
u

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y 

P
la

n
, 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
ca

n
 

e
it

h
e

r 
b

e
 

q
u

a
n

ti
fi

a
b

le
, 

m
e

a
n

in
g

 
th

e
y 

h
av

e
 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l,

 
o

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

, 
m

e
a

n
in

g
 

th
e

y 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
 

to
 

th
e

 
re

a
li

za
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
b

u
t 

d
o

 n
o

t 

d
ir

e
c

tl
y 

h
av

e
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

lo
n

e
. 

M
e

a
su

re
s 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

 
a

 
p

a
th

w
ay

 
fo

r 
S

C
V

 
W

a
te

r 
to

 
re

d
u

ce
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
ch

ie
ve

 it
s 

2
0

3
0

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 g
o

a
l.

 

C
o

-B
e

n
e

fi
ts

: 
T

h
e

 
co

-b
e

n
e

fi
t 

ic
o

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 

w
h

ic
h

 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 t

h
e

 m
e

as
u

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s.

 

1
. 

M
e

a
su

re
: 

O
ve

ra
rc

h
in

g
 g

o
al

2
. 

M
e

a
su

re
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
: 

D
e

ta
ile

d
 e

xp
la

n
at

io
n

 o
f 

w
h

y 
th

e
 m

e
as

u
re

 is
 im

p
o

rt
an

t,
 h

o
w

 it
 w

ill
 

b
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

, a
n

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l b
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n

3
. 

T
a

rg
e

t 
M

e
tr

ic
s:

 Q
u

an
ti

fi
ab

le
 g

o
al

 u
se

d
 t

o
 m

e
as

u
re

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
.

4
. 

G
H

G
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l:

 
E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ce

d
 

b
y 

2
0

3
0

 
an

d
 

2
0

3
5

 
– 

su
p

p
o

rt
iv

e 

m
e

as
u

re
s 

d
o

 n
o

t 
d

ir
e

ct
ly

 r
e

su
lt

 in
 q

u
an

ti
ta

ti
ve

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

s,
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
y 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 o
ve

ra
ll 

g
o

al
s 

o
f 

th
e

 C
A

P

5
. 

M
e

a
su

re
 A

c
ti

o
n

s:
 A

ct
io

n
 e

st
ab

lis
h

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s

6
. 

C
o

-B
e

n
e

fi
ts

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

/a
d

va
n

ta
g

e
s 

o
f 

a 
sp

e
ci

fi
c 

ac
ti

o
n

1 2

3 4 5 6

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
1

128



E
le

ct
ri

c 
V

e
h

ic
le

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

.

SC
O

PE
 1 

M
EA

SU
RE

S 
 

AN
D

  
AC

TI
O

N
S

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

3
2

129



M
EA

SU
RE

 D
C

-1
: P

ha
se

 o
ut

 
na

tu
ra

l g
as

 c
om

bu
st

io
n 

at
 S

C
V 

W
at

er
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 n
at

ur
al

 
ga

s 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
by

 5
0%

 b
y 

20
30

1
1

. T
ri

-S
ta

te
. 2

0
2

1
. A

d
va

n
ta

g
e

s 
o

f 
E

n
e

rg
y 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

H
e

at
 P

u
m

p
s.

 h
tt

p
s:

//
tr

is
ta

te
.

co
o

p
/a

d
va

n
ta

g
e

s-
h

e
a

t-
p

u
m

p
s-

e
n

e
rg

y-
e

ffi
ci

e
n

cy
#

:~
:t

e
xt

=
W

h
a

t'
s%

2
0

th
e

%
2

0
e

ffi
ci

e
n

cy
%

2
0

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

%
2

0
o

f,
co

e
ffi

ci
e

n
t%

2
0

o
f%

2
0

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

%
2

C
%

2
0

o
r%

2
0

C
O

P
. A

cc
e

ss
e

d
 N

o
ve

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

.

B
y 

p
h

a
si

n
g

 o
u

t 
n

a
tu

ra
l 

g
a

s 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
e

le
c

tr
ic

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

il
e

 

u
si

n
g

 c
a

rb
o

n
-f

re
e

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y,
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r’

s 
G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 

w
it

h
 t

h
is

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

w
il

l 
fa

ll
 t

o
 z

e
ro

. 
R

e
p

la
ci

n
g

 n
a

tu
ra

l 
g

a
s 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
ve

r 
ti

m
e

 a
s 

e
xi

st
in

g
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

g
a

s 

in
fr

a
st

ru
c

tu
re

 
n

e
e

d
s 

to
 

b
e

 
re

p
la

ce
d

. 
W

h
e

n
 

re
p

la
ci

n
g

 
it

e
m

s 
li

ke
 

h
o

t 

w
a

te
r 

h
e

a
te

rs
 a

n
d

 H
V

A
C

 u
n

it
s,

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
w

il
l 

lo
o

k
 t

o
 r

e
p

la
ce

 n
a

tu
ra

l 

g
a

s 
co

m
b

u
st

io
n

 u
n

it
s 

w
it

h
 h

e
a

t 
p

u
m

p
s 

th
a

t 
ca

n
 o

p
e

ra
te

 a
t 

n
e

a
rl

y 
4

0
0

 

p
e

rc
e

n
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

.1
1
 P

h
a

si
n

g
 o

u
t 

n
a

tu
ra

l g
a

s 
b

a
ck

u
p

 g
e

n
e

ra
to

rs
 is

 lo
w

e
r 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 in

 t
h

e
 n

e
a

r 
te

rm
, 

a
s 

th
e

y 
p

ro
v

id
e

 c
ri

ti
ca

l r
e

si
li

e
n

ce
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
. 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 e
le

c
tr

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 i
s 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 b
y 

se
ve

ra
l 

S
ta

te
-l

e
ve

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s,
 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 S
B

 3
5

0
 a

n
d

 A
B

 3
2

3
2

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s 

in
 e

n
e

rg
y 

u
sa

g
e

 i
n

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s 
a

n
d

 a
 t

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
 l

o
w

-c
a

rb
o

n
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 s

to
ck

. 
S

B
 

3
5

0
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

th
e

 s
ta

te
 d

o
u

b
le

 t
h

e
 e

n
e

rg
y 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 s
av

in
g

s 
in

 n
a

tu
ra

l 

g
a

s 
u

sa
g

e
 b

y 
2

0
3

0
. 

A
B

 3
2

3
2

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
th

e
 C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 E

n
e

rg
y 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 

e
va

lu
a

te
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 s

ta
te

’s
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 s

to
ck

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

b
y 

4
0

 
p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

e
lo

w
 

1
9

9
0

 
le

ve
ls

 
b

y 
2

0
3

0
. 

T
h

is
 

m
e

a
su

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

re
li

a
b

le
 

a
n

d
 

re
si

li
e

n
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

b
e

ca
u

se
 e

le
c

tr
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
, 

w
h

e
n

 p
a

ir
e

d
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 (

so
la

r)
 a

n
d

 

b
a

tt
e

ry
 s

to
ra

g
e

, 
a

ll
o

w
s 

fo
r 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
e

ve
n

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 g

ri
d

 i
s 

d
o

w
n

. N
a

tu
ra

l g
a

s 
a

p
p

li
a

n
ce

s 
la

rg
e

ly
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
o

rk
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

y 
d

o
 n

o
t 

h
av

e
 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y.
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

-

e
ff

e
c

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

, 
a

s 
h

ig
h

e
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
 a

p
p

li
a

n
ce

s 

ca
n

 le
a

d
 t

o
 o

ve
ra

ll
 c

o
st

 s
av

in
g

s.
 

Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 (
2

6
,2

8
2

 t
h

e
rm

s1
2
) 

in
 n

at
u

ra
l g

as
 b

y 
2

0
3

0

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


 1
3

9
 M

T
 C

O
2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 D

C
-1

-1
: 

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y 

to
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
g

in
g

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

d
u

e
 f

o
r 

re
p

la
ce

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

ly
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
ly

 
vi

ab
le

 e
le

ct
ri

c 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
s

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 D

C
-1

-2
: 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

 p
o

lic
y 

re
q

u
ir

in
g

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

lia
n

ce
s 

to
 

ac
h

ie
ve

 E
n

e
rg

yS
ta

r 
C

e
rt

if
ic

at
io

n

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 D

C
-1

-3
: 

E
le

ct
ri

fy
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
at

 t
im

e
 o

f 
re

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
to

 
re

d
u

ce
 n

at
u

ra
l g

as
 c

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

si
lie

n
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

1
2

. O
n

e
 t

h
e

rm
 is

 t
h

e
 e

n
e

rg
y 

co
n

te
n

t 
o

f 
ap

p
ro

xi
m

at
e

ly
 1

0
0

 c
u

b
ic

 f
e

et
 o

f 
n

at
u

ra
l g

as
 a

t 
st

an
d

ar
d

 t
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

 a
n

d
 p

re
ss

u
re

. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
3

130

https://tristate.coop/advantages-heat-pumps-energy-efficiency
https://tristate.coop/advantages-heat-pumps-energy-efficiency
https://tristate.coop/advantages-heat-pumps-energy-efficiency
https://tristate.coop/advantages-heat-pumps-energy-efficiency


Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


5
0

 
p

e
rc

e
n

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

(1
,1

7
0

 
g

as
o

lin
e

 
g

al
lo

n
 

e
q

u
iv

al
e

n
t)

  
b

y 
2

0
3

0

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


 5
 M

T
 C

O
2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 D

C
-2

-1
: 

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y 

o
f 

n
at

u
ra

l 
g

as
, 

d
ie

se
l, 

an
d

 
p

ro
p

an
e

 c
o

n
su

m
in

g
 d

e
vi

ce
s 

u
se

d
 in

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 

D
C

-2
-2

: 
D

e
ve

lo
p

 
p

la
n

s 
fo

r 
re

p
la

ci
n

g
 

fo
ss

il 
fu

e
l 

co
m

b
u

st
io

n
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 e
le

ct
ri

c 
o

r 
ca

rb
o

n
-f

re
e

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t

R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

si
lie

n
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

M
EA

SU
RE

 D
C

-2
: D

ec
ar

bo
ni

ze
 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
re

du
ci

ng
 

fo
ss

il 
fu

el
 u

se
 a

nd
 r

ep
la

ci
ng

 
w

it
h 

al
l-

el
ec

tr
ic

 o
r a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
fu

el
s 

w
he

n 
fe

as
ib

le

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

u
se

d
 

b
y 

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r 

in
cl

u
d

e
s 

fo
rk

li
ft

s 
a

n
d

 
g

e
n

e
ra

to
rs

. 

D
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
in

g
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r’

s 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
b

y 
re

p
la

ci
n

g
 f

o
ss

il
 f

u
e

ls
, 

su
ch

 

a
s 

d
ie

se
l 

a
n

d
 p

ro
p

a
n

e
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
-c

a
rb

o
n

 i
n

te
n

si
ty

 f
u

e
ls

, 
li

ke
 r

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 

d
ie

se
l 

o
r 

b
y 

re
p

la
ci

n
g

 w
it

h
 e

le
c

tr
ic

 o
p

ti
o

n
s,

 w
il

l 
b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

o
f 

th
is

 s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 z

e
ro

. 
E

le
c

tr
ic

-p
o

w
e

re
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
ft

e
n

 a
re

 

m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
th

a
n

 t
h

o
se

 p
o

w
e

re
d

 b
y 

d
ie

se
l 

a
n

d
 p

ro
p

a
n

e
, 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 c
o

st
-e

ff
e

c
ti

ve
n

e
ss

. 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

m
ay

 o
p

t 
to

 u
ti

li
ze

 l
o

w
-c

a
rb

o
n

 

in
te

n
si

ty
 f

u
e

ls
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

-t
e

rm
, 

w
h

il
e

 e
le

c
tr

ic
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
b

e
co

m
e

s 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

ll
y 

fe
a

si
b

le
 a

n
d

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
s 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
ro

cu
re

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 z

e
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t.

 R
e

p
la

ci
n

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 e
le

c
tr

ic
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

w
il

l 
a

ll
o

w
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

to
 d

e
cr

e
a

se
 i

ts
 d

ir
e

c
t 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
li

g
n

 

w
it

h
 

S
ta

te
 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 
g

o
a

ls
. 

T
h

is
 

m
e

a
su

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 r

e
li

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

si
li

e
n

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
b

e
ca

u
se

 

e
le

c
tr

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

, 
w

h
e

n
 p

a
ir

e
d

 w
it

h
 e

n
e

rg
y 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 (
so

la
r)

 a
n

d
 b

a
tt

e
ry

 

st
o

ra
g

e
 a

ll
o

w
s 

fo
r 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
e

ve
n

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 g

ri
d

 i
s 

d
o

w
n

. 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
co

-b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 c
o

st
-e

ff
e

c
ti

ve
n

e
ss

 

a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
, 

a
s 

h
ig

h
e

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 o

f 
e

le
c

tr
ic

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
cr

e
a

se
d

 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 le

a
d

 t
o

 o
ve

ra
ll

 c
o

st
 s

av
in

g
s.

 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
4

131



M
EA

SU
RE

 F
L-

1:
 D

ec
ar

bo
ni

ze
 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 v

eh
ic

le
 fl

ee
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t o

f z
er

o-
em

is
si

on
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

to
 e

le
ct

ri
fy

 
50

% 
of

 th
e 

fl
ee

t b
y 

20
30

C
a

li
fo

rn
ia

 h
a

s 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 a
 r

o
b

u
st

 s
e

t 
o

f 
cl

e
a

n
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 p

o
li

ci
e

s 
a

n
d

 

g
o

a
ls

 t
o

 d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
e

 t
h

e
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
c

to
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

ze
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
 (

Z
E

V
) 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y,
 w

h
e

re
 f

e
a

si
b

le
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
se

 

o
f 

lo
w

-c
a

rb
o

n
 in

te
n

si
ty

 f
u

e
ls

 e
ve

ry
w

h
e

re
 e

ls
e

. T
h

e
 A

d
va

n
ce

d
 C

le
a

n
 C

a
rs

 

II
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

th
a

t 
b

y 
2

0
3

5
 a

ll
 n

e
w

 p
a

ss
e

n
g

e
r 

ca
rs

, 
tr

u
ck

s,
 a

n
d

 

S
U

V
s 

so
ld

 i
n

 C
a

li
fo

rn
ia

 b
e

 z
e

ro
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

 C
A

R
B

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 a
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 a

n
d

 h
e

av
y

-d
u

ty
 z

e
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
fl

e
e

t 
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 g
o

a
l o

f 

a
ch

ie
v

in
g

 a
 z

e
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

 t
ru

ck
 a

n
d

 b
u

s 
fl

e
e

t 
b

y 
2

0
4

5
. 

S
ta

rt
in

g
 in

 2
0

2
3

, 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
m

u
st

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 i

ts
 f

le
e

t 
a

n
n

u
a

ll
y 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 a

 n
e

w
 v

e
h

ic
le

 

is
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

le
e

t 
a

n
d

 b
y 

2
0

2
4

 w
il

l 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
it

s 
fl

e
e

t 
to

 c
a

rb
o

n
-f

re
e

 f
u

e
l.

 

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
in

g
 

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r’

s 
fl

e
e

t 
ve

h
ic

le
s 

to
 

e
it

h
e

r 
E

V
s 

p
o

w
e

re
d

 
b

y 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
ze

ro
-e

m
is

si
o

n
 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
h

a
s 

th
e

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 b
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 s

o
u

rc
e

 t
o

 z
e

ro
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 S

ta
te

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s 

se
ve

ra
l 

in
ce

n
ti

ve
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 v

e
h

ic
le

 r
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 in
fr

a
st

ru
c

tu
re

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 B

y 
b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 t
o

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 

th
e

 A
d

va
n

ce
d

 C
le

a
n

 F
le

e
t 

R
u

le
, 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
ca

n
 a

cc
e

ss
 e

a
rl

y 
a

c
ti

o
n

 

in
ce

n
ti

ve
s.

 T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
in

g
 t

o
 Z

E
V

 h
e

av
y 

d
u

ty
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

d
 

cl
o

se
r 

to
 

2
0

4
5

, 
a

s 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
b

e
co

m
e

 
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ic

a
ll

y 
a

n
d

 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
ll

y 

fe
a

si
b

le
. T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
co

-b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 in
cr

e
a

se
d

 r
e

li
a

b
le

 

a
n

d
 r

e
si

li
e

n
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

a
s 

E
V

s 
m

ay
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 b

a
ck

u
p

 p
o

w
e

r 

d
u

ri
n

g
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
o

f 
o

u
ta

g
e

s.
 I

t 
a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

co
st

-e
ff

e
c

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

, 
a

s 
Z

E
V

s 
h

av
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
li

fe
cy

cl
e

 c
o

st
s 

th
a

n
 in

te
rn

a
l c

o
m

b
u

st
io

n
 e

n
g

in
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s.

 

Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

fl
e

e
t 

co
n

ve
rs

io
n

 t
o

 Z
E

V
 b

y 
2

0
3

0

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


6
2

 M
T

 C
O

2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 

F
L-

1
-1

: 
C

o
n

d
u

ct
 

a 
ve

h
ic

le
 

e
le

ct
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 

st
u

d
y 

to
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 w
h

ic
h

 f
le

e
t 

ve
h

ic
le

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 c

o
n

ve
rt

e
d

, 
w

h
at

 c
h

ar
g

e
rs

 
ar

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

, a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 lo

ca
te

d

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 

F
L-

1
-2

: 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

"E
V

 F
ir

st
" 

p
o

lic
y:

 w
h

e
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

m
u

st
 b

e
 r

e
p

la
ce

d
, f

ir
st

 c
h

e
ck

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

E
V

 o
p

ti
o

n
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
, a

n
d

 
th

e
n

 r
e

p
la

ce
 w

it
h

 m
o

st
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

lly
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 o

p
ti

o
n

. 
F

ill
 o

u
t 

a 
fo

rm
 f

o
r 

e
ve

ry
 v

e
h

ic
le

 p
u

rc
h

as
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
h

e
ck

 t
o

 s
e

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
an

 
E

V
 o

p
ti

o
n

 i
s 

av
ai

la
b

le
. 

W
h

e
n

 n
o

 E
V

 o
p

ti
o

n
 i

s 
av

ai
la

b
le

, 
re

d
u

ce
 

th
e

 w
e

ig
h

t 
o

f 
ve

h
ic

le
s 

an
d

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 t
e

ch
 t

h
at

 m
o

n
it

o
rs

 v
e

h
ic

le
 

id
le

n
e

ss
, i

n
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 s

m
al

le
r 

d
ie

se
l e

n
g

in
e

s.

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 

F
L-

1
-3

: 
In

st
al

l 
E

V
 c

h
ar

g
e

rs
 a

t 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

E
V

 f
le

e
t 

p
u

rs
u

an
t 

to
 t

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

o
f 

th
e

 E
V

 s
tu

d
y

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t

R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

si
lie

n
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

T
ra

n
sp

ar
e

n
cy

 a
n

d
 A

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
5

132



M
EA

SU
RE

 F
L-

2:
 U

se
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
fu

el
s 

to
 b

ri
dg

e 
th

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
ga

p 
to

 z
er

o-
em

is
si

on
 v

eh
ic

le
s

1
3

. N
e

st
e

. F
u

e
lin

g
 R

e
n

ew
e

d
 T

ru
st

 in
 P

u
b

lic
 F

le
et

s.
 h

tt
p

s:
//

w
w

w
.n

e
st

e
.u

s/
n

e
st

e
-m

y-
re

-
n

e
w

a
b

le
-d

ie
se

l/
in

d
u

st
ri

e
s/

p
u

b
lic

-fl
e

e
ts

. A
cc

e
ss

e
d

 N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
.

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

fl
e

e
t 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y 

u
se

s 
d

ie
se

l 
a

n
d

 g
a

so
li

n
e

 f
u

e
ls

. 
S

w
it

ch
in

g
 t

o
 

u
si

n
g

 l
o

w
-c

a
rb

o
n

 i
n

te
n

si
ty

 f
u

e
ls

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

 d
ie

se
l,

 w
il

l 
p

ro
v

id
e

 

sh
o

rt
-t

e
rm

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

re
q

u
ir

in
g

 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

a
lt

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

 U
si

n
g

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

ve
 f

u
e

ls
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

-t
e

rm
 a

ll
o

w
s 

ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
to

 p
il

o
t 

a
n

d
/o

r 
a

ss
e

ss
 z

e
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

 t
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
ie

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 

fe
a

si
b

il
it

y 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

n
 i

n
ve

st
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 S
ta

te
’s

 L
o

w
 C

a
rb

o
n

 

F
u

e
ls

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 is

 in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
va

il
a

b
il

it
y 

a
n

d
 d

e
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 

co
st

 o
f 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

ve
 f

u
e

ls
 i

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

tp
la

ce
. 

In
 2

0
2

1
, 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
st

a
rt

e
d

 

u
si

n
g

 r
e

n
e

w
a

b
le

 d
ie

se
l 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 i

t 
a

s 
a

 v
ia

b
le

 f
u

e
l 

to
 b

ri
d

g
e

 

th
e

 t
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y 

g
a

p
 t

o
 z

e
ro

-e
m

is
si

o
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s.

 U
si

n
g

 r
e

n
e

w
a

b
le

 d
ie

se
l 

in
 e

xi
st

in
g

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

ca
n

 d
e

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 c

o
st

s 
o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

o
ve

r 
tr

a
d

it
io

n
a

l 
d

ie
se

l 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 d

e
cr

e
a

se
d

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
d

ie
se

l 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
te

 

fi
lt

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s,
 a

s 
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

 d
ie

se
l 

h
a

s 
le

ss
 i

m
p

u
ri

ti
e

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
su

lf
u

r,
 

o
xy

g
e

n
, 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
a

ro
m

a
ti

c 
co

m
p

o
u

n
d

s.
1

3
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
th

e
 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

o
f 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 
re

li
a

b
le

 
a

n
d

 
re

si
li

e
n

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s,
 

a
s 

u
si

n
g

 

lo
w

-c
a

rb
o

n
 i

n
te

n
si

ty
 f

u
e

ls
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

-t
e

rm
 m

ay
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
si

li
e

n
ce

 t
o

 p
o

w
e

r 
o

u
ta

g
e

s 
a

n
d

 g
ri

d
 s

h
u

td
o

w
n

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
le

c
tr

if
ie

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

th
a

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y 
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 

b
y 

o
n

-s
it

e
 s

o
la

r 
a

n
d

 b
a

tt
e

ry
 s

to
ra

g
e

. 

Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


1
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t r
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t o
f d

ie
se

l w
it

h
 re

n
e

w
ab

le
 d

ie
se

l b
y 

2
0

3
0

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


9
4

 M
T

 C
O

2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 F

L-
2

-1
: 

E
xp

an
d

 u
se

 o
f 

re
n

e
w

ab
le

 d
ie

se
l 

w
h

e
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
 

e
le

ct
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 i

s 
n

o
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
; 

e
va

lu
at

e
 u

se
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
fu

e
ls

 li
ke

 h
yd

ro
g

e
n

 a
n

d
 h

yb
ri

d
-e

le
ct

ri
c 

ve
h

ic
le

s

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

si
lie

n
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
6

133

https://www.neste.us/neste-my-renewable-diesel/industries/public-fleets
https://www.neste.us/neste-my-renewable-diesel/industries/public-fleets


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

134



C
le

a
n

 E
n

e
rg

y 
S

o
u

rc
e

s.

SC
O

PE
 2

 
M

EA
SU

RE
S 

AN
D

 
AC

TI
O

N
S

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

3
7

135



M
EA

SU
RE

 E
-1

: U
ti

liz
e 

50
% 

lo
w

-c
ar

bo
n 

an
d 

ca
rb

on
-

fr
ee

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 b
y 

20
30

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

d
u

ce
s 

th
e

 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 
o

f 
it

s 
G

H
G

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 P

ro
cu

ri
n

g
 lo

w
-c

a
rb

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

a
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y 

w
il

l s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y 

re
d

u
ce

 
S

C
V

 
W

a
te

r’
s 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

S
B

 
1

0
2

0
 

w
il

l 
e

n
su

re
 

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r 

re
ce

iv
e

s 
6

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
cl

e
a

n
 e

n
e

rg
y 

b
y 

2
0

3
0

, 
9

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

y 
2

0
3

5
, 

9
5

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

4
0

, 
a

n
d

 1
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

y 
2

0
4

5
. T

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y 

w
il

l b
e

 

a
 k

e
y 

co
m

p
o

n
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
ch

ie
v

in
g

 lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r.
 F

o
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
, 

e
le

c
tr

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 b
u

il
d

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

w
il

l 
a

ch
ie

ve
 

a
 g

re
a

te
r 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

f 
e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y 

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

re
 l

o
w

-c
a

rb
o

n
 

o
r 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y,
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

re
ce

iv
e

s 
e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y 

fr
o

m
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
 

C
a

li
fo

rn
ia

 E
d

is
o

n
 (

S
C

E
).

 S
C

E
 o

ff
e

rs
 a

 5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

g
re

e
n

 r
a

te
 o

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

1
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
g

re
e

n
 r

a
te

 o
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i

ts
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v

id
e

 7
1

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 1

0
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y,

 r
e

sp
e

c
ti

ve
ly

. 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

m
ay

 a
ls

o
 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

p
ro

cu
ri

n
g

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
fr

o
m

 C
le

a
n

 P
o

w
e

r 
A

ll
ia

n
ce

 (
C

P
A

),
 a

 n
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
ch

o
ic

e
 a

g
g

re
g

a
ti

o
n

 (
C

C
A

) 
e

n
ti

ty
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 i
n

 L
o

s 

A
n

g
e

le
s 

a
n

d
 V

e
n

tu
ra

 c
o

u
n

ti
e

s 
ca

rb
o

n
-f

re
e

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y.
 C

P
A

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

4
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t,

 5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t,

 a
n

d
 1

0
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y.

 S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r 

ca
n

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

e
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
it

s 
2

0
3

0
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
b

y 
p

ro
cu

ri
n

g
 a

t 
le

a
st

 7
1

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y 

b
e

fo
re

 2
0

2
5

. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 i
ts

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
st

ra
te

g
y,

 d
e

ve
lo

p
in

g
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l o

n
-s

it
e

 s
o

la
r 

a
n

d
 b

a
tt

e
ry

 s
to

ra
g

e
 w

il
l b

o
th

 r
e

d
u

ce
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 

in
cr

e
a

se
 

re
si

li
e

n
ce

 
to

 
d

is
tu

rb
a

n
ce

s 
su

ch
 

a
s 

p
o

w
e

r 
o

u
ta

g
e

s.
 

G
H

G
 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

ca
lc

u
la

te
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 s
w

it
ch

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 5

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
g

re
e

n
 

ra
te

 o
p

ti
o

n
 a

t 
e

it
h

e
r 

S
C

E
 o

r 
C

P
A

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

 

b
y 

sw
it

ch
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 1
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
g

re
e

n
 r

a
te

 o
p

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 r

e
li

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

si
li

e
n

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
b

e
ca

u
se

 

o
n

-s
it

e
 e

n
e

rg
y 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 (
so

la
r)

 a
n

d
 b

a
tt

e
ry

 s
to

ra
g

e
 a

ll
o

w
s 

fo
r 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

e
ve

n
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 g
ri

d
 i

s 
d

o
w

n
. 

It
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 c
o

st
-e

ff
e

c
ti

ve
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
, 

a
s 

o
n

-s
it

e
 s

o
la

r 
a

n
d

 b
a

tt
e

ry
 

st
o

ra
g

e
 m

ay
 r

e
d

u
ce

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

u
ti

li
ty

 c
o

st
s 

o
ve

r 
ti

m
e

. 

Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


P
ro

cu
re

 a
t 

le
as

t 
7

1
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
ca

rb
o

n
-f

re
e

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 b
y 

2
0

2
5

		


In
st

al
l 

an
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 2
 M

W
 o

f 
so

la
r 

b
y 

2
0

3
0

 w
it

h
 a

t 
le

as
t 

1
 

M
W

 o
n

lin
e

 b
y 

2
0

2
5

		


In
st

al
l b

at
te

ry
 s

to
ra

g
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
ll 

o
n

-s
it

e
 s

o
la

r 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

		


C
o

n
d

u
ct

 
a 

st
u

d
y 

d
e

te
rm

in
in

g
 

si
zi

n
g

 
o

f 
b

at
te

ry
 

st
o

ra
g

e 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 o

ff
se

t 
n

o
n

-s
o

la
r 

p
ro

d
u

ci
n

g
 e

n
e

rg
y 

u
se

 a
n

d
/o

r 
m

e
e

t 
re

si
lie

n
ce

 n
e

e
d

s 
d

u
ri

n
g

 p
o

w
e

r 
o

u
ta

g
e

s

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


1
,7

5
6

 M
T

 C
O

2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 E

-1
-1

: 
S

w
it

ch
 e

le
ct

ri
ca

l 
ac

co
u

n
ts

 t
o

 a
 g

re
e

n
 r

at
e 

p
ro

g
ra

m
 (

e
.g

.,
 S

C
E

 5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

an
d

 1
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 R

at
e 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

o
r 

C
le

an
 P

o
w

e
r 

A
lli

an
ce

 4
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t,

 5
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t,

 o
f 

1
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
C

ar
b

o
n

-F
re

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s)

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 E

-1
-2

: I
n

st
al

l a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 1

 M
W

 o
f 

so
la

r 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

b
y 

2
0

2
5

; a
n

d
 2

 M
W

 o
f 

so
la

r 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y 
2

0
3

0

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 E

-1
-3

: 
In

cl
u

d
e

 b
at

te
ry

 s
to

ra
g

e
 a

t 
cr

it
ic

al
 f

ac
ili

ti
e

s 
to

 
im

p
ro

ve
 r

e
si

lie
n

ce

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

si
lie

n
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
8

136



Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


1
0

0
 

p
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s 

ar
e

 
al

l-
e

le
ct

ri
c 

an
d

 
u

ti
liz

e 
h

e
at

 p
u

m
p

s

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 E

E
-1

-1
: 

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 f
ac

ili
ty

 w
id

e
 e

n
e

rg
y 

au
d

it
s 

an
n

u
al

ly
 

an
d

 
tr

ac
k 

e
n

e
rg

y 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 

d
u

e
 

to
 

e
n

e
rg

y 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

u
p

g
ra

d
e

s 
an

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

n
u

al
ly

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 E

E
-1

-2
: 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

 p
o

lic
y 

re
q

u
ir

in
g

 a
n

y 
n

e
w

 b
u

ild
in

g
 t

o
 

b
e

 a
ll-

e
le

ct
ri

c 
an

d
 u

ti
liz

e
 h

e
at

 p
u

m
p

s 
fo

r 
sp

ac
e

 a
n

d
 w

at
e

r 
h

e
at

in
g

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 E

E
-1

-3
: 

O
p

ti
m

iz
e

 f
ac

ili
ty

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e

 p
o

w
e

r,
 

su
p

p
lie

s,
 c

h
e

m
ic

al
s,

 a
n

d
 l

ab
o

r 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 a
d

d
in

g
 

o
n

-s
it

e
 o

n
lin

e
 c

h
lo

ri
n

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
si

n
g

 S
C

E
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 t

e
st

s 
to

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 w
h

at
 t

o
 r

e
p

la
ce

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 E

E
-1

-4
: 

U
ti

liz
e

 a
n

 e
n

e
rg

y 
m

an
ag

e
m

e
n

t 
sy

st
e

m
, s

u
ch

 a
s 

E
N

E
R

G
Y

 S
T

A
R

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 M

an
ag

e
r,

 t
o

 t
ra

ck
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 e

n
e

rg
y 

u
se

 i
n

te
n

si
ty

1
4
 t

o
 m

e
as

u
re

 e
n

e
rg

y 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 
o

ve
r 

ti
m

e

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t

T
ra

n
sp

ar
e

n
cy

 a
n

d
 A

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

1
4

 E
n

e
rg

y 
u

se
 in

te
n

si
ty

 r
e

fe
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
e

n
e

rg
y 

u
se

d
 p

e
r 

sq
u

ar
e

 f
o

o
t.

 

M
EA

SU
RE

 E
E-

1:
 Im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

at
 S

C
V 

W
at

er
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

gs

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 e
n

e
rg

y 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

t 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r’

s 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s 
w

il
l 

re
d

u
ce

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

sa
ve

 m
o

n
e

y,
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

ce
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

In
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 e

n
e

rg
y 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 w
il

l a
ls

o
 a

li
g

n
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
a

li
fo

rn
ia

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 E
n

e
rg

y 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

(T
it

le
 2

4
).

 U
ti

li
zi

n
g

 h
e

a
t 

p
u

m
p

s 
in

 

n
e

w
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s 
ca

n
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 b

y 
n

e
a

rl
y 

4
0

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

 p
e

a
k

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y 
d

e
m

a
n

d
. E

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
H

V
A

C
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
p

a
ir

e
d

 w
it

h
 

o
n

-s
it

e
 s

o
la

r 
a

n
d

 b
a

tt
e

ry
 s

to
ra

g
e

 w
il

l 
a

ls
o

 l
im

it
 p

e
a

k
 s

y
st

e
m

 d
e

m
a

n
d

s.
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

e
n

e
rg

y 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

c
ti

o
n

s 
o

n
 t

im
e

-o
f-

u
se

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s,

 e
n

e
rg

y 

a
u

d
it

s,
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
n

e
rg

y 
sa

v
in

g
s 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
a

re
 o

u
tl

in
e

d
 i

n
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C
. 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

-e
ff

e
c

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 b
e

ca
u

se
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 e

n
e

rg
y 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 d
ir

e
c

tl
y 

le
a

d
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 

e
n

e
rg

y 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

 s
av

in
g

s.
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 a

ls
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
tr

a
n

sp
a

re
n

cy
 a

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
il

it
y 

a
s 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 

d
e

ve
lo

p
s 

p
o

li
ci

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
s 

re
p

o
rt

s 
th

a
t 

co
m

m
it

 t
o

 a
n

d
 d

is
cl

o
se

 

e
n

e
rg

y 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

3
9

137



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

138



D
ro

u
g

h
t-

re
si

st
a

n
t 

L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
in

g
.

SC
O

PE
 3

 
M

EA
SU

RE
S 

AN
D

 
AC

TI
O

N
S

TO
C

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 -
  S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

4
0

139



Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


R
e

d
u

ce
 w

at
e

r 
d

e
m

an
d

 b
y 

an
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 1
5

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

3
0

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


1
,6

0
2

 M
T

 C
O

2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 W

C
-1

-1
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
cy

cl
in

g
 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
an

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
b

y 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 W

at
e

r 
U

se
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

S
tr

at
e

g
ic

 P
la

n
, 

W
at

e
r 

S
h

o
rt

ag
e

 C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

cy
 P

la
n

, 
U

rb
an

 W
at

e
r 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
, a

n
d

 G
ro

u
n

d
w

at
e

r 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

si
lie

n
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t

H
ig

h
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

M
EA

SU
RE

 W
C

-1
: I

m
pl

em
en

t 
w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
re

du
ci

ng
 

de
m

an
d 

15
% 

by
 2

03
0

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r 

is
 

a
 

p
ro

ve
n

 
le

a
d

e
r 

in
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 

w
a

te
r 

co
n

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
a

n
d

 a
ch

ie
v

in
g

 m
e

a
su

ra
b

le
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s 

in
 w

a
te

r 
u

sa
g

e
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 

w
a

te
r 

co
n

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

, 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

h
a

s 
se

e
n

 S
co

p
e

 2
, 

in
d

ir
e

c
t 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

n
e

rg
y 

n
e

e
d

s 
fo

r 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t,

 

d
e

li
ve

ry
, 

a
n

d
 i

m
p

o
rt

 o
f 

w
a

te
r 

su
p

p
li

e
s.

 A
s 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
, 

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r 

h
a

s 
se

ve
ra

l 
su

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
w

a
te

r 
co

n
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

w
a

te
r-

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
p

p
li

a
n

ce
 a

n
d

 l
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 r
e

b
a

te
s.

 A
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

c
t 

o
f 

2
0

0
9

, 
S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

h
a

s 
a

ch
ie

ve
d

 a
 2

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

in
 

p
e

r 
ca

p
it

a
 

w
a

te
r 

u
se

 
co

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 

it
s 

2
0

1
0

 
b

a
se

li
n

e
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
w

a
te

r 
co

n
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

n
e

w
 S

ta
te

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 w

a
te

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s 

o
f 

a
 g

ro
w

in
g

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

, 
w

h
il

e
 r

e
d

u
ci

n
g

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

-

e
ff

e
c

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 d
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
cr

e
a

se
s 

in
 w

a
te

r 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 l

e
ss

e
n

e
d

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
in

ve
st

m
e

n
ts

 b
y 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
to

 p
ro

cu
re

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

w
a

te
r 

su
p

p
li

e
s.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
co

-b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 

re
li

a
b

il
it

y,
 

re
si

li
e

n
ce

, 
a

n
d

 
su

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y 

o
f 

w
a

te
r 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

b
e

ca
u

se
 

w
a

te
r 

co
n

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

 
e

ff
o

rt
s 

in
cr

e
a

se
 

su
p

p
li

e
s 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s 

o
f 

d
ro

u
g

h
t 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

sh
o

rt
a

g
e

s.
 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

4
1

140



M
EA

SU
RE

 C
R-

1:
 R

ed
uc

e 
em

is
si

on
s 

fr
om

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
15

% 
by

 2
03

0 
th

ro
ug

h 
de

ca
rb

on
iz

at
io

n 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
fr

o
m

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

co
n

st
ru

c
ti

o
n

 a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s 
a

re
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 t

o
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

 u
p

 t
o

 3
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
o

f 
it

s 
o

ve
ra

ll
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
p

ro
fi

le
. 

F
u

tu
re

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
fr

o
m

 c
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 e
xp

e
c

te
d

 t
o

 v
a

ry
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 f

o
r 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
ts

. 
W

h
il

e
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
d

ir
e

c
tl

y 
co

n
tr

o
l 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 
w

it
h

 
co

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 

a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s,
 i

t 
ca

n
 u

se
 t

h
e

 p
ro

cu
re

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 t
o

 s
e

le
c

t 
ve

n
d

o
rs

 w
it

h
 

m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
ve

h
ic

le
s 

a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
ca

n
 o

p
t 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
te

rn
a

l 
p

o
li

ci
e

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

te
d

 v
e

n
d

o
rs

 m
e

e
t 

o
r 

e
xc

e
e

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 n

e
w

e
r 

e
n

g
in

e
s 

b
e

 p
h

a
se

d
 i

n
 a

n
d

 

th
e

re
b

y 
d

e
cr

e
a

se
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r’

s 
co

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

a
re

 e
xp

e
c

te
d

 t
o

 d
e

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 a
li

g
n

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 S

ta
te

 g
o

a
ls

 t
o

 d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
e

 

o
ff

-r
o

a
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
s 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
im

p
ro

ve
s.

 W
it

h
 t

h
is

, 
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

in
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 i

s 
e

xp
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 d

ri
ve

 d
o

w
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
st

 o
f 

d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
e

d
 o

ff
-r

o
a

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

o
ve

r 
ti

m
e

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

c
ti

o
n

s 
a

ro
u

n
d

 
d

e
ca

rb
o

n
iz

a
ti

o
n

 
o

f 

co
n

st
ru

c
ti

o
n

 
m

a
ch

in
e

ry
 

a
re

 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 

in
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 

C
. 

T
h

is
 

m
e

a
su

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

-e
ff

e
c

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

, 
a

s 

d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
e

d
 o

ff
-r

o
a

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
is

 e
xp

e
c

te
d

 t
o

 h
av

e
 l

o
w

e
r 

li
fe

cy
cl

e
 

co
st

s 
in

 t
h

e
 lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
. 

Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


R
e

d
u

ce
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

b
y 

1
5

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

b
y 

2
0

3
0

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


8
1

 M
T

 C
O

2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 C

R
-1

-1
: 

In
cl

u
d

e
 e

le
ct

ri
c 

an
d

 z
e

ro
 e

m
is

si
o

n
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
in

 
th

e
 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 
p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

y 
fo

r 
al

l 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

 
o

ff
-r

o
ad

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

4
2

141



Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


R
e

d
u

ce
 c

o
m

m
u

te
r 

V
M

T
 b

y 
1

5
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

y 
2

0
3

0

		


In
st

al
l 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 
E

V
 

ch
ar

g
in

g
 

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 
an

d
 

o
th

e
r 

Z
E

V
 

fu
e

lin
g

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 (
e

.g
.,

 h
yd

ro
g

e
n

 f
u

e
lin

g
 in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
)

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


 1
1

6
 M

T
 C

O
2
e 

in
 2

0
3

0

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 

T
R

-1
-1

: 
A

llo
w

 
fo

r 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

o
f 

a 
fu

ll 
o

r 
p

ar
ti

al
 w

o
rk

-f
ro

m
-h

o
m

e
 p

o
lic

y 
w

h
e

re
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

te
le

co
m

m
u

te
 

o
r 

u
ti

liz
e

 f
le

xi
b

le
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
ra

n
si

t 
ti

m
e

, 
V

M
T

, 
an

d
 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s

		


A
C

T
IO

N
 

T
R

-1
-2

: 
In

st
al

l 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 

p
ar

ki
n

g
 

sp
ac

e
s 

w
it

h
 

E
V

 
ch

ar
g

e
rs

 f
o

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

co
m

m
u

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

/o
r 

vi
si

to
rs

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t

R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

si
lie

n
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

M
EA

SU
RE

 T
R-

1:
 R

ed
uc

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 c

om
m

ut
e 

em
is

si
on

s 
15

% 
by

 2
03

0

S
C

V
 

W
a

te
r 

ca
n

 
su

p
p

o
rt

 
re

d
u

ci
n

g
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 
co

m
m

u
te

r 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

w
o

 p
a

th
w

ay
s.

 T
h

e
 f

ir
st

 i
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
d

ri
v

in
g

 b
y 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
in

 s
in

g
le

 o
cc

u
p

a
n

cy
 v

e
h

ic
le

s.
 S

C
V

 W
a

te
r 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y 

tr
a

ck
s 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 
co

m
m

u
ti

n
g

 
h

a
b

it
s 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

te
le

co
m

m
u

te
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s.
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 f
u

ll
 o

r 
p

a
rt

ia
l 

te
le

co
m

m
u

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
le

xi
b

le
 w

o
rk

 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

s 
w

il
l 

b
o

th
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 

C
a

li
fo

rn
ia

’s
 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 

g
o

a
ls

, 
w

h
il

e
 r

e
d

u
ci

n
g

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 c
o

m
m

u
te

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

T
h

e
 s

e
co

n
d

 p
a

th
w

ay
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 
Z

E
V

s.
 

T
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 c

o
m

m
u

te
r 

fl
e

e
t 

w
il

l 
in

e
v

it
a

b
ly

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 Z

E
V

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 Z
e

ro
-E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

V
e

h
ic

le
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

O
rd

e
r 

N
-7

9
-2

0
, 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
1

0
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

sa
le

s 
o

f 
n

e
w

 p
a

ss
e

n
g

e
r 

ve
h

ic
le

s 
to

 b
e

 Z
E

V
 b

y 
2

0
3

5
. 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 t

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

E
V

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s.
 

A
va

il
a

b
le

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
Z

E
V

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
c

tu
re

 i
n

ce
n

ti
ve

/

re
b

a
te

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
n

ti
ti

e
s,

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
C

A
R

B
, s

h
o

u
ld

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 u

se
 

o
f 

Z
E

V
s 

b
y 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s.

 A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l a

c
ti

o
n

s 
a

ro
u

n
d

 in
ce

n
ti

ve
s,

 

cr
e

d
it

 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

 
a

n
d

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s 

a
re

 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 

in
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

. 
T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
th

e
 c

o
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

-

e
ff

e
c

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 d
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
cr

e
a

se
d

 c
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

ss
il 

fu
e

ls
 a

n
d

 u
ti

li
ti

e
s 

a
t 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s.
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

co
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 r

e
li

a
b

il
it

y 
a

n
d

 r
e

si
li

e
n

ce
 o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
b

e
ca

u
se

 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

te
le

co
m

m
u

ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 

fl
e

xi
b

le
 

w
o

rk
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

in
cr

e
a

se
s 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y 

d
u

ri
n

g
 h

a
za

rd
s 

e
ve

n
ts

 o
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

ll
y 

d
is

ru
p

ti
ve

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

s.
 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

4
3

142



M
EA

SU
RE

 W
-1

: R
ed

uc
e 

la
nd

fi
lle

d 
w

as
te

, w
it

h 
a 

fo
cu

s 
on

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
or

ga
ni

c 
w

as
te

 7
5%

 b
y 

20
25

M
o

st
 

o
f 

th
e

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r’
s 

w
a

st
e

 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

is
 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

w
it

h
 

th
e

 
d

e
co

m
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n

ic
 

w
a

st
e

 
in

 
la

n
d

fi
ll

s.
 

D
iv

e
rt

in
g

 o
rg

a
n

ic
 w

a
st

e
 c

a
n

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 o
ve

ra
ll 

w
a

st
e

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 S

B
 1

3
8

3
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

C
a

li
fo

rn
ia

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 o
rg

a
n

ic
 w

a
st

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll

s 
b

y 
7

5
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
b

y 
2

0
2

5
 f

ro
m

 

2
0

1
4

 b
a

se
li

n
e

 l
e

ve
ls

 a
n

d
 a

ch
ie

ve
 z

e
ro

-w
a

st
e

 s
e

n
t 

to
 l

a
n

d
fi

ll
s 

b
y 

2
0

4
5

. 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

a
c

ti
o

n
s 

a
ro

u
n

d
 w

a
st

e
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 p

ra
c

ti
ce

s 
a

re
 o

u
tl

in
e

d
 i

n
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

. 
T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
th

e
 c

o
-b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

-

e
ff

e
c

ti
ve

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
s 

w
a

st
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
ca

n
 c

o
n

se
rv

e
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

 d
is

p
o

sa
l c

o
st

s.
 

Ta
rg

et
 M

et
ri

cs
		


7
5

 
p

e
rc

e
n

t 
o

rg
an

ic
 

w
as

te
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
b

y 
2

0
2

5
 

fr
o

m
 

a 
2

0
1

4
  

b
as

e
lin

e
1

5

G
H

G
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Po
te

nt
ia

l
		


4
7

2
 M

T
 C

O
2
e 

in
 2

0
2

5

Ac
tio

ns
		


A
C

T
IO

N
 

W
-1

-1
: 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

 
to

 
se

p
ar

at
e

 
o

rg
an

ic
 

w
as

te
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

m
at

e
ri

al
s.

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

w
it

h
 l

o
ca

l 
w

as
te

 d
is

p
o

sa
l 

co
m

p
an

ie
s 

to
 r

o
u

te
 o

rg
an

ic
 w

as
te

 t
o

 f
o

o
d

 r
e

co
ve

ry
 c

e
n

te
rs

, 
an

ae
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
st

io
n

, o
r 

co
m

p
o

st
in

g
 f

ac
ili

ti
e

s

C
o-

Be
ne

fit
s

C
o

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

1
5

. S
B

 1
3

8
3

, e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 2
0

2
2

, s
et

s 
st

at
ew

id
e

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 t

ar
g

et
s 

to
 4

0
%

 b
e

lo
w

 2
0

1
3

 
le

ve
ls

 b
y 

2
0

3
0

 f
o

r 
m

et
h

an
e

, 7
5

%
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 in
 o

rg
an

ic
 m

at
e

ri
al

 d
is

p
o

se
d

 in
 la

n
d

fi
lls

 f
ro

m
 

2
0

1
4

 le
ve

ls
 b

y 
2

0
2

5
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n

s 
to

 a
d

o
p

t 
o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
e

n
fo

rc
e

ab
le

 
m

e
ch

an
is

m
s 

to
 im

p
o

se
 p

e
n

al
ti

e
s 

fo
r 

n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

. S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 
co

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 lo
ca

l o
rd

in
an

ce
s 

e
st

ab
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
et

 S
B

 1
3

8
3

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

4
4

143



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

144



6.
  

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N 

AN
D

 M
O

N
IT

O
RI

N
G

 
ST

RA
TE

G
Y

T
h

e
 m

o
st

 i
m

p
o

rt
an

t 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

an
y 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
ff

o
rt

 i
s 

th
e

 s
u

b
se

q
u

e
n

t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 m
e

as
u

re
s 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

s.
 T

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
’s

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 w
ill

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

cr
o

ss
 s

e
ve

ra
l 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

d
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 p

h
as

e
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 M
an

ag
e

r 
w

ill
 c

o
o

rd
in

at
e

 w
it

h
 r

e
le

va
n

t 
d

e
p

ar
tm

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

. N
ex

t,
 in

vo
lv

e
d

 

p
ar

ti
e

s 
w

ill
 p

re
se

n
t 

th
e

 i
te

m
s 

to
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

m
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 i
ts

 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

 t
o

 a
ss

e
ss

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
p

ti
o

n
s,

 g
ai

n
 a

p
p

ro
va

l, 
an

d
 t

ra
ck

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 m
e

tr
ic

s.
 T

o
 r

e
ac

h
 t

h
e

 2
0

3
0

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

ta
rg

e
t,

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
g

in
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 m

e
as

u
re

s 
an

d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

u
p

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
. 

ST
EP

S 
FO

R 
IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
: 

AC
TI

O
N

 P
RI

O
RI

TI
ZA

TI
O

N 

T
h

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 t
ak

e
 a

 p
h

as
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 a

ct
io

n
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
.

P
H

A
S

E
 1

 w
ill

 o
cc

u
r 

in
 t

h
e

 n
e

ar
-t

e
rm

 (
b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

2
0

2
3

–2
0

2
6

)

P
H

A
S

E
 2

 w
ill

 in
cl

u
d

e
 t

h
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

m
id

-t
e

rm
 a

ct
io

n
s 

(2
0

2
6

–2
0

2
9

)

P
H

A
S

E
 3

 w
ill

 in
cl

u
d

e
 t

h
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 a
ct

io
n

s 
(2

0
2

9
–2

0
4

5
)

N
e

ar
-t

e
rm

 a
ct

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

re
at

e
st

 r
e

tu
rn

 f
o

r 
th

e
 le

as
t 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
in

ve
st

m
e

n
t,

 

su
ch

 a
s 

fa
ci

lit
y 

e
n

e
rg

y 
an

d
 w

at
e

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 o
ft

e
n

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 

fo
r 

e
ar

ly
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 f

u
tu

re
 c

ap
it

al
 o

r 
ti

m
e

-i
n

te
n

si
ve

 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
ca

n
 b

u
ild

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
, 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
d

ie
s 

an
d

 s
u

rv
e

ys
 c

an
 o

ft
e

n
 b

e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 th

e
 n

e
ar

-t
e

rm
 to

 s
e

t a
 fo

u
n

d
at

io
n

 fo
r 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 c
ap

it
al

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
 

o
r 

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

w
it

h
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

G
H

G
 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 li
fe

cy
cl

e
 c

o
st

 s
av

in
g

s.
 

Ta
b

le
 6

-1
 p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 m
e

as
u

re
s 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

s,
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

as
 t

h
e

ir
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 p

h
as

e
, 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 d

e
p

ar
tm

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 m
e

tr
ic

s 
fo

r 
tr

ac
ki

n
g

. 

T
h

e
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 
P

la
n

 
fo

cu
se

s 
o

n
 

P
h

as
e

 
1

 
m

e
as

u
re

s 
an

d
 

ac
ti

o
n

s.
 

O
ve

r 

ti
m

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 a
ct

io
n

s 
(l

ik
e

 t
h

o
se

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

) 
w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e 

ad
o

p
te

d
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

h
e

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 g

o
al

 o
f 

ca
rb

o
n

 n
e

u
tr

al
it

y.
 N

e
w

 t
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
ie

s 

an
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

e
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 f

u
tu

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s.

 

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

4
5

145



S
e

v
e

ra
l 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y 

P
la

n
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

. 
R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 p

a
rt

ie
s 

a
re

 l
is

te
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
sc

ri
b

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

.1
6

1
6

. S
C

V
 W

at
e

r.
 2

0
2

2
. O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

al
 C

h
ar

t.
 h

tt
p

s:
//

yo
u

rs
cv

w
a

te
r.

co
m

/c
a

re
e

rs
/#

o
rg

ch
a

rt
2

. A
cc

e
ss

e
d

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

.

SC
V 

W
at

er
 G

re
en

 T
ea

m
T

h
e

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
G

re
e

n
 T

e
am

 is
 a

 c
ro

ss
-

d
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
ta

l s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 in
 2

0
1

9
. 

W
it

h
 le

ad
e

rs
h

ip
 f

ro
m

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 

M
an

ag
e

r 
an

d
 W

at
e

r 
C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 S

p
e

ci
al

is
t,

 

th
e

 G
re

e
n

 T
e

am
 w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

e
n

g
ag

e
m

e
n

t 
e

ff
o

rt
s 

fo
r 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s.

 

F
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
, t

h
e

 G
re

e
n

 T
e

am
 m

ay
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 

b
e

 in
vo

lv
e

d
 in

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 c
o

m
m

u
te

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 is

su
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 c
o

m
m

u
te

 s
u

rv
e

y 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 in
ve

n
to

ri
e

s.
 T

h
e

 G
re

e
n

 

Te
am

 m
ay

 a
ls

o
 lo

o
k 

to
 b

e
 in

vo
lv

e
d

 in
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e 

e
n

g
ag

e
m

e
n

t 
e

ff
o

rt
s 

ar
o

u
n

d
 w

as
te

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 

an
d

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n

, w
at

e
r 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
, a

n
d

 e
n

e
rg

y 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

s.
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 in
vo

lv
e

d
 in

 p
u

rc
h

as
in

g
 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 c

ap
it

al
 in

ve
st

m
e

n
ts

. 

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
ly

, t
h

e
y 

w
ill

 b
e

 in
vo

lv
e

d
 in

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 u
se

 o
f 

ri
d

e
sh

ar
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

an
d

 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 c

am
p

ai
g

n
s.

 

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

, W
at

er
sh

ed
, 

an
d 

O
ut

re
ac

h
T

h
e

 W
at

e
r 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 W

at
e

rs
h

e
d

, a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
ac

h
 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

is
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

m
an

ag
in

g
 S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r’

s 
w

at
e

r 
re

so
u

rc
e

s.
 T

h
is

 t
e

am
 w

ill
 b

e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 w

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 

m
e

as
u

re
s.

 It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 

le
ad

in
g

 o
u

tr
e

ac
h

, e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, a

n
d

 e
n

g
ag

e
m

e
n

t 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
to

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
an

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

re
so

u
rc

e
 c

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 e

ff
o

rt
s.

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 M
an

ag
e

r 
w

ill
 le

ad
 o

ve
ra

ll 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

, m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

, a
n

d
 u

p
d

at
in

g
 o

f 
th

e 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
.

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
D

e
p

ar
tm

e
n

t 

m
an

ag
e

s 
ca

p
it

al
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

ct
s,

 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 o
ve

rs
e

e
 G

H
G

 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 c
ap

it
al

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

, s
u

ch
 a

s 
o

n
-s

it
e 

re
n

e
w

ab
le

s 
an

d
 b

at
te

ry
 s

to
ra

g
e

 in
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 a

s 

w
e

ll 
as

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 e

ff
o

rt
s.

 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

w
ill

 p
la

y 
a 

cr
it

ic
al

 r
o

le
 in

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 w

as
te

, e
n

e
rg

y,
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

re
so

u
rc

e 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 m
e

as
u

re
s 

at
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

T
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 t
e

am
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 

b
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 

d
e

ca
rb

o
n

iz
e

 o
n

-r
o

ad
, o

ff
-r

o
ad

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ti

o
n

ar
y 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t.

 A
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

w
ill

 le
ad

 t
h

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r’
s 

b
u

ild
in

g
 e

le
ct

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

n
e

rg
y-

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BL

E 
PA

RT
IE

S

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

4
6

TO
C

146

https://yourscvwater.com/careers/


Ti
m

el
in

e

T
h

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

’s
 m

e
as

u
re

s 
an

d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

w
e

re
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

ac
h

 t
h

e
 2

0
3

0
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 t

ar
g

e
t.

 O
ve

r 
ti

m
e

, 
n

e
w

 t
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
ie

s,
 S

ta
te

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
, 

A
g

e
n

cy
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s,

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
w

ill
 c

h
an

g
e

. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
w

ill
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 u

p
d

at
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

 e
ve

ry
 5

 y
e

ar
s 

at
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
. 

F
ig

u
re

 6
.1

 
S

u
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y 
P

la
n

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 T

im
e

li
n

e

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

20
44

20
45

P
h

a
se

 1
(2

0
2

3
–2

0
2

6
)

 P
h

a
se

 2
(2

0
2

6
–2

0
2

9
)

P
h

a
se

 3
(2

0
2

9
–2

0
4

5
)

B
ie

n
n

ia
l 

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

In
v

e
n

to
ri

e
s

(S
ta

rt
in

g
 in

 2
0

2
4

)

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s 

F
o

re
ca

st

(E
ve

ry
 5

 y
e

ar
s,

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 2

0
2

8
)

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
e

p
o

rt

(E
ve

ry
 o

th
e

r 
ye

ar
, s

ta
rt

in
g

 2
0

2
8

)

R
ev

is
e

d
 M

e
a

su
re

s 
a

n
d

 A
ct

io
n

s

(E
ve

ry
 5

 y
e

ar
s,

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 2

0
2

8
)

L
E

G
E

N
D

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

4
7

TO
C

147



T
a

b
le

 6
-1

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 T

im
e

li
n

e
 b

y 
G

H
G

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 A
c

ti
o

n

A
c

ti
o

n
P

h
a

s
e

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 M
e

tr
ic

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 D

C
-1

: 
P

h
a

s
e

 o
u

t 
n

a
tu

ra
l 

g
a

s
 c

o
m

b
u

s
ti

o
n

 a
t 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
fa

c
il

it
ie

s
 r

e
d

u
c

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

g
a

s
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 b

y
 5

0
%

 b
y

 2
0

3
0

D
C

-1
-1

1
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
S

u
rv

e
y 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 

D
C

 1
-2

1
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
, E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
o

lic
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
C

-1
-3

1
-3

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

, E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
N

at
u

ra
l g

as
 u

sa
g

e
 r

e
d

u
ce

d

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 D

C
-2

: 
D

e
c

a
rb

o
n

iz
e

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t,
 r

e
d

u
c

in
g

 f
o

s
s

il
 f

u
e

l 
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c

in
g

 w
it

h
 a

ll
-e

le
c

tr
ic

 o
r 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 f
u

e
ls

 w
h

e
n

 p
o

s
s

ib
le

D
C

-2
-1

1
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 

S
u

rv
e

y 
co

m
p

le
te

d

D
C

-2
-2

1
-2

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

P
la

n
s 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
d

o
p

te
d

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 F

L-
1

: 
D

e
c

a
rb

o
n

iz
e

 S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
v

e
h

ic
le

 f
le

e
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

ze
ro

-e
m

is
s

io
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s

 t
o

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 5

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 f
le

e
t 

b
y

 2
0

3
0

F
L

-1
-1

1
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 

S
tu

d
y 

co
m

p
le

te
d

F
L

-1
-2

1
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
, W

at
e

r 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 W
at

e
rs

h
e

d
 &

 O
u

tr
e

ac
h

P
o

lic
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

F
L

-1
-3

1
-2

E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
, O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
, F

in
an

ce
 a

n
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
E

V
 c

h
ar

g
e

rs
 in

st
al

le
d

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 F

L-
2

: 
U

s
e

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 f
u

e
ls

 t
o

 b
ri

d
g

e
 t

h
e

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 g

a
p

 t
o

 z
e

ro
-e

m
is

s
io

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s

F
L

-2
-1

1
-2

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

D
ie

se
l u

sa
g

e
 r

e
d

u
ce

d

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 E

-1
: 

U
ti

li
ze

 1
0

0
%

 l
o

w
-c

a
rb

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

a
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y

 b
y

 2
0

3
0

E
-1

-1
1

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

, W
at

e
r 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 W

at
e

rs
h

e
d

 &
 O

u
tr

e
ac

h
S

w
it

ch
 t

o
 lo

w
 c

ar
b

o
n

 o
r 

ca
rb

o
n

-f
re

e
 e

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

E
-1

-2
1

-2
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

, F
in

an
ce

 &
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

S
o

la
r 

P
V

 in
st

al
le

d

E
-1

-3
1

-2
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
,  

F
in

an
ce

 &
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

B
at

te
ry

 s
to

ra
g

e
 in

st
al

le
d

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 E

E
-1

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

 a
t 

S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 
fa

c
il

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s 

E
E

-1
-1

1
-3

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 
E

n
e

rg
y 

au
d

it
s 

co
m

p
le

te
d

; E
n

e
rg

y 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 m

ad
e

E
E

-1
-2

1
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
, W

at
e

r 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 W
at

e
rs

h
e

d
 &

 O
u

tr
e

ac
h

P
o

lic
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

E
E

-1
-3

1
-3

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

E
n

e
rg

y 
u

sa
g

e
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
, C

o
st

 s
av

in
g

s

E
E

-1
-4

1
-3

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

E
n

e
rg

y 
u

se
 in

te
n

si
ty

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

, C
o

st
 s

av
in

g
s

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 W

C
-1

: 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

w
a

te
r 

c
o

n
s

e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
, 

re
d

u
c

in
g

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 1
5

%
 b

y
 2

0
3

0
; 

In
c

re
a

s
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
w

a
te

r 
s

u
p

p
ly

W
C

-1
-1

1
-3

W
at

e
r 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 W

at
e

rs
h

e
d

, &
 O

u
tr

e
ac

h
W

at
e

r 
co

n
se

rv
e

d
, C

o
st

 s
av

in
g

s

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 C

R
-1

: 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

 1
5

%
 b

y
 2

0
3

0
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

le
c

tr
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 m

a
c

h
in

e
ry

 (
a

s
 f

e
a

s
ib

le
)

C
R

-1
-1

1
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
o

lic
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 T

R
-1

: 
In

c
e

n
ti

v
iz

e
 s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 c

o
m

m
u

te
s

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 V
M

T
 1

5
%

 b
y

 2
0

3
0

T
R

-1
-1

1
F

in
an

ce
 &

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
, S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

G
re

e
n

 T
e

am
E

m
p

lo
ye

e
 c

o
m

m
u

te
 V

M
T

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

T
R

-1
-2

1
-2

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

, E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
E

V
 p

ar
ki

n
g

 s
p

ac
e

s 
ex

p
an

d
e

d
; E

V
 c

h
ar

g
e

rs
 in

st
al

le
d

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
 W

-1
: 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll

e
d

 w
a

s
te

, 
w

it
h

 a
 f

o
c

u
s

 o
n

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 o

rg
a

n
ic

 w
a

s
te

 7
5

%
 b

y
 2

0
2

5

W
-1

-1
1

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

&
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

, S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
G

re
e

n
 T

e
am

W
as

te
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 w

as
te

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

4
8

TO
C

148



M
O

N
IT

O
RI

N
G

 A
N

D
 R

EP
O

RT
IN

G
 O

N
 P

RO
G

RE
SS

SC
V 

W
at

er
 In

ve
nt

or
y 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
 

Up
da

te
 T

im
el

in
e

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 

M
an

ag
e

r 
w

ill
 

re
p

o
rt

 
re

su
lt

s 
o

n
 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
ac

h
 a

ct
io

n
, d

e
ve

lo
p

 a
n

 u
p

d
at

e
d

 G
H

G
 in

ve
n

to
ry

, a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

to
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
e

ct
o

rs
 a

n
n

u
al

ly
. 

E
ve

ry
 5

 y
e

ar
s,

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 

sh
o

u
ld

 u
p

d
at

e
 t

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 t

o
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 a

n
 u

p
d

at
e

d
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 

fo
re

ca
st

, i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s,
 a

n
d

/o
r 

re
vi

se
d

 m
e

as
u

re
s 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

s.

Ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 s

tr
at

e
g

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

-e
va

lu
at

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

ss
e

ss
e

d
 o

n
 a

 p
e

ri
o

d
ic

 b
as

is
 

to
 g

au
g

e
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 m
ad

e
, 

ad
d

re
ss

 n
e

w
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 b
e

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

s,
 a

n
d

 

e
va

lu
at

e
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
ab

ili
ty

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e 

m
e

as
u

re
s 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 i

n
 C

h
ap

te
r 

5
. 

Ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 s

tr
at

e
g

ie
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

ad
ju

st
e

d
 a

s 
m

o
re

 d
at

a 
an

d
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 b
e

co
m

e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o

 S
C

V
 W

at
e

r.
 T

h
e

y 

sh
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 t

ra
ck

e
d

 c
o

n
g

ru
e

n
tl

y 
w

it
h

 f
u

tu
re

 S
ta

te
 G

H
G

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

, 

to
 e

n
su

re
 a

lig
n

m
e

n
t.

 

An
nu

al
 M

on
ito

ri
ng

 o
f S

C
V 

W
at

er
 G

H
G

 
Re

du
ct

io
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
St

at
us

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

al
ly

 m
o

n
it

o
r s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
. F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
, S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

w
ill

 a
n

n
u

al
ly

 e
va

lu
at

e
 m

e
as

u
re

 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

 m
e

tr
ic

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 t

o
 t

ra
ck

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

n
d

 

p
re

p
ar

e
 fo

r f
u

tu
re

 G
H

G
 in

ve
n

to
ry

 u
p

d
at

e
s.

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y,

 S
ta

te
 le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

, f
u

n
d

in
g

, 

an
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 c
h

an
g

e
s 

o
ve

r 
ti

m
e

 m
ay

 im
p

ac
t 

th
e

 r
at

e
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
m

o
d

if
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
m

e
as

u
re

s 
an

d
 a

ct
io

n
s.

 T
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
S

C
V

 

W
at

e
r’

s 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 M

an
ag

e
r 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 d
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

le
ad

e
rs

 

to
 r

e
-e

va
lu

at
e

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

n
d

 f
ac

to
rs

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ci
n

g
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 e

va
lu

at
io

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 

S
C

V
 W

at
e

r 
m

ay
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

re
vi

si
n

g
 m

e
as

u
re

s 

an
d

 a
ct

io
n

s 
in

 f
u

tu
re

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 u

p
d

at
e

s.
 

A
n

n
u

al
ly

 t
ra

ck
in

g
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 m
e

tr
ic

s 
an

d
 k

e
y 

p
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 i

n
d

ic
at

o
rs

 w
ill

 

al
lo

w
 S

C
V

 W
at

e
r 

to
 q

u
an

ti
ta

ti
ve

ly
 a

ss
e

ss
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

re
ss

. 

A
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 

in
 

C
h

ap
te

r 
2

, 
al

o
n

g
 

w
it

h
 

d
ir

e
ct

 
G

H
G

 
e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s,
 

m
e

tr
ic

s 
ar

o
u

n
d

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
, l

o
n

g
-t

e
rm

 c
o

st
 s

av
in

g
s,

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e 

an
d

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
e

n
g

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
 c

an
 b

e
 u

se
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r’

s 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
e

n
ts

. T
ab

le
 6

-1
 o

u
tl

in
e

s 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 m

e
tr

ic
s 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
to

 e
ac

h
 a

ct
io

n
 id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 in
 C

h
ap

te
r 

5
. S

e
ve

ra
l o

f 
S

C
V

 W
at

e
r’

s 
n

e
ar

-t
e

rm
 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
ce

n
te

r 
ar

o
u

n
d

 
th

e
 

ad
o

p
ti

o
n

, 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 
an

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
o

f 

p
o

lic
ie

s,
 s

tu
d

ie
s,

 a
n

d
 s

u
rv

e
ys

, w
h

ic
h

 c
an

 s
e

t 
th

e
 f

o
u

n
d

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s,
 

re
so

u
rc

e
 

co
n

se
rv

at
io

n
, 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 
co

st
 

sa
vi

n
g

s,
 

an
d

 
in

cr
e

as
e

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 r
e

si
lie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
. 

S
C

V
 

W
at

e
r 

w
ill

 
fa

ci
lit

at
e

 
tr

an
sp

ar
e

n
t 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
o

f 
th

e 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 P
la

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

A
P

D
as

h
, a

 c
lo

u
d

 b
as

e
d

 G
H

G
 in

ve
n

to
ry

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 

an
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

o
o

l. 
C

A
P

D
as

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d

at
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
al

 b
as

is
 w

it
h

 in
ve

n
to

ry
 

d
at

a 
an

d
 m

e
as

u
re

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 m
e

tr
ic

s.
 

D
a

ta
 r

e
v

ie
w

 f
o

r 
p

la
n

 u
p

d
a

ti
n

g
.

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

4
9

TO
C

149



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

150



A.
  

AP
PE

N
D

IC
ES

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 A

 -
  

G
H

G
 In

ve
nt

or
y 

an
d 

Fo
re

ca
st

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

 -
  

Re
gu

la
to

ry
 C

on
te

xt

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 C

 -
  

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
Ac

tio
ns

AD
D

EN
D

U
M

 1 
- 

 
Er

ra
ta

 to
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
ev

ie
w

 D
ra

ft

S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
W

at
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 - 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n

TO
C

5
0

151



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

152



APPENDIX A -  
GHG Inventory and Forecast

 

 

 

SCV Water Sustainability Plan – Appendix A  

Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast  

prepared by 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
26501 Summit Circle  

Santa Clarita, California 91350  

prepared with the assistance of 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
180 North Ashwood Avenue  

Ventura, California 93003 

January 2023 
 

TOC
153



TOC
154



 

 

 

SCV Water Sustainability Plan – Appendix A 

Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 

prepared by 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
26501 Summit Circle  

Santa Clarita, California 91350  

prepared with the assistance of 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
180 North Ashwood Avenue  

Ventura, California 93003 

January 2023 

TOC
155



 

 

 
 

TOC
156



Table of Contents 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast i 

Table of Contents 

1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.1 SCVWA Operations ............................................................................................................. 2 

2 Legislative Context .......................................................................................................................... 4 
2.1 International Climate Action ............................................................................................... 5 
2.2 California Regulations and GHG Emissions Targets ............................................................ 5 
2.3 Legislative Reduction Programs .......................................................................................... 6 

3 GHG Emissions Inventory ............................................................................................................... 8 
3.1 Greenhouse Gases .............................................................................................................. 8 
3.2 GHG Emissions Sources by Scope ....................................................................................... 9 
3.3 Inventory Years .................................................................................................................12 
3.4 Activity Data and Emission factors ....................................................................................12 
3.5 Calculation Methods and Results......................................................................................13 
3.6 Inventory Summary ...........................................................................................................23 
3.7 Back-cast to 1990 ..............................................................................................................25 

4 Forecast ........................................................................................................................................27 
4.1 Forecast Years ...................................................................................................................27 
4.2 Activity Data and Growth Factors .....................................................................................27 
4.3 Business-as-usual Forecast Methods and Results ............................................................33 
4.4 Adjusted Forecast Methods and Results ..........................................................................35 

5 Target Setting................................................................................................................................38 

Tables 
Table 1 Greenhouse Gases ............................................................................................................ 9 
Table 2 Activity Data and Sources ............................................................................................... 13 
Table 3 GHG Emissions from Natural Gas.................................................................................... 14 
Table 4 GHG Emissions from Vehicle Fleet, Equipment, and Generators, and Forklifts ............. 15 
Table 5 GHG Emissions from Electricity ....................................................................................... 15 
Table 6 GHG Emissions from Natural Gas Methane Leakage ...................................................... 16 
Table 7 GHG Emissions from Electricity T&D Losses ................................................................... 16 
Table 8 GHG Emissions from Waste ............................................................................................ 17 
Table 9 Employee Commute Data and GHG Emissions ............................................................... 18 
Table 10 Construction Calculation Data and GHG Emissions for the 2020 Inventory ................... 20 
Table 11 Employee GHG Emissions from Wastewater Generation ............................................... 22 
Table 12 GHG Emissions Inventory Summary ............................................................................... 23 
Table 13 1990 GHG Emissions Back-cast ....................................................................................... 26 

TOC
157



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
ii 

Table 14 Activity Data for Forecasting ........................................................................................... 28 
Table 15 Growth Factors for Forecasting ...................................................................................... 30 
Table 16 Construction Calculation Data and GHG Emissions for Future CIP Projects ................... 31 
Table 17 Business as Usual Forecast GHG Emissions Summary (MT CO2e)................................... 34 
Table 18 Adjusted Forecast GHG Emissions Summary (MT CO2e) ................................................ 35 
Table 19 California RPS-adjusted Electricity Emission factors ....................................................... 37 
Table 20 Minimum GHG Reduction Targets and Estimated Gaps for SCVWA .............................. 38 
Table 21 Per Person Emissions Targets ......................................................................................... 40 

Figures 
Figure 1 Example GHG Emissions by Scope .................................................................................. 11 
Figure 2 GHG Emissions Inventory by Source: 2020 ..................................................................... 24 
Figure 3 GHG Emissions Inventory by Scope: 2020 ...................................................................... 25 
Figure 4 SCVWA Historical and Future Water Demand ................................................................ 29 
Figure 5 Business as Usual (BAU) GHG Emissions Forecast .......................................................... 34 
Figure 6 Adjusted GHG Emissions Forecast .................................................................................. 36 
Figure 7 Target Pathways .............................................................................................................. 39 

 

 

TOC
158



Introduction 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 1 

1 Introduction 

This Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast Report presents the data, methods, and results of a 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions inventory and forecast for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
(SCVWA). Included, is an analysis of findings and trends based on SCVWA’s operations which will 
support the development of potential GHG emissions reduction strategies, implementation benefits, 
and opportunities for mission success in support of SCVWA’s Sustainability & Climate Action Plan.  

The State of California has set state-wide GHG emissions reduction goals to mitigate negative 
climate change1 impacts and transition the state to a low-carbon economy. The State’s Climate 
goals align with the Paris Agreement (2015) goal to limit global warming to 1.5 degrees Celsius (°C) 
compared with pre-industrial levels.2 These goals were reiterated in the Glasgow Climate Pact 
(2021). According to the International Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), limiting global warming to 
1.5°C will require global emissions to reduce by 50% by 2030 and hit carbon neutrality by mid-
century. The International Counsel for Local Environmental Initiatives (ICLEI) recently developed 
climate goals in line with the latest climate science known as Science-based Targets (SBTs) that set a 
goal of a 50% reduction in per capita emissions compared with baseline years ranging from 2016 to 
2019. 

The State has established goals to reduce state-wide GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020, 
(Assembly Bill [AB] 32), and 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, (Senate Bill [SB] 32). The 2020 
goal of AB 32 was achieved in 2016.3 Executive Order (EO) B-55-18 establishes a state-wide goal of 
carbon neutrality by 2045. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is the agency responsible for 
addressing and implementing these goals. In response, many local jurisdictions, including water 
districts, are completing their own GHG inventories, forecasts, and climate action plans to align with 
SB 32 and EO B-55-18 and contribute their fair share of GHG emissions reduction. 

Water and wastewater districts play a fundamental role in reducing local GHG emissions and 
preparing for a more resilient future. SCVWA exercises direct and indirect control over its GHG 
emissions-generating activities (see Section 3.2 for a definition of GHG emissions by Scope). In 
accordance with standard reporting protocols, such as the ICLEI, SCVWA GHG emissions included in 
the inventory are those that fall under some level of the entity’s operational control meaning 
SCVWA has full authority to introduce and implement policies at an operational level which impact 
emissions. For example, SCVWA can reduce or offset energy consumption by using renewable 
energy to power its buildings and facilities and reduce or mitigate fuel consumption in its vehicle 
fleet. Estimating GHG emissions in an inventory enables SCVWA to quantify the major sources of 
GHG emissions produced by its operations and programs and establish an emissions baseline for 
developing a GHG emissions forecast. The forecast allows SCVWA to estimate future emissions 
trends and facilitate target setting for future reductions.  

 
1 The National Aeronautics and Space Administration defines climate change as “a change in the usual weather found in a place” and “a 
change in the earth’s climate.” See https://www.nasa.gov/audience/forstudents/k-4/stories/nasa-knows/what-is-climate-change-k4.html 
2 The Paris Agreement is the first universal, legally binding global climate agreement that was adopted in 2015 and has been ratified by 
191 countries worldwide. The Paris Agreement establishes a roadmap to keep the world under 2°C of warming with a goal of limiting an 
increase of temperature to 1.5°C. 
3 CARB. (2018, July 11). Climate pollutants fall below 1990 levels for first time. Accessed October 2021 from 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/news/climate-pollutants-fall-below-1990-levels-first-time 

TOC
159



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
2 

The inventory conducted for SCVWA includes GHG emissions from activities under the operational 
control of SCVWA for 2020.4 The following GHG-generating activities were included in the inventory: 
natural gas combustion, vehicle fleet and equipment usage, electricity usage, out-of-boundary 
waste processing, construction projects, electricity transmission and distribution, employee 
commute, and wastewater process emissions associated with employee generation at SCVWA 
facilities. From the inventory, Rincon developed a forecast of SCVWA’s GHG emissions to 2025, 
2030, 2035, 2040, and 2045 based on forecasted water delivery demand as defined by the 2020 
Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) Volume 1.5 

The forecast provides an up-to-date projection of how GHG emissions are expected to change for 
SCVWA based on identified capital improvement program (CIP) projects, changes in employee 
telecommute frequency, changes in water demand, and existing State and federal legislation aimed 
at reducing GHG emissions through 2045. As with all GHG inventories and forecasts, the analysis in 
this document relies on the best available data and calculation methodologies. 

Once the inventory and forecast are finalized, Rincon will work with SCVWA to establish GHG 
emissions reduction targets consistent with State goals. GHG reduction targets help to define 
measurable benchmarks to guide the operational commitment to achieve emissions reductions in 
the future. GHG targets are developed relative to baseline emissions levels, and in consideration of 
future emission forecasts and the effects of ongoing and future legislative actions. This document 
introduces target setting and provides recommendations for targets for SCVWA.  

1.1 SCVWA Operations 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCVWA) was formed in 2018 when the Castaic Lake Water 
Agency (CLWA) including its Santa Clarita Water Division (SCWD), and Newhall County Water District 
(NCWD) merged pursuant to State legislation (SB 634, Chapter 833 2017) to form a special act 
entity. When Valencia Water Company (VWC) dissolved, also in 2018, VWC assets were transferred 
to SCVWA. At present SCVWA is made up of three water divisions: Newhall Water Division (NWD), 
Santa Clarita Water Division (SCWD) and Valencia Water Division (VWD).  

In the year 2020, SCVWA delivered over 65,000 acre-feed (AF) of water to over 289,000 customers.6 
As the home of three water divisions, SCVWA operates an extensive water infrastructure system. 
NWD produces over 9,675 gallons of potable water per minute, has four connections to the State 
Water Project (SWP), 15 booster stations and 23 reservoirs with a storage capacity of 25.56 million 
gallons. SCWD operates and maintains approximately 300 miles of pipeline, 48 water tanks with a 
storage capacity of approximately 74 million gallons, 29 pump stations, and 15 groundwater 
production wells The VWD provides potable water to approximately 31,000 customers.7  

SCWVA water resources include imported water, local groundwater, recycled water, and water from 
existing groundwater banking and exchange programs.8 Imported water is provided by the SWP, 

 
4 Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency elected to conduct an inventory using the 2020 data year as this was the most recent year for which 
reliable data was available due to merging of the three water districts. See further discussion of this in Section 3.3. 
5 SCVWA. (2021). 2020 Urban Water Management Plan for Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Volume 1 Final. Accessed October 2021 
from https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/SCVWA-2020-UWMP-Volume-I_FINAL.pdf 
6 Ibid 
7 SCVWA. (n.d.). Our History. Accessed October 2021 from https://yourscvwater.com/history/ 
8 SCVWA. (2021). 2020 Urban Water Management Plan for Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Volume 1 Final. Accessed October 2021 
from https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/SCVWA-2020-UWMP-Volume-I_FINAL.pdf 

TOC
160



Introduction 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 3 

Buena Vista-Rosedale, and Yuba Accord Water. SCVWA currently participates in a number of water 
conservation efforts and offers numerous water conservation educational programs such as school 
programs, gardening classes, newsletters, and online conservation tips and resources. 

TOC
161



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

162



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
4 

2 Legislative Context 

GHG emissions are a cumulative global issue. For example, the emissions from a refinery in 
California will contribute to global warming and climate change impacts across the planet. Thus, 
addressing climate change requires a global effort. Due to this international significance and 
acknowledgement of the anthropogenic impacts on climate, the United Nations convened in 1992 
to create a global strategy to tackle climate change. Since the 1990s, nations across the world have 
gathered to strategically address rising GHG emissions and climate change impacts. Despite the U.S. 
wavering on its international commitments to reduce emissions, California has been a steadfast 
climate leader, upholding the commitments to the Paris Agreement to limit global warming to 1.5°C 
compared with pre-industrial levels and creating actionable strategies to achieve carbon neutrality. 
To limit global warming to 1.5°C, the IPCC has determined global emissions must be reduced by 50% 
by 2030 and hit carbon neutrality by 2050. In response, ICLEI established the SBTs for all local 
governments which set a goal of a 50% reduction in per capita emissions compared with 2018 
levels. The ICLEI adjusts SBTs for different local governments, with jurisdictions in countries with 
higher socio-economic development pursuing larger reductions compared with jurisdictions in 
developing countries. These international agreements and the significance thereof are detailed 
below in Section 3.1, International Climate Action.  

The State of California has developed state-wide legislation and programs to reduce GHG emissions 
in alignment with the Paris Agreement goals and IPCC scientific findings. The State of California, via 
CARB, has issued several guidance documents addressing establishing GHG emissions reduction 
targets for local climate action plans to comply with legislated GHG emissions reductions goals. In 
the first Climate Change Scoping Plan (hereafter referred to as the 2008 Scoping Plan)9, CARB 
encouraged local jurisdictions to adopt a reduction target for community emissions paralleling the 
State commitment to reduce GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020 as set by AB 32. In 2017, CARB 
published California’s 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan (hereafter referred to as the 2017 Scoping 
Plan Update)10 outlining the strategies the State will employ to reach the additional State targets set 
by SB 32 in 2016 to reduce emissions 40% below 1990 levels by 2030. 

Publication of the next Climate Change Scoping Plan in 2022 is expected to include 
recommendations for complying with the carbon neutrality goal established by EO B-55-18 in 2018. 
While currently no State plan exists to achieve the goal set by EO B-55-18, the EO directs CARB to 
ensure future Scoping Plan updates identify and recommend measures to achieve the carbon 
neutrality goal. EOs are binding only on State agencies and are not binding on local water districts. 
However, detailing progress toward this goal demonstrates consistency with the State’s goals and 
that the entity recognizes its fair share to reduce GHG emissions to meet the Paris Agreement 
commitment. In the 2017 Scoping Plan Update, CARB encouraged local governments, including 
special entities, to evaluate and adopt goals which align with the State’s goals. 

 
9 CARB. (2008). Climate Change Scoping Plan a framework for change pursuant to AB 32 The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 
2006. Accessed October 2021 from 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic/cc/scopingplan/document/adopted_scoping_plan.pdf 
10 CARB. (2017). California’ 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan the Strategy for achieving California’s 2030 greenhouse gas target. 
Accessed October 2021 from: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic/cc/scopingplan/scoping_plan_2017.pdf 

TOC
163



Legislative Context 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 5 

2.1 International Climate Action 

1992 United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change 
The primary international regulatory framework for GHG reduction is the United Nations 
Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). The UNFCCC is an international treaty 
adopted in 1992 with the objective of stabilizing atmospheric GHG concentrations to prevent 
disruptive anthropogenic climate change. The framework established non-binding limits on global 
GHG emissions and specified a process for negotiating future international climate-related 
agreements.11  

1997 Kyoto Protocol  
The Kyoto Protocol is an international treaty adopted in 1997 to extend and operationalize the 
UNFCCC. The protocol commits industrialized nations to reduce GHG emissions per country-specific 
targets, recognizing they hold responsibility for existing atmospheric GHG levels. The Kyoto Protocol 
involves two commitment periods during which emissions reductions are to occur, the first of which 
took place between 2008-2012. The second commitment period set new targets and other changes 
but has not been entered into force (meaning it has not gone into effect).12  

2015 The Paris Agreement  
The Paris Agreement, adopted in 2015, is the first universal, legally binding global climate 
agreement and has been ratified by 191 countries worldwide.13 The Paris Agreement establishes a 
roadmap to keep the world under 2°C of warming with a goal of limiting the global increase in 
temperature to 1.5°C. The Paris Agreement does not dictate one specific reduction target, instead 
relying on individual countries to set Nationally Determined Contributions or reductions based on 
gross domestic product and other factors. According to the IPCC, limiting global warming to 1.5°C 
will require global emissions to reduce through 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality by mid-
century.14 

2.2 California Regulations and GHG Emissions Targets 
The State of California has adopted legislation and policies to address climate change, the most 
relevant of which are summarized below. The legislative targets discussed below are further 
supported by sector specific legislation discussed further in the next section. The State’s climate 
goals, as detailed below, were developed to be consistent with the IPCC analysis of global emissions 
trajectory needed to stabilize atmospheric carbon dioxide concentrations at 350 parts per million 

 
11 UNFCCC. (1992). United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change. Accessed October 2021 from: 
https://unfccc.int/files/essential_background/background_publications_htmlpdf/application/pdf/conveng.pdf 
12 UNFCCC. (n.d.). What is the Kyoto Protocol? Accessed October 2021 from: https://unfccc.int/kyoto_protocol 
13 UNFCCC. (n.d.). Paris Agreement - Status of Ratification. Accessed October 2021 from:  https://unfccc.int/process/the-paris-
agreement/status-of-ratification 
14 Allen M.R., Dube O.P., Solecki W., Aragón-Durand F., Cramer W., Humphreys S., Kainuma M., Kala J., Mahowald N., Mulugetta Y., Perez 
R., Wairiu M., and Zickfeld K. (2018): Framing and Context. In: Global Warming of 1.5°C. An IPCC Special Report on the impacts of global 
warming of 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels and related global greenhouse gas emission pathways, in the context of strengthening the 
global response to the threat of climate change, sustainable development, and efforts to eradicate poverty [Masson-Delmotte V., Zhai P., 
Pörtner H.-O., Roberts D., Skea J., Shukla P.R., Pirani A., Moufouma-Okia W., Péan C., Pidcock R., S. Connors S., Matthews J.B.R., Chen Y., 
Zhou X., Gomis M.I., Lonnoy E., Maycock T., Tignor M., and Waterfield T. (eds.)]. In Press. Accessed October 2021 from: 
https://www.ipcc.ch/site/assets/uploads/sites/2/2019/05/SR15_Chapter1_Low_Res.pdf 

TOC
164



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
6 

(ppm) or less.15 As such the State’s goals also align with the Paris Agreement goal to limit the 
increase in global temperature to 1.5°C.  

▪ AB 32, signed by former Governor Schwarzenegger in 2006, known as the Global Warming 
Solutions Act of 2006, requires California’s GHG emissions be reduced to 1990 levels by the year 
2020 (which California achieved early in 2016). The 2008 Scoping Plan identified mandatory and 
voluntary measures to achieve the statewide 2020 GHG emissions limit. 

▪ SB 32, signed by former Governor Brown in 2016, continues the efforts of AB 32 by establishing 
a statewide mid-term GHG emissions reduction goal of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030. 
CARB formally adopted the 2017 Scoping Plan Update in December 2017, laying the roadmap to 
achieve 2030 goals and giving guidance to achieve substantial progress toward 2050 State goals.  

▪ EO B-55-18, signed by former Governor Brown in 2018, created a statewide GHG emissions goal 
of carbon neutrality by 2045. Executive Order S-55-18 identifies CARB as the lead agency to 
develop a framework for implementation and progress tracking toward this goal in the next 
Climate Change Scoping Plan Update. 

The SBTs developed by the ICLEI for the United States are based on a baseline year range of 2016-
2019 and are applicable for jurisdictions without established climate change targets. As California 
has established and been working towards climate goals aligned with the IPCC analysis since 2006, 
California’s climate goals are more conservative than the SBTs. 

2.3 Legislative Reduction Programs 

In line with California’s legislative goals, the State has established additional legislation and 
programs to reduce GHG emissions in various sectors, such as California’s Cap-and-Trade Program16, 
SB 100 (Renewables Portfolio Standard)17, Clean Car Standards, Advanced Clean Fleet Rule18, and 
the Title 24 Building Standards19. Some of these legislated programs are not directly relevant to 
SCVWA and will not affect SCVWA’s forecasted emissions. For instance, the Cap-and-Trade Program 
and Title 24 are anticipated to have minimal impact on SCVWA emissions because SCVWA does not 
plan on constructing new residential or commercial buildings and is not part of the Cap-and-Trade 
Program. The Clean Car Standards would have some impact on SCVWA emissions associated with 
use of fleet vehicles. As such, the emissions relating to the SCVWA fleet will conservatively be 
accounted for during the measure development stage. The Advanced Clean Fleets Rule, developed 
by CARB to transition heavy-duty fleet vehicles to zero-emission vehicles by 2045, will affect SCVWA 
once the Rule goes into effect in 2024.  

The legislative program considered most relevant to SCVWA’s future emissions is California’s 
Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) program. Established in 2002 under SB 1078, enhanced in 2015 
by SB 350, and accelerated in 2018 under SB 100, California’s RPS is one of the most ambitious 

 
15 CARB. (2014). First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan Building the Framework Pursuant to AB 32 The California Solutions Act 
of 2006.Accessed October 2021 from: 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic/cc/scopingplan/2013_update/first_update_climate_change_scoping_plan.pdf 
16 CARB. (n.d.). Cap-and-Trade Program. Accessed December 2021 from: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/cap-and-trade-
program/about 
17 California Energy Commission (CEC). (n.d.). SB 100 Joint Agency Report. Accessed December 2021 from: 
https://www.energy.ca.gov/sb100 
18 CARB. (2021, August 17). Advanced Clean Fleets Fact Sheet. Accessed December 2021 from: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/fact-
sheets/advanced-clean-fleets-fact-sheet 
19 CEC. (n.d.). Building Energy Efficiency Standards – Title 24. Accessed December 2021 from: https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-
topics/programs/building-energy-efficiency-standards 

TOC
165



Legislative Context 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 7 

renewable energy standards in the country. The RPS program requires investor-owned utilities, 
publicly owned utilities, electric service providers, and community choice aggregators to increase 
procurement from eligible renewable energy resources to 50 percent of total procurement by 2026 
and 60 percent of total procurement by 2030. The RPS program further requires these entities to 
increase procurement from GHG emissions-free sources to 100 percent of total procurement by 
2045. The RPS program was incorporated into SCVWA’s GHG forecast by adjusting the electricity 
emission factors based on forecasted procurement for each electricity provider. 

TOC
166



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
8 

3 GHG Emissions Inventory 

This GHG emissions inventory is a significant step to understanding SCVWA’s GHG emissions and 
was specifically developed to serve the following purposes: 

▪ Provide an understanding of the largest sources of emissions by SCVWA and identify the 
greatest opportunities for emissions reductions 

▪ Create a GHG emissions baseline from which SCVWA can establish an emissions forecast, GHG 
emissions reduction targets, and evaluate future progress against those targets 

▪ Develop improved GHG emissions accounting and reporting principles 

The methodology for calculating SCVWA’s inventory is consistent with standard reporting protocols 
from the World Resources Institute, the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, and 
the ICLEI. These protocols are the most widely used methodologies that standardize the 
quantification and reporting of GHG emissions based on operational control by the entity allowing 
for comparison with other entities utilizing these methods. They also include steps to evaluate the 
relevance, completeness, consistency, transparency, and accuracy of data used in the inventory and 
forecast. As SCVWA is a water resource management and water supply entity, only applicable 
emission sources were included in the inventory. For water agencies it is important to consider the 
water-energy nexus and the operational control of the entity to avoid double counting of emissions 
sources. For SCVWA, energy use to convey and distribute water to its customers is captured in utility 
bills the entity is responsible for and does not need to be accounted for seperately as that would 
cause double-counting of emissions from the same source. The following sections contain further 
information on the inventory approach, methods and data used, and results. 

3.1 Greenhouse Gases 

The ICLEI-Local Governments for Sustainability organization suggests inventories assess GHG 
emissions associated with the six internationally-recognized GHGs. This inventory focuses on the 
three GHGs most relevant to SCVWA operations: carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), and nitrous 
oxide (N2O). The other gases (hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluorides) are 
emitted primarily in private sector manufacturing and electricity transmission and are therefore, 
omitted from this inventory. Table 1 also includes the global warming potential (GWP) for each of 
these GHGs. The GWP refers to the ability and degree of each gas to trap heat in the atmosphere.20 
For example, one pound of methane gas has 25 times more heat trapping potential than one pound 
of carbon dioxide gas when quantified over a one-hundred-year residence time. GWPs are used to 
equate all GHGs to a CO2 equivalent (CO2e). GHG emissions for the SCVWA GHG inventory and 
forecast are reported in metric tons (MT) of CO2e. This inventory was developed to be consistent 
with the current published State inventories and therefore uses the 100-year GWP values published 
in the IPCC Physical Science Basis of the Fourth Assessment Report.21  

 
20 According to the United States Environmental Protection Agency, the GWP was developed to allow comparisons of the global warming 
impacts of different gases. Specifically, it is a measure of how much energy the emissions of one ton of a gas will absorb over a given 
period, relative to the emissions of one ton of carbon dioxide (EPA 2017). 
21 IPCC. (2007). Climate Change 2007: Synthesis Report. Contribution of Working Groups I, II and III to the Fourth Assessment Report of 
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [Core Writing Team, Pachauri, R.K and Reisinger, A. (eds.)]. IPCC, Geneva, Switzerland, 
104 pp Accessed October 2021 via online: https://www.ipcc.ch/site/assets/uploads/2018/02/ar4_syr_full_report.pdf 

TOC
167



GHG Emissions Inventory 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 9 

Table 1 Greenhouse Gases 

Greenhouse Gas Source of Emission  Global Warming Potential 

Carbon Dioxide (CO2) Combustion 1 

Methane (CH4) Combustion, anaerobic decomposition of organic waste 
(landfills, wastewater treatment plants), fuel handling 

25 

Nitrous Oxide (N2O) Combustion and wastewater treatment 298 

Source: IPCC. (2007). Climate Change 2007: Synthesis Report. Contribution of Working Groups I, II and III to the Fourth Assessment 
Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [Core Writing Team, Pachauri, R.K and Reisinger, A. (eds.)]. IPCC, Geneva, 
Switzerland, 104 pp Accessed October 2021 via online: https://www.ipcc.ch/site/assets/uploads/2018/02/ar4_syr_full_report.pdf 

3.2 GHG Emissions Sources by Scope 
Standard protocols for organization-focused inventories use a framework that categorizes GHG 
emissions into scopes (i.e., Scope 1, Scope 2, and Scope 3), which account for GHG emissions based 
on the level of operational control the organization has over each GHG emissions source. The 
operational control methodology is well documented by established protocols, such as the Local 
Government Operations Protocol developed by the ICLEI.22 This protocol is widely used and helps 
entities avoid double-counting of GHG emissions and accurately quantify reduction efforts.  

▪ Scope 1 is defined as direct GHG emissions generated from sources that are owned or directly 
controlled by SCVWA.  

▪ Scope 2 refers to GHG emissions indirectly generated due to the consumption of purchased 
electricity, steam, heating, or cooling.  

▪ Scope 3 refers to other indirect GHG emissions not covered under Scope 2 which are associated 
with sources not directly owned or controlled by SCVWA but are fundamental to the 
organization’s operation.  

A visualization of each Scope category is provided in Figure 1. For consistency with standard 
accounting and reporting protocols, each of the SCVWA GHG emissions sources were categorized by 
scope and included in the inventory: 

▪ Scope 1 
 Natural gas – emissions from natural gas delivered by Southern California Gas Company 

(SCG) 
 SCVWA vehicle fleet and equipment – vehicle fleet emissions from diesel, gasoline, and 

propane usage 
 SCVWA generators – emissions from diesel-fueled generators 

▪ Scope 2 
 Electricity – emissions from electricity delivered by Southern California Edison (SCE) 

 
22 ICLEI. (2010). Local Government Operations Protocol for the quantification and reporting of greenhouse gas emissions inventories. 
Version 1.1. Accessed November 2021 from: https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/protocols/localgov/pubs/lgo_protocol_v1_1_2010-05-03.pdf.  

TOC
168



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
10 

▪ Scope 3 
 Methane leakage – methane leakage associated with the delivery of natural gas from SCG 
 Electricity transmission and distribution (T&D) losses– T&D losses associated with delivered 

electricity from SCE 
 Waste – emissions from waste generated by all SCVWA office buildings and facilities 
 Employee commute – emissions from vehicles used by employees to commute to and from 

SCVWA campuses or facilities 
 Construction – emissions associated with historical construction projects affecting SCVWA 

facilities during 2020 
 Wastewater—process emissions and indirect electricity emissions associated with 

wastewater treatment from wastewater generation by employees at SCVWA facilities23 

 

 
23 Since SCVWA does not directly control the wastewater treatment plants treating the water, wastewater emissions are included in 
Scope 3. Emissions include process emissions from treatment and indirect emissions from electricity use. 

TOC
169



GHG Emissions Inventory 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 11 

Figure 1 Example GHG Emissions by Scope24 

 

Excluded GHG Emissions Sources 
The inventory excludes some GHG emissions sources from consideration, as they were not 
considered relevant for SCVWA operations, or were accounted for in other sectors. Refrigerants and 
fire suppressants are an insignificant source of GHG emissions for SCVWA and, therefore, were 
excluded from the inventory. Since SCVWA does not have control over wastewater treatment 
plants, industrial process emissions associated with wastewater treatment were captured under 
Scope 3 sources for wastewater; thereby including only wastewater process, collection, and 
treatment emissions associated with wastewater generated at SCVWA facilities. Production 
emissions (i.e., water produced and supplied) was not differentiated into its own category but 
captured under the Scope 1 and Scope 2 sources, due to its electricity and fuel use. Emissions 
associated with the operations of the State Water Project to provide imported water is not included 
in the inventory. Because no agricultural activities exist under SCVWA operational control, 
agricultural emissions (including enteric fermentation and manure management) were not 
considered relevant for SCVWA and are also excluded. Forestry and other land emissions potentially 
associated with SCVWA properties were also excluded since the SCVWA service territory is mostly in 
urban areas.  

 
24 Figure obtained from the Cambridge Community Development Department website. Accessed October 2021 from: 
https://www.cambridgema.gov/CDD/climateandenergy/greenhousegasemissions. This figure is provided for illustrative purposes only 
and may not directly correspond to operations at SCVWA (e.g., agriculture, forestry, and land use emission do not apply to SCVWA 
operations).  

TOC
170



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
12 

3.3 Inventory Years 

A complete dataset of annual operations and usage is required to conduct a GHG inventory. Due to 
the merger in 2018 creating SCVWA, 2020 is the most recent complete data year and was, 
therefore, used to calculate this GHG inventory and forecast. While 2020 was the start of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, through conversations with SCVWA staff it was determined the COVID-19 
pandemic had relatively little impact on SCVWA operations due to its position as an essential service 
provider. During the data analysis, particularly analysis of transportation emissions, COVID-19 
impacts were considered and addressed. Additional information can be found in the following 
sections. 

Generally, methodologies for setting GHG emissions targets at a minimum establish a percent 
reduction from 1990 emissions levels consistent with the State targets in SB 32 and EO-B-55-18. 
Establishing a 1990 baseline GHG inventory for SCVWA is not feasible since SCVWA as it operates 
today did not exist in 1990. SCVWA was created by the merger of multiple districts that joined at 
various times. Therefore, sufficient data to establish an activity-based inventory for the year 1990 
does not exist. Also, the State’s 2020 GHG emissions value is not yet published and is anticipated to 
be significantly impacted by COVID-19. Therefore, in the absence of 1990 activity data, Rincon 
utilized the state-wide California 2019 emissions and the SCVWA 2020 inventory to back-cast 
emissions and establish an estimated 1990 baseline. As SCVWA did not exist in 1990 as it does 
today, the 1990 baseline established is representative of SCVWA emissions had SCVWA existed in 
1990. The 1990 baseline will aid in the development of a 2030 target which is reasonably aligned 
with State goals. More details on the back-casting methods and assumptions are provided in Section 
3.7. 

3.4 Activity Data and Emission factors 
In general, emissions are calculated using activity data and emission factors according to the 
following equation: 

𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴 𝐷𝐷𝐷𝐷𝐴𝐴𝐷𝐷 × 𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐴𝐴𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐴𝐴𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸 𝐹𝐹𝐷𝐷𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐸𝐸𝐹𝐹 = 𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺 𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐴𝐴𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐴𝐴𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸 

Activity data refer to the relevant measured or estimated energy use or other GHG emissions-
generating process such as fuel consumption or metered annual electricity consumption. Activity 
data for each year of the inventory are geographically and temporally bounded by the location 
(SCVWA operational boundary) and year of operation (2020). Emission factors are observation-
based conversion factors used to equate activity data to generated emissions. Emission factors are 
activity-specific, and are usually expressed in terms of emissions per unit of activity data (e.g., 
pounds of CO2e per megawatt-hour). The data sources used to complete this inventory are 
summarized by Scope and source in Table 2. Unless otherwise specified, data used was for the year 
2020 and within SCVWA’s operational control. Emission factors used and their sources are detailed 
under the following sections. 

TOC
171



GHG Emissions Inventory 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 13 

Table 2 Activity Data and Sources 

Scope and Source Activity Data Unit Data Source 

Scope 1: Direct Emissions 

Natural gas Annual natural gas usage for all 
SCVWA buildings and facilities 

therms SCG billing history 

Vehicle fleet and equipment 
(including generators and 
forklifts) 

Annual fuel usage (diesel, 
gasoline, and propane) 

gallons Fuel usage reports provided by SCVWA 

Scope 2: Indirect Emissions 

Grid Supplied Electricity Annual electricity usage for all 
SCVWA buildings and facilities 

kWh SCE billing history 

Scope 3: Indirect Emissions 

Methane Leakage Calculated as a percentage of 
natural gas delivered 

% Alvarez et al. 201825; Fischer et al. 
201826 

Electricity Transmission & 
Distribution losses 

Calculated as a percentage of 
electricity usage 

% United States Environmental 
Protection Agency Emissions & 
Generation Resource Integrated 
Database (eGRID), SCE billing history 

Waste Annual waste generated by all 
SCVWA buildings and facilities 

tons SCVWA waste disposal report 

Employee commute Mileage by commute method Miles SCVWA commute surveys and 
employee zip code data 

Construction Activities and scale associated 
capital improvement projects 
approved by 2020 (projects 
occurring 2021-2026) 

various SCVWA list of construction projects, 
SCVWA-provided CEQA documents  

Wastewater Employee population Persons Employee commute survey and 
employee population data 

kWh = kilowatt-hours; SCG = Southern California Gas; SCE = Southern California Edison; CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act 

3.5 Calculation Methods and Results 

Scope 1 

Natural Gas 

Emissions from natural gas were calculated by multiplying the activity data from the SCG billing 
history (therms of natural gas used by all SCVWA buildings and facilities) by the emission factor for 

 
25 Alvarez R., Zavala-Araiza D., Lyon D., Allen D. Barkley Z., Brandt A., Davis K., Herndon S., Jacob D., Karion A., Kort E.; Lamb B., Lauvaux 
T., Maasakkers J., Marchese A., Omara M., Pacala S., Peischl J., Robinson A., and Hamburg S. (2018). Assessment of methane emissions 
from the U.S. oil and gas supply chain. Accessed December 2021 from: Science. 361. eaar7204. 10.1126/science.aar7204. 
26 Fischer M.L., Chan W.R., Delp W., Jeong S., Rapp V., and Zhu Z. (2018). An Estimate of Natural Gas Methane Emissions from California 
Homes. Accessed December 2021 from: https://pubs.acs.org/doi/pdf/10.1021/acs.est.8b03217 

TOC
172



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
14 

natural gas (Table 3). The emission factor for natural gas (MT CO2e/therm) was determined based 
on a United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) emission factor.27 

Table 3 GHG Emissions from Natural Gas 

Year 2020 

Activity Data (therms) 35,931 

EF (MT CO2e/therm)1 0.00531  

Emissions (MT CO2e) 191 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. (April 2021). Emissions Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories. Accessed September 2021 
from online: https://www.epa.gov/climateleadership/ghg-emission-factors-hub 
EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

Vehicle Fleet and Equipment 

Emissions from the SCVWA vehicle fleet, portable equipment, generators, and forklifts were 
calculated by multiplying the activity data from the fuel usage reports (gallons of diesel, gasoline, 
and propane) by the emission factor for each fuel type (Table 4 This database provides mobile 
emission factors for fuel in grams per gallon for CO2 but grams per mile for CH4 and N2O. Therefore, 
emission factors for CH4 and N2O were converted to grams per gallon based on the average fuel 
efficiency of each vehicle type. Each vehicle’s model year was used to calculate average miles per 
gallon (MPG) for diesel heavy-duty and light-duty vehicles as well as gasoline powered passenger, 
light-duty, and heavy-duty vehicles. Average fuel economy (in MPG) was obtained from the U.S. 
Department of Energy’s Alternative Fuels Data Center. The fuel economy data was applied to the 
EPA’s GHG emissions factors for mobile gasoline and diesel to calculate an emission factor for each 
vehicle class. Then, weighted emissions factors for each fuel type were calculated based on the 
percentage of each vehicle type found in the SCVWA fleet. The final weighted emission factors are 
found in Table 4 below.  

Table 4). If compressed natural gas or other liquified petroleum gases are to be used in the future 
this can be tracked and added to the inventory; however, current data did not include these fuels 
are in use and, therefore, were not included in this inventory. The emission factors for diesel, 
gasoline, and propane (MT CO2e/gallon) were determined based on an EPA emission factor 
database.28 This database provides mobile emission factors for fuel in grams per gallon for CO2 but 
grams per mile for CH4 and N2O. Therefore, emission factors for CH4 and N2O were converted to 
grams per gallon based on the average fuel efficiency of each vehicle type. Each vehicle’s model 
year was used to calculate average miles per gallon (MPG) for diesel heavy-duty and light-duty 
vehicles as well as gasoline powered passenger, light-duty, and heavy-duty vehicles. Average fuel 
economy (in MPG) was obtained from the U.S. Department of Energy’s Alternative Fuels Data 
Center.29 The fuel economy data was applied to the EPA’s GHG emissions factors for mobile gasoline 
and diesel to calculate an emission factor for each vehicle class. Then, weighted emissions factors 
for each fuel type were calculated based on the percentage of each vehicle type found in the 
SCVWA fleet. The final weighted emission factors are found in Table 4 below.  

 
27 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. (April 2021). Emissions Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories. Accessed September 2021 
from: https://www.epa.gov/climateleadership/ghg-emission-factors-hub  
28 Ibid 
29 U.S. Department of Energy, Alternative Fuels Data Center. (2020). Average Fuel Economy by Major Vehicle Category. Accessed 
December 2021 from: https://afdc.energy.gov/data/10310 

TOC
173



GHG Emissions Inventory 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 15 

Table 4 GHG Emissions from Vehicle Fleet, Equipment, and Generators, and Forklifts 

Year 2019 

Diesel (stationary)  
Activity Data (gallons) 1,586 

EF (MT CO2e/gallon)1 0.0102 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 16 
Diesel (mobile)  
Activity Data (gallons) 9,230 

EF (MT CO2e/gallon)1 0.0103 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 95 
Gasoline (mobile)  
Activity Data (gallons) 27,200 

EF (MT CO2e/gallon)1 0.0089 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 241 
Propane  
Activity Data (gallons) 150 

EF (MT CO2e/gallon)1 0.0057 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 0.86 

Total Emissions (MT CO2e) 353 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. (April 2021). Emissions Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories. Accessed September 2021 
from online: https://www.epa.gov/climateleadership/ghg-emission-factors-hub. 
EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

Scope 2 

Grid Supplied Electricity 

Emissions from electricity were calculated by multiplying the activity data from the SCE billing 
history (kWh of electricity used by all SCVWA buildings and facilities) by the emission factor for SCE 
electricity for 2020 (Table 5). The emission factor for SCE electricity was determined based on SCE’s 
2020 Sustainability Report.30  

Table 5 GHG Emissions from Electricity 

Year 2020 

SCE  
Electricity (kWh) 57,085,480 

EF (MT CO2e/kWh)1 0.000271 

Total Emissions (MT CO2e) 15,484  
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 Based on Edison International 2020 Sustainability Report. 
kWh = kilowatt-hour; EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

 
30 Edison International. (2020). 2020 Sustainability Report. Accessed October 2021 from: 
https://www.edison.com/home/sustainability/sustainability-report.html 

TOC
174



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
16 

Scope 3 

Methane Leakage 

In addition to direct natural gas consumption, emissions are also released from methane leakage 
both at the natural gas compressor stations and from leakage at the meter. Based on recent studies, 
there is a leakage rate of approximately 2.8% of natural gas delivered.31,32 GHG emissions from 
methane leakage were calculated by multiplying the quantity of leaked natural gas by the emission 
factor for fugitive emissions from the natural gas distribution system (Table 6).  

Table 6 GHG Emissions from Natural Gas Methane Leakage 
Year 2020 

Natural Gas (Therms) 35,932 

Methane Leakage (Therms)1 1,006 

EF (MT CO2e/Therm)2 0.04689  

Total Emissions (MT CO2e) 47 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 Based on peer reviewed studies, 2.8% of natural gas delivered is leaked from compressor stations and at the end user meter. By 
reducing natural gas usage, there will be a proportionate decrease in the leakage of natural gas.  
2 Calculated by multiplying cubic meter of natural gas per therm (2.776) [source: https://www.abraxasenergy.com/energy-
resources/toolbox/conversion-calculators/energy/] by density of natural gas (0.000712 MT/ cubic meter) [source: 
https://www.unitrove.com/engineering/tools/gas/natural-gas-density] by methane content of natural gas (94.9%) [source: North 
American Energy Standards Board]. Adjusted for GWP of CH4. 
EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

Electricity T&D Losses 

Electricity T&D losses were assumed to be 5.3% percent of total electricity usage in 2020, based on 
the U.S. EPA’s Emissions & Generation Resource Integrated Database.33 Emissions from T&D losses 
were calculated by multiplying the calculated activity data (kWh of electricity from T&D losses) by 
the electricity emission factor for 2020 (Table 7).  

Table 7 GHG Emissions from Electricity T&D Losses  

Year 2020 

SCE Emissions 
Electricity (kWh) 57,085,480 

T&D loss (kWh)1 3,025,530 

EF (MT CO2e/kWh)2 0.000271 

Total Emissions (MT CO2e) 821 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 Based on EPA eGRID CAMX T&D loss factor of 5.3 percent in 2020. 

 
31 Alvarez R., Zavala-Araiza D., Lyon D., Allen D. Barkley Z., Brandt A., Davis K., Herndon S., Jacob D., Karion A., Kort E.; Lamb B., Lauvaux 
T., Maasakkers J., Marchese A., Omara M., Pacala S., Peischl J., Robinson A., and Hamburg S. (2018). Assessment of methane emissions 
from the U.S. oil and gas supply chain. Accessed December 2021 from: Science. 361. eaar7204. 10.1126/science.aar7204. 
32 Fischer M.L., Chan W.R., Delp W., Jeong S., Rapp V., and Zhu Z. (2018). An Estimate of Natural Gas Methane Emissions from California 
Homes. Accessed December 2021 from: https://pubs.acs.org/doi/pdf/10.1021/acs.est.8b03217 
33 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. (2020). Emissions & Generation Resource Integrated Database: eGRID Summary Tables 2020. 
Accessed January 2022 from: https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2022-01/egrid2020_summary_tables.pdf 

TOC
175



GHG Emissions Inventory 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 17 

2 Based on Edison International 2020 Sustainability Report. 
kWh = kilowatt-hour; T&D = transmission and distribution; EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

Waste 

GHG emissions associated with the waste sector result from the collection and transportation of 
waste to landfills, the decomposition of waste at a landfill, combustion of waste, and waste 
processing equipment. SCVWA provided annual waste data generated at its facilities characterized 
by waste type: trash, recycling, green waste, metal scrap, and oil waste. The following waste 
categories were respectively defined under the EPA’s waste categorization terminology: mixed 
municipal solid waste, mixed recyclables, green waste, and scrap metal. Oil waste was not included 
in the calculations as this waste is not disposed of at a traditional waste facilities and data is limited 
on appropriate emissions factors due to various disposal methods. Emissions from waste were 
calculated by applying appropriate emissions factors from the EPA’s Scope 3 Category 5: Waste 
Generated in Operations to the total short tons disposed of each respective waste type.34 Table 8 
contains the solid waste data and resulting GHG emissions values. 

Table 8 GHG Emissions from Waste 

Year 2020 

Mixed Municipal Solid Waste 
Activity Data (short tons disposed) 630 

EF (MT CO2e/short ton)1 0.52 

GHG Emissions (MT CO2e) 328 
Mixed Recyclables 
Activity Data (short tons disposed) 135 

EF (MT CO2e/short ton)2 0.09 

GHG Emissions (MT CO2e) 12 
Green Waste 
Activity Data (short tons disposed) 260 

EF (MT CO2e/short ton)3 0.33 

GHG Emissions (MT CO2e) 86 
Scrap Metal 
Activity Data (short tons disposed) 18.6 

EF (MT CO2e/short ton)4 0.23 

GHG Emissions (MT CO2e) 4 

Total Waste GHG Emissions (MT CO2e) 430 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 Emissions factor for Mixed MSW (landfilled) from EPA GHG Emissions, Table 9.  
2 Emissions factor for Mixed Recyclables (recycled) from EPA GHG Emissions, Table 9.  
3 Emissions factor for Greenwaste (yard trimmings, landfilled) from EPA GHG Emissions, Table 9.  
4 Emissions factor for Metal Scrap (recycled) from EPA GHG Emissions, Table 9.  
EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

 
34 EPA GHG Emission Factors Hub - Table 9 - Scope 3, Category 5 & 12: Waste Generated in Operations & End of Life Treatment of Sold 
Products. Accessed October 2021 from: https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2021-04/documents/emission-factors_apr2021.pdf  

TOC
176



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
18 

Employee Commute 

Emissions from employee commuting were calculated using the results from the SCVWA employee 
commute survey indicating the vehicle fuel type and one-way commute distance. The responses (93 
responses) to the survey were scaled to the entire employee population in 2020 (218 employees) to 
estimate the number of employees using diesel-fueled, hybrid, gasoline-fueled or EV vehicles. The 
mean one-way commute distance from the survey results was assumed for all trips, 14.7 miles, and 
doubled to account for roundtrip commute distance. The CARB Emission Factor 2021 model 
(EMFAC2021) was used to estimate 2020 emissions factors (MT CO2e per mile) by fuel type.35 Table 
9 contains the employee commute data, emissions factors, and the resulting GHG emissions.  

Table 9 Employee Commute Data and GHG Emissions  
2020 

Employee Commute Survey Statistics1  
Mean Commute (one-way, miles) 14.7 

Average Days Commuted (pre-flexible work plan) 4.8 

Days commuted (days) 241 
Hybrid Vehicles  
Percent of employee commute (%) 6% 

Vehicle Miles Traveled (miles/year) 99,921 

EF (MT CO2e/mile) 0.000317 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 32 
Electric Vehicles  
Percent of employee commute (%) 3% 

Vehicle Miles Traveled (miles/year) 49,961 

EF (kWh/mile) 0.361432 

Electricity Consumed (kWh) 18,057 

EF (MT CO2e/kWh)2 0.000271 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 5 
Gasoline Vehicles  
Percent of employee commute (%) 83% 

Vehicle Miles Traveled (miles/year) 1,282,324 

EF (MT CO2e/mile) 0.000384 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 492 
Diesel Vehicles  
Percent of employee commute (%) 5% 

Vehicle Miles Traveled (miles/year) 83,268 

EF (MT CO2e/mile) 0.00136 

Emissions (MT CO2e) 113 

Total VMT (miles) 1,515,474 
Total Emissions (MT CO2e)5 642 

 
35 CARB. (2021) Emissions Inventory, EMFAC 2021 model v1.01.1. Accessed October 2021 from: https://arb.ca.gov/emfac/emissions-
inventory/43c4fb407b5290c4aa6bc403e03c79c39ed6224a 

TOC
177



GHG Emissions Inventory 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 19 

Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 Calculated based on an estimate of number of trips completed per fuel type per week (from employee commute survey) and average 
commute distance per employee per week. It is assumed that employees work 50 weeks a year to account for a 2-week vacation. 
2 Southern California Edison Emissions Factor. See Grid Supplied Electricity above.  
EF = emission factor; EV = electric vehicle, VMT = vehicle miles traveled; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent; kWh = 
kilowatt-hour 

Construction 

Emissions from construction were estimated using Capital Improvement Project (CIP) data provided 
by SCVWA for all historical projects occurring in 2019 through 2021. Relevant activity data (e.g., 
linear feet of pipeline, acres of demolition) was used to model construction emissions using the 
California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA) California Emissions Estimator Model 
(CalEEMod). Due to the smaller scale of many projects and the lack of a project-specific air 
quality/GHG emissions study, the calculation notes column in Table 10 includes various conservative 
assumptions used to quantify the GHG emissions of each project. Once total emissions were 
calculated for historical CIP projects over the three-year period an annualized emissions value was 
calculated by dividing the total by the three-year span; the resulting emissions totals are included in 
Table 10. Additionally, Table 10 includes the project type, SCVWA-assigned project name, calculated 
emissions, and calculation notes. 

TOC
178



Sa
nt

a 
C

la
rit

a 
V

al
le

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
 

 20
 

Ta
bl

e 
10

 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Ca

lcu
la

tio
n 

Da
ta

 a
nd

 G
HG

 E
m

iss
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 2
02

0 
In

ve
nt

or
y 

Pr
oj

ec
t T

yp
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e 

Em
iss

io
ns

  
(M

T 
CO

2e
) 

Ca
lcu

la
tio

n 
No

te
s 

Re
cy

cle
d 

W
at

er
 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
W

es
t R

an
ch

 
Re

cy
cle

d 
W

at
er

 
M

ai
n 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
(P

ha
se

 2
D)

 

15
0 

SC
VW

A 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
Fi

na
l I

SM
ND

 fo
r t

he
 W

es
t R

an
ch

 R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
hi

ch
 in

clu
de

d 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 d

at
a 

us
in

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 V

er
sio

n 
20

16
.3

.1
. F

or
 P

ha
se

 2
D 

of
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
th

e 
20

17
 a

nn
ua

l G
HG

 E
m

iss
io

ns
 to

ta
le

d 
37

.4
93

4 
M

T 
CO

2e
. S

in
ce

 th
e 

qu
an

tif
ica

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
IS

M
D 

on
ly

 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 2

01
7,

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 to
ta

l G
HG

 e
m

iss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

m
ul

tip
lie

d 
tim

es
 fo

ur
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

d 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
da

ta
 o

f 2
02

1 
(fo

ur
-y

ea
r t

im
e 

sp
an

). 
It 

is 
un

de
rs

to
od

 th
at

 th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
w

ill
 li

ke
ly

 v
ar

y 
am

on
gs

t t
he

se
 fo

ur
 y

ea
rs

, b
ut

 th
is 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 y
ie

ld
s a

 co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

GH
G 

em
iss

io
ns

 
es

tim
at

e 
to

 re
m

ai
n 

co
ns

ist
en

t w
ith

 a
ll 

CI
P 

qu
an

tif
ica

tio
n.

  

Re
cy

cle
d 

W
at

er
 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
Vi

st
a 

Ca
ny

on
 

Re
cy

cle
d 

W
at

er
 

M
ai

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

(P
ha

se
 2

B)
 

20
4 

Pr
oj

ec
t e

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

oj
ec

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
ty

pe
 o

f 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 S
CV

W
A 

in
di

ca
te

d 
ty

pe
 o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

in
clu

de
d 

on
-s

ite
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ip
el

in
e 

tr
en

ch
in

g,
 an

d 
re

qu
ire

d 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

w
o 

ye
ar

s. 
To

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

es
tim

at
e 

an
d 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r t
he

 la
ck

 o
f t

re
nc

hi
ng

 a
re

a 
da

ta
 

ob
ta

in
ed

, i
t w

as
 a

ss
um

ed
 th

e 
ar

ea
 tr

en
ch

ed
 w

as
 0

.2
6 

ac
re

, a
s s

ta
te

d 
in

 th
e 

CI
P 

da
ta

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 
SC

VW
A 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
pi

pe
lin

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s. 
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t U
pg

ra
de

s 
Va

lle
y 

Ce
nt

er
 W

el
l 

PF
AS

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
M

at
er

ia
l P

ur
ch

as
e 

NA
 

Pr
oj

ec
t e

m
iss

io
ns

 fo
r p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
of

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 n
eg

lig
ib

le
 a

nd
 w

er
e 

no
t q

ua
nt

ifi
ed

. I
t 

w
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s p
ro

je
ct

 w
er

e 
us

ed
 in

 th
e 

E 
W

el
ls 

PF
AS

 re
m

ov
al

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 (i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le

 1
6)

.  

Tr
ea

tm
en

t U
pg

ra
de

s 
Va

lle
y 

Ce
nt

er
 W

el
l 

PF
AS

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 S
ite

 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 

8 
Ba

se
d 

on
 S

CV
W

A 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r t
he

 E
 W

el
ls 

PF
AS

 R
em

ov
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s (
di

sc
us

se
d 

in
 T

ab
le

 
16

), 
it 

w
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

Va
lle

y 
Ce

nt
er

 W
el

l P
FA

S 
Gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t s
ite

 w
as

 o
f s

im
ila

r 
siz

e.
 P

ro
je

ct
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 a
ss

um
in

g 
sit

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
w

as
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 o

n-
sit

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

ve
r 2

 a
cr

es
.  

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
Co

m
m

er
ce

 C
en

te
r 

Dr
iv

e 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
20

4 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 fo

r “
pi

pe
lin

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
es

 p
ro

je
ct

” w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
da

ta
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

SC
VW

A,
 th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
vo

lv
ed

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ty

pe
s o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
: s

oi
l d

ist
ur

ba
nc

e 
vi

a 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

fo
r v

au
lts

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
tr

en
ch

in
g 

fo
r i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 p
ip

el
in

e.
 A

fte
r r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 C

IP
 d

at
a,

 th
es

e 
pi

pe
lin

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
er

e 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
er

va
tiv

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
: 6

 a
cr

es
 si

te
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
26

1,
36

0 
ft2  o

f t
re

nc
hi

ng
 fo

r  
pi

pe
lin

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
w

he
re

 th
e 

w
id

th
 w

as
 co

ns
er

va
tiv

el
y 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
42

”. 
 

 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
M

ag
ic 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
Ph

as
e 

4 
20

4 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
M

ag
ic 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
Ph

as
e 

5 
20

4 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
M

ag
ic 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
Ph

as
e 

6A
 

20
4 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
M

ag
ic 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
Ph

as
e 

6B
 

22
6 

Pr
oj

ec
t e

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
sim

ila
rly

 q
ua

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s d
es

cr
ib

ed
 a

bo
ve

. B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 

SC
VW

A,
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

t i
nv

ol
ve

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ty
pe

s o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

: s
oi

l d
ist

ur
ba

nc
e 

vi
a 

ex
ca

va
tio

n 
fo

r 

TO
C

179



G
HG

 E
m

iss
io

ns
 In

ve
nt

or
y 

 G
re

en
ho

us
e 

G
as

 In
ve

nt
or

y 
an

d 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

21
 

Pr
oj

ec
t T

yp
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e 

Em
iss

io
ns

  
(M

T 
CO

2e
) 

Ca
lcu

la
tio

n 
No

te
s 

va
ul

ts
, o

pe
n 

tr
en

ch
in

g 
fo

r i
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 a
nd

 p
av

in
g 

of
 a

n 
ac

ce
ss

 ro
ad

. T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 
em

iss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 u
sin

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 6
 a

cr
es

 
sit

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n,
 2

61
,3

60
 ft

2  o
f t

re
nc

hi
ng

 fo
r p

ip
el

in
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

w
he

re
 th

e 
w

id
th

 w
as

 
co

ns
er

va
tiv

el
y 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
42

”, 
an

d 
68

,6
40

 ft
2  a

cc
es

s r
oa

d 
pa

vi
ng

 (0
.5

-m
ile

 le
ng

th
, 2

6 
fe

et
 

w
id

e)
.  

 

Ta
nk

 A
dd

iti
on

s a
nd

 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
W

es
tr

id
ge

 R
ec

yc
le

d 
Ta

nk
 U

pg
ra

de
s 

Po
ta

bl
e 

M
ak

e-
up

 
Ab

ov
e 

Gr
ou

nd
 

Pi
pi

ng
 

83
 

 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 u
sin

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

pr
oj

ec
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

ty
pe

 o
f 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 in
vo

lv
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

CV
W

A.
 P

ro
je

ct
 p

ha
se

s i
nc

lu
de

d 
de

m
ol

iti
on

, s
ite

 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n,
 g

ra
di

ng
, b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

 p
av

in
g,

 a
nd

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 co

at
in

g.
 T

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
 w

as
 

ca
lcu

la
te

d 
as

su
m

in
g 

10
2 

fe
et

 o
f 1

2-
in

ch
 p

ip
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

an
d 

a 
50

-fo
ot

 x 
20

-fo
ot

 d
riv

ew
ay

, t
ot

al
in

g 
1,

45
2 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et  o
f p

ro
je

ct
 a

re
a.

 T
he

 d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 m
as

on
ry

 w
al

l w
as

 ca
lcu

la
te

d 
as

su
m

in
g 

a 
th

ick
ne

ss
 o

f 1
 fo

ot
, h

ei
gh

t o
f 5

 fe
et

 a
nd

 le
ng

th
 o

f 1
02

 fe
et

, c
or

re
la

tin
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
he

 
pi

pe
lin

e.
  

Hi
st

or
ica

l C
IP

 P
ro

je
ct

s T
ot

al
 E

m
iss

io
ns

 
1,

48
7 

To
ta

l G
HG

 e
m

iss
io

ns
 q

ua
nt

ifi
ed

 fr
om

 a
ll 

hi
st

or
ica

l p
ro

je
ct

s t
ha

t o
cc

ur
re

d 
fro

m
 2

01
9-

20
21

. 

An
nu

al
ize

d 
Em

iss
io

ns
 

49
6 

An
nu

al
ize

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
em

iss
io

ns
 v

al
ue

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 d

iv
id

in
g 

th
e 

to
ta

l h
ist

or
ica

l e
m

iss
io

ns
 b

y 
th

e 
th

re
e-

ye
ar

 sp
an

 (2
01

9-
20

21
). 

 

No
te

s: 
Va

lu
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ro

un
de

d 
he

re
in

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 u

p 
ex

ac
tly

. 

TO
C

180



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
22 

Wastewater Processes 

The wastewater from SCVWA campuses is treated by two wastewater reclamation plants (WRPs), 
the Saugus WRP and the Valencia WRP, both of which treat to tertiary levels with varying influent 
loads and Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5). To quantify GHG emissions from the WRPs (Table 
11), Rincon used the activity data from SCVWA, National Pollutant Discharge Permits 36,37, and 
followed wastewater (WW) methods from ICLEI38: 

▪ WW.7 to estimate process N2O emissions from wastewater treatment plants with nitrification or 
denitrification 

▪ WW.12.a to characterize fugitive N2O emissions from effluent discharge to aquatic 
environments 

▪ WW.15 to calculate upstream emissions associated with wastewater collection and treatment 

Table 11 Employee GHG Emissions from Wastewater Generation 

Year 2020 

Population Served 218 

N2O Process Emissions (Nitrification/Denitrification) 
(MT CO2e)1 

0.57 

N2O Emissions from Effluent Discharge (MT CO2e)2 3.39 
Total Process Emissions (MT CO2e) 3.96 
Per Capita Use (gallon/day/capita)3,4 100 

Collection Process Energy Intensity (kWh/MG)5 280 

Wastewater Treatment Process Energy Intensity 
(kWh/MG)6 

16,000 

EF (MT CO2e/kWh)6 0.000271 

Collection & Treatment Emissions (MT CO2e) 25.03 
Total Wastewater Emissions (MT CO2e) 30 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1.Calculated using ICLEI Method WW.7 and all applicable default values.  
2 Calculated using ICLEI Method WW.12.a and all applicable default values.  
3 ICLEI default factor for California, table WW.15.1. 
4 The annual per capita use was adjusted for the total days workers were using facilities in 2020 (260 days annually).  
5 ICLEI default for collection process energy intensity, median value used for a conservative estimate. 
6 ICLEI default for wastewater treatment facilities with an operation capacity of 20-50 MG.  
7 Emissions factor converted from SCE’s 2019 grid emissions factor of 512 pounds CO2e/MWh. 
N2O = nitrous oxide; EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent; kWh = kilowatt-hour; MG = million gallons 

 
36 California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Los Angeles Region. (2015). Waste Discharge Requirements for The Santa Clarita 
Valley Sanitation District of Los Angeles County, Valencia Water Reclamation Plant. Accessed November 2021 from: 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/board_decisions/tentative_orders/individual/npdes/Santa_Clarita_Valley_Sanitation_Distric
t_of_Los_Angeles_County/ValenciaWRP_Tentative_2-11-2015%20Mailout.pdf 
37 California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Los Angeles Region. (2015). Waste Discharge Requirements for The Santa Clarita 
Valley Sanitation District of Los Angeles County, Saugus Water Reclamation Plant. Accessed November 2021 from: 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/board_decisions/tentative_orders/individual/npdes/Santa_Clarita_Valley_Sanitation_Distric
t_of_Los_Angeles_County/Saugus_Water_Reclemation_Plant/SaugusWRP_Tentative2_03-26-2015_forMailout.pdf 
38 ICLEI. (2013). U.S. Community Protocol for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions Appendix F: Wastewater and 
Water Emission Activities and Sources Version 1.1. Accessed October 2021 from: https://icleiusa.org/ghg-protocols/ 

TOC
181



GHG Emissions Inventory 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 23 

3.6 Inventory Summary 

Results for all GHG emissions sectors were added together to develop total GHG emissions for each 
year (Table 12). For all years in the inventory, electricity and construction were the highest 
contributors to SCVWA GHG emissions, (Figure 2). By Scope, Scope 2 emissions were the highest, 
followed by Scope 3 then Scope 1 emissions (Figure 3). 

Table 12 GHG Emissions Inventory Summary 

Emissions Source Scope GHG Emissions (MT CO2e) % Contribution 
Vehicle Fleet and 
Equipment 

Scope 1 353 2% 

Natural Gas Scope 1 191 1% 

Scope 1 Subtotal  544 3% 
Electricity Scope 2 15,484 84% 

Scope 2 Subtotal  15,484 84% 
Methane Leakage Scope 3 47 <1% 

Electricity T&D Losses Scope 3 821 4% 

Employee Commute Scope 3 642 3% 

Waste Scope 3 430 2% 

Construction Scope 3 496 3% 

Wastewater Scope 3 30 <1% 

Scope 3 Subtotal  2,465 13% 
Total Emissions  18,493 100% 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. All values shown are in units of MT CO2e 
MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent; T&D = transmission and distribution 

TOC
182



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

24 

Figure 2 GHG Emissions Inventory by Source: 2020 
Vehicle Fleet and 

Equipment
2%

Natural Gas and 
Methane Leakage

1%
Wastewater

0%

Electricity and T&D 
Losses
88%

Employee Commute
4%

Waste
2%

Construction
3%

TOC
183



GHG Emissions Inventory 

Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 25 

Figure 3 GHG Emissions Inventory by Scope: 2020 

3.7 Back-cast to 1990 
To aid in determining a 2030 emissions target for SCVWA, a back-cast of GHG emissions to 1990 was 
developed. Current defensible methodologies for setting GHG emissions targets establish a percent 
reduction from 1990 emissions levels consistent with the State goals in SB 32 and EO-B-55-18. 
However, most jurisdictions do not have a 1990 inventory. To address this, methods have been 
developed to establish a 1990 back-cast based on inventories from later years and an assumption 
about how much higher or lower the inventory year emissions are relative to 1990. CARB finds it an 
acceptable methodology to assume a jurisdiction’s emissions for its later inventory year and the 
state-wide emissions for that same year have increased or decreased approximately the same 
percentage relative to 1990. Due to the recent merger, the only complete data year for SCVWA is 
2020 and was thereby used to set the baseline. However, state-wide emissions for 2020 have not 
yet been published at the time of this report. Furthermore, state-wide activities during calendar 
year 2020 were impacted by COVID-19 and it is expected the 2020 state-wide emissions will likely 
be lower than 2019 state-wide emissions. Therefore, California’s 2019 GHG emissions total was 
used to establish a 1990 baseline for SCVWA.39 Using the 2019 state-wide emissions as a proxy for 
2020 state-wide emissions yields a conservative estimate which more accurately represents the 
state-wide emissions under normal circumstances.  

39 CARB. (2021). California Greenhouse Gas 2000-2019 Emissions Trends and Indicators Report. Accessed November 2021 from: 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/ghg-inventory-program  

Scope 1, 
544 

Scope 2, 
15,484 

Scope 3, 
2,465 

TOC
184



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
26 

For example, SCVWA emitted 18,493 MT CO2e in 2020. California emitted approximately 278 million 
MT CO2e in 2019 state-wide compared to 312 million MT CO2e in 1990, which represents a 11% 
decrease between 1990 and 2019.40 This change factor was applied to SCVWA’s 2020 inventory 
emissions total to back-cast to 1990 as shown below in (Table 13). Therefore, the best available data 
(i.e., the 2020 inventory) was used to determine a 1990 baseline from which to set GHG reduction 
targets consistent with State standards. The concept of “best available data” is referenced by both 
CARB in the 2017 Scoping Plan Update41 and the GHG Protocol.42 

Table 13 1990 GHG Emissions Back-cast 
Emissions Total 

California 1990 Emissions (MMT CO2e) 312 

California 2019 Emissions (MMT CO2e) 278 

1990 Change Factor (%) -11% 

2020 SCVWA Emissions (MT CO2e) 18,493 

1990 SCVWA Emissions (MT CO2e) 20,516 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
MMT CO2e = million metric tons carbon dioxide equivalents  

 

 
40 State-level GHG emissions values used to establish a 1990 baseline exclude emissions from the industrial, agricultural, and high-GWP 
emissions sectors, to allow for comparison with SCVWA’s emissions inventory, which also excludes these sectors. 
41 CARB. (2017). California’ 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan the Strategy for achieving California’s 2030 greenhouse gas target. 
Accessed October 2021 from: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic/cc/scopingplan/scoping_plan_2017.pdf 
42 World Resources Institute. (2015). The Greenhouse Gas Protocol. A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards. Accessed October 
2021 from. https://ghgprotocol.org/sites/default/files/standards/ghg-protocol-revised.pdf 

TOC
185



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

186



Forecast 

Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 27 

4 Forecast 

SCVWA’s GHG emissions are expected to change over time due to expected changes in water 
demand and new projects allowing for increased water production and supply, as well as increased 
water conservation. Forecasting annual GHG emissions accounts for these projected changes using 
population and water demand growth rates and extrapolates from the inventory an estimate of 
GHG emissions in future years. The GHG forecast also accounts for projected GHG emissions 
reduction impacts from State legislation. Calculating the difference between the forecasted GHG 
emissions and the reduction targets determines the gap to be closed through a GHG reduction 
strategy and associated GHG emissions reduction measures. 

This document presents two forecast scenarios: a business-as-usual (BAU) forecast scenario and an 
adjusted forecast scenario. The BAU forecast scenario projects the expected growth for all GHG 
emissions sources based on SCVWA water service changes alone.43 The adjusted forecast accounts 
for water demand changes and additionally quantifies and incorporates State legislation expected to 
reduce SCVWA GHG emissions through 2030 and 2045, as discussed in Section 2.3. Specifically, the 
adjusted forecast prepared for SCVWA includes GHG reductions associated with SB 100, the primary 
driver of emissions for SCVWA due to State legislation. Based on review of other State legislation 
intended to reduce GHG emissions such as Title 24 and the Advanced Clean Cars program, they 
were found to have limited impact on SCVWA operations and therefore were not included in the 
adjusted forecast. The BAU forecast, when compared to the adjusted forecast, demonstrates the 
extent of State-level GHG emissions reductions from legislation. As such, the adjusted forecast 
represents a more accurate picture of future GHG emissions. Therefore, the adjusted forecast is 
used to determine the emissions gap between the forecast and the GHG reduction targets. This 
emissions gap will need to be bridged through actions and policies in the GHG reduction strategy.  

4.1 Forecast Years 

The forecast was developed for years 2025, 2030, 2035, 2040, and 2045, consistent with the State’s 
current GHG emissions reduction goals. The 2030 forecast year is consistent with SB 32, the 2045 
forecast year aligns with EO-B-55-18, and the 2025, 2035, and 2040 interim forecast years help 
identify a clear declining trend and milestone of progress toward the long-term State reduction 
goals.  

4.2 Activity Data and Growth Factors 

Activity data from the 2020 inventory and water demand data from SCVWA’s 2020 UWMP Volume 1 
and also renewable procurement projections from SCE were used to develop the BAU and adjusted 
forecasts.44 The 2020 UWMP includes three projected water supply demand scenarios: 
average/normal year, single dry year, and five-year dry year (Tables 7-2, 7-3, 7-4 of the UWMP). 
Each of these projections included demands with passive conservation estimates in acre-feet for the 
years 2025, 2030, 2035, 2040, 2045, and 2050. To assess which UWMP water demand forecast 

43 Construction emissions sources were kept constant through 2045 since annual construction activity is expected to remain constant 
through 2045. 
44 SCVWA. (2021). 2020 Urban Water Management Plan for Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Volume 1 Final. Accessed October 2021 
from https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/SCVWA-2020-UWMP-Volume-I_FINAL.pdf 

TOC
187



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
28 

scenario to use for GHG emissions forecasting and target-setting, a sensitivity analysis was 
performed using all three demand scenarios. Between the single-dry year and five-year dry year 
scenarios, both of which yield a more conservative GHG emissions estimate than the 
average/normal year, there was less than a 4% difference in forecasted GHG emissions. The single-
dry year yielded slightly higher emissions values for the 2045 forecast year; therefore, this analysis 
used the passive conservation demand from the single-dry year scenario to calculate a conservative 
growth factor (as opposed to using the active conservation demand estimate which may 
overestimate the water reduction efforts implemented in future years, thereby underestimating 
future emissions). The table below, as shown in Table 14, contains data used to generate growth 
factors for the forecast. 

Table 14 Activity Data for Forecasting 

Data  Unit Source  

Water demand Acre-feet (AF) of water SCVWA 2020 Urban Water Management Plan  

RPS energy mix changes Percent SB 100 

The forecasts are primarily driven by the anticipated water demands for SCVWA. For example, 
electricity usage by SCVWA is expected to increase in future years consistent with population 
growth in the service area and increased groundwater pumping and various groundwater 
replenishment activities. Historical and projected water demand data from the SCVWA 2020 UWMP 
is shown on the following page in Figure 4.45 The graph displays the projected demands of all three 
projected scenarios in the SCVWA 2020 UWMP.  

 

 
45 Ibid 

TOC
188



Fo
re

ca
st

 

 G
re

en
ho

us
e 

G
as

 In
ve

nt
or

y 
an

d 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

29
 

Fi
gu

re
 4

 
SC

VW
A 

Hi
st

or
ica

l a
nd

 Fu
tu

re
 W

at
er

 D
em

an
d46

  

  

 
46

 Ib
id

 

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
25

20
30

20
35

20
40

20
45

20
50

Hi
st

or
ica

l D
em

an
d 

(A
F)

64
,0

11
59

,0
98

64
,7

34
Pr

oj
ec

t A
ve

ra
ge

/N
or

m
al

 Y
ea

r D
em

an
d 

(A
F)

82
,1

00
89

,3
00

97
,6

00
10

4,
30

0
10

9,
60

0
11

5,
10

0
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

Si
ng

le
 D

ry
 Y

ea
r D

ea
m

an
d 

(A
F)

87
,0

00
94

,7
00

10
3,

50
0

11
0,

60
0

11
6,

20
0

12
2,

00
0

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
M

ul
tip

le
 D

ry
 Y

ea
r D

em
an

d 
(A

F)
83

,5
70

91
,3

80
99

,6
70

10
6,

66
0

11
2,

10
0

11
7,

01
0

 -

 2
0,

00
0

 4
0,

00
0

 6
0,

00
0

 8
0,

00
0

 1
00

,0
00

 1
20

,0
00

 1
40

,0
00

Acre Feet (AF)

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Fu

tu
re

 D
em

an
d

Ac
tu

al
 H

ist
or

ica
l D

em
an

d

TO
C

189



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
30 

To model growth in each emissions sector based on water demand projections, growth factors (e.g., 
electricity use per volume water demand, or kWh per AF) for each emissions sector were developed 
based on the 2020 inventory and the water demand data for those years (Table 15). Each growth 
factor was multiplied by the forecasted demand in the 2020 UWMP to estimate future activity data 
values. The projected activity data was then multiplied by an emissions factor to determine GHG 
emissions associated with the activity. While not all emissions sources (such as vehicle fleet) will 
scale directly with demand, this methodology provides a conservative estimate of future growth and 
associated SCVWA emissions. 

Table 15 Growth Factors for Forecasting 

GHG Emissions Sector Growth Factor Units 

Natural Gas 0.5551 Therms natural gas/AF potable water demand 

Methane Leakage 0.0155 Therms of methane leaked/AF potable water demand 

Diesel 0.1426 Gallons diesel/AF potable water demand 

Gasoline 0.4202 Gallons gasoline/AF potable water demand 

Propane 0.0023 Gallons propane/AF potable water demand 

Wastewater 0.0005 MT CO2e/AF potable water demand 

SCE Electricity 881.8469 kWh/AF potable water demand 

SCE T&D 46.7379 kWh/AF potable water demand 

Employee Commute 19.3462 VMT/AF potable water demand 

Waste 0.0066 MT CO2e/AF potable water demand 

AF = acre-foot; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalents; SCE = Southern California Edison; T&D = transmission 
and distribution, kWh = kilowatt hour; VMT = vehicle miles traveled  

The GHG emissions associated with construction are an exception to this methodology. Emissions 
from construction of future CIP projects planned for the next five years (2022-2026) were quantified 
using CAPCOA’s CalEEMod based on data provided by SCVWA on the construction projects. Due to 
the smaller scale of many projects and the lack of a project-specific air quality/GHG emissions study, 
the calculation notes column below includes various conservative assumptions made to quantify the 
GHG emissions of each project. Once total emissions were calculated for future CIP projects over 
the five-year period, an annualized emissions value was calculated by dividing the total by the five-
year span; the resulting emissions totals are included in Table 16. Additionally, Table 16 includes the 
project type, SCVWA-assigned project name, calculated emissions, and calculation notes. Based on 
the historical CIP projects conducted between 2019-2021 and the future CIP projects between 2022-
2026, construction activity and associated emissions appear to remain relatively constant when 
annualized. As there is limited understanding of future construction needs in ten to thirty years, 
GHG emissions associated with construction were therefore kept constant through 2045, rather 
than scaling with water demand. 

 

TOC
190



Fo
re

ca
st

 

 G
re

en
ho

us
e 

G
as

 In
ve

nt
or

y 
an

d 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

31
 

Ta
bl

e 
16

 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Ca

lcu
la

tio
n 

Da
ta

 a
nd

 G
HG

 E
m

iss
io

ns
 fo

r F
ut

ur
e 

CI
P 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 

Pr
oj

ec
t T

yp
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e 

Em
iss

io
ns

 
(M

T 
CO

2e
) 

Ca
lcu

la
tio

n 
No

te
s 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t U
pg

ra
de

s 
E 

W
el

ls 
PF

AS
 

Re
m

ov
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
25

3 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 u
sin

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 ty
pe

s o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

CV
W

A,
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

t i
nv

ol
ve

s t
he

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ty
pe

s o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

: d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f e
xis

tin
g 

pa
ve

m
en

t, 
so

il 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
vi

a 
op

en
 tr

en
ch

in
g 

fo
r 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 a
nd

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 IX

 v
es

se
ls.

 E
m

iss
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
er

e 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 2
-y

ea
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 2
 a

cr
es

 o
f s

ite
 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n,

 5
00

 ft
2  o

f e
xis

tin
g 

pa
ve

m
en

t p
ad

s d
em

ol
iti

on
, 8

7,
12

0 
ft2 

of
 tr

en
ch

in
g 

fo
r i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 p
ip

el
in

e 
an

d 
IX

 v
es

se
ls,

 a
nd

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 co

at
in

g 
of

 n
ew

 IX
 v

es
se

ls.
  

Tr
ea

tm
en

t U
pg

ra
de

s 
Sa

nt
a 

Cl
ar

a 
an

d 
Ho

nb
y 

PF
AS

 
25

5 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 u
sin

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 ty
pe

s o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

CV
W

A,
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

t i
nv

ol
ve

s t
he

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ty
pe

s o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

: d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f e
xis

tin
g 

pa
ve

m
en

t, 
so

il 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
vi

a 
op

en
 tr

en
ch

in
g 

fo
r 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 a
nd

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 co

nc
re

te
 p

ad
s. 

Th
is 

pr
oj

ec
t w

as
 ca

lcu
la

te
d 

us
in

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 re

su
lts

 in
clu

di
ng

 d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f e
xis

tin
g 

pa
ve

m
en

t p
ad

, s
oi

l d
ist

ur
ba

nc
e 

(o
n-

sit
e 

pr
ep

), 
an

d 
tr

en
ch

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 n

ew
 p

ip
el

in
e.

 E
m

iss
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
er

e 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 2
-y

ea
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 2
 a

cr
es

 o
f s

ite
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n,
 5

00
 ft

2  o
f e

xis
tin

g 
pa

ve
m

en
t 

pa
ds

 d
em

ol
iti

on
, 8

7,
12

0 
ft2 

of
 tr

en
ch

in
g 

fo
r i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 p
ip

el
in

e,
 a

nd
 p

av
em

en
t o

f n
ew

 
co

nc
re

te
 p

ad
s a

ss
um

in
g 

a 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f 2
0 

w
el

l p
ad

s, 
ea

ch
 p

ad
 1

0 
sq

ua
re

 fe
et

, y
ie

ld
in

g 
a 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

es
tim

at
e 

of
 5

00
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

 o
f p

av
em

en
t n

ee
de

d.
  

Tr
ea

tm
en

t U
pg

ra
de

s 
W

el
l 2

01
 V

OC
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
12

6 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 u
sin

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 ty
pe

s o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

CV
W

A,
 in

vo
lv

es
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ty
pe

s o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

: d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f e
xis

tin
g 

pa
ve

m
en

t a
nd

 so
il 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

vi
a 

op
en

 tr
en

ch
in

g 
fo

r 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 p
ip

el
in

e.
 T

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
 w

as
 ca

lcu
la

te
d 

us
in

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 re

su
lts

 in
clu

di
ng

 d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f 
ex

ist
in

g 
pa

ve
m

en
t p

ad
, s

oi
l d

ist
ur

ba
nc

e 
(o

n-
sit

e 
pr

ep
), 

an
d 

tr
en

ch
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 n
ew

 p
ip

el
in

e.
 E

m
iss

io
ns

 
fro

m
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
er

e 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 1
-y

ea
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 1
 

ac
re

s o
f s

ite
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n,
 2

50
 ft

2  o
f e

xis
tin

g 
pa

ve
m

en
t p

ad
s d

em
ol

iti
on

, a
nd

 4
3,

56
0 

ft2 
of

 tr
en

ch
in

g 
fo

r 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 p
ip

el
in

e.
  

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
Ho

nb
y 

Ta
nk

s 
Bo

ot
le

ne
ck

 P
ro

je
ct

 
20

4 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 fo

r “
pi

pe
lin

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
es

 p
ro

je
ct

” w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 b
as

ed
 

on
 th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

CV
W

A,
 th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ty

pe
s o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
: s

oi
l d

ist
ur

ba
nc

e 
vi

a 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

fo
r 

va
ul

ts
 a

nd
 o

pe
n 

tr
en

ch
in

g 
fo

r i
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

ip
el

in
e.

 A
fte

r r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

CI
P 

da
ta

, t
hi

s 
pi

pe
lin

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
er

e 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
er

va
tiv

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
: 

6 
ac

re
s o

f s
ite

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n,

 a
nd

 2
61

,3
60

 ft
2  o

f t
re

nc
hi

ng
 fo

r p
ip

el
in

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
w

he
re

 th
e 

w
id

th
 w

as
 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
el

y 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

42
”. 

 
 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

Ca
st

ai
c C

on
du

it 
28

0 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 fo

r “
pi

pe
lin

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
es

 p
ro

je
ct

” w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 b
as

ed
 

TO
C

191



Sa
nt

a 
C

la
rit

a 
V

al
le

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
 

 32
 an

d 
Up

gr
ad

es
 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

on
 th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

CV
W

A,
 th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ty

pe
s o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
: d

em
ol

iti
on

 o
f e

xis
tin

g 
pa

ve
m

en
t, 

so
il 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

vi
a 

ex
ca

va
tio

n 
fo

r v
au

lts
 a

nd
 o

pe
n 

tr
en

ch
in

g 
fo

r i
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

ip
el

in
e.

 A
fte

r r
ev

ie
w

 
of

 th
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 C
IP

 d
at

a,
 th

es
e 

pi
pe

lin
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
an

d 
up

gr
ad

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

er
e 

ca
lcu

la
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 6
 a

cr
es

 o
f d

em
ol

iti
on

 a
nd

 si
te

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n,

 a
nd

 2
61

,3
60

 ft
2  o

f 
tr

en
ch

in
g 

fo
r p

ip
el

in
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

w
he

re
 th

e 
w

id
th

 w
as

 co
ns

er
va

tiv
el

y 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

42
”. 

 
 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
Ho

nb
y 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ph
as

e 
2 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

28
0 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
M

ag
ic 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Bo

os
te

r S
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

V-
9 

Tu
rn

ou
t F

ac
ili

ty
 

28
0 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d 

Up
gr

ad
es

 
ES

FP
 W

as
hw

at
er

  
28

0 

Ta
nk

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
ES

FP
 T

an
k 

No
. 1

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
  

26
 

Pr
oj

ec
t e

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
da

ta
 fr

om
 S

CV
W

A 
th

at
 th

er
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

 
so

il 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
on

ly
 w

or
k 

in
sid

e 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
ta

nk
. I

t w
as

 co
ns

er
va

tiv
el

y 
as

su
m

ed
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

ta
nk

 in
te

rio
r w

ill
 b

e 
re

-c
oa

te
d.

 G
iv

en
 th

e 
ta

nk
's 

ca
pa

cit
y 

of
 5

 M
G,

 th
is 

eq
ua

ls 
a 

su
rfa

ce
 a

re
a 

of
 1

,3
36

,8
06

 ft
2 . 

Th
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
qu

an
tif

ie
d 

in
 tw

o 
ph

as
es

: s
ite

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 co
at

in
g.

 

Re
se

rv
oi

r  
M

ag
ic 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Re

se
rv

oi
r 1

 
35

7 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
m

iss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 u
sin

g 
Ca

lE
EM

od
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

pr
oj

ec
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

ty
pe

 o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
CV

W
A.

 P
ro

je
ct

 p
ha

se
s i

nc
lu

de
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ph
as

es
: s

ite
 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
se

rv
oi

r e
xc

av
at

io
n,

 g
ra

di
ng

, r
es

er
vo

ir 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 li

ni
ng

 o
f r

es
er

vo
ir,

 p
av

in
g,

 a
nd

 
tr

en
ch

in
g.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
SC

VW
A 

pr
ov

id
ed

 d
at

a,
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ite

 is
 6

0,
73

6 
ft2  a

nd
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 ta

ke
 

pl
ac

e 
ov

er
 2

 y
ea

rs
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

W
el

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Sa

ug
us

 #
3 

&
 #

4 
W

el
ls 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t W
el

ls)
 

34
1 

Em
iss

io
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

Sa
ug

us
 W

el
l p

ro
je

ct
s w

er
e 

qu
an

tif
ie

d 
us

in
g 

on
e 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 m
od

el
 to

 a
vo

id
 d

ou
bl

e-
co

un
tin

g 
of

 G
HG

 e
m

iss
io

ns
. B

as
ed

 o
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

SC
VW

A,
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

fro
m

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

: s
ite

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n,

 g
ra

di
ng

, i
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
lo

ck
 

w
al

l c
he

m
ica

l b
ui

ld
in

g,
 p

av
in

g 
of

 co
nc

re
te

 p
ad

s, 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 co

at
in

g 
of

 in
te

rio
r o

f c
he

m
ica

l b
ui

ld
in

g,
 

an
d 

tr
en

ch
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 1
-m

ile
 p

ip
el

in
e.

 T
he

se
 e

st
im

at
es

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 ti

m
el

in
e 

of
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s. 

Th
e 

Ag
en

cy
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

da
ta

 fr
om

 th
e 

Dr
af

t M
iti

ga
te

d 
Ne

ga
tiv

e 
De

cla
ra

tio
n 

fo
r C

as
ta

ic 
La

ke
 W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y'

s 
Gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 C

on
ta

m
in

an
t T

re
at

m
en

t &
 R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Th

e 
m

et
ric

s u
se

d 
to

 e
st

im
at

e 
GH

G 
Em

iss
io

ns
 co

rr
es

po
nd

 w
ith

 th
e 

da
ta

 in
 th

is 
do

cu
m

en
t; 

ho
w

ev
er

, n
o 

GH
G 

Em
iss

io
ns

 q
ua

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

as
 

in
clu

de
d 

in
 th

is 
M

iti
ga

te
d 

Ne
ga

tiv
e 

De
cla

ra
tio

n 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

 
 

W
el

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Sa

ug
us

 W
el

ls 
3 

&
 4

 
(R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t W

el
ls)

 
W

el
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 
Si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

NA
 

Ta
nk

 A
dd

iti
on

s a
nd

 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
RV

W
TP

 D
ie

se
l 

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

Ta
nk

 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t  

23
 

Pr
oj

ec
t e

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

Ca
lE

EM
od

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

oj
ec

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
ty

pe
 o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 in
vo

lv
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

CV
W

A.
 P

ro
je

ct
 p

ha
se

s i
nc

lu
de

 si
te

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

de
m

ol
iti

on
/r

em
ov

al
 o

f t
an

k.
 E

m
iss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 co

ns
er

va
tiv

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

/s
oi

l 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
es

tim
at

e 
fo

r a
 o

ne
-a

cr
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 

Fu
tu

re
 C

IP
 P

ro
je

ct
s T

ot
al

 E
m

iss
io

ns
 

2,
70

5 
To

ta
l G

HG
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 q
ua

nt
ifi

ed
 fr

om
 a

ll 
fu

tu
re

 C
IP

 p
ro

je
ct

s f
or

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 (2

02
2-

20
26

) 

An
nu

al
ize

d 
Em

iss
io

ns
 

54
1 

An
nu

al
ize

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
em

iss
io

ns
 v

al
ue

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 d

iv
id

in
g 

th
e 

to
ta

l f
ut

ur
e 

em
iss

io
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

fiv
e-

ye
ar

 sp
an

 (2
02

2-
20

26
). 

 

No
te

s: 
Va

lu
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ro

un
de

d 
he

re
in

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 u

p 
ex

ac
tly

. 

TO
C

192



Forecast 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 33 

The following provides an overview of how each GHG emissions source was forecast: 

▪ Scope 1 
 Natural Gas. The growth factor for natural gas was multiplied by water demand projection 

data for each year, then multiplied by the emission factor used in the inventory. 
 Vehicle Fleet and Equipment. The growth factors for diesel, gasoline, and propane were 

multiplied by water demand projection data for each year, then multiplied by the 
corresponding emission factors used in the inventory. 

▪ Scope 2 
 Electricity. The electricity use growth factor for SCE was multiplied by the water demand 

projection data for each year, then multiplied by the corresponding emission factors. For 
the BAU forecast, Rincon used the electricity emission factor from 2020 for each year 
through 2045. For the adjusted forecast, Rincon used electricity emission factors adjusted 
according to the projected RPS for SCE.  

▪ Scope 3 
 Methane Emissions. Growth factor assumes same percentage of Scope 1 natural gas 

emissions projected forward and was calculated by multiplying growth factor by the water 
demand projection date for each year.  

 Electricity Transmission and Distribution Losses. Established as a linear percentage of 
Scope 2 electricity and projected forward for the BAU and adjusted forecasts based on the 
BAU and adjusted electricity emissions projections, respectively. 

 Waste. The growth factor for waste was multiplied by the water demand projection data for 
each year. 

 Employee Commute. The growth factor for employee commute was multiplied by the water 
demand projection data for each year. 

 Construction. The annual average construction emissions for future CIP projects spanning 
the next five years was annualized and applied for all years through 2045. 

 Wastewater. The growth factor for wastewater was multiplied by the water demand 
projection data for each year. 

4.3 Business-as-usual Forecast Methods and Results 

The BAU forecast provides an estimate of how GHG emissions would change in the forecast years if 
consumption trends continued as in 2020, absent any new regulations or policies that would reduce 
GHG emissions under the single-dry year scenario. Under the BAU forecast, SCVWA emissions are 
projected to continue increasing through 2045 (Table 17), as SCVWA services expand to meet 
demand from population growth. This increase is the result of the overall projected increases in 
population driven water demand through 2045. The results of the BAU forecast are also shown in 
Figure 5. Under the BAU forecast scenario, electricity remains the highest contributor to SCVWA 
GHG emissions. 

TOC
193



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
34 

Table 17 Business as Usual Forecast GHG Emissions Summary (MT CO2e)47 

Emissions Source 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 
Natural Gas  256  279  305   326   343  

Methane Leakage 63 69 75 81 85 

Vehicle Fleet and Equipment  452  492  538   575   604  

Wastewater  40 43 47  50  53  

Electricity  20,811  22,652  24,757   26,456   27,795  

Electricity T&D Losses  1,103 1,201 1,312   1,402   1,473  

Employee Commute  713   776  848   906   952  

Waste  578   629   687   734   772  

Construction 541  541  541   541  541  

Total  24,557 26,683  29,112 31,072 32,618 
Notes: Values have been rounded and therefore may not add up exactly. 
MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent; T&D = transmission and distribution 

Figure 5 Business as Usual (BAU) GHG Emissions Forecast48 

 
 

 
 
 

 
47 Based on the single-dry year scenario which is the “worst case” scenario for GHG emissions.  
48 Ibid 

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

M
T 

CO
2e

Vehicle Fleet & Equipment Wastewater

Electricity and T&D Losses Employee Commute

Construction Natural Gas and Methane Leakage

Waste

TOC
194



Forecast 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 35 

4.4 Adjusted Forecast Methods and Results 

The Adjusted Forecast adjusts the BAU forecast to include the legislative actions and associated 
emissions reductions occurring at the State level as summarized in Section 2.3 (e.g., California’s RPS 
Program). The only emissions sectors that changed under the adjusted forecast are electricity and 
T&D losses; all other sectors remained the same in comparison to the BAU forecast. Under the 
Adjusted Forecast, GHG emissions are expected to decrease overall through 2045 due to the 
adjustments to electricity emissions factors (Table 18). The results of the Adjusted Forecast are also 
shown in Figure 6. Electricity use is expected to grow through 2045, however, due to California’s RPS 
electricity emissions will decrease over time as electricity becomes carbon free by 2045, as seen in 
Figure 7.  

Table 18 Adjusted Forecast GHG Emissions Summary (MT CO2e)49 

Emissions Source 2025 2030 2035 2040 20451 

Natural Gas  256   279   305   326   343  

Methane Leakage 63 69 75 81 85 

Vehicle Fleet and Equipment  452   492   538   575   604  

Wastewater 40  43  47  50  53  

Electricity  16,429  13,113   9,554   5,105   0 

Electricity T&D Losses 871 695   506   271 0 

Employee Commute  713   776   848   906   952  

Waste  578   629   687   734   772  

Construction 541 541  541  541  541 

Total 19,942 16,637 13,103 8,589 3,349 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 Emissions associated with electricity are anticipated to be zero in 2045 due to SB 100. 
MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent; T&D = transmission and distribution 

 
49 Based on the single-dry year scenario which is the “worst case” scenario for GHG emissions. 

TOC
195



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
36 

 

Figure 6 Adjusted GHG Emissions Forecast50 

 

 
50 Ibid 

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

M
T 

CO
2e

Vehicle Fleet & Equipment Wastewater

Electricity and T&D Losses Employee Commute

Construction Natural Gas and Methane Leakage

Waste

TOC
196



Forecast 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 37 

Figure 7 Adjusted Electricity Consumption and Emissions Forecast 

 
 

California RPS Program Adjustments 
Projected GHG emissions from electricity and electricity T&D losses were calculated by multiplying 
the electricity use growth factor for each electricity source by the corresponding water demand 
projection for each year, and again by the corresponding emission factor. Emission factors were 
calculated based on the most recent emission factor for each electricity source available, which 
were adjusted for future years based on the RPS requirements of SB 100, as shown in Table 19. 

Table 19 California RPS-adjusted Electricity Emission factors 

Electricity Source 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Renewables Mix (%) 
SCE1 34.2% 50% 60% 73.3% 86.7% 100% 
Emission Factor (pounds CO2e/MWh) 
SCE 598 472 346 230 115 0.00 
1 The renewables mix and emission factor for 2020 are based on the Edison International 2020 Sustainability Report. 
https://www.edison.com/home/sustainability/sustainability-report.html 
MWh = megawatt hour; CO2e: carbon dioxide equivalent 

 

0

25,000,000

50,000,000

75,000,000

100,000,000

125,000,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

El
ec

tr
ici

ty
 (K

W
h)

M
T 

CO
2e

GHG Emissions (MT CO2e) Electricity Consumptions (kWh)

TOC
197



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

198



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

 
38 

5 Target Setting 
Generally, GHG emissions reduction targets are developed, at a minimum, consistent with State 
goals (i.e., SB 32 and EO B-55-18). GHG targets are developed relative to baseline emissions levels 
and in consideration of future emission forecasts and the effects of ongoing and future legislative 
actions. SCVWA plans to adopt GHG reduction targets to define measurable benchmarks to guide 
SCVWA GHG emissions reduction efforts going forward.  

Setting GHG reduction targets which align with SCVWA goals will facilitate SCVWA in developing its 
own emissions reduction trajectory and plan for implementation. Target setting is an iterative 
process which should ultimately be informed by SCVWA’s realistic ability to achieve GHG emissions 
reductions through the Sustainability Plan’s GHG reduction measures. As such, it is considered best 
practice to re-evaluate the targets on a periodic basis (every five years is recommended) and 
adjusted as more data and information become available to SCVWA. 

Setting a Target 
The State of California has codified a GHG reduction target of 40% below 1990 levels by 2030 and 
set a long term non-codified goal of carbon neutrality by 2045. The State’s climate goals, as detailed 
previously, were developed to be consistent with the IPCC analysis of global emissions trajectory 
needed to stabilize atmospheric carbon dioxide concentrations at 350 ppm or less.51 The IPCC 
determined global emissions must be reduced by 50% by 2030 and hit carbon neutrality by 2050 to 
limit global warming to 1.5°C, the goal set in the Paris Agreement. While SCVWA is not required to 
follow these goals at this time, the 2017 Scoping Plan does acknowledge water agencies as an 
emissions source that should begin working on reducing GHG emissions, as feasible.52 Furthermore, 
aligning with State targets can make SCVWA more competitive in grant applications and other 
funding sources. Therefore, Rincon suggests SCVWA sets a GHG reduction target at least as stringent 
as the State’s. Because SCVWA did not exist in 1990 as it exists today, the back-casted 1990 level is a 
proxy developed to be representative of SCVWA emissions had it existed in 1990. This allows targets 
to be developed to align with the State goals. For SCVWA this would mean reducing emissions by 
40% below the back-casted 1990 levels (17,744 MT CO2e) by 2030 which would equate to reducing 
emissions below 10,646 MT CO2e by 2030. Alternatively, instead of back-casting to a 1990 level, 
targets can be developed directly off of the current 2020 levels assuming that SCVWA’s 2020 levels 
are representative of 1990 levels.53 This approach to target setting is more conservative and would 
be based on a 40% reduction from 2020 levels (15,994 MT CO2e) by 2030, which would equate to 
reducing emissions below 9,597 MT CO2e by 2030.  

For a numerical comparison of mass emissions under the suggested target pathways, the forecasted 
emissions, the potential target pathway, and emissions gap SCVWA would need to close are shown 
in Table 20, and represented visually in Figure 8 for years 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2045. 

Table 20 Minimum GHG Reduction Targets and Estimated Gaps for SCVWA   
2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

 
51 CARB. (2014). First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan Building the Framework Pursuant to AB 32 The California Solutions Act 
of 2006. https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic/cc/scopingplan/2013_update/first_update_climate_change_scoping_plan.pdf 
52 CARB. (2017). California’ 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan the Strategy for achieving California’s 2030 greenhouse gas target. 
Accessed October 2021 from: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic/cc/scopingplan/scoping_plan_2017.pdf 
53 The 2020 goal set by AB 32 was achieved by the State in 2016. CARB. (2018, July 11). Climate pollutants fall below 1990 levels for first 
time. Accessed October 2021 from https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/news/climate-pollutants-fall-below-1990-levels-first-time 

TOC
199



Target Setting 

 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 39 

Adjusted Forecast  19,943   16,637   13,103   8,589 3,349  
Quantified 2020 Levels  18,493   18,493   18,493   18,493   18,493  
Target Pathway developed from 2020 levels (MT CO2e)1 
EO B-55-18 Efficiency Target Pathway from 2020 levels  18,822   15,357   11,079   5,798   -    
Emissions Gap (MT CO2e) 1,121   1,281   2,024   2,792   3,349   
1The target pathways is calculated as 40 percent reduction from 2020 levels conservatively assumed to be equivalent to 1990 levels. 

Figure 8 Target Pathways 
 

 
 

 

In addition to the mass emissions goals described in Table 20, SCVWA can also opt to set an 
efficiency target. Efficiency targets translate the mass emissions reductions into per capita or per 
acre-foot targets that help account for growth. This approach is outlined in the 2017 Scoping Plan.54 
Since SCVWA emissions are primarily driven by population growth and water demand, Rincon 
suggests translating the mass emissions targets into per person targets. The translated per person 
targets are shown below in Table 21. 

 
54 CARB. (2017). California’ 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan the Strategy for achieving California’s 2030 greenhouse gas target. 
Accessed October 2021 from: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic/cc/scopingplan/scoping_plan_2017.pdf 

 -
 5,000

 10,000
 15,000
 20,000
 25,000
 30,000
 35,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

M
TC

O 2
e

2020 Baseline

BAU Forecast

Adjusted Forecast

EO B-55-18 Efficiency Target Pathway

TOC
200



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

40 

Table 21 Per Person Emissions Targets 

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Adjusted Forecast  0.06  0.05  0.03  0.02 0.01 

Quantified 2020 Levels  0.07  0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 

Target Pathway developed from 2020 levels (MT CO2e/person)1 
EO B-55-18 Efficiency Target Pathway from 2020 levels  0.06  0.04  0.03  0.01  -   
Emissions Gap (MT CO2e) 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 
1The target pathways is calculated as 40 percent reduction from 2020 levels conservatively assumed to be equivalent to 1990 levels. 

TOC
201



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

202



APPENDIX B -  
Regulatory Context

 

 

 

SCV Water Sustainability Plan – Appendix B  

Regulatory Context  

prepared by 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
26501 Summit Circle  

Santa Clarita, California 91350  

prepared with the assistance of 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
180 North Ashwood Avenue  

Ventura, California 93003 

January 2023 
 

TOC
203



TOC
204



Regulatory Context 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Sustainability Plan i 

 

SCV Water Sustainability Plan – Appendix B 

Regulatory Context  

prepared by 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
26501 Summit Circle  

Santa Clarita, California 91350  

prepared with the assistance of 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
180 North Ashwood Avenue  

Ventura, California 93003 

January 2023 

TOC
205



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

206



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency  
Regulatory Context 

 
ii 

Table of Contents 

Regulatory Summary .............................................................................................................................. 1 
International Climate Action Guidance .......................................................................................... 1 

California Regulations and State GHG Targets ............................................................................... 2 

 

TOC
207



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

208



Regulatory Context 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Sustainability Plan iii 

  

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

TOC
209



TOC
210



Regulatory Context 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Sustainability Plan  1 

Regulatory Context 

As the impacts of climate change are becoming clearer, strategies to address climate change are 
emerging at all levels of government. This section provides an overview of the regulatory context at 
the international, state, and local levels relative to SCV Water’s actions toward reducing GHG 
emissions. 

International Climate Action Guidance  

1992 United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change 
The primary international regulatory framework for GHG reduction is the United Nations 
Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). The UNFCCC is an international treaty 
adopted in 1992 with the objective of stabilizing atmospheric GHG concentrations to prevent 
disruptive anthropogenic climate change. The framework established non-binding limits on global 
GHG emissions and specified a process for negotiating future international climate-related 
agreements.1   

1997 Kyoto Protocol  
The Kyoto Protocol is an international treaty that was adopted in 1997 to extend and operationalize 
the UNFCCC. The protocol commits industrialized nations to reduce GHG emissions per country-
specific targets, recognizing that they hold responsibility for existing atmospheric GHG levels. The 
Kyoto Protocol involves two commitment periods during which emissions reductions are to occur, 
the first of which took place between 2008-2012. The second commitment period set new targets 
and other changes but has not been entered into force (meaning it has not gone into effect).2 

2015 The Paris Agreement  
The Paris Agreement is the first universal, legally binding global climate agreement that was 
adopted in 2015 and has been ratified by 191 countries worldwide.3 The Paris Agreement 
establishes a roadmap to keep the world under 2 degrees Celsius (°C) of warming with a goal of 
limiting an increase of temperature to 1.5°C. The Paris Agreement does not dictate one specific 
reduction target, instead relying on individual countries to set nationally determined contributions 
(NDCs) or reductions based on gross domestic product and other factors. According to the 
International Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), limiting global warming to 1.5°C will require global 
emissions to reduce through 2030 and hit carbon neutrality by mid-century.4 

 
1 United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change. 
https://unfccc.int/files/essential_background/background_publications_htmlpdf/application/pdf/conveng.pdf  
2 UNFCCC. What is the Kyoto Protocol? https://unfccc.int/kyoto_protocol 
3 UNFCCC. Paris Agreement - Status of Ratification. https://unfccc.int/process/the-paris-agreement/status-of-ratification 
4 IPCC. Global Warming of 1.5 C. https://www.ipcc.ch/sr15/ 

TOC
211



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency  
Regulatory Context 

 
2 

California Regulations and State GHG Targets  
California remains a global leader in the effort to reduce GHG emissions and combat climate change 
through its mitigation strategies. By the early 2000’s, California was passing climate change bills 
including Senate Bill (SB) 1078 and Executive Order (EO) S-3-05 which began to require state 
agencies and utilities to address climate change. With the passage of Assembly Bill (AB) 32 in 2006, 
California became the first state in the nation to mandate GHG emission reductions across its entire 
economy. To support AB 32, California has enacted legislation, regulations, and executive orders 
(EO) that put it on course to achieve robust emission reductions and address the impacts of a 
changing climate. The following is a summary of executive and legislative actions most relevant to 
the Sustainability Plan. 

2002 Senate Bill 1078  
In 2002, Senate Bill (SB) 1078 established the California Renewables Portfolio Standards (RPS) 
Program which requires that 20 percent of retail electricity sales be composed of renewable energy 
sources by 2017 and was accelerated in 2006 by SB 107,5 which requires that 20 percent of retail 
electricity sales be composed of renewable energy sources by 2010, instead of 2017. EO S-14-08 
was signed in 2008 to further streamline California's renewable energy project approval process and 
increase the state's RPS to the most aggressive in the nation requiring 33 percent renewable power 
by 2020.6 SB 350, discussed further below, further accelerated the program which mandated a 50% 
RPS by 2030. 

2002 Assembly Bill 1493  
In 2002, AB 1493, also known as the Pavley Regulations, directed the California Air Resources Board 
(CARB) to establish regulations to reduce GHG emissions from passenger vehicles to the maximum 
and most cost-effective extent feasible. CARB approved the first set of regulations to reduce GHG 
emissions from passenger vehicles in 2004, with the regulations initially taking effect with the 2009 
model year.  

2005 Executive Order S-3-05  
EO S-3-05 was signed in 2005, establishing statewide GHG emissions reduction targets for the years 
2020 and 2050. The EO calls for the reduction of GHG emissions in California to 2000 levels by 2010, 
1990 levels by 2020, and 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. The 2050 emission reductions 
target would put the state’s emissions in line with the worldwide reductions needed to reach long-
term climate stabilization as concluded by the IPCC 2007 Fourth Assessment Report. 

2006 Assembly Bill 32  
California’s major initiative for reducing GHG emissions is outlined in AB 32, the “California Global 
Warming Solutions Act of 2006,” which was signed into law in 2006. AB 32 codifies the statewide 
goal of reducing GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020 and requires CARB to prepare a Scoping Plan 
that outlines the main state strategies for reducing GHG emissions to meet the 2020 deadline. In 

 
5 California Public Utilities Commission.2021. Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) Program. 
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/General.aspx?id=6442463710 
6 Executive Order S-14-08.  http://www.climatestrategies.us/library/library/view/292 

TOC
212



Regulatory Context 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Sustainability Plan  3 

addition, AB 32 requires CARB to adopt regulations to require reporting and verification of 
statewide GHG emissions.  

Based on this guidance, CARB approved a 1990 statewide GHG baseline and 2020 emissions limit of 
427 million metric tons of CO2 equivalent (MMT CO2e). The Scoping Plan was approved by CARB on 
December 11, 2008 and included measures to address GHG emission reduction strategies related to 
energy efficiency, water use, and recycling and solid waste, among other measures. Many of the 
GHG reduction measures included in the Scoping Plan (e.g., Low Carbon Fuel Standard, Advanced 
Clean Car standards,7 and Cap-and-Trade) have been adopted since approval of the Scoping Plan.  

In May 2014, CARB approved the first update to the AB 32 Scoping Plan. The 2014 Scoping Plan 
update defined CARB’s climate change priorities for the next five years and set the groundwork to 
reach post-2020 statewide goals. The update highlighted California’s progress toward meeting the 
“near-term” 2020 GHG emission reduction goals defined in the original Scoping Plan. It also 
evaluated how to align the state’s longer-term GHG reduction strategies with other state policy 
priorities, including those for water, waste, natural resources, clean energy, transportation, and land 
use (CARB 2014). 

2007 Executive Order S-1-07  
Also known as the Low Carbon Fuel Standard, EO S-1-07, issued in 2007, established a statewide 
goal that requires transportation fuel providers to reduce the carbon intensity of California’s 
transportation fuels by at least 10 percent by 2020. EO S-1-07 was readopted and amended in 2015 
to require a 20 percent reduction in carbon intensity by 2030, the most stringent requirement in the 
nation. The new requirement aligns with California’s overall 2030 target of reducing climate 
changing emissions 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, which was set by SB 32 and signed by the 
governor in 2016. 

2007 Senate Bill 97  
Signed in August 2007, SB 97 acknowledges that climate change is an environmental issue that 
requires analysis in California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documents. In March 2010, the 
California Natural Resources Agency adopted amendments to the State CEQA Guidelines for the 
feasible mitigation of GHG emissions or the effects of GHG emissions. The adopted guidelines give 
lead agencies the discretion to set quantitative or qualitative thresholds for the assessment and 
mitigation of GHG and climate change impacts. 

2008 Senate Bill 375 
SB 375, signed in August 2008, enhances the state’s ability to reach AB 32 goals by directing CARB to 
develop regional GHG emission reduction targets to be achieved from passenger vehicles by 2020 
and 2035. In addition, SB 375 directs each of the state’s 18 major Metropolitan Planning 
Organizations (MPOs), to prepare a Sustainable Communities Strategy” that contains a growth 
strategy to meet these emission targets for inclusion in the MPO’s Regional Transportation Plan. 

 
7 On September 19, 2019, the National Highway Traffic Safety Agency and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency issued a final action 
entitled the One National Program on Federal Preemption of State Fuel Economy Standards Rule. This action finalizes Part I of the Safer, 
Affordable, Fuel-Efficient (SAFE) Vehicles Rule. This rule states that federal law preempts State and local tailpipe GHG emissions standards 
as well as zero emission vehicle (ZEV) mandates. The SAFE Rule withdraws the Clean Air Act waiver it granted to California in January 2013 
as it relates to California’s GHG and zero emission vehicle programs.  

TOC
213



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Regulatory Context 

4 

In March 2018, CARB adopted updated regional targets for reducing GHG emissions from 2005 
levels by 2020 and 2035. Each region was assigned a target for 2020 and 2035.8 CVWD’s operations 
span several of these regions. 

2009 California Green Building Code 
The California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen) is Part 11 of the California Building 
Standards Code or Title 24 and is the first statewide “green” building code in the nation. The 
purpose of CALGreen is to improve public health, safety, and general welfare by enhancing the 
design and construction of buildings. Enhancements include higher energy efficiency, better air 
quality, and improved daylighting. The first CALGreen Code was adopted in 2009 and has been 
updated in 2013, 2016, 2019 and 2022. The CALGreen Code will have subsequent, and continually 
more stringent, updates every three years. 

2009 Senate Bill X7-7 
In 2009, SB X7-7, also known as the Water Conservation Act, was signed, requiring all water 
suppliers to increase water use efficiency. This legislation sets an overall goal of reducing per capita 
urban water use by 20 percent by2020. 

2011 Senate Bill 2X 
In 2011, SB 2X was signed, requiring California energy providers to buy (or generate) 33 percent of 
their electricity from renewable energy sources by 2020. 

2012 Assembly Bill 341 
AB 341 directed the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to 
develop and adopt regulations for mandatory commercial recycling. As of July 2012, businesses are 
required to recycle, and jurisdictions must implement a program that includes education, outreach, 
and monitoring. AB 341 also set a statewide goal of 75 percent waste diversion from landfill by the 
year 2020. 

2014 Assembly Bill 32 Scoping Plan Update 
In 2014, CARB approved the first update to the Scoping Plan. This update defines CARB’s climate 
change priorities and sets the groundwork to reach the post-2020 targets set forth in EO S-3-05. The 
update highlights California’s progress toward meeting the near-term 2020 GHG emissions 
reduction target, defined in the original Scoping Plan. It also evaluates how to align California’s 
longer-term GHG reduction strategies with other statewide policy priorities, such as water, waste, 
natural resources, clean energy, transportation, and land use. 

2014 Assembly Bill 1826 
AB 1826 was signed in 2014 to increase the recycling of organic material. GHG emissions produced 
by the decomposition of these materials in landfills were identified as a significant source of 
emissions contributing to climate change. Therefore, reducing organic waste and increasing 
composting and mulching are goals set out by the AB 32 Scoping Plan. AB 1826 specifically requires 

8 https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/SB375_Final_Targets_2018.pdf  

TOC
214



Regulatory Context 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Sustainability Plan 5 

jurisdictions to establish organic waste recycling programs by 2016, and phases in mandatory 
commercial organic waste recycling over time. 

2015 Senate Bill 350 
SB 350, the Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015, has two objectives: to increase the 
procurement of electricity from renewable sources from 33 percent to 50 percent by 2030 and to 
double the energy efficiency of electricity and natural gas end users through energy efficiency and 
conservation. 

2015 Executive Order B-30-15 
EO B-30-15 was signed in 2015, establishing an interim GHG emissions reduction target to reduce 
emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030. The EO also calls for another update to the 
CARB Scoping Plan to provide a pathway to achieve this goal. 

2016 Senate Bill 32 
In September 2016, the governor signed SB 32 into law, extending AB 32 by requiring the state to 
further reduce GHGs to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 (the other provisions of AB 32 remain 
unchanged).  

2016 Senate Bill 1383 
Adopted in September 2016, SB 1383 requires CARB to approve and begin implementing a 
comprehensive strategy to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants. SB 1383 requires 
achievement of the following reduction targets by 2030: 

▪ Methane – 40 percent below 2013 levels
▪ Hydrofluorocarbons – 40 percent below 2013 levels
▪ Anthropogenic black carbon – 50 percent below 2013 levels

SB 1383 also requires CalRecycle, in consultation with CARB, to adopt regulations that achieve 
specified targets for reducing organic waste in landfills. SB 1383 further requires 20% of edible food 
disposed of at the time to be recovered by 2025.  

2017 Scoping Plan Update 
In December 2017, CARB adopted the 2017 Scoping Plan, which provides a framework for achieving 
the 2030 goal set by SB 32. The 2017 Scoping Plan relies on the continuation and expansion of 
existing policies and regulations, such as the Cap-and-Trade Program, as well as implementation of 
recently approved legislation, such as SB 350 and SB 1383. 

The 2017 Scoping Plan also puts an increased emphasis on innovation, adoption of existing 
technology, and strategic investment to support its strategies. As with the 2014 Scoping Plan 
Update, the 2017 Scoping Plan does not provide project-level thresholds for land use development. 
Instead, it recommends that local governments adopt policies and locally appropriate quantitative 
thresholds consistent with statewide per capita goals of six metric tons (MT) CO2e by 2030 and two 
MT CO2e by 2050 (CARB 2017). As stated in the 2017 Scoping Plan, these goals may be appropriate 
for plan-level analyses (i.e., city, county, subregional, or regional level), but not for specific individual 
projects because they include all emissions sectors in the state (CARB 2017). 

TOC
215



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency  
Regulatory Context 

 
6 

2018 Senate Bill 100 
Adopted in September 2018, SB 100 supports the reduction of GHG emissions from the electricity 
sector by accelerating the state’s RPS Program, which was last updated by SB 350 in 2015. SB 100 
requires electricity providers to increase procurement from eligible renewable energy resources to 
33 percent of total retail sales by 2020, 60 percent by 2030, and 100 percent by 2045. 

2018 Executive Order B-55-18 
In September 2018, the governor issued Executive Order B-55-18, which established a new 
statewide goal of achieving carbon neutrality by 2045 and maintaining net negative emissions 
thereafter. This goal is in addition to the existing statewide GHG reduction targets established by 
SB 375, SB 32, SB 1383, and SB 100. 

2020 Executive Order N-79-20 
In September 2020, the governor issued Executive Order N-79-20, which established a new 
statewide goal that 100 percent of in-state sales of new passenger cars and trucks will be zero-
emissions by 2035 and that 100 percent of medium- and heavy-duty vehicles in the State be zero-
emissions by 2045 for all operations where feasible. The EO further sets goal for the State to 
transition to 100 percent zero-emission off-road vehicles and equipment by 2035 where feasible. 
The EO also calls for the establishment of regulations and strategies by the California Air Resources 
Board to provide a pathway to achieve this goal.  

2022 Senate Bill 1020 
Adopted in September 2022, SB 1020 advances the state’s trajectory to 100 percent clean energy 
procurement by 2045 by creating clean energy targets of 90 percent by 2035 and 95 percent by 
2040. SB 1020 builds upon SB 100, which accelerated the state’s RPS, which requires electricity 
providers to increase procurement from eligible renewable energy resources to 60 percent by 2030 
and 100 percent by 2045.  

2022 Assembly Bill 1279 
Adopted in September 2022, AB 1279, codifies the statewide carbon neutrality goal into a legally 
binding requirement for California to achieve carbon neutrality no later than 2045 and ensure 85 
percent GHG emissions reduction under that goal. AB 1279 builds upon EO B-55-18 which originally 
established California’s 2045 goal of carbon neutrality. 

2022 Scoping Plan Update 
In November 2022, CARB adopted the 2022 Scoping Plan, which provides a framework for achieving 
the 2045 carbon neutrality goal set forth by AB 1279.  The 2022 Scoping Plan relies on the 
continuation and expansion of existing policies and regulations, such as the Cap-and-Trade Program, 
as well as implementation of recently approved legislation, such as AB 1279.   

The 2022 Scoping Plan includes, for the first time, a robust discussion of the Natural and Working 
Lands (NWL) sectors as both sources of emissions and carbon sinks. The Plan also centers equity 
when outlining state climate investments and climate mitigation strategies. As with the 2014 and 

TOC
216



Regulatory Context 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Sustainability Plan  7 

2017 Scoping Plans, the 2022 Scoping Plan does not provide project-level thresholds for land use 
development. 9 

Advanced Clean Fleet 
The California Air Resources Board is currently developing a medium and heavy-duty zero-emission 
fleet regulation with a goal of all California truck and bus fleets being zero-emission by 2045. The 
final rulemaking is anticipated to be completed and the regulation adopted in Spring 2023, with 
implementation following soon thereafter. Under the rule public fleets, including special districts, 
50% of 2024-2026 model year vehicles added to the fleet must be ZEVs and 100% of 2027 and 
newer model years must be ZEVs. Compliance reporting would be required annually and within 30 
days of adding vehicles to the fleet.10 

Advanced Clean Trucks Regulation 
The Advanced Clean Trucks Regulation was approved on June 25, 2020. The regulation establishes a 
zero-emissions vehicle sales requirement for trucks or on-road vehicles over 8,500 lbs gross vehicle 
weight and set a one-time reporting requirement for large entities and fleets. Under the regulation, 
manufacturers who certify Class 2b-8 chassis or complete vehicles with combustion engines are 
required to sell zero-emission trucks as an increasing percentage of their annual California sales 
from 2024 to 2035. By 2035, zero-emission truck/chassis sales need to be 55% of Class 2b – 3 truck 
sales, 75% of Class 4 – 8 straight truck sales, and 40% of truck tractor sales. Additionally, the 
regulation established a one-time reporting requirement for large entities and fleets where fleet 
owners, with 50 or more trucks, are required to report about their existing fleet operations by 
March 15, 2021.11 

Advanced Clean Cars II 
The Advanced Clean Cars II regulation was adopted in August 2022. The regulation amends the 
Zero-emission Vehicle Regulation to require an increasing number of zero-emission vehicles, and 
relies on advanced vehicle technologies, including battery electric, hydrogen fuel cell electric and 
plug-in hybrid electric-vehicles, to meet air quality, climate change emissions standards, and 
Executive Order N-79-20, which requires that all new passenger vehicles sold in California be zero 
emissions by 2035. The regulation also amends standards for gasoline cars and heavier passenger 
trucks to continue to reduce smog-forming emissions.12  

 
9 https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/ab-32-climate-change-scoping-plan/2022-scoping-plan-documents 

10 https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/fact-sheets/advanced-clean-fleets-regulation-summary 

11 https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/advanced-clean-trucks 

12 https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/advanced-clean-cars-program/advanced-clean-cars-ii 

TOC
217



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency  
Regulatory Context 

 
8 

Locally Applicable Climate Action Plans 

Draft County of Los Angeles 2045 Climate Action Plan 
The County of Los Angeles completed a draft Climate Action Plan in March of 2023. SCV Water may 
need to comply with Los Angeles County requirements for new construction projects in 
unincorporated areas. While the plan is still in draft form, the targets, strategies, and actions within 
the plan are generally consistent with SCV Water’s Sustainability Plan. Consistencies include a focus 
on renewable energy, decarbonization of buildings and vehicles, and waste diversion.   

TOC
218



APPENDIX C -  
Measures and Actions

SCV Water Sustainability Plan – Appendix C 

Measures and Actions 

prepared by 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
26501 Summit Circle 

Santa Clarita, California 91350 

prepared with the assistance of 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
180 North Ashwood Avenue 

Ventura, California 93003 

January 2023 

TOC
219



TOC
220



Measures and Actions 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Sustainability Plan i 

 

SCV Water Sustainability Plan – Appendix C 

Measures and Actions 

prepared by 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
26501 Summit Circle  

Santa Clarita, California 91350  

prepared with the assistance of 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
180 North Ashwood Avenue  

Ventura, California 93003 

January 2023 

TOC
221



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

222



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Measures and Actions 

ii 

Table of Contents 

Measures and Actions ....................................................................................................................... 1 

Measures and Actions Framework ............................................................................................. 1 

TOC
223



Measures and Actions 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Sustainability Plan iii 

  

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

TOC
224



Measures and Actions 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 1 

Measures and Actions 

Measures and Actions Framework 
In order to guide the development of measures and actions for the Sustainability Plan, the project 
team developed a suite of guiding criteria or pillars through outreach with the community. The 
following operational pillars were identified. A majority of these pillars are based on SCV Water’s 
strategic plan and core mission to provide responsible water stewardship and high-quality water at a 
reasonable cost. 

Cost‐Effective and Efficient: Water resources continue to be strained due to growing population and 
environmental conditions such as drought. Water conservation and increased operational efficiencies 
allow for SCV Water to continue to provide water in a cost-effective manner. 

High Quality Water: Responsible and sustainable stewardship of water resources allows for high 
quality water to be provided to SCV Water customers. 

Reliable and Resilient Operations: Developing solutions to issues such as energy shortages, power 
safety shutoffs, fire, and drought allows SCV Water to make its operations more resilient and continue 
to provide water reliably and affordably to the community. 

Transparency and Accountability: SCV Water recognizes its role as a steward of water, one of the 
most valuable natural resources in California, and understands its responsibility to protect water 
resources and make decisions in the best interest of the community it serves. SCV Water is 
transparent and accountable to the community through the plans it develops and implements to 
protect and manage water resources and by using public Board meetings and public outreach events 
to hear and answer the community’s concerns and questions. 

Measurable GHG reductions: As a water agency, SCV Water plays an important role in helping the 
State to achieve its climate goals and transition towards a low-carbon economy. Aligning with the 
State’s goals provides increased funding opportunities for SCV Water. 

Based on these pillars, the draft measures and actions in Table 1 were developed. The quantifiable 
actions have been developed to provide one possible pathway to achieve the needed GHG reductions. 
However, there are multiple ways for SCV Water to achieve its targets. While the priority actions have 
been listed in the main body of the SCV Water Sustainability Plan this appendix provides additional 
actions that SCV Water may pursue based on available resources. 

TOC
225



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Measures and Actions 

2 

Table 1 Summary of Measures and Supporting Actions 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

Scope 1 – Direct Combustion and Process Emissions 

DC-1: Phase out natural gas combustion at SCV Water facilities to reduce natural gas consumption by 50% by 2030 

Action DC-1-1: Conduct a survey to identify 
aging equipment due for replacement and 
identify operationally and financially viable 
electric alternatives 

<5 years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-1-2: Develop a policy requiring new 
appliances to achieve EnergyStar Certification 

<5 years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-1-3: Electrify equipment at time of 
replacement to reduce natural gas consumption  

Present-2045 2030: 139 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction 

Action DC-1-4: Complete an ASHRAE Level II 
Energy Audit of facilities to identify gas uses and 
energy efficiency opportunities 

<5 years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-1-5: Work with an ESCO to 
implement suggested electrification and energy 
efficiency opportunities 

Ongoing Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-1-6: Purchase renewable gas (biogas) 
for facilities and equipment that cannot be 
replaced by electric equipment to achieve 15% 
reduction in natural gas consumption 
(therms/year) 

<5 years Supportive Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action DC-1-7: Perform retro-commissioning 
(RCx) on facilities to achieve a 10% reduction in 
natural gas use from 2017 levels 

<5 years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

DC-2: Decarbonize SCV Water equipment, reducing fossil fuel use and replacing with all-electric or alternative fuels when
feasible
Action DC-2-1:  Conduct a survey of natural gas, 
diesel, and propane consuming devices used in 
operations 

<5 years Supportive  Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-2-2: Develop plans for replacing fossil 
fuel combustion equipment with electric or 
carbon-free equipment 

Ongoing 2030: 5 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction  
Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-2-3: Identify available funding 
resources such as grants and rebates to replace 
fossil fuel consuming equipment with fossil free 
equipment 

<5 years Supportive  Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-2-4: Develop an electric first policy 
for new equipment 

<5 years Supportive  Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action DC-2-5: For equipment without a feasible 
electric alternative utilize biofuels such as 
renewable diesel as a short-term drop-in fuel 
replacement 

<5 years Supportive  Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

TOC
226



Measures and Actions 

 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 3 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

FL-1: Decarbonize SCV Water Vehicle Fleet through Procurement of Zero-Emission Vehicles to Electrify 50% of the Fleet 
aby 2030 

Action FL-1-1: Conduct a vehicle electrification 
study to determine which fleet vehicles can be 
converted, what chargers are required, and 
where they should be located 

<5 Years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action FL-1-2: Implement "EV First" policy: 
when vehicles must be replaced, first check 
whether EV option is available, and then replace 
with most environmentally friendly option. Fill 
out a form for every vehicle purchased and 
check to see whether an EV option is available.  
When no EV option is available, reduce the 
weight of vehicles and integrate tech that 
monitors vehicle idleness, integrating efficient, 
smaller diesel engines. 

Ongoing 2030: 62 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction  
Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action FL-1-3: Install EV chargers at facilities for 
EV fleet pursuant to the findings of the EV study 

<5 Years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action FL-1-4: Partner with Heavy Duty EV 
companies to conduct pilots and facilitate 
advancements in technology for vehicle classes 
which do not have currently viable options (may 
be grant opportunities for these projects) 

<5 Years Supportive  Cost Effective and 
Efficient 
Partnerships 

Action FL-1-5: Re-invest life cycle maintenance 
savings from EV’s back into vehicle procurement 
budgets to procure additional EV’s  

Ongoing Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action FL-1-6: Evaluate potential to expand 
solar to generate low carbon fuel standard 
credits to fund EV conversion.  

<5 years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action FL-1-7: Identify and apply for funding and 
financing opportunities to fund both EV and 
infrastructure purchases 

<5 Years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

FL-2: Use Alternative Fuels to Bridge the Technology Gap to Zero-Equipment Vehicles 

Action FL-2-1: Expand use of renewable diesel 
when vehicle electrification is not available; 
evaluate use of other alternative fuels like 
hydrogen and hybrid-electric vehicles 

Ongoing 2030: 94 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction  
Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

FL-3: Reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled and Emphasize Right-size Vehicles for Non-ZEV/EV Fleet Vehicles 

Action FL-3-1: When vehicle electrification is not 
available, right-size use of trucks and 
powertrains, assess practicality of using V-6 
engines where V-8 engines are currently used 

Ongoing  Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action FL-3-2: Perform maintenance on vehicle 
fleets to improve performance, including the 
procurement of low rolling resistance tires, 
using the correct tire air pressure, regularly 
replacing air filters 

Ongoing Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action FL-3-2: Create a mandatory training 
module to inform employees with driving duties 
on ways to improve fuel economy. Techniques 

<5 Years Supportive Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

TOC
227



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency  
Measures and Actions 

 
4 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

include slow acceleration, removing 
unnecessary loads from vehicles, limiting idling, 
reducing air conditioning use, using cool control, 
carpooling to project sites with colleagues 

Scope 2-Electricity Consumption 

E-1 Utilize 50% low-carbon and carbon-free electricity by 2030 

Action E-1-1: Switch 
electrical accounts to a 
green rate program (e.g., 
SCE 50 percent and 100 
percent Green Rate 
Programs or Clean Power 
Alliance 40 percent, 50 
percent, of 100 percent 
Carbon Free Programs) 

Present-2040  2030: 1,605 MT CO2e Measurable GHG Reduction  

Action E-1-2: Install an 
additional 1 MW of solar 
generation by 2025; and 2 
MW of solar generation by 
2030 

Present-2030 2030: 151 MT CO2e Measurable GHG Reduction 
Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 
Cost Effective and Efficient 

Action E-1-3: Include battery 
storage at critical facilities to 
improve resilience 

Present-2030 Supportive Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action E-1-4: Switch 
pumping times to mid-day to 
best use solar power 

Present-2030   

Action E-1-5: Evaluate SCV 
Water's solar power 
contracts and options to 
optimize cost and value 

Ongoing  Supportive Cost Effective and Efficient 

Action E-1-6: Investigate 
opportunities to work with 
local CCAs to further reduce 
GHG emissions and save 
money 

Present-2030 Supportive Cost Effective and Efficient 

EE-1: Improve Energy Efficiency at SCV Water Facilities and Buildings 

Action EE-1-1: Conduct 
facility wide energy audits 
annually and track energy 
improvements due to 
energy efficiency upgrades 
and report annually  

Ongoing Supportive Cost Effective and Efficient 
Transparency and 
Accountability 

Action EE-1-2: Develop a 
policy requiring any new 
building to be all-electric 
and utilize heat pumps for 
space and water heating 

<5 years Supportive  Cost Effective and Efficient 

Action EE-1-3: Optimize 
facility operations to 
minimize power, supplies, 
chemicals, and labor 
consumption, including 

Ongoing Supportive  Cost Effective and Efficient 

TOC
228



Measures and Actions 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 5 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

adding on-site online 
chlorine generation and 
using SCE efficiency tests to 
determine what to replace 

Action EE-1-4: Utilize an 
energy management system, 
such as ENERGY STAR 
Portfolio Manager, to track 
and improve energy use 
intensity to measure energy 
efficiency improvements and 
savings over time 

Ongoing Supportive Cost Effective and  

Action EE-1-5: Where not 
implemented already, utilize 
automated lighting for 
facilities in alignment with 
the current California Energy 
Commission Building Energy 
Efficiency Standards 

<5 years Supportive Cost Effective and Efficient 

Action EE-1-6: Implement 
energy savings guidelines for 
in-office operations, 
including turning off 
printers, lights, speakers and 
all other equipment at night, 
unplug USB chargers when 
not in use, always shut down 
the computer Friday before 
leaving for the weekend, 
turn off office lights when 
leaving the room for more 
than 15 minutes, use natural 
light in offices in windows, 
use stairs to avoid elevators 

Ongoing Supportive Cost Effective and Efficient  

Scope 3 – Indirect Emissions 

WC-1: Implement water conservation reducing demand 15% by 2030 
Action WC-1-1: Continue water conservation 
and recycling efforts and programs by 
implementing the Water Use Efficiency Strategic 
Plan, Water Shortage Contingency Plan, Urban 
Water Management Plan, and Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan 

Ongoing 2030: 1,602 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction 
High Quality Water 
and Resource 
Sustainability  
Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Action WC-1-2: Raise awareness of and demand 
for conservation programs (e.g., water 
conservation campaign(s) and related media 
buys, public and school educational programs, 
participation at public events, SCV Water web 
site, newsletter and social media, self-guided 
landscape tour, conservatory garden, etc.) 

Ongoing Supportive High Quality Water 
and Resource 
Sustainability  
Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

TOC
229



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Measures and Actions 

6 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

Action WC-1-3: Increase use of recycled water 
by up to 9,600 AFY by 2030, consistent with 
health and environmental requirements 

Ongoing Supportive High Quality Water 
and Resource 
Sustainability  

Action WC-1-4: Construct additional 
infrastructure to support desalination of tertiary 
recycled water for evaluation of indirect potable 
reuse projects 

<5 Years  Supportive Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action WC-1-5: Work with NGOs to understand 
common goals within the 
community/watershed 

Ongoing Supportive High Quality Water 
and Resources 
Sustainability  
Transparency and 
Accountability  

Action WC-1-6: Provide funding for local 
stormwater capture programs, such as 
permeable paving, bioswales, etc., to increase 
local storage capacity 

<5 Years Supportive  High Quality Water 
and Resource 
Sustainability 

Action WC-1-7: Identify and support local non-
profits and community organizations working on 
native planting and other water reduction 
efforts.  

<5 Years Supportive  High Quality Water 
and Resources 

Action WC-1-8: Analyze current water use 
reduction programs to identify which have the 
highest adoption rate and water use reduction 
impact. Expand programs which are found to be 
the most effective.  

<5 Years Supportive Resilient and Reliable 
Operations  

Action WC-1-9: Explore methods to reduce the 
rate of evaporation from water storage facilities  

<5 Years Supportive Resilient and Reliable 
Operations 

Construction 

CR-1: Reduce emissions from construction 15% by 2030 through decarbonization of construction machinery 

Action CR-1-1: Include electric and zero 
emission equipment in the preferred 
procurement policy for all applicable off-road 
equipment 

Ongoing 2030: 81 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction 
Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action CR-1-2: Develop a prioritized contracting 
selection/RFP process that provide higher 
scoring to contractors who generate fewer GHG 
emissions through the selection of local firms 
(less travel) and the use of electric equipment 

<5 Years Supporting Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Transportation 

TR-1: Reduce employee commute emissions 15% by 2030 
Action TR-1-1: Allow for continued benefits of a 
full or partial work-from-home policy where 
employees telecommute or utilize flexible 
schedule to reduce transit time, VMT, and GHG 
emissions 

<5 Years 2030: 116 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction 
Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action TR-1-2: Install additional parking spaces 
with EV chargers for employees commuting 
and/or visitors 

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

TOC
230



Measures and Actions 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 7 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

Action TR-1-3: Consider EV rebates for 
employees through partnerships 

<5 Years Supporting Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action TR-1-4: Provide preferred parking for 
electric vehicles 

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action TR-1-5: Offer benefits to employees who 
use alternative modes of transportation (e.g., 
public transit, bikes)  

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action TR-1-6: Offer bike storage, showers, and 
changing facilities for bike commuters 

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action TR-1-7: Educate employees on commute 
options including public transportation, EVs, and 
Vanpools 

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Waste 

W-1: Reduce landfilled waste, with a focus on reducing organic waste 75% by 2025 

Action W-1-1: Implement program to separate 
organic waste from other materials. Contract 
with local waste disposal companies to route 
organic waste to food recovery centers, 
anaerobic digestion, or composting facilities 

Ongoing 2025: 472 MT CO2e Measurable GHG 
Reduction 
Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action W-1-2: Conduct a waste assessment, 
including records examinations, facility walk-
throughs, and waste sorting, across all facilities 
to identify waste sources generated, identify 
purchasing and management practices, examine 
current waste reduction practices and their 
effectiveness, and prioritize the most effective 
waste reduction efforts on an area and 
materials-focused basis 

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

TOC
231



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Measures and Actions 

8 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

Action W-1-3: Explore training, education and 
outreach programs, such as the California Green 
Builder program to offer training sessions to 
staff to certify individuals as green building 
professionals. Additional opportunities include 
Zero Waste Principles and Practices Certification 
issued by California Resource Recovery 
Association and Solid Waste Association of 
North America 

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action W-1-4: Implement a policy to duplicate 
all draft reports and make manual and 
personnel information available electronically to 
use less paper; make use of electronic agendas 
and e-signatures, encourage double-side 
printing and implement "print-free" Fridays 
program to avoid printing on Fridays as much as 
possible 

Ongoing Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient  

Action W-1-5: Develop and implement an 
environmentally preferred purchasing policy 

<5 Years Supporting Cost Effective and 
Efficient 

Planning and Education 

PE-1: Integrate Sustainability Planning into Organizational Decision Making 

Action PE-1-1: Develop and Document Mission, 
Vision, and Values: Identify mission, vision, 
mandates and key strategic values specific to 
SCV Water’s sustainability goals; continue to 
update with most relevant climate science and 
policies 

Ongoing Supporting Transparency and 
Accountability 

Action PE-1-2: Develop and Disseminate Annual 
Report: Develop and Disseminate an Annual 
Sustainability Report to document agency 
efforts, successes, and overall performance 

Ongoing  Supporting  Transparency and 
Accountability  

PE-2: Engage with State and Regional Planning for Sustainability 

Action PE-2-1: Monitor climate change science 
and public policy. Incorporate climate change 
impacts on water demand and supplies into 
long-term plans and programs to maintain 
reliable and sustainable water supplies 

Ongoing  Supporting Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action PE-2-2: Regularly assess the carbon 
footprint of SCV Water 

Ongoing  Supporting Transparency and 
Accountability  

Action PE-2-3: Describe, consider, and address 
the effects of climate change on the region and 
disclose, consider, and reduce, where feasible, 
GHG emissions when developing and 
implementing projects 

Ongoing Supporting Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

Action PE-2-4: Coordinate legislative initiatives 
concerning Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta and 
water conservation with legislative analysts, 
Association of California Water Agencies, State 
Water Contractors and other necessary parties 
to enhance the reliability and cost effectiveness 
of SCV Water’s SWP water supply. 

Ongoing Supporting Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 
Partnerships 

TOC
232



Measures and Actions 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 9 

Measure; Actions and Targets Timeframe 
Emission/ 
Sustainability Impacts SCVW Pillar 

Action PE-2-5: Lead the implementation of the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act for 
the Santa Clarita Valley. 

Ongoing Supporting Reliable and Resilient 
Operations 

TOC
233



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

234



ADDENDUM 1 - Errata to 
the Public Review Draft

Addendum 1-Errata to the Public Review Draft 

Final Environmental Impact Report 3-1

Addendum 1-Errata to the Public Review Draft 

This section presents specific text changes made to the draft Sustainability Plan since its publication 
and public review. The changes are presented in the order in which they appear in the original Draft 
and are identified by the Draft page number. Text deletions are shown in strikethrough, and text 
additions are shown in underline. The information contained within this section clarifies and 
expands on information in the Draft and does not constitute “significant new information” requiring 
recirculation.  

Revisions to the Draft Sustainability Plan 

Page 2, Paragraph 1 
The following paragraph on page 2 was updated from: 

The Sustainability Plan is a long-range planning document that will guide SCV Water’s operational 
sustainability actions through 2045, in alignment with the State’s current goals, legislation, and 
mandates. The Sustainability Plan aligns with SCV Water’s long-term plans and fills a gap in 
sustainability planning across SCV Water’s four primary areas of operations which include: Water 
Supply, Water Treatment, Water Distribution, and Water Demand Management. While the 
Sustainability Plan will guide SCV Water’s operational sustainability strategy, the Water Resilience 
Initiative ensures the resilience and reliability of the Agency’s water supplies. Additionally, the 
Water Use Efficiency Plan provides SCV Water with a framework to increase water demands 
sustainability. Figure 1-1 highlights the major planning initiatives undertaken by SCV Water and its 
analysis of sustainability across its primary operational areas. As a result of this analysis, water 
treatment and water distribution, i.e., the core operational infrastructure of SCV Water, were 
identified as operational areas without an existing sustainability plan.  

To add the correct name of the Water Use Efficiency Strategic Plan and explain priorities of SCV 
Water in implementing the Sustainability Plan, the new language is: 

The Sustainability Plan is a long-range planning document that will guide SCV Water’s 
operational sustainability actions through 2045, in alignment with the State’s current goals, 
legislation, and mandates. The Sustainability Plan aligns with SCV Water’s long-term plans 
and fills a gap in sustainability planning across SCV Water’s four primary areas of operations 
which include: Water Supply, Water Treatment, Water Distribution, and Water Demand 
Management. While the Sustainability Plan will guide SCV Water’s operational sustainability 
strategy, the Water Resilience Initiative ensures the resilience and reliability of the Agency’s water 
supplies. Additionally, the Water Use Efficiency Strategic Plan provides SCV Water with a 
framework to increase water demands sustainability. Figure 1-1 highlights the major 
planning initiatives undertaken by SCV Water and its analysis of sustainability across its 
primary operational areas. As a result of this analysis, water treatment and water 
distribution, i.e., the core operational infrastructure of SCV Water, were identified as 
operational areas without an existing sustainability plan. While the Sustainability Plan highlights 
opportunities for more efficient operations, nothing in this plan supersedes SCV Water’s core 
mission of reliability and service consistency. 

TOC
235



3-2

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

Page 2, Figure 1-1 
The following text was added to the legend for Figure 1-1 to clarify the bold and shaded text in the 
figure:  

Reports in Bold – Reports in bold directly address sustainability planning for the corresponding SCV 
Water focus area.  

Shaded Reports – Reports which are lightly shaded may address sustainability in the corresponding 
SCV Water focus area, but only partially.  

Page 5, Figure 1-2 
Figure 1-2 was updated from showing change in total acre-feet of water deliveries for SCV Water, 
from 2015-2020 to a new figure providing water deliveries from 1995-2020 and a forecast through 
2050.  

Page 5, Paragraph 1 
The following paragraph on page 5 was updated from: 

SCV Water sells, manages, and delivers surface water, groundwater, and recycled water for 
municipal, industrial, domestic, and agricultural customers in the Santa Clarita Valley. SCV Water 
serves a population of 286,300 through 75,000 retail water connections with a service area of 195 
square miles. The Agency has 101 local water storage tanks, 821 miles of pipeline, 216 million 
gallons of water storage capacity, and 114,000 acre-feet of water stored in Kern County. The change 
in total acre-feet of water deliveries for SCV Water, from 2015-2020, is shown in Figure 1-2. SCV 
Water’s GHG emissions associated with these water deliveries are mostly from the purchase and 
consumption of electricity used for water treatment, conveyance, and delivery of water throughout 
its service area. 

To describe the updated figure, the new language is: 

SCV Water sells, manages, and delivers surface water, groundwater, and recycled water for 
municipal, industrial, domestic, and agricultural customers in the Santa Clarita Valley. SCV Water 
serves a population of 286,300 through 75,000 retail water connections with a service area of 195 
square miles. The Agency has 101 local water storage tanks, 821 miles of pipeline, 216 million 
gallons of water storage capacity, and 114,000 acre-feet water stored in Kern County. The change in 
total acre-feet of water deliveries for SCV Water from 1995-2020 and three potential demand 
forecasts through 2050 are shown in Figure 1-2. SCV Water’s GHG emissions associated with these 
water deliveries are mostly from the purchase and consumption of electricity used for water 
treatment, conveyance, and delivery of water throughout its service area.  

TOC
236



Addendum 1-Errata to the Public Review Draft 

Final Environmental Impact Report 3-3

Page 10, Paragraph 1 
The following footnote on page 10 was updated from: 

State Water Project Delivery Capability Report. 2019. https://data.cnra.ca.gov/dataset/state-water-
project-delivery-capability-report-dcr-2021. Accessed October 2022. 

To reference the up-to-date report year, the new language is: 

State Water Project Delivery Capability Report. 2021. https://data.cnra.ca.gov/dataset/state-water-
project-delivery-capability-report-dcr-2021. Accessed October 2022. 

Page 11, Paragraph 1 
The following paragraph on page 10 was updated from: 

SCV Water’s operations and water resources are already experiencing strain from climate change 
impacts. Particularly, increased periods of drought are leading to reductions in water supply 
availability. Prolonged drought periods decrease the natural recharge of local aquifers from which 
SCV Water draws groundwater. Changing precipitation patterns are also causing increased rain and 
decreased snowfall, which is having significant impacts on snowpack. Decreased snowpack in 
California means there is less natural storage of water, decreasing the availability of water during 
the dry summer months. This has significant impacts on SCV Water, as it currently relies on 
imported water from northern California. 

To clarify the potential uncertainty around impacts of climate change on SCV Water’s water 
supplies, the new language is: 

SCV Water’s operations and water resources are already experiencing strain from climate change 
impacts. Particularly, increased periods of drought are leading to reductions in water supply 
availability. Prolonged drought periods decrease the natural recharge of local aquifers from which 
SCV Water draws groundwater. Changing precipitation patterns are also causing increased rain and 
decreased snowfall, which is having significant impacts on snowpack. Decreased snowpack in 
California means there is less natural storage of water, decreasing the availability of water during 
the dry summer months. This is anticipated to significantly impact SCV Water’s imported water 
supplies.   

Page 13, Paragraph 1 
The following paragraph on page 13 was updated from: 

Measuring resource consumption can be used as a metric to assess sustainability progress. This may 
include assessing the consumption of energy use, fuel use or water to understand if resources are 
being consumed in a sustainable manner, with consideration to economic, social, and 
environmental impacts. Financial metrics such as the cost/benefit ratio and return on investment 
can measure the economic benefits from sustainability efforts. Metrics around employee and 
customer engagement and satisfaction and staff time reductions may also be utilized to understand 
sustainability achievements. 

To remove the last sentence, the new language is: 

Measuring resource consumption can be used as a metric to assess sustainability progress. This may 
include assessing the consumption of energy use, fuel use or water to understand if resources are 
being consumed in a sustainable manner, with consideration to economic, social, and 

TOC
237



3-4

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

environmental impacts. Financial metrics such as the cost/benefit ratio and return on investment 
can measure the economic benefits from sustainability efforts.  

Page 29, Paragraph 4 
The following paragraph on page 29 was updated from: 

Improving cost effectiveness and efficiency of SCV Water’s operations will allow the Agency to 
better serve customers and provide fair and equitable rates. While the upfront costs associated with 
implementing some of the sustainability measures may be high, many measures provide a return on 
investment and long-term cost savings attributed to reduced transportation costs, avoided waste, 
reduced utility usage, and decreased total cost of ownership. Notably, procuring a zero-emissions 
fleet, as described in Measure FL-1, may lead to total lifecycle costs savings for SCV Water (and is 
required by the State’s Advanced Clean Fleets Rule). While replacing vehicles with electric options 
may have higher upfront costs, over time, the fuel savings and decreased maintenance needs of 
electric vehicles, compared to internal combustion vehicles, lead to decreased lifecycle costs. 
Additionally, studies have found electric vehicle lifecycle costs are not greatly impacted by electricity 
costs and even a doubling of electricity costs does not change the relative cost differences between 
electric vehicles and internal combustion vehicles.  

To add an additional sentence regarding potential cost implications of implementing the 
Sustainability Plan, the new language is: 

Improving cost effectiveness and efficiency of SCV Water’s operations will allow the Agency to 
better serve customers and provide fair and equitable rates. While the upfront costs associated with 
implementing some of the sustainability measures may be high, many measures provide a return on 
investment and long-term cost savings attributed to reduced transportation costs, avoided waste, 
reduced utility usage, and decreased total cost of ownership. Notably, procuring a zero-emissions 
fleet, as described in Measure FL-1, may lead to total lifecycle costs savings for SCV Water (and is 
required by the State’s Advanced Clean Fleets Rule). While replacing vehicles with electric options 
may have higher upfront costs, over time, the fuel savings and decreased maintenance needs of 
electric vehicles, compared to internal combustion vehicles, lead to decreased lifecycle costs. 
Additionally, studies have found electric vehicle lifecycle costs are not greatly impacted by electricity 
costs and even a doubling of electricity costs does not change the relative cost differences between 
electric vehicles and internal combustion vehicles. While SCV Water is prioritizing the selection of 
cost-effective and efficient sustainability measures, the implementation of some measures may lead 
to increases in the Agency’s operational costs.  

Page 38, Paragraph 2 
The following paragraph on page 38 was updated from: 

In addition to changing its electricity procurement strategy, developing additional on-site solar and 
battery storage will both reduce GHG emissions and increase resilience to disturbances such as power 
outages. GHG reduction potential calculated based on switching to the 50 percent green rate option 
at either SCE or CPA. Additional reductions would be achieved by switching to the 100 percent green 
rate option. This measure provides co-benefits including increased reliable and resilient operations 
because on-site energy generation (solar) and battery storage allows for continued operations even 
when the grid is down. It also provides co-benefits of increased cost-effectiveness and efficiency, as 
on-site solar and battery storage will reduce SCV Water’s utility costs over time.  

TOC
238



Addendum 1-Errata to the Public Review Draft 

Final Environmental Impact Report 3-5

To remove will from the last sentence and replace it with may, the new language is: 

This measure provides co-benefits including increased reliable and resilient operations because on-
site energy generation (solar) and battery storage allows for continued operations even when the 
grid is down. It also provides co-benefits of increased cost-effectiveness and efficiency, as on-site 
solar and battery storage may reduce SCV Water’s utility costs over time. 

Page 43, Paragraph 2 
The following paragraph on page 43 was updated from: 

The second pathway to reduce emissions is through the use of ZEVs. The employee commuter fleet 
will inevitably transition to ZEV with the establishment of the Zero-Emissions Vehicle Regulation and 
Executive Order N-79-20, which requires 100 percent of sales of new passenger vehicles to be ZEV 
by 2035. To support this transition SCV Water will work to provide additional EV charging 
infrastructure for employees. Available state and regional ZEV and charging infrastructure 
incentive/rebate through entities, such as CARB, should support the increased use of ZEVs by SCV 
Water employees. Additional actions around incentives, credit generating opportunities, and 
partnerships are outlined in Appendix C. This measure provides the co-benefits of increased cost-
effectiveness and efficiency due to decreased consumption of fossil fuels and utilities at SCV Water 
facilities. This measure also provides co-benefits of increased reliability and resilience of operations 
because promoting telecommuting and flexible work options increases business continuity during 
hazards events or operationally disruptive scenarios.  

To add implementing to the last sentence, the new language is: 

The second pathway to reduce emissions is through the use of ZEVs. The employee commuter fleet 
will inevitably transition to ZEV with the establishment of the Zero-Emissions Vehicle Regulation and 
Executive Order N-79-20, which requires 100 percent of sales of new passenger vehicles to be ZEV 
by 2035. To support this transition SCV Water will work to provide additional EV charging 
infrastructure for employees. Available state and regional ZEV and charging infrastructure 
incentive/rebate through entities, such as CARB, should support the increased use of ZEVs by SCV 
Water employees. Additional actions around incentives, credit generating opportunities, and 
partnerships are outlined in Appendix C. This measure provides the co-benefits of increased cost-
effectiveness and efficiency due to decreased consumption of fossil fuels and utilities at SCV Water 
facilities. This measure also provides co-benefits of increased reliability and resilience of operations 
because promoting telecommuting and implementing flexible work options increases business 
continuity during hazards events or operationally disruptive scenarios.  

Page 49, Paragraph 2 
The following paragraph on page 49 was updated from: 

Targets will be re-evaluated and assessed on a periodic basis to assess progress made and SCV 
Water’s ability to achieve GHG emissions reduction through the measures and actions outlined 
in Chapter 5. Targets should be adjusted as more data and information become available to SCV 
Water. They should also be tracked congruently with future State GHG reduction legislation, to 
ensure alignment.  

TOC
239



3-6

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

To include reference to the need to update both targets and strategies in future plans, the 
new language is: 

Targets and strategies will be re-evaluated and assessed on a periodic basis to gauge progress 
made, address new regulations, and best practices, and evaluate SCV Water’s ability to achieve 
GHG emissions reduction through the measures and actions outlined in Chapter 5. Targets and 
strategies should be adjusted as more data and information become available to SCV Water. 
They should also be tracked congruently with future State GHG reduction legislation, to ensure 
alignment.  

Revisions to Appendices to the Draft Sustainability Plan 

Appendix A, Page 2-3, Paragraph 6 
The following paragraph on page 2-3 was updated from: 

SCWVA water resources include imported water, local groundwater, recycled water, and water from 
existing groundwater banking and exchange programs.8 Imported water is provided by the SWP, 
Buena Vista-Rosedal, and Yuba Accord Water. SCVWA currently participates in a number of water 
conservation efforts and offers numerous water conservation educational programs such as school 
programs, gardening classes, newsletters, and online conservation tips and resources. 

To correctly spell Buena Vista-Rosedale, the new language is: 

SCWVA water resources include imported water, local groundwater, recycled water, and water from 
existing groundwater banking and exchange programs.8 Imported water is provided by the SWP, 
Buena Vista-Rosedale, and Yuba Accord Water. SCVWA currently participates in a number of water 
conservation efforts and offers numerous water conservation educational programs such as school 
programs, gardening classes, newsletters, and online conservation tips and resources. 

Appendix A, Page 11, Paragraph 1 
The following paragraph on page 11 was updated from: 

The inventory excludes some GHG emissions sources from consideration, as they were not 
considered relevant for SCVWA operations or were accounted for in other sectors. Refrigerants and 
fire suppressants are an insignificant source of GHG emissions for SCVWA and, therefore, were 
excluded from the inventory. Since SCVWA does not have control over wastewater treatment 
plants, industrial process emissions associated with wastewater treatment were captured under 
Scope 3 sources for wastewater; thereby including only wastewater process, collection, and 
treatment emissions associated with wastewater generated at SCVWA facilities. Production 
emissions (i.e., water produced and supplied) was not differentiated into its own category but 
captured under the Scope 1 and Scope 2 sources, due to its electricity and fuel use. Emissions 
associated with water treatment or conveyance of imported water is not under the operational 
control of SCVWA and, therefore, was not included in the inventory. Because no agricultural 
activities exist under SCVWA operational control, agricultural emissions (including enteric 
fermentation and manure management) were not considered relevant for SCVWA and are also 
excluded. Forestry and other land emissions potentially associated with SCVWA properties were 
also excluded since the SCVWA service territory is mostly in urban areas. 

TOC
240



Addendum 1-Errata to the Public Review Draft 

Final Environmental Impact Report 3-7

To clarify emissions not included in the inventory, the new language is: 

The inventory excludes some GHG emissions sources from consideration, as they were not 
considered relevant for SCVWA operations, or were accounted for in other sectors. Refrigerants and 
fire suppressants are an insignificant source of GHG emissions for SCVWA and, therefore, were 
excluded from the inventory. Since SCVWA does not have control over wastewater treatment 
plants, industrial process emissions associated with wastewater treatment were captured under 
Scope 3 sources for wastewater; thereby including only wastewater process, collection, and 
treatment emissions associated with wastewater generated at SCVWA facilities. Production 
emissions (i.e., water produced and supplied) was not differentiated into its own category but 
captured under the Scope 1 and Scope 2 sources, due to its electricity and fuel use. Emissions 
associated with the operations of the State Water Project to provide imported water is not included 
in the inventory. Because no agricultural activities exist under SCVWA operational control, 
agricultural emissions (including enteric fermentation and manure management) were not 
considered relevant for SCVWA and are also excluded. Forestry and other land emissions potentially 
associated with SCVWA properties were also excluded since the SCVWA service territory is mostly in 
urban areas.  

Appendix A, Page 16, Table 6 
The following Table on page 16 was updated from: 

Table 1 GHG Emissions from Natural Gas Methane Leakage 
Year 2020 

Natural Gas (Therms) 35,932 

Methane Leakage (Therms)1 1,006 

EF (MT CO2e/Therm)2 0.04689 

Total Emissions (MT CO2e) 47 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 
1 Based on peer reviewed studies, 2.8% of natural gas delivered is leaked from compressor stations and at the end user meter. 
2 Calculated by multiplying cubic meter of natural gas per therm (2.776) [source: https://www.abraxasenergy.com/energy-
resources/toolbox/conversion-calculators/energy/] by density of natural gas (0.000712 MT/ cubic meter) [source: 
https://www.unitrove.com/engineering/tools/gas/natural-gas-density] by methane content of natural gas (94.9%) [source: North 
American Energy Standards Board]. Adjusted for GWP of CH4. 
EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

To explain the connection between reducing natural gas usage and methane leakage, the new 
table is: 

Table 2 GHG Emissions from Natural Gas Methane Leakage 
Year 2020 

Natural Gas (Therms) 35,932 

Methane Leakage (Therms)1 1,006 

EF (MT CO2e/Therm)2 0.04689 

Total Emissions (MT CO2e) 47 
Notes: Values have been rounded herein and therefore may not add up exactly. 

TOC
241



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Sustainability Plan 

3-8

1 Based on peer reviewed studies, 2.8% of natural gas delivered is leaked from compressor stations and at the end user meter. By 
reducing natural gas usage, there will be a proportionate decrease in the leakage of natural gas.  
2 Calculated by multiplying cubic meter of natural gas per therm (2.776) [source: https://www.abraxasenergy.com/energy-
resources/toolbox/conversion-calculators/energy/] by density of natural gas (0.000712 MT/ cubic meter) [source: 
https://www.unitrove.com/engineering/tools/gas/natural-gas-density] by methane content of natural gas (94.9%) [source: North 
American Energy Standards Board]. Adjusted for GWP of CH4. 
EF = emission factor; MT CO2e = metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 

Appendix B, Page 8 
Appendix B of the Draft Sustainability Plan has been amended to include a reference to the newly 
released Draft County of Los Angeles 2045 Climate Action Plan. The following paragraph was added 
to a new page (page 8) of Appendix B.  

Draft County of Los Angeles 2045 Climate Action Plan 
The County of Los Angeles completed a draft Climate Action Plan in March of 2023. SCV Water 
may need to comply with Los Angeles County requirements for new construction projects in 
unincorporated areas. While the plan is still in draft form, the targets, strategies, and actions 
within the plan are generally consistent with SCV Water’s Sustainability Plan. Consistencies 
include a focus on renewable energy, decarbonization of buildings and vehicles, and waste 
diversion.   

TOC
242



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
SC

V 
W

at
er

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

Ju
ly

 1
1,

 2
02

3

243



Pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

 O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s

1.
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s 

2.
Re

vi
ew

 P
la

n 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

s 

3.
Re

ce
iv

e 
an

d 
Re

sp
on

d 
to

 Q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 C

om
m

en
ts

4.
Bo

ar
d 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f 
th

e 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Pl
an

244



A
ge

nd
a

1.
In

tr
od

uc
ti

on

2.
Cl

im
at

e 
an

d 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Pl
an

1.
O

ve
rv

ie
w

2.
Be

ne
fi

ts

3.
En

er
gy

 &
 G

H
G

 In
ve

nt
or

y 
+ 

Fo
re

ca
st

in
g

4.
M

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s

3.
N

ex
t 

St
ep

s

4.
Q

ue
st

io
ns

 &
 C

om
m

en
ts

245



In
tr

od
uc

ti
on

s

ER
IC

A 
LI

N
AR

D,
 P

H
D

RI
N

CO
N

 C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
, 

IN
C

M
AT

TH
EW

 S
. 

DI
CK

EN
S,

 M
PA

SC
V 

W
AT

ER

A
dd

it
io

na
l S

up
po

rt
:

SC
V 

W
at

er
 S

ta
ff

-
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y

-
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
-

O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

-
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
-

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

-
IT

JU
LI

A 
G

RO
TH

E
SC

V 
W

AT
ER

RY
AN

 G
AR

DN
ER

, 
M

ES
M

, 
EN

V-
SP

RI
N

CO
N

 C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
, 

IN
C

246



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
 –

M
ile

st
on

es
1.

20
19

 -
SC

V 
W

at
er

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

2.
20

19
 –

U
SC

/S
CV

 W
at

er
 C

ap
st

on
e 

Co
lla

bo
ra

ti
on

3.
20

19
 –

La
un

ch
 o

f 
G

re
en

 T
ea

m

4.
20

20
 –

In
it

ia
l I

nt
er

na
l A

na
ly

si
s

5.
20

21
 –

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 (

Ri
nc

on
) 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ro

cu
re

d

6.
20

22
 –

W
RW

 C
om

m
it

te
e 

Re
vi

ew
/P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
ho

p/
BO

D 
W

or
ks

ho
p

7.
20

22
/2

02
3 

–
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
ff

 R
ev

ie
w

/D
ra

ft
 P

la
n/

Pu
bl

ic
 

Co
m

m
en

t/
W

RW
 C

om
m

it
te

e 
Re

vi
ew

 &
 C

on
si

de
ra

ti
on

/B
O

D 
Re

vi
ew

 
&

 C
on

si
de

ra
ti

on

247



A
bo

ut
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
•

AB
 3

2 
co

di
fi

ed
 t

he
 s

ta
te

w
id

e 
go

al
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
to

 1
99

0 
le

ve
ls

 b
y 

20
20

•
SB

 3
2 

re
qu

ir
es

 t
he

 s
ta

te
 o

f 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 s
ta

te
w

id
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 G
H

G
 

e m
is

si
on

s 
by

 4
0%

 b
el

ow
 1

99
0 

le
ve

l b
y 

20
30

•
EO

 B
-5

5-
18

 e
st

ab
lis

he
s 

st
at

ew
id

e 
go

al
 o

f 
ca

rb
on

 n
eu

tr
al

it
y 

by
 2

04
5

•
St

at
e 

re
co

gn
iz

es
 w

at
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
as

 la
rg

e 
en

er
gy

 e
m

is
si

on
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

or
 a

nd
 

co
n s

id
er

 w
at

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

im
po

rt
an

t 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 t

he
se

 s
ta

te
w

id
e 

go
al

s

•
Cl

im
at

e 
ac

ti
on

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ha

s 
a 

ro
le

 in
 w

at
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
la

nn
in

g

•
In

te
gr

at
ed

 R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

•
H

az
ar

d 
M

it
ig

at
io

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

•
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

Re
lia

bi
lit

y 
Pl

an
 

•
W

at
er

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

248



SC
VW

A 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

&
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

en
ef

it
s

Im
pr

ov
es

 s
co

ri
ng

 f
or

 g
ra

nt
 f

un
di

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ti
es

Id
en

ti
fi

es
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 s

av
in

gs
 p

ot
en

ti
al

Fi
rs

t 
st

ep
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
CE

Q
A 

qu
al

if
ie

d 
G

H
G

 r
ed

uc
ti

on
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

CE
Q

A 
st

re
am

lin
in

g

Su
pp

or
ts

 2
02

0 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Ac
ti

on
 P

la
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

ng
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

ti
al

 G
H

G
 r

ed
uc

ti
on

 m
ea

su
re

s

Fu
tu

re
 C

EQ
A 

St
re

am
lin

in
g

Co
st

 
Sa

vi
ng

s/
Pr

oc
es

s 
Ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s

En
ha

nc
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
of

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Gr
an

t F
un

di
ng

249



Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sc
he

du
le

 -
Te

ch
ni

ca
l

U
pc

om
in

g
U

pc
om

in
g

*P
la

n 
ad

op
ti

on
 g

oa
l:

 J
ul

y 
20

23

250



Ba
se

lin
e 

In
ve

nt
or

y

251



En
er

gy
 &

 G
H

G
 F

or
ec

as
ti

ng
 (

BA
U

)

252



En
er

gy
 &

 G
H

G
 F

or
ec

as
ti

ng
 (

Ta
rg

et
 P

at
hw

ay
s)

253



M
ea

su
re

s 
&

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s

Sc
op

e 
1 

M
ea

su
re

s 
–

4 
M

ea
su

re
s

Sc
op

e 
2 

M
ea

su
re

s 
–

2 
M

ea
su

re
s

Sc
op

e 
3 

M
ea

su
re

s 
–

4 
M

ea
su

re
s

Co
-B

en
ef

it
s

1.
 R

el
ia

bl
e 

&
 R

es
ili

en
t 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

2.
 H

ig
h 

Q
ua

lit
y 

W
at

er
 &

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y

3.
 C

os
t-

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
&

 E
ff

ic
ie

nt

4.
 T

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y 

&
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

254



N
ex

t 
St

ep
s

Su
bm

it 
Pl

an
 to

 S
CV

 W
at

er
 B

O
D 

fo
r C

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

&
 A

do
pt

io
n

De
ve

lo
p 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ra
te

gi
es

, P
rio

rit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 C

os
t-

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s P
ro

to
co

ls

Pr
oc

ur
e 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 S

up
po

rt
 fo

r S
er

vi
ce

 P
ro

vi
sio

n

U
se

 o
f C

AP
Da

sh
an

d 
An

nu
al

 R
ep

or
t t

o 
tr

ac
k 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f G

HG
 m

ea
su

re
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

255



St
af

f 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on

Re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
e 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

 o
f 

Di
re

ct
or

s 
Ad

op
t 

th
e 

20
23

 
SC

V 
W

at
er

 S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n.

 

256



Q
ue

st
io

ns
 &

 C
om

m
en

ts
M

at
th

ew
 S

. D
ic

ke
ns

, M
PA

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
M

an
ag

er
m

di
ck

en
s@

sc
vw

at
er

.c
om

257



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

258



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee met at 5:30 PM on Wednesday, June 14, 
2023 at the Engineering Services Section (ESS) Boardroom located at 26521 Summit Circle, 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350. In attendance were Committee Chair Piotr Orzechowski, Directors 
William Cooper, Dirk Marks and Gary Martin. Staff members present were Director of Water 
Resources Ali Elhassan, Senior Water Resources & Data Scientist Najwa Pitois, Executive 
Assistant Eunie Kang, and Information Technology Technician I Jonathan Thomas. Attending 
virtually were Sustainability Manager Matt Dickens and Lauren Collar and Erik Feldman from 
Rincon Consultant and members of the public were present. A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Item 2:  Public Comment – There was no public comment. 
 
Item 3:  Recommend Adopting a Sustainability Action Plan – After review and discussion, 
the Committee recommended through consensus to move this item forward for consideration by 
the Board and approval. This item will be presented in a separate report going to the July 18, 
2023 regular Board meeting.   
 
There was public comment on item 3.  
 
Item 4:  Recommend Adopting a Resolution to Enact Stage 1 (Reduced from Stage 2) of 
the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water Conservation and Water Supply 
Shortage Ordinance – After review and discussion, the Committee recommended through 
consensus to remove the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water Conservation and Water 
Supply Shortage Ordinance. This item will be presented in a separate report going to the July 
18, 2023 regular Board meeting for consideration by the Board and approval under the consent 
calendar.  
 
Item 5:  Water Resources Director’s Report  
 

5.1 Santa Clara River Habitat Suitability – Najwa Pitois presented an update on the 
California Environment Framework (CEFF) and Habitat Suitability. Staff and 
Committee reviewed the use of CEFF in Agency planning, framework and habitat 
suitability model and observations and existing conditions of the local river basins.  

 
5.2  Staff Activities – Ali Elhassan provided a summary of staff activities. 

• Water Supply Update  

DATE: June 15, 2023  

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: June 14, 2023 Water Resources and Watershed Committee Meeting Recap 
Report 

259

ajacobs
Item 9.1



• Westside Water Authority – collaboration and possible water exchange 
program  

• Update on the SCV-GSA Board meeting on June 5, 2023  
• Groundwater Resources Association (GRA) 2023 SGMA Implementation 

Workshop Attendance  
 

Item 6:  Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and the Committee reviewed the Planning 
Calendar. 
 
Item 7:  Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 7:45 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Agency website or by clicking the following link:  
https://yourscvwater.com/meetings/committee-meeting-061423 
 
Attachment 
 

 
 

260

https://yourscvwater.com/meetings/committee-meeting-061423
ajacobs
Matt Stone



 
 
 
 
 
Date: June 7, 2023 
 
To: Water Resources and Watershed Committee 
 Piotr Orzechowski, Chair  
 William Cooper 
 Dirk Marks  
 Gary Martin  
  
From: Steve Cole, Assistant General Manager  
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee meeting for Wednesday, June 14, 2023 at 
5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Engineering Services 
Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in person or virtually. To attend 
this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-833-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 949 5022 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1609495022. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.   
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ekang@scvwa.org or by mail to Eunie Kang, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 
4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received 
after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and 
will posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, 
including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
  

261

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1609495022
mailto:ekang@scvwa.org


Jun 7, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM PAGE 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not 
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

 

3.   * Recommend Adopting a Sustainability Action Plan  1 

4.   * Recommend Adopting a Resolution to Enact Stage 1 (Reduced from 
Stage 2) of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Water 
Conservation and Water Supply Shortage Ordinance  

3 

5.    Water Resources Director’s Report   

 5.1 Santa Clara River Habitat Suitability   

 5.2 Staff Activities  

6.   * Committee Planning Calendar 11 

7. Adjournment  

 
*    Indicates Attachment 
        Indicates Handout 

 
NOTICES: 

 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Eunie Kang, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or email to ekang@scvwa.org or by writing to  
Eunie Kang, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. 
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  
A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the 
requested accommodation.  
  

262

mailto:ekang@scvwa.org


Jun 7, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 
 
Posted on June 7, 2023.                           

263

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

264



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The Public Outreach and Legislation Committee met at 5:30 PM on Thursday, June 15, 2023, at 
the Engineering Services Section (ESS) Boardroom located at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa 
Clarita, CA 91350. In attendance were Committee Chair Maria Gutzeit, Directors Kathye 
Armitage and Beth Braunstein. Staff members present were Assistant General Manager Steve 
Cole, Communications Manager Kathie Martin, newly hired Communications Manager Kevin 
Strauss, Executive Assistant Eunie Kang and Information Technology Tech I Jonathan Thomas. 
Attending virtually were Consultant Geoff Bowman from Van Scoyoc Associates, Consultant 
Dennis Albiani and Annalee Akin from California Advocates, and members of the public were 
present. A copy of the Agenda is attached. 
 
Item 2:  Public Comment – There was no public comment. 
 
Item 3:  Legislative Consultant Reports – Staff and the Committee reviewed the federal 
legislative report by Geoff Bowman, state legislative report by Dennis Albiani and Annalee Akin 
and local legislative written report by Hunt Braly.  
 
Item 4:  Discussion of 2023 Customer Survey – Staff provided a summary of the 2023 
customer survey. Overall, customers are satisfied with the services provided by the Agency. 
The survey will be used strategically for planning and implementation of future rebate programs, 
best in class customer service, education, and public outreach.  
 
Item 5:  Communications Manager Activities – Kathie Martin and Kevin Strauss provided an 
update of current staff activities.  
 

• Water Matters: Navigating the Consumer Confidence Report and Water Quality 
Concerns in the SCV – Webinar is scheduled on June 21, 2023. The webinar will touch 
on hardwater, PFAS, and cloudy water in the Santa Clarita Valley.   

• Final Water Academy Survey Results – Overall, participants agreed the academy was 
interesting and informative and expressed appreciation of staff’s knowledge and 
dedication to the Agency.  

• Water Stations at Events – The committee was provided with the guidelines developed 
by staff to consider when the Agency is requested to participate in a public event. 

• Dickason/Smyth Pipeline Replacements – Construction is scheduled to begin this 
summer, subject to supply chain timelines. Nearby schools and businesses that will be 
impacted by the construction have been notified.  

• LARC and Lily of the Valley Outreach – currently developing a one-page fact sheet flyer 
to be distributed along the project route.  

DATE: June 19, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: June 15, 2023 Public Outreach and Legislation Committee Meeting Recap 
Report 

265

ajacobs
Item 9.2



 

 
 

Event Participation Criteria and Sponsorship Guidelines were provided to Committee members 
as handouts for review and discussion. 
 
There was public comment on item 5. 
 
Item 6:  Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and Committee reviewed the Planning 
Calendar. 
 
Item 7:  Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 7:00 PM in recognition and appreciation of 
Communications Manager Kathie Martin’s retirement for her dedication and service to the SCV 
Water Agency.  
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Agency website or by clicking the following link:  
https://yourscvwater.com/meetings/committee-meeting-061523 
 
 
Attachment  
 

266

https://yourscvwater.com/meetings/committee-meeting-061523
ajacobs
Matt Stone



   
 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com 

 
 
  
 

 
Date: June 7, 2023 
 
To: Public Outreach and Legislation Committee 
 Maria Gutzeit, Chair 
 Kathye Armitage 
 Beth Braunstein  
 Ed Colley  
 
From: Steve Cole, Assistant General Manager  
 
The Public Outreach and Legislation Committee meeting is on Thursday, June 15, 2023 at 
5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Engineering Services 
Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in person or virtually. To attend 
this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the addresses listed above. As a convenience to 
the public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-833-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 482 9684 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1614829684. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ekang@scvwa.org or by mail to Eunie Kang, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 
4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received 
after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and 
will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, 
including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
 
 
 
 

 

267

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1614829684
mailto:edill@scvwa.org


Jun 7, 2023  
Page 2 of 3 
 

MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM PAGE 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not 
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

 

3. * Legislative Consultant Report  

 3.1  Van Scoyoc Associates (10 minutes) 1 

 3.2 California Advocates (10 minutes) 5 

 3.3 Poole & Shaffery (5 minutes)  81 

4. * Discussion of 2023 Customer Survey  83 

5. * Communications Manager’s Report (5 minutes)  139 

6. * Committee Planning Calendar  149 

7. Adjournment  

 
*    Indicates Attachment 
   Indicates Handout 

 
 

NOTICES: 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Eunie Kang, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or email to ekang@scvwa.org or by writing to   
Eunie Kang, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. 
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  
A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the 
requested accommodation.  
  

268

mailto:ekang@scvwa.org


Jun 7, 2023  
Page 3 of 3 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 
Posted on June 7, 2023. 

269

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

270



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The Finance and Administration (F&A) Committee met at 5:30 PM on Monday, June 19, 2023, 
in the Board Room of the Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant. In attendance were Chair Ken 
Petersen and Directors Kathye Armitage and Maria Gutzeit. Staff members in attendance 
included: Senior Financial Analyst Darine Conner, Management Analyst II Erika Dill, 
Administrative Services Manager Kim Grass, Administrative Technician Paul Hoover, Director of 
Technology Services Cris Perez, Fleet and Warehouse Supervisor Jesus Martinez Ramirez, 
General Manager Matt Stone, IT Technician I Jonathan Thomas, and myself. Financial Advisors 
Lora Nichols from Fieldman Rolapp and Jon Guz from Stradling Yocca also presented. 
Additional SCV Water staff and members of the public were present. A copy of the Agenda is 
attached. 
 
Item 1:  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Item 2: Public Comment – There was public comment. 
 
Item 3:  Recommend Approval of Resolutions Setting Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Tax Rate for FY 2023/24 and Requesting Levy of Tax by Los Angeles County and Ventura 
County – Staff presented this item and the Committee unanimously agreed to place it on the 
Consent Calendar for the July 11, 2023 special Board meeting. 
 
Item 4: Recommend Approval of a Preliminary Official Statement – Staff presented this 
item and the Committee agreed to send it for full Board consideration at the July 18, 2023 
regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 5: Technology Update – Staff presented this item and the Committee engaged in 
questions and brief discussion. 
 
Item 6: Fleet and Warehousing Update – Staff presented this item, and the Committee 
requested that staff present it to the Board at the August 15, 2023, regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 7: Recommend Receiving and Filing of April 2023 Monthly Financial Report – Staff 
presented this item and agreed to have it placed on the Consent Calendar for the July 11, 2023 
special Board meeting. 
 
Item 8: Committee Planning Calendar – Staff briefly discussed the planning calendar and 
noted upcoming meetings and Agenda items. Upcoming items include updating the Agency 
Purchasing Policy, a new contract for janitorial services, and an affordability study. 

DATE: June 20, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: June 19, 2023 Finance and Administration Committee Meeting Recap Report 

271

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Item 9.3



 

 
Item 9: Requests for Future Agenda Items – None at this time. 
 
Item 10:  General Report on Finance and Administration Activities – Staff briefly discussed 
department updates, such as the Ratepayer Assistance Program (RAP) and the PAFR (Popular 
Annual Financial Report). Staff reported that to date the Agency has only received 72 RAP 
applications, five of which are ineligible, and the remaining 67 have been sorted into priority and 
non-priority groups. The PAFR will be the Agency’s first and is designed to be published in a 
less technical style to raise public awareness about the Agency’s financial status and 
performance. 
 
Item 11: Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Website or by clicking the following link: 
 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-06/Meeting%20Recording%206-19-
23.mp3 
 
RP 
 
Attachment 

272

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-06/Meeting%20Recording%206-19-23.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-06/Meeting%20Recording%206-19-23.mp3
ajacobs
Matt Stone

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350 -2173 •  661 297•1600  •  FAX 661 297•1611  
webs i t e  address :  www. yourscvwate r . com 

 
 
  
 
 
 
Date: June 12, 2023 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 Ken Petersen, Chair 
 Kathye Armitage 
 Ed Colley 
 Maria Gutzeit 
 
From: Rochelle Patterson 

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
 
The Finance and Administration Committee is scheduled for Monday, June 19, 2023  
at 5:30 PM at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Board Room 
and the teleconference site listed below. Members of the public may attend in person or 
virtually. To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 840 9319 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1608409319. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
edill@scvwa.org or by mail to Erika Dill, Management Analyst II, SCV Water, 27234 Bouquet 
Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 3:00 PM the day 
of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the SCV Water 
website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received after 3:00 PM the day of the meeting 
will be made available at the meeting, if practical, and will be posted on the SCV Water website 
the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted 
in their entirety. 
 
 

3 273

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1608409319
mailto:edill@scvwa.org
edill
Rochelle signature



June 12, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM PAGE 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. * PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time each
item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.)

3. * Recommend Approval of Adopting Resolutions Setting Santa Clarita
Valley Water Agency Tax Rate for FY 2023/24 and Requesting Levy of
Tax by Los Angeles County and Ventura County

7 

4. * Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Approval of the
Preliminary Official Statement for Issuance of the 2023A Revenue
Bond

15 

5. Technology Update

6. Fleet and Warehouse Update

7. * Recommend Receiving and Filing of April 2023 Financial Report

April 2023 Check Registers Link:
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/f
inance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20April%202023.pdf

123 

8. * Committee Planning Calendar 159 

9. Requests for Future Agenda Items

10. General Report on Finance and Administration Activities

11. Adjournment

* Indicates attachments
 To be distributed

4 274

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20April%202023.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20April%202023.pdf


June 12, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

NOTICES: 

 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Erika Dill, 

Management Analyst II at (661) 297-1600, or writing to SCV Water at 27234 Bouquet Canyon 
Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type 
of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be 
included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the 
meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at SCV Water, located at 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, during regular business hours. 
When practical, these public records will also be made available on the Agency’s Internet 

Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 

Posted on June 13, 2023. 

5 275

http://www.yourscvwater.com/
edill
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

6 276



 
BOARD MEMORANDUM 

 
 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) CONSTRUCTION 
 

Project Contractor Contract 
Amount 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Notes 

Vista Canyon 
Recycled Water 
Tank (Phase 2B) 

Pacific Tank 
and 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$,4,213,175.38 7/1/2023 

Project substantially 
complete. Project 
closeout in progress. 
Tank is filled. 

Vista Canyon 
Recycled Water 
Main Extension 
(Phase 2B) 

Ferreira 
Construction 
Co., Inc. 

$2,752,982 7/1/2023 
Construction is 
complete. Project 
closeout in progress.  

Newhall Tanks 1 
and 1A – Tank 
Upgrades  

Paso Robles 
Tanks, Inc. $299,500 6/30/2023 

Construction is 
complete. Project 
closeout in progress. 

Bridgeport Pocket 
Park 

C.S. Legacy 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$373,147.60 10/31/2023 Construction is 65% 
complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 4 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $3,297,013.56 9/30/2023 Construction is 98% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 5 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $3,269,978.85 9/30/2023 Construction is 95% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 6A 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $7,168,844.85 9/30/2023 Construction is 91% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 6B 

FivePoint/ 
Leatherwood 
Construction 

$4,568,687.07 9/30/2023 Construction is 99% 
complete. 

Santa Clara & 
Honby Wells 
Material Purchase 

Aqueous Vets $814,050 12/1/2023 
Vessels and pre-filters 
have been delivered to 
the site. 

DATE: June 19, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael 
Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Engineering Services Section Report 

              

277

ajacobs
Courteny Mael

ajacobs
Item 10.1



Santa Clara & 
Honby Wells - Site 
Construction 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation  

$8,486,950 12/1/2023 Construction is 50% 
complete. 

ESFP Washwater 
Return 
Improvements 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$17,526,700 12/1/2023 Construction is 70% 
complete. 

Saugus #3 & #4 
Wells Construction 
(Replacement 
Wells) 

Zim Industries, 
Inc. $12,751,494 1/31/2024 Construction is 35% 

complete. 

Deane Pump 
Station @ Skyline 
Ranch 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$381,645 
(SCV Water 
Fair Share) 

1/31/2024 

Construction submittals 
in progress. Contractor 
is updating schedule 
for procurement of long 
lead equipment.  

Dickason Drive 
Water Line 
Improvements 

J. Vega 
Engineering, 
Inc. 

$1,909,510.50 5/1/2024 Construction submittals 
are in progress. 

Pitchess Pipeline 
Modifications 

LA County 
Metropolitan 
Transportation 
Authority 

$159,000 6/30/2024 

Potholing of the 
pipeline was conducted 
on June 5. 2023. 
Pipeline construction 
work is scheduled to 
occur in January 2024. 

Deane Tank 
(concrete) at 
Skyline Ranch 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$3,123,943 
(SCV Water 
Fair Share) 

7/23/2024 

Construction submittals 
in progress. Pre-
construction meeting 
was held on April 28, 
2023.Excavation of 
tank foundation is in 
progress. 

Well 201 VOC 
Treatment 
Improvements 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$7,726,700  2/1/2025 

 
Construction submittals 
are in progress 
 

 

  

278



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) PLANNING AND DESIGN 
 

1. Backcountry (fka Magic Mountain) Pump Station – The Board of Directors adopted the 
Addendum to the Mission Village EIR and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program, approved the Backcountry Pump Station project, and authorized final design 
services on March 7, 2023. Design is in progress. Additional CEQA analysis is being 
performed to allow flexibility in design. NEPA analysis in progress.  
 

2. Backcountry (fka Magic Mountain) Reservoir – The Board of Directors adopted the 
Addendum to the Mission Village EIR and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program, approved the Backcountry Reservoir project, and authorized final design 
services on March 7, 2023. Design is in progress. 

 
3. Castaic Conduit Bypass Pipeline – Design is 90% complete. Permits are being 

secured for the project.  
 

4. Catala Pump Station and Pipelines – The Board of Directors authorized planning 
services on December 20, 2022. Planning is in progress. 
 

5. Deane Pump Station @ Sand Canyon Plaza – Plans have been approved. Board of 
Directors approved fair share funding and execution of developer agreement. 
Construction is scheduled to start in August 2023. 
 

6. Deane Tank @ Sand Canyon Plaza (CIP is SCV Water Fair Share) – Agency 
reviewing 75% plans for new 1.57 MG prestressed concrete tank and site 
improvements.  

 
7. Foothill Feeder Service Connection CLWA-01/01T Pipe Repair – Metropolitan Water 

District of Southern California (MWDSC) is performing the planning and design of the 
pipe repair improvements. Staff met with MWDSC staff on 5/4/2023 at the site to 
review site conditions. 
 

8. Honby Parallel Pipeline Phase 2 – The Board of Directors adopted the Addendum to 
the EIR on June 1, 2021. Design is in progress and staff is securing permits from the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board.  
 

9. Honby Tank Pipeline Bottleneck – Planning is complete. CEQA & NEPA evaluations 
are in progress. 
 

10. Master Plan – Planning is in progress. 
 

11. Newhall Wells (N11, N12, N13) Groundwater Treatment Improvements – Planning is in 
progress. Staff is reviewing the 30% preliminary design plans.  
 

12. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Well 207 – Staff advertised a request 
for proposal (RFP) for planning services on PlanetBids. Proposals are due to 
Engineering on July 5, 2023. 
 

13. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Clark Well – Staff advertised a request 
for proposal (RFP) for planning services on PlanetBids. Proposals are due to 
Engineering on June 27, 2023. 
 

279



14. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Well D – Staff is preparing a request for 
proposal (RFP) for planning services on PlanetBids. Proposals are due to Engineering 
on June 28, 2023. 
 

15. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: E Wells (E-14, E-15, E-16, and E-17) – 
Planning is in progress. 
 

16. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Sierra and North Oaks Wells – Staff 
advertised a request for proposal (RFP) for planning services on PlanetBids. 
Proposals are due to Engineering on June 28, 2023. 
 

17. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Lost Canyon and Sand Canyon 2 and 
2A Wells – Staff advertised a request for proposal (RFP) for planning services on 
PlanetBids. Proposals are due to Engineering on June 28, 2023. 

 
18. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Well W9 – Staff advertised a request for 

proposal (RFP) for planning services on PlanetBids. Proposals are due to Engineering 
on June 27, 2023. 
 

19. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Well W10 – Staff advertised a request 
for proposal (RFP) for planning services on PlanetBids. Proposals are due to 
Engineering on June 27, 2023. 
 

20. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Mitchell 5B - Staff advertised a request 
for proposal (RFP) for planning services on PlanetBids. Proposals are due to 
Engineering on July 5, 2023. 
 

21. Pipeline Inspection: Castaic Conduit Pipeline Reaches 3 & 4 – Planning is in progress. 
 

22. Pipeline Inspection: MMP Inspection Access Modifications – CEQA/NEPA evaluation 
is in progress. 
 

23. Pipeline Replacement: Abdale St, Maplebay Ct, & Beachgrove Ct Pipelines – 
CEQA/NEPA evaluation is in progress. 
 

24. Pipeline Replacement: McBean Parkway – Design is in progress. 
 

25. Pipeline Replacement: MM Pkwy & The Old Rd Recycled Water Relocation – Staff is 
reviewing the planning services proposal. 

 
26. Pipeline Replacement: RVWTP Sewer line – CEQA/NEPA evaluation is in progress. 

 
27. Pipeline Replacement: Sand Canyon Sewer Line – CEQA/NEPA evaluation is in 

progress. 
 

28. Pipeline Replacement: Smyth Drive Pipeline – CEQA/NEPA evaluation is in progress. 
 

29. Pipeline Replacement: Valencia Marketplace Pipeline – Design is in progress. 
 

30. Recycled Water Central Park (Phase 2A) – The project’s Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) was 
adopted by the CLWA Board of Directors on December 13, 2017. Design is on-hold 
pending resolution of recycled water permitting and regulatory issues. 
 280



31. Recycled Water Fill Station – Planning is in progress. 
 

32. Recycled Water South End (Phase 2C) – Newhall County Water District, as the CEQA 
Lead Agency, certified the recirculated MND on August 10, 2017. The project MND/IS 
was adopted by the CLWA Board of Directors on August 23, 2017. Grant application 
for a Proposition 1 Grant was submitted the week of December 2, 2019. The Board of 
Directors adopted the Addendum to the MND on June 1, 2021 and authorized 
additional design services on August 3, 2021. Final design and NEPA are in progress.  
 

33. Replacement Wells (Saugus Wells 3 and 4: Site and Equipment Design) – The Board 
of Directors authorized design services on August 4, 2020, and design is in progress.  
 

34. RVWTP Diesel Underground Storage Tank (UST) Replacement – Staff will be 
presenting the construction award recommendation at the July 6, 2023 Engineering & 
Operation Committee meeting.  
 

35. Sand Canyon Reservoir Expansion – Planning is in progress. Kickoff meeting with 
Lee+Ro occurred on February 7, 2023.  
 

36. Sierra Highway Bridge Expansion Water Pipelines Protection – Design is in progress. 
The City of Santa Clarita plans to advertise the SCV Water Pipelines Protection and 
Installation work under a separate bid item for the Sierra Highway Bridge Widening 
project. The Board of Directors at its June 6, 2023 meeting authorized the General 
Manager to execute an agreement with the City of Santa Clarita. 
 

37. S Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment and Disinfection Facility – Preliminary design 
and landscape concept is complete. Final IS/MND is complete. Agency awarded $5 
million in grant funding from the Bureau of Reclamation. Staff is preparing several 
applications for additional potential grant funding opportunities.  

 
38. T7, U4, and U6 Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements, New RVIPS 

Disinfection Facility, and Saugus 1 and 2 VOC Improvements – 90% plan check 
completed. Staff is preparing several applications for potential grant funding 
opportunities. 
 

39. Well 205 Perchlorate Treatment Improvements – Final design and NEPA are in 
progress. 
 
 

281



 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

 –
 D

ES
IG

N,
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, A

N
D

 IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N 

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

ev
el

op
er

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Si
ze

 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
(E

st
im

at
ed

 a
t B

ui
ld

-o
ut

) 
Sc

he
du

le
 

St
at

us
 

Ai
dl

in
 H

ills
 

(T
ra

ct
 5

27
96

) 
Le

nn
ar

  

10
2 

D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
 

2 
ta

nk
s,

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
±7

,6
70

’ o
f p

ot
ab

le
 

pi
pe

lin
es

, a
nd

 9
 p

ub
lic

 fi
re

 
hy

dr
an

ts
. 

TB
D

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 9

0%
 w

at
er

 p
ip

el
in

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

30
%

 ta
nk

 a
nd

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

. 

C
as

ta
ic

 H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 
R

as
m

us
se

n 

25
0,

00
0 

Sq
ua

re
 F

ee
t 

2 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
el

in
es

, 1
 

ta
nk

, a
nd

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n.

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
er

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

 to
 

m
ee

t s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 s

ch
oo

l o
pe

ni
ng

 
in

 fa
ll 

20
19

. 

Pr
oj

ec
t c

lo
se

ou
t i

n 
pr

og
re

ss
. 

C
ol

le
ge

 o
f t

he
 

C
an

yo
ns

 (C
O

C
) 

N
ew

 P
ar

ki
ng

 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
r 

Va
le

nc
ia

 
C

am
pu

s 

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 1

6”
 w

at
er

 
lin

e 
(a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
1,

01
5’

). 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
pi

pe
lin

e 
is

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n.

 
Pr

oj
ec

t c
lo

se
ou

t i
n 

pr
og

re
ss

. 

D
oc

kw
ei

le
r 

93
 S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
 

1,
40

0’
 o

f o
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 
3,

60
0 

fe
et

 o
f o

ns
ite

 
pi

pe
lin

e.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

  
C

lo
se

ou
t a

nd
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

is
 

in
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

La
nd

m
ar

k 
Vi

lla
ge

 (T
ra

ct
 

53
10

8)
 

Fi
ve

Po
in

t 

14
44

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
3.

5 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
in

g 
pr

es
su

re
 re

du
ci

ng
 s

ta
tio

n,
 

2M
G

 Z
on

e 
IA

 T
an

k,
 a

nd
 2

 
H

w
y 

12
6 

cr
os

si
ng

s.
 

TB
D

 
D

es
ig

n 
is

 o
n 

ho
ld

. 

282



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-o

ut
) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

M
is

si
on

 V
illa

ge
 

(F
iv

eP
oi

nt
) 

40
55

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
11

.5
 m

ile
s 

of
 n

ew
 

pi
pe

lin
e,

 1
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

re
du

ci
ng

 s
ta

tio
n 

(T
el

em
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 

Pe
te

rs
en

), 
2 

bo
os

te
r 

st
at

io
ns

 (T
el

em
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 P

et
er

se
n)

 
po

ta
bl

e 
& 

re
cy

cl
ed

). 
1 

bo
os

te
r s

ta
tio

n 
up

gr
ad

e 
(M

ag
ic

 M
tn

.),
 a

nd
 3

 ta
nk

s 
(T

el
em

ar
k 

(fo
rm

er
ly

 
Pe

te
rs

en
) p

ot
ab

le
 &

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 ta

nk
s 

an
d 

M
ag

ic
 

M
tn

. T
an

k 
N

o.
 2

 p
ot

ab
le

). 

Te
le

m
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 P

et
er

se
n)

 
Ta

nk
s 

an
d 

Bo
os

te
r S

ta
tio

ns
 

de
si

gn
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

02
3.

 

D
es

ig
n:

 T
o 

da
te

, a
 to

ta
l o

f 5
2 

po
ta

bl
e/

re
cy

cl
ed

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

pi
pe

lin
e 

de
si

gn
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 fo

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 T

el
em

ar
k 

(fo
rm

er
ly

 
Pe

te
rs

en
) p

ot
ab

le
 a

nd
 re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 
bo

os
te

r s
ta

tio
ns

 a
re

 1
00

%
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 
Te

le
m

ar
k 

Ta
nk

s 
at

 9
0%

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 

Ph
as

e 
3B

 a
nd

 2
B-

1 
w

at
er

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

pi
pe

lin
e 

pl
an

 s
et

s 
ar

e 
un

de
r r

ev
ie

w
.  

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
 P

ha
se

s 
1A

, 1
B,

 1
C

, 1
D

, 
an

d 
in

-tr
ac

t p
ot

ab
le

 w
at

er
 p

ip
el

in
es

 a
re

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, a
nd

 re
cy

cl
ed

 w
at

er
 

pi
pe

lin
es

 a
re

 9
0%

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 W

el
l 

20
6/

20
7 

pi
pe

 re
lo

ca
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

75
%

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 M
ag

ic
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Bo
os

te
r 

St
at

io
n 

U
pg

ra
de

s 
ar

e 
90

%
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 
R

et
ai

ni
ng

 w
al

l a
t M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Ta

nk
 

N
o.

 2
 s

ite
 is

 5
%

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 N

ot
ic

es
 o

f 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 fo
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
 

N
ee

dh
am

 
R

an
ch

 
Tr

am
m

el
l C

ro
w

 
C

o.
 

2,
55

0,
00

0 
Sq

ua
re

 F
ee

t 
In

du
st

ria
l a

nd
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 

4 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
el

in
es

, 1
 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n,
 2

 ta
nk

s,
 1

 
di

si
nf

ec
tio

n 
bu

ild
in

g,
 a

nd
 

2 
pr

es
su

re
 re

du
ci

ng
 

st
at

io
ns

. 

Ph
as

e 
1 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

is
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 P

ha
se

 2
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 T
an

k 
7 

an
d 

7A
 is

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

up
gr

ad
es

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
3.

 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
 T

an
k 

7A
 is

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 

Pi
ne

 S
tre

et
 P

ip
el

in
e 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e.

  
D

es
ig

n:
 P

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
ch

em
ic

al
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
. A

w
ai

tin
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 to

 b
eg

in
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 

283



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-o

ut
) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

Sa
dd

le
 P

ea
k 

C
an

yo
n 

(T
ic

k 
C

an
yo

n)
 

54
8 

si
ng

le
 

fa
m

ily
 u

ni
ts

 
2 

ta
nk

s,
 1

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n,
 

6.
3 

m
ile

s 
of

 p
ip

el
in

e.
 

TB
D

 
30

%
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 ta
nk

 a
nd

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ag

en
cy

.  

Sa
nd

 C
an

yo
n 

Pl
az

a 
12

9 
Si

ng
le

 
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
, 

45
1 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
, 

14
0 

Be
d 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g,
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 

1 
ta

nk
, 1

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n,
 

1,
70

0’
 o

f o
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 
an

d 
8,

50
0’

 o
f o

ns
ite

 
pi

pe
lin

e.
 

D
ev

el
op

er
 h

as
 c

om
m

en
ce

d 
m

as
s 

gr
ad

in
g 

at
 th

e 
si

te
. O

ffs
ite

 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
an

d 
N

ew
 S

an
d 

C
an

yo
n 

Pl
az

a 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

to
 s

ta
rt 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
23

.  

O
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
. 

Pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 7
5%

 
pl

an
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r n
ew

 D
ea

ne
 T

an
k.

 
95

%
 In

-T
ra

ct
 p

la
ns

 re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

ag
en

cy
 s

ta
ff.

 

Sh
er

iff
 S

ta
tio

n 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 

C
la

rit
a 

44
,3

00
 S

qu
ar

e 
Fe

et
 

1 
m

ile
 o

f p
ip

el
in

e.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 m
ai

n 
pi

pe
lin

e 
is

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

w
ith

 b
yp

as
s 

cr
os

si
ng

 
ov

er
 L

AD
W

P 
aq

ue
du

ct
.  

St
af

f a
re

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 C
ity

 to
 re

lo
ca

te
 

th
e 

pi
pe

lin
e 

cr
os

si
ng

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
bi

ke
 

pa
th

 a
s 

a 
se

m
i-p

er
m

an
en

t a
lig

nm
en

t i
n 

lie
u 

of
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

un
de

r t
he

 L
AD

W
P 

pi
pe

lin
e.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 re
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r t
hi

s 
fa

ll 
20

23
 u

si
ng

 S
C

V 
W

at
er

 s
ta

ff.
  

Sp
rin

g 
C

an
yo

n 
(T

ra
ct

 4
80

86
) 

49
2 

D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
1 

ta
nk

, 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
1 

pr
es

su
re

 re
du

ci
ng

 
va

lv
e,

 M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ne
 

up
gr

ad
es

 a
nd

 li
ft 

st
at

io
n 

up
gr

ad
es

.  

M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ne
 u

pg
ra

de
s 

m
us

t 
be

 c
om

pl
et

e 
pr

io
r t

o 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

D
es

ig
n 

pl
an

s 
fo

r i
n-

tra
ct

 p
ip

el
in

es
, 

ta
nk

s 
an

d 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

w
er

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

an
d 

is
su

ed
 in

 J
ul

y 
20

20
. S

ta
ff 

is
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 C
ou

nt
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r s
ew

er
 

lif
t s

ta
tio

n 
up

gr
ad

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 tr
an

sf
er

 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

to
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 C

la
rit

a.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 1

st
 

dr
af

t M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 
(M

O
U

) b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Ag

en
cy

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ity

 fo
r t

ra
ns

fe
r o

f s
ew

er
 li

ft 
st

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 

284



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-o

ut
) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

Sk
yl

in
e 

R
an

ch
 

Tr
iP

oi
nt

e 
(T

ra
ct

 
60

92
2)

 

12
20

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
17

 m
ile

s 
of

 p
ip

el
in

es
, 3

 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 4
 

ta
nk

s.
 

Ph
as

e 
1 

pi
pe

lin
es

, p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
an

d 
ta

nk
s 

ar
e 

on
lin

e.
 P

ha
se

 2
 

D
ea

ne
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

an
d 

N
im

bu
s/

D
ea

ne
 ta

nk
 a

re
 in

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

io
n 

by
 

su
m

m
er

 2
02

4.
 P

ha
se

 3
 S

ky
lin

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
to

 
be

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

fa
ll 

20
24

. 

St
af

f i
s 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
10

0%
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

N
im

bu
s/

Sk
yl

in
e 

Zo
ne

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
an

d 
St

af
f i

s 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

50
%

 p
la

ns
 fo

r 
di

si
nf

ec
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 N
im

bu
s 

D
ea

ne
 

Ta
nk

 s
ite

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

.  

Te
so

ro
 

H
ig

hl
an

ds
 

69
6 

Si
ng

le
 

Fa
m

ily
 U

ni
ts

, 9
 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 
U

ni
ts

, 2
 a

cr
es

 
of

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

  

2 
ta

nk
s,

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
64

,0
00

’ o
f p

ip
el

in
e.

 
Ph

as
e 

1 
an

d 
Ph

as
e 

2 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 T
es

or
o 

3 
Ta

nk
s 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ap
ril

 
20

23
. Z

on
e 

3 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
02

3.
 

Ta
nk

 3
/3

A 
is

 u
nd

er
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 
Ph

as
e 

3-
7w

at
er

 p
ip

el
in

es
 a

re
 u

nd
er

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 P

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 P
ha

se
 8

 a
nd

 
14

B 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

.  
 

Vi
st

a 
C

an
yo

n 
(T

ra
ct

 6
91

64
) 

JS
B 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

11
00

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
5 

m
ile

s 
of

 p
ot

ab
le

 a
nd

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 p

ip
el

in
es

. 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 P

ha
se

 1
 P

ot
ab

le
 

an
d 

R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 P
ha

se
 

2 
sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

ex
ce

pt
 

fin
al

 ti
e-

in
s.

 

D
ev

el
op

er
 to

 s
ub

m
it 

sc
he

du
le

 to
 

co
ns

tru
ct

 fi
na

l t
ie

-in
s 

fo
r p

ot
ab

le
 

sy
st

em
. S

ta
ff 

is
 fi

na
liz

in
g 

pu
rc

ha
se

 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 C

ity
 fo

r r
ec

yc
le

d 
w

at
er

 
su

pp
ly

. S
er

vi
ce

 o
f r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
 is

 
pe

nd
in

g 
th

e 
C

ity
’s

 w
at

er
 fa

ct
or

y 
op

er
at

io
ns

 b
ei

ng
 w

ith
in

 p
er

m
it 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

. 
 

 

285



 

RIGHT OF WAY – CELL SITES 
 

1. Bouquet Tank Site – T- Mobile has constructed fences around sector antennas. 
Carrier is also working on plans to install an emergency generator at this location. 
Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is waiting on reviewed plans to be 
updated by T-Mobile. 

 
2. Castaic Tank 1A – Verizon is redesigning the wireless structure. Agency has received 

deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 
 

3. Catala Tank Site – DISH Wireless has identified this location as a potential new cell 
site. Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. AT&T has also 
identified this location as a potential new site. Agency is working with carrier on deposit 
letter. T-Mobile has identified this existing site for upgrades. Agency has received 
deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 
 

4. Commerce Center Tank Site – AT&T has identified this location as a potential new cell 
site. Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 

 
5. Honby Tank Site – T-Mobile has identified this existing site for upgrades. Agency is 

working with carrier on deposit letter and review of plans. DISH wireless has identified 
this location as a potential new cell site. Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and 
is reviewing plans. 

 
6. Live Oaks Tank Site – AT&T has identified this location as a potential new cell site. 

Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 
 

7. Newhall Tank 2 Site – Agency is waiting on T-Mobile carrier plans to relocate 
decommissioned Sprint equipment off the tank due to T-Mobile’s acquisition of Sprint. 
Agency is waiting on carrier plans from AT&T and Verizon to install emergency 
generators. 
 

8. Princess Tank Site – Verizon has identified this site for emergency generator 
installation. Agency is working with carrier on a deposit letter. 
 

9. Skyblue Tank Site – Verizon has requested an access agreement for this site to 
resolve access issues. Agency is working with carrier on a license agreement.  

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) MISCELLANEOUS 
 

• Fire Flow Tests – In May 2023, staff processed 12 fire flow requests.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

286



 

FACILITY CAPACITY FEES (FCFs) AND CONNECTION FEES 
 

 

 
Month Regional Distribution Total 
July 2022 $31,560 $0 $31,560 
August 2022 $52,376 $0 $52,376 
September 2022 $72,801 $18,693 $91,494 
October 2022 $239,618 $1,320 $240,938 
November2022 $54,473 $0 $54,473 
December 2022 $274,410 $23,790 $298,200 
January 2023 $147,290 0 $147,290 
February 2023 $286,426 $62,364 $348,790 
March 2023 $599,318 $22,493 $621,811 
April 2023 $467,899 $65,188 $533,087 
May 2023 $1,069,161 $86,001 $1,155,162 
FY 2022/23 to Date $3,295,332 $279,849 $3,575,181 

FY 2022/23 Budget $5,500,000 $1,000,000 $6,500,000 

287

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

288



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION (F&A) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
The interim financial audit, with our outside auditors, LSL (Lance, Soll & Lunghard LLP) is 
progressing well. The interim audit exit interview was scheduled for June 1, 2023. 
 
Staff completed the annual surveillance review of outstanding obligations as requested by the 
Fitch rating agency. The Agency rating was affirmed and remains unchanged from the prior year 
(AA+ for senior debt, AA for 2020A&B). 
 
The Committee and Board approved a revised Classification Plan, as well as several new and 
revised job classifications. 
 
Staff are working with Water Resources to review the Sites’ Reservoir Plan of Finance. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
The Preliminary Official Statement (POS) for the 2023A revenue bond issue will be presented to 
the Finance and Administration Committee in June 2023. As with previous bond issues, the 
POS is a collaborative effort with all departments providing updated information. 
 
Staff has prepared the Budget and will be recommending no change to the current Agency-set 
property tax rate for the State Water Project.  
 
Staff continue to support the Engineering Department and consultants as they prepare the 
WIFIA (Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act) loan application. Currently, projects 
are being identified as eligible or not eligible for WIFIA funding. WIFIA has specific bidding and 
compliance requirements which determine eligibility. 
 
Staff is surveying our benchmark agencies and other neighboring agencies as we review and 
recommend changes to the Agency’s existing Purchasing Policy.  
 
Staff are implementing GASB (Government Accounting Standards Board) 96, a new 
Government Accounting Standard related to Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements (SBITAs). Software agreements that meet certain conditions now need to be 
recorded as assets, rather than expenses. These software assets will then be amortized over 
the life of the software agreement. This standard must be implemented with the Fiscal Year (FY) 
2022/23 year-end audit and Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). 

DATE: June 19, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Finance, Administration, and Information Technology Services Section Report 

289

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Item 10.2



 

 
Ongoing: Staff, following Grant Management Policy and Procedures, continue to validate 
processes to ensure the Agency will comply with federal single audit requirements. The Agency 
has successfully obtained significant federal grant funding. Therefore, a FY 2022/23 single audit 
will be required as part of the Agency’s annual, external financial audit. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continue to work with Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources to refine 
the Project Financial Management module. Progress continues to bring Oracle reports up to the 
appropriate levels. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continue to review and approve Certificates of Insurance (COIs), ensuring that 
insurance limits conform with the Agency’s insurance requirements. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continue to assist with training in Oracle’s procurement module with applications 
such as requisitions, purchase orders, and contract agreements. 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff completed configuration and testing in the utility billing system for new rates scheduled to 
be effective July 1, 2023, as part of the five-year rate case approved in Resolution SCV-216. Bill 
messaging is complete.  
 
Staff continue to work diligently with all customers to avoid disconnection for nonpayment, and if 
unable to pay, resolve their overdue balances through amortization agreements. Before shutoff, 
at least two courtesy reminder calls are broadcast to customers subject to disconnection for 
nonpayment. There were 1,771 accounts subject to disconnection in May 2023. Of those, 602 
remained overdue within one week of their scheduled shutoff date and subsequently received 
one or more courtesy reminder calls. 173 accounts remained unresolved by their scheduled 
shutoff date and were disconnected for nonpayment.  
 

 

Staff finalized the internal workflow for the Pilot Ratepayer Assistance Program (RAP) and 
began accepting applications on June 1, 2023. Customer outreach in the form of bill messaging 

290



 

and inserts began in May 2023. Direct outreach was made to the SCV (Santa Clarita Valley) 
Senior Center and the Santa Clarita Veteran Center. Program information was included in the 
June edition of Water Currents and is available on the login page of the online customer portal 
and on the public website in English and Spanish. 
 
2023 Annual Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) notifications have been completed. Staff are 
responding to requests for paper copies of the Report as they are received.  
 
IT (Information Technology), GIS, Field Services and Customer Care staff completed a two-day 
kickoff and technical discovery session for the SmartWorks Meter Data Management System 
(MDMS) implementation.  
 
Staff attended a LIHWAP (Low Income Housing Water Assistance Program) webinar hosted by 
the California Department of Community Services & Development (CSD.) The meeting objective 
was to share that the CSD had retained the services of an outside marketing firm to ramp-up 
their marketing campaign and promote greater awareness of the LIHWAP. Attendees were 
encouraged to share successful strategies. The CSD confirmed that the current LIHWAP will 
end September 30, 2023.  
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Interviews have been scheduled for a Customer Service Representative position that was 
recently vacated due to employee separation.  
 
Staff is scheduled to attend the Systems & Software Pacific Users Group (PUG) meeting. The 
meeting will take place at South Coast Water District in Laguna Hills, California.  
 
Staff is scheduled to participate in the Public Utilities & Waterworks Management Institute’s 
Management & Supervisory Leadership Training Program.  
  
Staff continue their research of online donation tools that could be used to generate potential 
funding for ratepayer assistance.  
 
Staff continue to work with Systems and Software to further refine workflows related to the new 
enQuesta v.6 platform, online customer portal and mobile work order solution. 
 
Staff continue to work with the Conservation department to expand the Agency’s WaterSMART 
Targets (WST) to Santa Clarita Water Division (SCWD) residential customers. This is a multi-
departmental project as it requires support from the IT, GIS, and Communications departments. 
 
Staff continue to coordinate closely with Field Services on the AMI (Advanced Meter 
Infrastructure) Meter Changeout Program as well as the expansion of the communication 
infrastructure. 
 
Staff continue to work with Operations, IT and Communications on the new lead and copper 
reporting requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

291



 

HUMAN RESOURCES (HR) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff are recruiting for (1) Administrative Technician (Water Resources), (1) Administrative 
Technician (Engineering/Inspection), (1) Customer Service Representative, (1) Information 
Technology Technician I, and (1) SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) 
Technician I. 
 
Staff are preparing to recruit for (1) Senior Fleet Mechanic, and (1) Utility Worker. 
 
Staff are filling temporary assignments for (1) Field Services Worker I and (1) Purchasing and 
Warehouse Technician I. 
 
Staff are conducting background checks for (1) Field Services Worker I, (2) Fleet Mechanic 
Interns, (1) Senior Recycled Water Coordinator, and (1) Utility Worker II. 
 
Staff is onboarding (1) Facilities Assistant Intern. 
 
Staff are reviewing and tracking the Annual Performance Evaluations for accuracy.  
 
Staff are preparing to make the merit increase and Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) at the 
end of June 2023 to take effect in the new fiscal year into Paychex and Oracle systems.  
 
Staff are working with the consultant on the Water Resources Specialist series classification and 
compensation study. The Position Description Questionnaires (PDQs) were just completed.  
 
Staff completed a survey of other agencies regarding policy and regulations on allowing staff to 
travel internationally for conferences.  
 
Staff continue to update the Employee Manual policies and procedures.  
 
Staff continue to participate in and support the monthly Safety Committee meetings. 
 
Staff continue to inform management on a weekly basis about any Covid-19 positive cases and 
continue to manage and log them.  
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff plans to provide training on the new Internship Policy for supervisors.  
 
Staff plans to develop a soft skills training program for employees. Examples of soft skills are 
leadership, teamwork, communication, problem-solving, work ethic, flexibility, and interpersonal 
skills. 
 
Staff plans to provide training for supervisors and for all employees regarding prevention of 
sexual harassment.  
 
Staff plans to survey other agencies and create a list for management/supervisory training.  
 
Staff are partnering with the Technology Services department to implement an HR SharePoint 
page in which employees can access answers to the most-asked HR questions and policies.  

292



 

 
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Tech Services successfully serviced 122 tickets and fielded 16 hotline calls for May 2023. 
 
Tech Services has reviewed the penetration test results and scheduled recommended changes. 
 
Tech Services has completed recruitment for IT Tech I and SCADA Tech I. 
 
Tech Services is piloting a new document management system and is currently evaluating it 
with users from different departments. 
 
Tech Services has completed a restructuring of the Agency intranet. This will improve 
collaboration, operational efficiency, and document accessibility across the Agency. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
The GIS team will be attending the GIS user conference. 
 
Ongoing: Cybersecurity is deploying an increased password-complexity campaign. This will be 
a multi-month project as it will involve user education and implementation. The campaign 
involves short educational videos.  
 
Ongoing: The GIS team will be deploying a beta version of a water systems web application that 
will be hosted in SharePoint. 
 
Ongoing: Tech Services is supporting a project with Customer Care and their contractor to 
deploy and configure a new meter data management system. 
 
Ongoing: The GIS team is working on integrating GIS with the Agency’s Customer Information 
System (CIS) for a self-serve water consumption data extraction web application for internal 
Agency use and is hosted in SharePoint. 
 
Ongoing: The IT team is in the process of moving on-premise business file servers to a cloud 
server environment.  
 
Ongoing: The IT team is moving an imaging and update business server from on-premises to 
cloud. This will streamline management of remote devices. 
 
FLEET AND WAREHOUSE 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff successfully recruited two Fleet Mechanic Interns. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff are developing recommendations to comply with the CARB (California Air Resources 
Board) adopted regulations. 
 

293



 

Staff are reaching out to other public agencies seeking information about their plans to comply 
with the new CARB ruling, exploring partnerships in infrastructure to assist in Agency 
compliance. 
 
Staff are preparing to apply for grants for electric vehicle charging stations. 
 
Staff is working on installing the first set of Level 2 charging stations for electric vehicles. 
 
Staff completed development of the mechanic position series and will begin recruiting for the 
Senior Mechanic position. 
 
Staff are preparing to install telematics to fleet to comply with CARB rulings regarding zero-
emission reporting. 
 
Staff are reviewing Agency surplus inventory and equipment to determine if there is an 
opportunity for sale.  
 
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (B&G) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff completed all quarterly HVAC (Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning) preventive 
maintenance at Rockefeller, Summit Circle, Pine Street, ESFP (Earl Schmidt Filtration Plant), 
and Rio Vista. 
 
Staff has completed all the tree trimming maintenance program for FY 2022/23. 
 
Staff has completed the removal of dead trees around Rio Vista in serveral locations. 
 
Staff has completed upgrades to the access control (burglar alarm and doors access) via Bay 
Alarm for Rockefeller and Summit Circle. 
 
Staff have completed adding a new access control to door entrances at Golden Triangle.  
 
Staff completed the interior-painting project at Rio Vista.  
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
The staff is working on lighting upgrades (LED lights) for the warehouse at Pine Street, as well 
as for offices and common areas at Rockefeller. Project completion at 45%. 
 
Staff are working on the installation of I-Wave devices in the HVAC system to scrub/clean the 
air quality at the Pine Street administration building. 
 
Staff will be retrofitting approximately 20 eyewash stations at the Rio Vista and Earl Schmidt 
Plants. B&G will assist the Safety department on this project to bring eyewash stations to 
compliance. 
 
Staff is reviewing options to remedy erosion issue inside solar panel farm at the Rio Vista Water 
Treatment Plant. Staff will be looking to start erosion control possibly July 2023. 
 

294



 

Building and Grounds will have its first intern to join the Agency the first week of July 2023. The 
intern is joining SCV Water from College of the Canyons. 
 
Staff will be working to improve Rockefeller lobby with bulletproof material for door, walls, and 
the customer counter.  
 
RP 

295

ajacobs
Steve Cole



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

296



 
BOARD MEMORANDUM 

 
 

               
 
The Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section (TDOMS) provides reliable and high-
quality water through rigorous preventative maintenance programs and timely response to corrective 
action maintenance. Routine inspections and maintenance of each facility is part of the overarching goal 
of TDOMS. Below is a discussion on these activities for the month of May 2023. 
 
TREATMENT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Monthly corrective and preventative maintenance work orders were completed at the following locations: 
 

- Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant (RVWTP) 
- Rio Vista Intake Pump Station (RVIPS) 
- Earl Schmidt Filtration Plant (ESFP)  
- Earl Schmidt Intake Pump Station (ESIPS) 
- Saugus Perchlorate Treatment Facility (SPTF) 
- Castaic and Pitchess Pipelines 
- Recycled Water Pump Station 
- Rio Vista Valve Vault No. 1 
- Saugus Well 1 
- Sand Canyon Reservoir 
- Sand Canyon Pump Station (SCPS) 

 
Preventative and Corrective Maintenance Work Order Summary 

 
Work Orders May 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Corrective Maintenance 35 279 
Preventative Maintenance 96 893 
Key Action Items Completed: 

- RVWTP – Filter 1 30” Butterfly Valve Replaced 
- RVWTP – Wash Water Return Pump #2 
- RVWTP – Rapid Mix Pump #3 
- ESFP – Backflow Testing 

 
Work in Progress – Treatment 

- ESFP – Terminal Junction Box Installation 
- RVWTP – Rapid Mix Check Valve Mod 2 Pump #3 
- RVWTP & ESFP – Filter Media Replacement  

 
 

DATE: June 13, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie  
Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section Report 

297

ajacobs
Keith Abercrombie

ajacobs
Item 10.3



Completed Work 
- RVWTP – 30” Butterfly Valve on Filter 1 Replaced 
- RVWTP – Rapid Mix Check Valves Mod 2 Pump #4 
- RVWTP – Wash Water Return Pump #2 
- RVWTP – Rapid Mix Mod 2 Pump #3 
- ESFP – Backflow Testing  

 
DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
General operational and maintenance activities include: 

• Valve exercising 
• Fire hydrant maintenance 
• Air and vacuum valve maintenance 
• Blow off maintenance 
• Meter reading 
• Meter change-outs 
• Control valve maintenance 

 
Work in Progress 

- SC-2 Gravity – Above ground construction complete. Scheduling SC-2 suction line abandonment 
- Vasquez Pipeline – Researching easement. Andel Engineering is surveying for easement, as well 

as creating water plans 
 
Completed Work 

- Interconnection between the NWD and SCWD Systems on Old Wiley Cyn Rd 
- Decoro Drive Pipeline Replacement 
- West Newhall Interconnection (VWD and NWD) on Vista Ridge/Wiley Cyn  
- Ridge Route Road Phase 2 Pavement Repair 
- The Old Road Pavement Repair 
- Mammoth Booster Station 3 Suction and Discharge Pipeline Replacement – Pipeline construction 

complete, working on asphalt restoration 
- N7 and N8 Well Pipeline Replacement 
- Hasley Hills Regulator Rebuild  
 

Meter Change-out Summary 
NWD 
Meter Size May 2023 Quantity FYTD 2022/23 

3/4" 1 144 
1” 9 13 

1 1/2"  6 
2”  25 

SCWD 
Meter Size May 2023 Quantity FYTD 2022/23 

3/4" 32 184 
1”  55 

1 1/2"  4 
2” 2 12 

VWD 
Meter Size May 2023 Quantity FYTD 2022/23 

3/4" 21 117 
1” 11 16 

1 1/2" 1 10 
2”  10 

298



Distribution System Leak Summary 
 
NWD – Approx. 9,679 Service Connections 
Leak Type May 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Service Leaks 1 16 
Main Leaks  3 

SCWD – Approx. 31,218 Service Connections 
Leak Type May 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Service Leaks 10 113 
Main Leaks  10 

VWD – Approx. 29,974 Service Connections 
Leak Type May 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Service Leaks 10 67 
Main Leaks  4 

 
PRODUCTION OPERATIONS AND WATER SYSTEMS 

In addition to the general operation and maintenance of the production facilities, there are a variety of 
other projects within the Production and Water Systems. 
 
Work in Progress 

- Cal Arts Booster Station, B64 motor failure – Pump and motor received. Electrical equipment work 
in progress, pump installed December 2022, however, not operating properly, vendor 
troubleshooting issue – Still with vendor waiting for their findings 

- Tank mixers to be installed at North Oaks tanks in July 2023 
- Saugus Well 2 Rehab – Bids received in March 2023, exceeded estimate; project being re-

structured – Revised specs received, under review for new RFP 
- North Oaks Booster Rebuild – Repairing leak in pump can, raising discharge side – Work 

underway 
- Mitchell 5B Well Rehab – Pump/motor installed, flushing/sampling end of April 2023, well 

operation pending sampling results 
- Mitchell 5A Well Destruction – Pedestal/well demolished; plan approved by the County, ESS 

awaiting destruction report 
- Wells N7 and N8 Pump & Motor Improvement – New pump, motor and VFD approved by SCV 

Water Board at its regular Board meeting on March 22, 2023, equipment on order 
- N12 Improvements – Rebuild pump and replace column pipe, approved by the SCV Water Board 

at its regular Board meeting on May 16, 2023, purchase order issued, parts ordered 
 

Completed Work 
- Mitchell 5B Well Rehab – Brush/bail/chemical rehab work completed February 17, 2023 
- Ball Field Disinfection Facility (BFDF) – Install a meter head cabinet for remote mounted heads – 

March 6, 2023 
- Valve replacements of non-functioning valves at Newhall Booster 5, SC-1, SC-3, Sunset Pointe 

Booster, N-3, and Rainbow Glen Booster 
- McBean Booster Pump 78 pump and motor failure – Replacement received end of March 2023, 

installed in April 2023 
- Sand Canyon Pump Station Rehab – Pump for Pump 3 received February 3, 2023. Pump installed 
- Newhall Booster 2 Pump 3 failure – Replacement received February 27, 2023. Pump installed 
- Castaic Disinfection Facility (CDF) upgrades – New chemical tanks, chemical pumps and 

electrical / SCADA upgrades – Completed, station returned to service on May 25, 2023. 
 
 
 

299



WATER QUALITY 

Water Quality Complaints 
 
NWD 
Type of Complaint May 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2022/23 
Hardness   
Odor  1 
Taste   
Color  14 
Air   
Suspended Solids   
Totals   15 

SCWD 
Type of Complaint May 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2022/23 
Hardness   
Odor  4 
Taste  1 
Color  9 
Air   
Suspended Solids  4 
Totals   18 

VWD 
Type of Complaint May 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2022/23 
Hardness  1 
Odor   
Taste 1 2 
Color  8 
Air   
Suspended Solids   
Totals  1 11 

 
Heterotrophic Plate Count Samples 
 
NWD 

Total # of HPCs Collected May 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2022/23 
 7 

SCWD 
Total # of HPCs Collected May 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2022/23 

3 29 
VWD 

Total # of HPCs Collected May 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2022/23 
2 36 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

300



PERCHLORATE CONTAMINATION PROGRAM MANAGEMENT  
 
As a result of the detection of perchlorate at Well V-201, modifications are being made to the Department 
of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) Remedial Action Plan (RAP) and the perchlorate project DDW 97-
005 Engineering Report. A perchlorate removal facility has been constructed and resumption of Well V-
201 service will occur following receipt of permit from State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
Division of Drinking Water (DDW). 
 
In late December 2017, perchlorate was detected at Well V-205 just above the maximum contaminant 
level for drinking water of 6 ppb. A confirmation sample taken in March 2018 indicated a level of 8.1 ppb. 
The well was previously taken out of service in 2012. Design of a treatment system is underway.  
 
In May 2019, for the first time since 2005, perchlorate was detected in Alluvial Aquifer Well Q-2 at the 
maximum contaminant level of 6 μg/L. No drinking water quality standards were violated, but the well was 
removed immediately from service. Design and construction of treatment system has been completed. 
The well will return to service upon permit approval by DDW.  
 
PFAS  
 
In May 2019, initial sampling for PFAS substances occurred and results were received. One well (Valley 
Center) exceeded Division of Drinking Water Interim Response Level of 70 ng/L and was shut off. Other 
wells exceeded the Interim Notification Levels for PFOS and PFOA. This information was presented to 
the SCV Water Board on June 4, 2019. PFAS sampling for the second quarter was done in August 2019 
with results received in September and October 2019. In February 2020, the State Water Resources 
Control Board Division of Drinking Water issued new response levels; 10 parts per trillion (ppt) for 
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and 40 ppt for perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS.) 
 
SCV Water has taken 20 wells out of service due to PFAS. Three (3) were returned to service in late 
2020 (N, N7, N8) with the completion of the first PFAS Treatment System. One (1) additional well (Valley 
Center) was returned to service in October 2022 with completion of the second PFAS Treatment System. 
 
WATER QUALITY LABORATORY  
 
The laboratory has received accreditation for EPA Method 533 and is analyzing all PFAS compliance 
samples using the new method. The renewal application with the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation 
Program (ELAP) will be submitted by June 30, 2023, and the laboratory will be fully certified with the new 
TNI laboratory regulations beginning on September 30, 2023. 

301



 

302



303



 

304



 

305



SAFETY/EMERGENCY/RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
A safe and healthy work environment is a critical component to the mission and values of SCV Water. 
Throughout the reporting month, several routine safety related training, inspections, and various other 
items were completed. The Safety Department continues to integrate health and safety programs for SCV 
Water. Some of the items completed and currently in progress are as follows: 
 
Work in Progress 

- Noise Assessment was completed in July 2022. This assessment is being reviewed and the 
Hearing Conservation Plan is being evaluated and revised based in part on this assessment. 
Staff audiograms were conducted on February 15, 2023 

- Ammonia RMP revalidation documents received from consultants. Staff are reviewing and 
completing the recommended actions and incorporating them into RMP. Revised Piping and 
Instrumentation Diagrams for ESFP were completed in April 2023 

- Revise and update Safety Manual 
- Revise Injury and Illness Prevention Program and train all staff in 2023 

 
Inspections 

- Monthly safety inspections of all remote locations and facilities were conducted in May 2023 
- UST Monthly Designated Operator inspection took place at Rio Vista in May 2023 
- Annual UST facility employee training took place in May 2023 
- Castaic Disinfection Facility – CERS update took place in May 2023 
 

Incident Data 
- The Agency had two recordable incidents for the month of May 2023.  
 

Safety Training 
- Tailgate meetings took place at GT, Pine, Rio Vista and Rockefeller in May 2023 
- New Hire Safety and Emergency Training took place in May 2023 
- Competent Person Trenching and Excavation training took place in May 2023 
- CPR/AED/FA certification classes took place in May 2023 
- Heat Stress and Heat Illness Prevention training and product demos took place in May 2023 
 

Safety Compliance 
- Fall protection equipment replacements and recertifications (Ongoing) 
- Respirator Medical Evaluations and Fit Testing (Annual and New Hire) 
- Rigging equipment (chains and straps) were inspection at GT in May 2023 

 
Safety Awards / Grants 

- FEMA/CalOES Covid Disaster Grant #4482DR-CA 
o Project # 140459 Obligated as of May 09,2023 ($40,900.00) 
o Project # 140458 was fully funded on July 31, 2020 ($34,380.00) 

 
Safety Committee 

- The next Safety Committee meeting will be held on June 28, 2023 

306

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 
 

open,0Betorched   BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
WATER RESOURCES 
 
Key Accomplishments 
 
• During the June 5, 2023 SCV-GSA Board meeting, the Board adopted the SCV-GSA's $939,000 

Fiscal Year 2023/24 Budget. This budget lays out the GSP Implementation workplan for Fiscal 
Year 2023/24 and includes a number of critical activities, including implementation of: a land 
surface elevation monitoring program to evaluate changes related to groundwater extraction (if 
any);  efforts to identify and catalog private groundwater production wells and requiring extraction 
reporting for larger private wells; an ongoing study of groundwater dependent ecosystems;  
completion of a web based data management system to prepare reports, including those for GSP 
compliance; and initiation of the anticipated $5.3M (draft) grant which will include installation of a 
number of Saugus Aquifer groundwater monitoring wells. 
 

• Staff is participating in a work group for the County’s Water Plan, reviewed an early plan draft and 
provided comments to the County. 
 

• Staff is participating in the County’s Safe Clean Water Program (Measure W) Monitoring and 
Metrics Study. This study is designed to develop program metrics and monitoring criteria through 
stakeholder involvement, technical research, and modeling. Staff has attended several meetings 
and the effort is anticipated to continue with three or more meetings through July 2023. 

 
2023 Operation Details 
 
• Climate Pattern – La Nina conditions experienced the last three years came to an end in February 

2023. Patterns shifted to ENSO Neutral conditions in March 2023 and have since shifted to El Nino 
conditions in June 2023. Strong El Nino conditions have historically brought warmer and wetter 
conditions to California. There is currently a 56% chance of this El Nino becoming a strong event, 
and an 84% chance of at least a moderate event into winter. 
 

• SWP Allocation – The initial 2023 SWP Table A Allocation was set at 5% in December 2022. Since 
then, the allocation increased to 30% in January 2023, 35% in February, 75% in March, and 100% 
in April 2023.  
 

DATE: June 20, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager   

SUBJECT: Water Resources and Outreach Section Report 

307

ajacobs
Item 10.4



2 
 

• Demands – Due to extremely wet hydrology locally and statewide, as well as cool spring 
temperatures, 2023 demand estimates have been reduced. Demands without mandated 
conservation are estimated at 66,500 AF.  

 
• Banking Program Operations – All banking recoveries were halted in January 2023 due to early 

and very wet hydrology. Banking operations shifted to recharge in March 2023. 
 

o RRB Banking Program – March 2023 recharge operations began with intentions to put max 
20,000 AF into storage. Water recharged will be a combination of SWP Table A and a small 
portion of back up supplies evacuated from San Luis Reservoir. 
 

o Semitropic SWRU – March 2023 recharge operations began with intentions to put max 
5,000 AF into storage, with options to recharge up to 10,000 AF, if requested and capacity is 
available. 

 
• Water Exchanges –  

 
o SCV Water successfully executed a 3:2 exchange agreement with MWD in March 2023 in 

order to evacuate all 9,433 AF of Article 56 water from San Luis to eliminate risk of spill.  
Return water will be delivered to SCV Water in 2023 totaling 6,289 AF.  

 
o Staff is working with Rosedale Rio Bravo WSD to negotiate an exchange agreement for  

surplus SCV Water Table A supplies in 2023. Staff intends to bring more information on this 
exchange agreement at the July 2023 Water Resources and Watershed Committee 
meeting. 
 

o Staff met with Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency (AVEK) to discuss exchange 
opportunities for potential surplus SCV Water Table A supplies in 2023, including long-term 
program options. In a follow-up AVEK stated they were not in a position to take more water 
in 2023.   

 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation 
 
• At the June 5, 2023 meeting, the SCV-GSA Board discussed development of procedures for 

review of proposed groundwater production wells in the basin. New procedures are required due to 
the Governor’s Executive Order N-3-23 which requires GSAs to evaluate proposed groundwater 
use. The SCV-GSA Board requested a special Board meeting be held to advance procedures for 
reviewing new production wells. The special Board meeting is scheduled for July 27, 2023. This 
new level of work will require coordination with Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, 
and Ventura County’s Watershed Protection District. The SCV-GSA Board was also updated on 
groundwater flowmodel recalibration and that staff plan to recommend revisions to certain 
sustainable management criteria (primarily GDE triggers, but also some minimum thresholds) in 
September 2023. 

 
Significant Upcoming Items 

 
• Staff is working with United Water Conservation District to coordinate Article 21 deliveries as 

described in the executed agreement for the Coordinated Deliveries of State Water Project Water 
Supplies between United Water Conservation District and Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. 
Article 21 water will be delivered through Castaic Lake and released down Castaic Creek providing 
additional groundwater percolation benefits to both agencies. 

308



3 
 

 
• Staff met with AVEK to discuss the development of AVEK’s High Desert Water Bank Phase 2. Staff 

is working with AVEK and other partners to develop a Memorandum of Understanding to guide 
participation. 
 

• Staff is meeting with Rosedale Rio Bravo WSD and Irvine Ranch Water District to better understand 
the recharge and recovery capacity priorities of the respective agencies and assess the feasibility of 
a multi-agency long-term exchange program. 
 

• Staff continues to work with Woodard and Curran to refine the Online New Drop database. Reporting 
features, QA/QC, and dashboards will be improved as the tool is used by Water Resources and 
Customer Service staff. Customized reports continue to be developed to assist staff in completing 
quarterly reports to the Regional Board for the Agency’s recycled water permit. Additionally, 
improvements continue to be made to the online database with the help of Customer Care 
Department feedback. A QA/QC process is being conducted on the New Drop database to ensure 
that every drop is captured in the quarterly reports. This task will be completed before the end of FY 
2022/23. Five additional members of the Customer Service team are being cross trained to assist 
with data entry and quality assurance, and new reports are under development to support the 
expanding use of recycled water within our service area. Lastly, the quarterly report under Monitoring 
and Reporting Program Order No. WQ 2016-0068-DDW (CI -10081) for the first quarter of 2023 will 
be submitted in mid-June 2023.  
 

• Staff, including SCV Water’s IT and Operations staff, have been working with consultants to survey 
all SCV Water wellheads so that groundwater elevations are referenced to the most up to date 
reference point elevations, and to incorporate groundwater elevation data into a new web-based 
data management system (DMS). Use of this web based DMS allows SCV Water to have more 
efficient access to up-to-date groundwater elevation plots for the GSP wells including those 
needed for Groundwater Sustainability Plan compliance. At this stage, this new DMS is focused on 
GSP wells, but it can be scaled up to include other SCV Water wells at a later date, if warranted. 
 

• Staff has completed the transition of SCV Water’s Excel-based MBK Water Supply Reliability Model 
to the GoldSim platform. Staff has completed revision of assumptions related to Article 56 storage 
and spills in San Luis and is currently evaluating the benefits of participating in the AVEK High 
Desert Bank. Staff will be presenting several comparative scenarios at the July 2023 Water 
Resources and Watershed Committee meeting. 

 
• As part of GSP implementation, two adjacent groundwater recharge sites have been selected on the 

east end of the Santa Clara River Basin for inclusion in the recharge feasibility study being 
conducted with the help of GSI technical consultants. The geophysical portion of the fieldwork was 
completed in mid-January 2022 and a summary report was received on March 30, 2022. A 
delineation and biological assessment to determine permitting requirements was completed the week 
of June 1, 2022, and a draft report was received on August 11, 2022. Staff met with CDFW personnel 
on November 18, 2022 to discuss the findings of the delineation report and obtain guidance on the 
next steps of the process. A CDFW notification package was then submitted on January 17, 2023 
and an Operation of Law letter was received from CDFW on March 27, 2023, allowing staff to 
continue with data collection activities for the study. The infiltration testing and borehole sampling 
work began on May 2, 2023 and was completed May 11, 2023. A grant extension through December 
2023 was secured to enable completion of additional groundwater modeling for the feasibility studies. 
The final feasibility report will be completed before the end of 2023.  

 

309



4 
 

• Staff continues engagement in a data management effort to identify opportunities for streamlining 
certain data collection and post-processing efforts. This project is primarily focused on all data 
flowing to the Water Resources team. Data collection efforts are underway to gain an understanding 
of the extent of information collected by the various departments, the reports that each department 
generates, and existing methods/tools used for data organization within the Agency.  
 

• The work on the water resources data management effort has led several staff members to join an 
agency-wide data governance task force. Staff will be working with Technology Services and GIS on 
developing a data governance work plan with the following tasks: 1) Data Governance Objectives; 
2) Framework and Principles; 3) Roles and Responsibilities; 4) Policies and Procedures; 5) Data 
Quality and Integrity; 6) Privacy, Security, and Compliance; 7) Governance Technology and Tools; 
and 8) Implementation Plan and Timeline.   
 

• Staff’s collaboration with Provost and Pritchard and Thomas Harder & Company to analyze 
alternative land uses for the Devil’s Den property to maximize the property’s value to the Agency has 
been completed. The Committee requested that staff investigate additional land use scenarios and 
provide an updated report at a future meeting.  
 

• Staff has received a formal request for a Water Supply Verification (WSV) from the City of Santa 
Clarita for the Sand Canyon Village project and has received the necessary project information from 
the developer to prepare the WSV but needs the new Kennedy Jenks (KJ) report on MCL and PFAS 
well treatment before it presents its findings to the Water Resources and Watershed Committee. 
Staff is also working on the WSV for the Tesoro Del Valle project, although a formal request for this 
has not been submitted by the City. 

 
• In order to determine future supply and cost impacts of the newly proposed MCLs for PFAS 

chemicals, staff is working with KJs Consultants on an Addendum to the PFAS Treatment 
Implementation Plan completed in 2021. Staff met with KJ on June 14, 2023 to participate in a kickoff 
meeting and a draft report is expected to be received by mid-July 2023.   

 
• Staff is working with Raftelis on the preparation of the Stand-By Charge for the Tesoro Del Valle 

Development. This document will need to go through both the Finance and Administration Committee 
and the Board of Directors for approval before submittal to Los Angeles County in August 2023. 

 
• A Water Supply Assessment request for the Crossroads Development has been received from the 

developer. The assessment is awaiting a formal request from the City of Santa Clarita. 
 
• The Sites Reservoir Authority received a response to its water rights application from the State Water 

Resources Control Board (SWRCB). The Board requested additional information regarding water 
availability if future Delta Water Quality Control Plans being considered by the SWRCB are enacted. 

 
• To maximize the beneficial uses of recycled water and adhere to pending and/or future 

environmental requirements, staff is working with Woodard and Curran to develop a Scope of Work 
(SOW) to include in a future RFP for an update to SCV Water’s Recycled Water Master Plan. A 
second draft was received on June 7, 2023, and is under review by staff.  
 

• Staff continues to work with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) on the development of the 
California Environmental Flows Framework (CEFF) for the East Basin Santa Clara River, which aims 
to improve river ecological function. The Habitat Suitability Model (HSM), as part of the CEFF 
analysis, and preliminary observations on existing conditions have been completed. A presentation 

310



5 
 

on the CEFF work completed to date was given at the June 2023 Water Resources and Watershed 
Committee meeting. Moving forward, staff plans to seek input from the Committee regarding the 
Agency's ecological and management objectives. 

  
COMMUNICATIONS, LEGISLATION AND GRANTS 
 
Key Accomplishments 
 
• Assistant General Manager Steve Cole and SCV Water Board Member Maria Gutzeit attended a 

Legislative Briefing in Washington, D.C. June 12-14, 2023. They met with our Federal legislative 
advocates to talk about funding for various watershed initiatives including water supply and water 
quality restoration projects (i.e., PFAS remediation, etc.). 
 

• The Agency was awarded the Clair A. Hill Award for its Valley Center Well PFAS Treatment Facility 
at the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) 2023 Spring Conference and Expo in 
Monterey. The award is for excellence in water treatment and innovation in addressing water industry 
issues. Communications staff deployed a large-scale outreach plan to maintain customer confidence 
and understanding surrounding PFAS. 

 
• The Education work group developed a Scout Day Program to help local troops, patrols or packs in 

fulfilling merit badge requirements. The summer Scout Days will be held in July 2023. Additionally, 
Communications staff assisted with the development of a webpage to promote the program. 
 

• Staff assisted Customer Care in developing outreach for its Pilot Ratepayer Assistance Program. 
Efforts were conducted in English and Spanish and included: a bill insert, web page, eNewsletter 
content and a series of letters to help customers as they navigate the application process. 
 

• Staff decided to transfer maintenance responsibilities of the Agency’s new website to InBound 
Design, the developer that provided support to the previous WordPress site, to ensure exceptional 
and timely support and service when needed. During the week of May 22, 2023, the website was 
transferred to a new hosting service. 
 

• Staff assisted Water Quality with the development of the annual Consumer Confidence Report 
(English/Spanish) and associated outreach efforts, which included a Signal newspaper legal ad, 
press release, CCR bill notification (print/electronic), and social media. 
 

• Staff assisted Conservation with outreach for their new sustainable gardening publication, Garden 
Smarter. Communications included a press release, eBlast to almost 25,000 customers (with a 75% 
open rate), a direct mail postcard (single family residential), social media, and hard copies available 
at community events, libraries, irrigation supply houses, local nurseries and our Customer Care 
office.  
 

• Staff finalized a scholarships landing page (yourSCVwater.com/scholarships) to provide students 
with information on the Edward G. “Jerry” Gladbach Scholarship (ACWA) and the SCV Water 
Operations Scholarship (College of the Canyons). Both offerings have been added to the ACWA and 
COC websites, respectively. 
 

• Staff hosted a Water Matters: Navigating the Consumer Confidence Report and Water Quality 
Concerns In the SCV! on June 21. The topics included the 2023 CCR, hard water, PFAS, and cloudy 
water. 

311

https://www.yourscvwater.com/scholarships


6 
 

 
Legislative/Government Affairs 

 
Upcoming Sponsorships and Event Participation 
 
• Alliance for Water Efficiency (AWE) Symposium – August 2-3, 2023 
• Urban Water Institute (UWI) Fall Conference – August 23-25, 2023 
• Santa Clarita Valley Economic Development Corporation 2023 Economic Outlook – September 15, 

2023 
 
Community Events 
 
• City of Santa Clarita River Rally – September 2023 
• CAST for Kids @ Castaic Lake (DWR) – October 7, 2023 

 
Outreach – Social/Digital Media & Education 
 

Outlet Description Notable Activity Audience 

Facebook 
Social media 

Across all three platforms in May: 1.1K 
Instagram    Total Engagement:   2,440 (all outlets)  1,695 
Twitter    Total Impressions:  44,909 (all outlets)  1,275 
Website yourSCVwater.com Unique visitors in April 2023 23,570 
 Top visited pages: 1. My Account 

2. Residential rebates  

Water Currents Customer e-newsletter Open rate for May 2023 – 55% (Average 
industry open rate: 21.64%)  16,422 

 
Public 

Education -
2023 

Activity 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun J

ul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec  2023  2022 

Education                

Students 958 898 1208  705 1,411         4,475 6,883 
Teachers  76 77 113 59 100        366 371 

Garden 
Classes 
(virtual** and 
in-person) 

35** 49 23** 34 13        141  520 

* Data not yet available 
 
Grants 

 
• Through its WaterSMART Water and Energy Efficiency Grant Program, the Bureau of Reclamation 

issued a preliminary grant award of $2,000,000 for the Agency’s Water Efficiency Program. Over a 
three-year period, this grant funding will reimburse approximately 27% of costs associated with the 
Agency’s Lawn Replacement Rebate and Irrigation Efficiency Rebate programs, as well as the Multi-
Family Apartment Retrofit program. The grant agreement is anticipated to be executed in Summer 
2023. 

 
• Working with consultant Engineering Solutions Services, on April 12, 2023, staff submitted a grant 

application through the State Water Resources Control Board for funding for the Recycled Water 

312



7 
 

Phase 2C (Reach 1) project. If successful, this $2.9M grant would augment the $3M received under 
the Prop 1 Round 1 IRWM Grant for this project. Notification of award is anticipated in Summer 2023. 
 

• The adoption of the Agency’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (January 2023), rendered the Agency 
eligible to apply for funding under FEMA’s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program. To that end, the Agency 
is preparing an application for grant funding to complete seismic retrofits of ~5 water storage tanks.  
A successful grant application would result in FEMA funding 75% of project costs. Notification of 
award is anticipated in winter 2025. 

 
• As California’s ongoing drought and Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-7-22 have rendered the 

development of Rosedale Phase 2 Wells Project infeasible at this time. Staff, with the assistance of 
Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District, is investigating the possibility of moving BOR 
WaterSmart DRP Program grant funding ($1.46M) to an alternate project within the Rosedale area 
which develops dry year water supply recovery (the same benefit as the grant funded project).  

 
Significant Ongoing or Upcoming Items 

 
• Staff continues the post-launch process for the Agency’s website, with a focus on finetuning content 

and aesthetics to provide a “best in class” website. 
 

• Staff is assisting various departments with a number of outreach efforts, including:  
 

o Conservation: The Agency’s first Sustainability Plan will be considered for adoption in June 
2023. In preparation, a webpage, press release and public comment period has been 
implemented. 
 

o Engineering: Pipeline replacement projects on Dickason and Smyth, coordinating 
communications with potentially affected businesses, as well as schools that may be 
impacted. 

 
SUSTAINABILITY AND CONSERVATION 
 
Key Accomplishments 
   
• Staff, with consultant support, completed the Draft Sustainability Plan following the 30-day public 

comment period. The Draft Plan was presented to the Water Resources and Watershed Committee 
at its June 2023 meeting and will be presented to the SCV Water Board of Directors for adoption 
consideration at its July 11, 2023 special Board meeting.  
 

• Conservation staff conducted a presentation to Stay Green management on SCV Water’s 
conservation programs. 
 

• Conservation staff attended and participated in the California Water Efficiency Partnership’s Peer to 
Peer conference in Long Beach, CA. 
 

• New monitoring hardware and software has been installed at the Agency’s Solar Array.  
 
• Panel washing at the Agency’s Solar Array (Upper and Lower Fields) was completed.  

 

313



8 
 

• In June 2023, staff met with the following HOA Boards to provide education on SCV Water rebates 
and water use efficiency opportunities for the HOA’s common landscape irrigation areas: 
 
o June 14, 2023 – West Creek/West Hills HOA 

 
Status of SCV Water Drought Response 
 
This section provides a condensed version of monthly drought updates and includes an overview of 
current regulatory status, State Water Resource Control Board monthly conservation reports, SCV Water 
monthly conservation performance relative to 2020’s consumption, the Governor’s 15% of 2020 voluntary 
conservation call, and monthly and cumulative conservation trends compared to the same metrics.  
 
Regulatory Overview  

Entity/Agency Regulatory Status Notes 

 
 
Governor 
Newsom 

• Voluntary 15% v. 2020 Call (July 8, 2021) 
• Statewide Drought Emergency Declaration (October 

19, 2021) 
• EO N-7-22 directs the SWRCB to require Stage/Level 

2 Water Shortage Response implementation and for 
the Water Board consider defining and prohibiting the 
watering of non-functional turf. (March 28, 2022) 

• EO N-5-23 removes voluntary conservation call of 15% 
of 2020 and rescinds call directing SWRCB to take 
action requiring State 2 Shortage Plan measure 
implementation. The Drought Emergency Declaration 
remains in effect as well as emergency regulations 
regarding the prohibition of specific water waste 
measures and the banning of irrigating non-functional 
turf with potable water.  (March 24, 2023) 

• April 1, 2021 (2 Counties) 
• May 10, 2021 (Extended to 41 

Counties) 
• July 8, 2021 (Extended to 50 

Counties) 
• October 19, 2021 (Extended to 

Statewide) 

 
 
State Water 
Resources 
Control 
Board 

• Monthly Conservation Performance Reporting (July 
2021) 

• Readopted Emergency Regulations (December 2022) 
• Adopted Emergency Regulations which require 

implementation of Stage 2 water shortage response 
measures and bans the irrigation of non-functional turf 
with potable water (May 24, 2022). 

• Readopted Emergency Regulation banning the 
irrigation of non-functional turf with potable water (June 
2023) 

• Emergency regulations include 
water waste restrictions and 
provisions specific to HOA CCR 
implementation. 

• SCV Water preparing Non-
Functional Turf engagement and 
education initiative to promote “Turn 
it off, Cap it, or Convert it!” 

 
 
SCV Water 

• Stage 2 – WSCP (4/26/2022) 
• Stage 2 – Water Conservation and Water Supply 

Shortage Ordinance (4/26/2022) 
• Stage 1 – WSCP (11/16/2021) 
• Stage 1 – Water Conservation and Water Supply 

Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance)(11/16/2021) 

• WSCP includes strategies which 
prioritize education and incentive to 
achieve up to 20% conservation. 

• Stage 2 of the Ordinance includes 
water waste restrictions.  

• Stage 2 of Ordinance also included 
watering restrictions to 3 days per 
week, two 5-minute cycles, and 
morning and evening watering. 

 

314



9 
 

State Water Resources Control Board (Monthly Conservation Reporting) 
Month Year Statewide South Coast SCV Water 

July 2021 -1.8% -0.2% +5.1% 
August 2021 -4.9% -3.1% +.44% 
September 2021 -3.9% -4.2% -4.3% 
October 2021 -13.2% -12.2% -11.7% 
November 2021 -7.1% +0.7% +2.6% 
December 2021 -15.7% -18.4% -28.9% 
January 2022 +2.6% +1.7% -4.2% 
February 2022 -0.5% -0.2% +6.8% 
March 2022 +18.9% +26.9% +56.3% 
April 2022 +17.6% +25.6% +47.4% 
May 2022 -3.1% -2.2% -4.76% 
June 2022 -7.7% -5.9% -8.2% 
July 2022 -10.4% -8.6% -9.4% 
August 2022 -10.5% -9.7% -10.1% 
September 2022 -10.9% -11.9% -17.2% 
October 2022 -12.6% -14.4% -14.1% 
November 2022 -14.3% -13.9% -23.2% 
December 2022 -17.1% -20.3% -36.3% 
January 2023 -9.7% -14.6% -29.8% 
February 2023 -18.2% -18.4% -23.7% 
March 2023   -24.7% 
April 2023   +11.3% 
May 2023   -24.5% 

Cumulative Savings -6.6% -5.8% -7.7%% 
Note:  1. The State Water Resources Control Board conservation reporting data has a one to two-month lag. This table includes the 

most recent data as reported on the Board’s website.  
 2. Monthly drought conservation statistics adjusted following a production meter correction (Feb. 17, 2023) 
 

315



10 
 

SCV Water – Monthly Conservation Performance (Current Production v. 2020 and 15% of 2020 
Target in Acre Feet) 
 
SCV Water - Drought Performance v. 2020 (2022 & 2023) 

 
 
SCV Water – Monthly and Cumulative Conservation Performance Trends (In Percent) 

 

316



11 
 

 

 

317

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

318



E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
a
le

n
d

a
r

F
Y

 2
0
2
3
/2

4

It
e
m

July 6 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 3 Comm

Aug 15 Board

Sept 5 Board

Sept 6 Comm

Sept 19 Board

Oct 3 Board

Oct 5 Comm

Oct 17 Board

Nov 2 Comm

Nov 7 Board

Nov 21 Board

Dec 5 Board

Dec 7 Comm

Dec  19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 4 Comm

Jan 16 Board

Feb 1 Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 20 Board

March 5 Board

March 7 Comm

March 19 Board

April 2 Board

April 4 Comm

April 16 Board

May 2 Comm

May 7 Board

May 21 Board

June 4 Board

Jun 6 Comm

June 18 Board

July 2 Board

1
M

on
th

ly
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 P
la

nn
in

g 
C

al
en

da
r

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

2
C

IP
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

or
t

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

3
M

on
th

ly
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

R
ep

or
t

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

4
Th

ird
 P

ar
ty

 F
un

de
d 

A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 Q
ua

rte
rly

 R
ep

or
t

P
P

P
P

5
Q

ua
rte

rly
 S

af
et

y 
P

ro
gr

am
 P

re
se

nt
at

io
n

P
P

P
P

6
A

nn
ua

l S
af

et
y 

P
ro

gr
am

 U
pd

at
e

P
7

R
ea

l P
ro

pe
rty

 A
ct

iv
ity

 R
ep

or
t

P
P

8
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 C

on
si

de
r t

he
 P

ro
po

se
d 

FY
 2

02
4/

25
 a

nd
 

FY
 2

02
5/

26
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

s
P

9
C

ha
pt

er
 8

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t P

ro
pe

rti
es

 
T

T
T

T

10

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
to

 
A

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
In

iti
al

 S
tu

dy
- M

iti
ga

te
d 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
D

ec
la

ra
tio

n 
U

nd
er

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ct

 a
nd

 a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 to

 H
az

en
 a

nd
 

S
aw

ye
r f

or
 F

in
al

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 S
 

W
el

ls
 P

FA
S

 T
re

at
m

en
t a

nd
 D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

P
ro

je
ct

P

11

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
A

u
th

o
ri

z
in

g
 t

h
e

 S
a
n
ta

 C
la

ri
ta

 V
a
lle

y
 W

a
te

r 
A

g
e
n

c
y
’s

 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 A

pp
ly

 fo
r F

un
di

ng
 F

ro
m

 th
e 

S
ta

te
 W

a
te

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
B

o
a
rd

’s
 E

x
p
e
d

it
e
d

 

D
rin

ki
ng

 W
at

er
 G

ra
nt

 P
ro

gr
am

 o
n 

B
eh

al
f o

f N
ew

 
M

in
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fo

r D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

S
ys

te
m

 
C

on
so

lid
at

io
n

P
P

12

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
A

ut
ho

riz
in

g 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 (1
) A

pp
ro

ve
 a

 
C

on
tra

ct
 A

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

P
ac

ifi
c 

H
yd

ro
te

ch
 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

fo
r A

dd
iti

on
al

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s 

an
d 

(2
) 

E
xe

cu
te

 a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 A

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

Le
e+

R
o,

 
In

c.
 fo

r E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

S
up

po
rt 

D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
E

ar
l S

ch
m

id
t F

ilt
ra

tio
n 

P
la

nt
 (E

S
FP

) W
as

hw
at

er
 

R
et

ur
n 

an
d 

S
lu

dg
e 

S
ys

te
m

s 
P

ro
je

ct

P
P

13

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f (

1)
 A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 to

 W
es

t Y
os

t A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

fo
r 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r t

he
 R

io
 V

is
ta

 W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t 
P

la
nt

 T
ur

bi
di

ty
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct
, a

nd
 (2

) 
Fi

nd
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

is
 N

ot
 a

 P
ro

je
ct

 
S

ub
je

ct
 to

 C
E

Q
A

P
P

P
 - 

P
la

nn
ed

 
T-

Te
nt

at
iv

e 
C

- C
om

pl
et

ed
 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 3

319

ajacobs
Item 10.5



E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
a
le

n
d

a
r

F
Y

 2
0
2
3
/2

4

It
e
m

July 6 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 3 Comm

Aug 15 Board

Sept 5 Board

Sept 6 Comm

Sept 19 Board

Oct 3 Board

Oct 5 Comm

Oct 17 Board

Nov 2 Comm

Nov 7 Board

Nov 21 Board

Dec 5 Board

Dec 7 Comm

Dec  19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 4 Comm

Jan 16 Board

Feb 1 Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 20 Board

March 5 Board

March 7 Comm

March 19 Board

April 2 Board

April 4 Comm

April 16 Board

May 2 Comm

May 7 Board

May 21 Board

June 4 Board

Jun 6 Comm

June 18 Board

July 2 Board

14

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

(1
) a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 F
le

m
in

g 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

nc
, (

2)
 a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 to
 L

ee
 +

 
R

o 
fo

r E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ur
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

(3
) a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 to
 K

en
ne

dy
 J

en
ks

 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 In

c 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ur
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

(4
) 

Fi
nd

 th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xe
m

pt
 F

ro
m

 C
E

Q
A

 
P

ur
su

an
t t

o 
C

E
Q

A
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
30

1,
 a

nd
 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
el

y,
 E

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 C

E
Q

A
 U

nd
er

 C
E

Q
A

 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
30

2

P
P

15
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
R

ep
la

ce
 A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
65

0 
fe

et
 o

f P
ip

el
in

e 
an

d 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
A

pp
ur

te
na

nc
es

 
in

 B
en

ed
a 

La
ne

P
P

16

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 R
ea

l 
P

ro
pe

rty
 3

.8
 +

/- 
 A

cr
es

 in
 N

ew
ha

ll,
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

C
o
u
n

ty
 A

s
s
e
s
s
o
r’

s
 P

a
rc

e
l 
N

o
s
. 
2
8

5
9
-0

0
2
-0

2
4

, 
-0

2
5

, 

 2
85

5-
01

1-
03

4 
an

d 
-0

35

P

17
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f P
ip

el
in

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
B

eg
on

ia
s 

La
ne

P
P

18

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 a

 D
eN

or
a 

C
lo

rT
ec

 O
ns

ite
 S

od
iu

m
 H

yp
oc

hl
or

ite
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 fo

r t
he

 F
ai

r O
ak

s 
R

es
er

vo
ir 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

S
ys

te
m

P
P

19
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f A
do

pt
in

g 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

A
w

ar
di

ng
 a

 C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r t

he
 N

or
th

 O
ak

s 
W

at
er

 
S

to
ra

ge
 T

an
ks

 1
 a

nd
 4

 C
oa

tin
g 

P
ro

je
ct

P
P

20
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f A
do

pt
in

g 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

A
w

ar
di

ng
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r P

ip
el

in
e 

to
 L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 R
es

id
en

tia
l C

om
m

un
ity

P
P

21

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 
to

 E
xe

cu
te

 a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 A

m
en

dm
en

t f
or

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 D
es

ig
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r S
au

gu
s 

W
el

ls
 3

 &
 4

 
P

ro
je

ct

P
P

22
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 P
ip

el
in

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

fo
r V

as
qu

ez
 C

an
yo

n 
P

P

23

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
A

w
ar

di
ng

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 a

nd
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
s 

fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r V
al

en
ci

a 
M

ar
ke

t P
la

ce
 P

ip
el

in
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

P
P

24
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 a

n 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 S
C

V
W

A
 

Fi
lte

r M
ed

ia
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

P
P

P
 - 

P
la

nn
ed

 
T-

Te
nt

at
iv

e 
C

- C
om

pl
et

ed
 

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 3

320



E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
a
le

n
d

a
r

F
Y

 2
0
2
3
/2

4

It
e
m

July 6 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 3 Comm

Aug 15 Board

Sept 5 Board

Sept 6 Comm

Sept 19 Board

Oct 3 Board

Oct 5 Comm

Oct 17 Board

Nov 2 Comm

Nov 7 Board

Nov 21 Board

Dec 5 Board

Dec 7 Comm

Dec  19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 4 Comm

Jan 16 Board

Feb 1 Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 20 Board

March 5 Board

March 7 Comm

March 19 Board

April 2 Board

April 4 Comm

April 16 Board

May 2 Comm

May 7 Board

May 21 Board

June 4 Board

Jun 6 Comm

June 18 Board

July 2 Board

25
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 N
ew

 S
an

d 
C

an
yo

n 
P

la
za

 1
.5

 M
G

 T
an

k 
(D

ea
ne

 Z
on

e)
 a

nd
 C

os
t 

S
ha

rin
g 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 D

ev
el

op
er

P
P

26
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 P
ip

el
in

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

fo
r N

ew
ha

ll 
A

ve
nu

e 
fro

m
 M

ar
ke

t S
tre

et
 to

 P
in

e 
S

tre
et

 
P

P

27
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f D
es

ig
n 

of
 P

ip
el

in
e 

in
 S

ie
rra

 
H

ig
hw

ay
 fr

om
 D

oc
kw

ei
le

r t
o 

N
ew

ha
ll 

A
ve

nu
e

P
P

28
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f A
do

pt
in

g 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

A
w

ar
di

ng
 a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 fo
r F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r H
on

by
 T

an
k 

P
ip

el
in

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
P

P

29
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 P
ip

el
in

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

fo
r V

ia
 P

rin
ce

ss
a/

W
ey

er
ha

us
er

 W
ay

 
P

P

30

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
A

w
ar

di
ng

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 fo

r T
&

U
 W

el
ls

 
P

FA
S

 T
re

at
m

en
t, 

S
au

gu
s 

1 
an

d 
2 

V
O

C
 T

re
at

m
en

t, 
an

d 
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

Fa
ci

lit
y

P
P

31
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f A
do

pt
in

g 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

A
w

ar
di

ng
 a

 C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r t

he
 C

op
pe

r H
ill

 2
 W

at
er

 
S

to
ra

ge
 T

an
k 

C
oa

tin
g 

P
ro

je
ct

P
P

32
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f A
do

pt
in

g 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

A
w

ar
di

ng
 a

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r t

he
 W

el
l 

20
5 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
P

P

33

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

A
ut

ho
riz

in
g 

S
an

ta
 C

la
rit

a 
V

al
le

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

to
 P

ro
vi

de
 W

at
er

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
La

bo
ra

to
ry

 T
es

tin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 th
e 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

P
P

34

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
A

w
ar

di
ng

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 a

nd
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
s 

fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r P
ha

se
 2

C
 S

ou
th

 E
nd

 R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
E

xt
en

si
on

P
P

35

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
A

w
ar

di
ng

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 a

nd
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
s 

fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 F
ill

 S
ta

tio
n

P
P

P
 - 

P
la

nn
ed

 
T-

Te
nt

at
iv

e 
C

- C
om

pl
et

ed
 

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 3

321



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

322



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
al

en
da

r
FY

 2
02

3/
24

Ite
m

July 11 Board

July 17 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 15 Board

Aug 21 Comm (Q4)

Sept 5 Board

Sept 25 RESCHED Comm

Oct 3 Board

Oct 16 Comm (possible cancel

Nov 7 Board 

Nov 20 Comm (Q1)

Dec 5 Board

Dec 11 RESCHED Comm

Dec 19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 22 RESCHED Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 26 RESCHED Comm 
(Q2)

Mar 5 Board

Mar 18 Comm

April 2 Board

April 15 Comm

May 16 Board

May 20 Comm (Q3)

June 4 Board

June 17 Comm

June 18 - JPA

1

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 S

et
tin

g 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

rit
a 

Va
lle

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Ta
x 

R
at

e 
fo

r F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

in
g 

Le
vy

 o
f T

ax
 b

y 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
(c

on
se

nt
 - 

m
ov

ed
 u

p 
du

e 
to

 7
-4

 c
an

ce
lle

d 
Bo

ar
d)

P

2
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
O

ffi
ci

al
 

St
at

em
en

t
P

3
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f A
pr

il 
20

23
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

4
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
FY

 2
02

3/
24

 W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
C

on
tra

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 
(c

on
se

nt
)

P
P

.

5
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 X

YZ
 

C
om

pa
ny

 fo
r J

an
ito

ria
l S

er
vi

ce
s

P
P

6
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
Po

lic
y

P
P

7
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f M
ay

 2
02

3 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

8
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

9
In

ve
st

m
en

t A
dv

is
or

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

ar
ke

t U
pd

at
e

P

10
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f A
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 
St

ud
y

P
P

11
D

is
cu

ss
 a

nd
 D

et
er

m
in

e 
R

at
ep

ay
er

 A
dv

oc
at

e 
N

ee
ds

 a
nd

 S
co

pe
P

12
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f J
un

e 
20

23
 

M
on

tly
 a

nd
 F

Y 
20

22
/2

3 
Fo

ur
th

 Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
or

t
P

P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 3

6/
29

/2
02

3

323



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
al

en
da

r
FY

 2
02

3/
24

Ite
m

July 11 Board

July 17 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 15 Board

Aug 21 Comm (Q4)

Sept 5 Board

Sept 25 RESCHED Comm

Oct 3 Board

Oct 16 Comm (possible cancel

Nov 7 Board 

Nov 20 Comm (Q1)

Dec 5 Board

Dec 11 RESCHED Comm

Dec 19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 22 RESCHED Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 26 RESCHED Comm 
(Q2)

Mar 5 Board

Mar 18 Comm

April 2 Board

April 15 Comm

May 16 Board

May 20 Comm (Q3)

June 4 Board

June 17 Comm

June 18 - JPA

13
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Ad

op
tin

g 
a 

R
ev

is
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ol
ic

y 
- (

An
nu

al
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 v
ia

 
re

so
) (

co
ns

en
t)

P

14
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 fo

r 
Fl

ee
t V

eh
ic

le
 P

ur
ch

as
e

P
P

15
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

16
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f J
ul

y 
20

23
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

P

17
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f A
ug

us
t 2

02
3 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

P

18
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
23

 M
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

Fi
rs

t Q
ua

rte
r 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

P
P

19
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

20
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

21
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f S
C

V 
W

at
er

 
An

nu
al

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

AC
FR

) 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

2 
(c

on
se

nt
)

P
P

22
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

3 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

23
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f N
ov

em
be

r 
20

23
 M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

24
R

ev
ie

w
 B

ud
ge

t C
al

en
da

r
P

25
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 
20

23
 a

nd
 F

Y 
20

23
/2

4 
Se

co
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
or

t a
nd

 M
id

-Y
ea

r B
ud

ge
t R

ev
ie

w
P

P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 3

6/
29

/2
02

3

324



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
al

en
da

r
FY

 2
02

3/
24

Ite
m

July 11 Board

July 17 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 15 Board

Aug 21 Comm (Q4)

Sept 5 Board

Sept 25 RESCHED Comm

Oct 3 Board

Oct 16 Comm (possible cancel

Nov 7 Board 

Nov 20 Comm (Q1)

Dec 5 Board

Dec 11 RESCHED Comm

Dec 19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 22 RESCHED Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 26 RESCHED Comm 
(Q2)

Mar 5 Board

Mar 18 Comm

April 2 Board

April 15 Comm

May 16 Board

May 20 Comm (Q3)

June 4 Board

June 17 Comm

June 18 - JPA

26
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 P

ro
po

se
d 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 
Sa

la
ry

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t (

C
O

LA
) f

or
 F

Y 
20

23
/2

4
P

P

27
D

is
cu

ss
 F

ac
ili

ty
 C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
 S

tu
dy

P

28
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

29
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

30
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

4 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

31
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Ad

op
tin

g 
th

e 
FY

 2
02

3/
24

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
24

/2
5 

Bi
en

ni
al

 B
ud

ge
t

P
P

32
R

ev
ie

w
 A

nn
ua

l L
is

t o
f P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
on

tra
ct

s 
(c

on
se

nt
)

P
P

33
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

24
 M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

34
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

th
e 

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

of
 A

ll 
As

-Y
et

 U
na

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

Fu
nd

s 
fo

r F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

(c
on

se
nt

)
P

P

35
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

th
e 

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

Li
m

it 
fo

r F
Y 

20
24

/2
5 

(c
on

se
nt

)
P

P

36
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f M
ar

ch
 2

02
4 

an
d 

FY
 2

02
3/

24
 T

hi
rd

 Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

P
P

37
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

38
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

39
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ili

ng
 o

f A
pr

il 
20

24
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

40
Ap

pr
ov

e 
FY

 2
02

4/
25

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
25

/2
6 

Bu
dg

et
s

P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 3

 o
f 3

6/
29

/2
02

3

325



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

326



         PUBLIC OUTREACH AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 2023-2024 

July 20, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement with ___to Provide Grant

Administration Services for the Proposition 1 Round 2 Integrated Regional Water Management
Implementation Grant

2. Legislative Consultant Reports
3. Communications Manager’s Report

August 1, 2023 Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement with ___to Provide Grant

Administration Services for the Proposition 1 Round 2 Integrated Regional Water Management
Implementation Grant

August 17, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report

September 21, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports (last days for Senate/Assembly to pass bills)
2. Communications Manager’s Report

October 19, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Education Programs Highlights
3. Communications Manager’s Report

November 16, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Review the 2024 Legislative Platform
3. Communications Manager’s Report

December 5, 2023 Board Meeting 
1. Adoption of the 2024 Legislative Platform

December 21, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report

January 18, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Social and Digital Media Metrics and Highlights
3. Communications Manager’s Report

February 15, 2024 Committee Meeting (last days for bills to be introduced) 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report

March 21, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report

April 18, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports

scv 
WATER 

327



 

2. Discussion of FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 Public Outreach Operating Budget  
3. Communications Manager’s Report  

 
May 16, 2024 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Campaigns and Engagement Highlights  
3. Communications Manager’s Report  

 
June 20, 2024 Committee Meeting (last days for Senate/Assembly to pass bills) 

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager’s Report 

328



         WATER RESOURCES AND WATERSHED COMMITTEE 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR FY 2023-2024 

 

July 12, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Recycled Water Rules and Regulations
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a Water Exchange Agreement with Rosedale

Rio-Bravo Water Storage District
3. Appointment and Reappointment of the SCV-GSA Board of Directors and Alternate Board of Directors for

the 2024-2026 Term
4. Water Resources Director Report:

• Staff Activities
5. Sustainability Manager Report:

• Status of Agency’s Solar Panel

August 1, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Recycled Water Rules and Regulations
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a Water Exchange Agreement with Rosedale

Rio-Bravo Water Storage District
3. Appointment and Reappointment of the SCV-GSA Board of Directors and Alternate Board of Directors for

the 2024-2026 Term

August 9, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the SB 221 Water Supply Verification for the Sand

Canyon Village Development
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement for Water Transport between

Paradise Ranch and SCV Water Agency
3. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement for the Vista Canyon Recycled

Water between City of Santa Clarita Valley and SCV Water Agency
4. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a MOU with Antelope Valley-East Kern Water

District to Fund Planning Costs for a Portion of the Proposed Phase 2 Proposed High Desert Water Bank
5. Water Resources Director Report:

• Review of FY 2022-23 Grant Acquisition & Management Activities
• Status of Groundwater Recharge Feasibility Studies

6. Sustainability Manager Report:
• Status of Conservation Activities and Performance

August 15, 2023 Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the SB 221 Water Supply Verification for the Sand

Canyon Village Development

September 6, 2023 Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement for Water Transport between

Paradise Ranch and SCV Water Agency
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement for the Vista Canyon Recycled

Water between City of Santa Clarita Valley and SCV Water Agency
3. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a MOU with Antelope Valley-East Kern Water

District to Fund Planning Costs for a Portion of the Proposed Phase 2 Proposed High Desert Water Bank

September 13, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a Long-Term Water Exchange Agreement

with Irvine Ranch Water District
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a Contract for a Feasibility Study of New

Groundwater Management Actions
3. Water Resources Director Report:

• Review GoldSim Scenario Assessing Benefits of AVEK High Desert Water Banking Program

scv 
WATER 

329



• Update on Water Banking and Exchange Programs
• Devil’s Den Potential Revenue and Water Yield/Quality Analysis

4. Sustainability Manager Report:
• Status of Drought Response and Performance

October 3, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a Long-Term Water Exchange Agreement

with Irvine Ranch Water District
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a Contract for a Feasibility Study of New

Groundwater Management Actions

October 11, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Water Resources Director Report:
2. Sustainability Manager Report:

• Status of Conservation Activities and Performance

November 8, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Water Resources Manager Report:

• Status of New Drop Program
• Status of Upper Santa Clara River Salt and Nutrient Management Plan

2. Sustainability Manager Report:
• Status of Drought Response and Performance

December 13, 2023 Committee Meeting 
1. Authorize the General Manager to Enter into Contracts for Water Resiliency Plan Initiative
2. Water Resources Manager Report:

• Status of Water Supplies
3. Sustainability Manager Report:

• Status of Conservation Activities and Performance

330


	Information Sheet
	Notice and Call
	Agenda 
	Item 5.1
	Item 5.2
	Item 5.3
	Item 5.4
	Item 5.5
	Item 6.1
	Item 9.1
	Item 9.2
	Item 9.3
	Item 10.1
	Item 10.2
	Item 10.3
	Item 10.4
	Item 10.5



